
COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT 
WEDNESDAY, July 21, 2021  

9:00 AM CONSENT HEARINGS 
AGENDA 

1. Call meeting to order

2. Declarations of pecuniary interest

3. Approval of agenda

THAT Committee approves the agenda.

4. Approval of Minutes

THAT the Minutes of May 12, 2021 be approved.

5. New and Other Business – none

6. New Applications

6.1 (9:00 AM) B5-2021 CHOUDHRY / CHAUDHARY Lot Merger

6.2 (9:00 AM) B6-2021 CHOUHAN / VARVARO Boundary Adjustment

THIS MEETING IS BEING HELD ELECTRONICALLY USING VIDEO AND/OR AUDIO 
CONFERENCING. 

To connect only by phone, please dial any of the following numbers.  When prompted, please enter the 
meeting ID provided below the phone numbers.  You will be placed into the meeting in muted mode. If you 
encounter difficulty, please call the front desk at 705-466-3341, ext. 0 

+1 647 374 4685 Canada +1 778 907 2071 Canada +1 587 328 1099 Canada
+1 647 558 0588 Canada +1 438 809 7799 Canada

To connect to video with a computer, smart phone or digital device and with either digital audio or separate 
phone line, download the zoom application ahead of time and enter the digital address below into your search 
engine or follow the link below. Enter the meeting ID when prompted.  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258 Meeting ID: 846 0224 8258 

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258


6.3 (9:00 AM) B13-2021 CHOUDRY Boundary Adjustment 

6.4 (9:00 AM) B7-2021 Bruce Trail Conservancy Severance 

6.5 (9:00 AM) B11-2021 Bruce Trail Conservancy / COHEN Boundary 
Adjustment 

6.6 (9:00 AM) B12-2021 Bruce Trail Conservancy / SALES Boundary 
Adjustment 

6.7 (9:30 AM) B8-2021 CLARK Severance 

6.8 (10:30 AM) B9-2021 STROUD Severance 

6.9 (10:45 AM) B10-2021 MAITLAND Boundary Adjustment 

7. Adjournment

THAT Committee adjourns the meeting at __________ to meet again at 9:00 am on
_______________ or at the call of the Chair.

2



COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT 
 MINUTES 

  MAY 12, 2021 | 9:00AM 

Present: Earl Hawkins, Deputy Mayor 
Ken Cufaro, Councillor 
Kim Lyon, Member  
Bart Wysokinski, Member 
Tracey Atkinson – CAO 
Roseann Knechtel – Deputy Clerk 

1.0 Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m. by the Chair Hawkins.  The meeting 
was held using electronic “Zoom” application.  

2.0 Declaration of Pecuniary Interest 

3.0 Approval of the Agenda 

Moved by Cufaro and Seconded by Lyon 
THAT Committee approves the Agenda dated May 12, 2021. 

Carried. 

4.0 Approval of Minutes 

Moved by Lyon and Seconded by Cufaro 
THAT Committee approves the Minutes dated January 6, 2021. 

Carried. 

5.0 New and Other Business – None 

6.0 New Applications 

Township Planner Tracey Atkinson confirmed that notice was given in accordance 
with the Planning Act on all 4 applications, being a first-class mailout to all 
landowners within 120m of the subject properties and required agencies a 
minimum of 20 days before the meeting and a yellow notice sign for each property. 

6.1 B2-2021 Monachino Lot Creation – 9:00am 

Township Planner Tracey Atkinson provided a summary of the application. 

Adam Santos, the applicant’s planner provided a presentation on the application 
and described the proposed severance. Consultation with Township staff, Dufferin 

3



County and the conservation authority was undertaken prior to their application 
and MDS and environmental impact studies were conducted. All requirements of 
the studies have been met. The concerns outlined in Mr. Clark’s letter were 
responded to. 

Daniel Clark spoke to his concerns and asked for clarification on previous 
severances, the building envelope locations on the severed and retained portions 
of land and the concerns surrounding the lack of natural screening on the northern 
lot. Mr. Clark requested the building envelope on both of the retained and severed 
portions be moved to the east where there is more screening. 

Verbal comments were received prior to the meeting from Doreen Riggin in 
support of the application. 

Adam Santos, confirmed that ecological and conservation authority approvals may 
be required if the building envelopes were to be dramatically altered. The 
envelopes currently meet all application zoning and environmental requirements.  

Discussion ensued and the Township Planner Tracey Atkinson spoke to the 
natural heritage systems and the protection of such. Comments were received by 
the Conservation Authority, with no objects to the approval of the application apart 
from the review of the EIS. Mitigation measures would be incorporated into the 
development agreement. 

Moved by Lyon and Seconded by Wysokinski  
THAT Application No. B2-2021submitted by 2407951 Ontario Inc. c/o Frank 
Monachino for a lot creation from 836059 4th Line – 508029 Highway 89 (R#2-
0150) be approved subject to the following: 

• That the lot creation applies to the creation of a lot of approximately 3.9 ha (+/- 5%)
rounded to two decimal places.

• Taxes and/or penalties must be paid in full up to and including the current fiscal
year on all related properties, if the amount is known.

• The deed for the subject severance must be presented to the Secretary Treasurer
prior to one year after the date of decision; a copy of the consent decision to be
kept on file at the Township solicitor’s office.

• Two paper copies of the registered plan of survey and one digital copy be provided,
including documentation from the surveyor certifying that the digital copy was
created from the same file that was used to plot the original paper copies. The
digital copy shall be of a format to the Township’s satisfaction. The paper copy
shall be circulated to the Township for review prior to registration.

• Compliance with all bylaws, including, but not limited to zoning, site plan and
property standards.

• That the lot complies with MDS1 analysis between the severed dwelling and any
nearby livestock facilities/anaerobic digesters on separate lots in accordance with

4



the Minimum Separation Distance Document and provide proof of attempted 
confirmation with the facility operators/owners. 

• The applicant shall remove the existing entrance and culvert infrastructure on
Highway 89 and reinstate the ditch.

• The applicant shall, at his/her own expense, convey to the Municipality sufficient
lands, being 3.05m, along the frontage on 4th Line, fronting the applicant’s property
to meet the requirements of the Township for road widening as well as any land
between the travelled road and the municipal road allowance. Surveys are to be
submitted to the Roads Department, for review and approval, prior to registration.
Deeds are to be submitted to the Municipality, for review and approval,
accompanied by a solicitor’s certificate indicating that the title is free and clear of
all encumbrances and the Municipality has a good and marketable title. A copy of
the plan of survey depicting the widening shall be provided to the Municipality for
their records. The Municipality shall be consulted prior to commencing a survey to
determine the amount of road widening required.  All diseased and dead trees and
livestock fences shall be relocated to the satisfaction of the Director of Public
Works

• That the registered owner shall enter into a severance agreement pursuant to
Section 51(26) of the Planning Act to address all planning matters, including, but
not limited, to establishing building envelopes on the severed and retained lots that
are in keeping with the severance sketch, MDS setbacks and include all applicable
mitigation measures from the Colville EIS and any requirements from the NVCA,
and tree planting along the southern lot line of the severed lot.  The setback
between the closest dwelling and the proposed building envelop on the southern
parcel shall be a minimum of 255m from the front lot line and a minimum of 50m
from the abutting lot line of roll no. 221600000201450000. The proposed building
envelop on the severed portion shall be a minimum of 93m from the front lot line
and 90m from the southern lot line.

• A copy of the registered agreement shall be provided to the Municipality, prior to
endorsement of the deeds for this Application for consent.

• That all conditions of consent be fulfilled within one year of the date of notice of
decision where failure to do so will cause the application to be null and void.

• Cash in lieu of parkland in the amount of $5,000.00
• Planting of screenings on the southern lot line of the severed portion of land shall

be required.
Carried. 

Notice of decision will be mailed within 15 days of the date of decision. 

6.2 B1-2021 Coe Surplus Farm Dwelling Severance - 9:30am 

Township Planner, Tracey Atkinson, provided a summary of the application. 

Kristine Loft, the applicant’s planner provided a presentation on the application 
and described the proposed severance. The applicant spoke in support of the 
application. 

5



There were no comments from the public or committee members. 

Moved by Cufaro and Seconded by Lyon 
THAT Application No. B1-2021 submitted by Stanley Michael Coe for a surplus 
swelling lot creation from 746029 30th Sideroad (R#6-19825) as a result of a farm 
consolidation be approved subject to the following: 

• That the owner is successful in obtaining an amendment to the Official Plan to
permit the severance of a third non-agricultural parcel of land

• Taxes and/or penalties must be paid in full up to and including the current fiscal
year on all related properties if the amount is known.

• The deed for the subject severance must be presented to the Secretary Treasurer
prior to one year after the date of decision; a copy of the consent decision to be
kept on file at the Township solicitor’s office.

• Two paper copies of the registered plan of survey and one digital copy be provided,
including documentation from the surveyor certifying that the digital copy was
created from the same file that was used to plot the original paper copies. The
digital copy shall be of a format to the Township’s satisfaction. The paper copy
shall be circulated to the Township for review prior to registration.

• Compliance with all bylaws, including, but not limited to zoning, site plan and
property standards.

• That the applicant successfully completes an MDS1 analysis between the severed
dwelling and any nearby livestock facilities/anaerobic digesters (LF/ADs) on
separate lots in accordance with the Minimum Separation Distance Document
(2016).

• That the applicant obtain approval from the Township for a Zoning By-law
Amendment, to re-zone the severed lands to the Rural Residential (RR) zone and
the Environmental Protection (EP) zones and to restrict residential uses on the
remnant (retained) agricultural lot.

• That the farm operation severing the lot provide confirmation of operations base
elsewhere in an abutting Township.

• That all conditions of consent be fulfilled within one year of the date of notice of
decision where failure to do so will cause the application to be null and void.

• The applicant shall, at his/her own expense, convey to the Municipality sufficient
lands, being 3.05m, along the frontage on 30 Sideroad, fronting the applicant’s
property to meet the requirements of the Township for road widening as well as
any land between the travelled road and the municipal road allowance. Surveys
are to be submitted to the Roads Department, for review and approval, prior to
registration. Deeds are to be submitted to the Municipality, for review and approval,
accompanied by a solicitor’s certificate indicating that the title is free and clear of
all encumbrances and the Municipality has a good and marketable title. A copy of
the plan of survey depicting the widening shall be provided to the Municipality for
their records. All diseased and dead trees and livestock fences shall be relocated
to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works.

6



Carried. 

Notice of decision will be mailed within 15 days of the date of decision. 

6.3 B3-2021 Unger Severance | B4-2021 Unger Easement – 9:45am 

Kristine Loft, the applicant’s planner provided a presentation on the application 
and described the proposed severance and easement. 

There were no comments from the public. 

Discussion ensued and the Township Planner provided comments from the 
Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority, stating there are no objections to the 
application but noted the presence of natural heritage features. It is recognized 
that the new severance is slightly different in size from the originally severed lot. 
Consolidation is therefore required by the solicitor to ensure that a sliver of land is 
not being created in error. 

Moved by Lyon and Seconded by Wysokinski 
THAT Application No. B3-2021 submitted by Mark Unger for a lot creation from 
CON 3 E W PT LOT 14 RP 7R4317 PT 3 PT PT 1 and PT 2 (Roll #1-34810 / #1-
34820) be approved subject to the following: 

• This consent applies to a lot creation of approximately 12 hectare (+/- 5%) rounded
to two decimal places, having a minimum frontage of 180m and a depth of
approximately 680m.

• Taxes and/or penalties must be paid in full up to and including the current fiscal
year on all related properties if the amount is known.

• The deed for the subject severance must be presented to the Secretary Treasurer
prior to one year after the date of decision; a copy of the consent decision to be
kept on file at the Township solicitor’s office.

• Two paper copies of the registered plan of survey and one digital copy be provided,
including documentation from the surveyor certifying that the digital copy was
created from the same file that was used to plot the original paper copies. The
digital copy shall be of a format to the Township’s satisfaction. The paper copy
shall be circulated to the Township for review prior to registration.

• Compliance with all bylaws, including, but not limited to zoning, site plan and
property standards.

• The applicant shall, at his/her own expense, convey to the Municipality sufficient
lands, being 3.05m, along the frontage on 2ND Line East, fronting the applicant’s
property to meet the requirements of the Township for road widening as well as
any land between the travelled road and the municipal road allowance. Surveys
are to be submitted to the Roads Department, for review and approval, prior to
registration. Deeds are to be submitted to the Municipality, for review and approval,
accompanied by a solicitor’s certificate indicating that the title is free and clear of
all encumbrances and the Municipality has a good and marketable title. A copy of

7



the plan of survey depicting the widening shall be provided to the Municipality for 
their records. The Municipality shall be consulted prior to commencing a survey to 
determine the amount of road widening required.  All diseased and dead trees and 
livestock fences shall be relocated to the satisfaction of the Director of Public 
Works 

• That all conditions of consent be fulfilled within one year of the date of notice of
decision where failure to do so will cause the application to be null and void.

• The solicitor for the owner of the subject lands shall provide an undertaking to
make an application for consolidation within thirty days following registration of the
deed for the resulting parcels, and to provide the Township with documentation
which demonstrates that the consolidation has taken place, if required by the
Township’s solicitor.

Carried. 

Notice of decision will be mailed within 15 days of the date of decision. 

6.4 B4-2021 Unger Easement – 9:45am 

Moved by Lyon and Seconded by Wysokinski 
THAT Application No. B4-2021 submitted by Zoe Unger on Part of Lot 14, 
Concession 3, for an easement subject to the following: 

• This easement applies to an approximate 1.0 hectares, located along the south lot
line of 757233 2nd Line E (being Roll No. 221600000134800) in favour of Roll No.
221600000134810.

• Taxes and/or penalties must be paid in full up to and including the current fiscal
year on all related properties if the amount is known.

• The deed for the subject severance must be presented to the Secretary Treasurer
prior to one year after the date of decision; a copy of the consent decision to be
kept on file at the Township solicitor’s office.

• Two paper copies of the registered plan of survey and one digital copy be provided,
including documentation from the surveyor certifying that the digital copy was
created from the same file that was used to plot the original paper copies. The
digital copy shall be of a format to the Township’s satisfaction. The paper copy
shall be circulated to the Township for review prior to registration.

• Compliance with all bylaws, including, but not limited to zoning, site plan and
property standards.

• The applicant shall, at his/her own expense, convey to the Municipality sufficient
lands, being 3.05m, along the frontage on 2ND Line East, fronting the applicant’s
property to meet the requirements of the Township for road widening as well as
any land between the travelled road and the municipal road allowance. Surveys
are to be submitted to the Roads Department, for review and approval, prior to
registration. Deeds are to be submitted to the Municipality, for review and approval,
accompanied by a solicitor’s certificate indicating that the title is free and clear of
all encumbrances and the Municipality has a good and marketable title. A copy of

8



the plan of survey depicting the widening shall be provided to the Municipality for 
their records. All diseased and dead trees and livestock fences shall be relocated 
to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works 

• That the language of the new easement is to the Township’s solicitor satisfaction,
and that all legal costs for such review be paid in full.

• That all conditions be fulfilled within one year of the date of notice of decision where
failure to do so will cause the application to be null and void.

A recorded vote was requested.

Yea  Nay 

Ken Cufaro  N 
Earl Hawkins, Chair Y 
Kim Lyon  Y 
Bart Wysokinski   Y 

Carried. 

Notice of decision will be mailed within 15 days of the date of decision. 

7.0 Adjournment 

Moved by Cufaro and Seconded by Lyon 
THAT Committee adjourns the meeting at 10:34 am to meet again at 9:00 am on 
Wednesday June 30, 2021 or at the call of the Chair. 

Carried. 

9



CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR 
NOTICE OF COMPLETE APPLICATION & PUBLIC MEETING 

B5-2021 CHAUDHARY 
Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment will hold a public meeting under section 53 (5) of 
the Planning Act, R.S.O.1990 c.P.13,as amended.  

This meeting is being conducted by means of Electronic Participation by a majority of 
members, as permitted by Section 238 (3.3) of the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended. 

USING VIDEO AND/OR AUDIO CONFERENCING.  

To connect only by phone, please dial any of the following numbers.  When prompted, please 
enter the meeting ID provided below the phone numbers.  You will be placed into the meeting 
in muted mode. If you encounter difficulty, please call the front desk at 705-466-3341, ext. 0  

+1 647 374 4685 Canada
+1 647 558 0588 Canada
+1 778 907 2071 Canada
+1 438 809 7799 Canada
+1 587 328 1099 Canada Meeting ID: 846 0224 8258 

To connect to video with a computer, smart phone or digital device and with either digital audio 
or separate phone line, download the zoom application ahead of time and enter the digital 
address below into your search engine or follow the link below. Enter the meeting ID when 
prompted.   

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258 Meeting ID: 846 0224 8258 

The meeting is being held to consider an application for Consent which has been submitted. 
The following are the particulars:  

MEETING DATE AND TIME: July 21, 2021 at 9:00am 
APPLICATION NUMBER: B5-2021 
OWNER/APPLICANT: CHOUDHRY MONA / CHAUDHARY KULVINDER KUMAR 
LOCATION: CONCESSION 2 EHS, EAST PART LOT 1 PCL 2 & PCL 3 

PURPOSE: The application proposes to merge two individual 1400m2 lots (parcels 2 and 3) in 
order to create one 2800m2 Rural Residential (RR) lot. 

Additional information is available for public inspection by request. If you require additional 
information on this application, it may also be obtained by contacting the CAO/Planner, Tracey 
Atkinson, 705 466 3341 X222 or by email: takinson@mulmur.ca during regular office hours.  

NOTE:  If a person or public body that files an appeal of a decision of the Township of Mulmur 
Committee of Adjustment in respect of the proposed consent does not make written submissions 

10

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258
mailto:takinson@mulmur.ca


to the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment before it gives or refuses to give a provisional 
consent, the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal may dismiss the appeal.   If you wish to be notified 
of the decision of the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment in respect of the proposed 
consent, you must make a written request to the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment. 

See Map for illustration purposes only. This is not a plan of survey. A digital version is 
available by email.  

Dated May 18, 2021 

11



CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR 
NOTICE OF COMPLETE APPLICATION & PUBLIC MEETING 

B6-2021 CHOUHAN 
Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment will hold a public meeting under section 53 (5) of 
the Planning Act, R.S.O.1990 c.P.13,as amended.  

This meeting is being conducted by means of Electronic Participation by a majority of 
members, as permitted by Section 238 (3.3) of the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended. 

USING VIDEO AND/OR AUDIO CONFERENCING.  

To connect only by phone, please dial any of the following numbers.  When prompted, please 
enter the meeting ID provided below the phone numbers.  You will be placed into the meeting 
in muted mode. If you encounter difficulty, please call the front desk at 705-466-3341, ext. 0  

+1 647 374 4685 Canada
+1 647 558 0588 Canada
+1 778 907 2071 Canada
+1 438 809 7799 Canada
+1 587 328 1099 Canada Meeting ID: 846 0224 8258 

To connect to video with a computer, smart phone or digital device and with either digital audio 
or separate phone line, download the zoom application ahead of time and enter the digital 
address below into your search engine or follow the link below. Enter the meeting ID when 
prompted.   

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258 Meeting ID: 846 0224 8258 

The meeting is being held to consider an application for Consent which has been submitted. 
The following are the particulars:  

MEETING DATE AND TIME: July 21, 2021 at 9:00am 
APPLICATION NUMBER: B6-2021 
OWNER/APPLICANT: CHOUHAN RITU/ VARVARO VINCENZO 
LOCATION: CONCESSION 2 EHS, EAST PART LOT 1 PCL 4 & PCL 5 

PURPOSE: The application proposes to sever 0.17 ha (1700m2) from the existing 0.60 hectare 
lot and convey the land to the adjacent 0.15 ha (1500 m2) lot. The retained lot would have a lot 
area of 0.43 ha (4300 m2). 

Additional information is available for public inspection by request. If you require additional 
information on this application, it may also be obtained by contacting the CAO/Planner, Tracey 
Atkinson, 705 466 3341 X222 or by email: takinson@mulmur.ca during regular office hours.  

12

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258


NOTE:  If a person or public body that files an appeal of a decision of the Township of Mulmur 
Committee of Adjustment in respect of the proposed consent does not make written submissions 
to the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment before it gives or refuses to give a provisional 
consent, the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal may dismiss the appeal.   If you wish to be notified 
of the decision of the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment in respect of the proposed 
consent, you must make a written request to the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment. 

See Map for illustration purposes only. This is not a plan of survey. A digital version is 
available by email.  

13



CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR 
NOTICE OF COMPLETE APPLICATION & PUBLIC MEETING 

B13-2021 CHAUDHARY 
Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment will hold a public meeting under section 53 (5) of 
the Planning Act, R.S.O.1990 c.P.13,as amended.  

This meeting is being conducted by means of Electronic Participation by a majority of 
members, as permitted by Section 238 (3.3) of the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended. 

USING VIDEO AND/OR AUDIO CONFERENCING.  

To connect only by phone, please dial any of the following numbers.  When prompted, please 
enter the meeting ID provided below the phone numbers.  You will be placed into the meeting 
in muted mode. If you encounter difficulty, please call the front desk at 705-466-3341, ext. 0  

+1 647 374 4685 Canada
+1 647 558 0588 Canada
+1 778 907 2071 Canada
+1 438 809 7799 Canada
+1 587 328 1099 Canada Meeting ID: 846 0224 8258 

To connect to video with a computer, smart phone or digital device and with either digital audio 
or separate phone line, download the zoom application ahead of time and enter the digital 
address below into your search engine or follow the link below. Enter the meeting ID when 
prompted.   

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258 Meeting ID: 846 0224 8258 

The meeting is being held to consider an application for Consent which has been submitted. 
The following are the particulars:  

MEETING DATE AND TIME: July 21, 2021 at 9:00am 
APPLICATION NUMBER: B13-2021 
OWNER/APPLICANT: CHOUDHRY MONA 
LOCATION: CON 2 E E PT LOT 1 PCL 2 

PURPOSE: The application proposes to sever +/- 0.056 ha (0.14 acres) from Lot 1 and convey it 
to Lot 1 in order to create a Rural Residential (RR) building lot. 

Additional information is available for public inspection by request. If you require additional 
information on this application, it may also be obtained by contacting the CAO/Planner, Tracey 
Atkinson, 705 466 3341 X222 or by email: takinson@mulmur.ca during regular office hours.  

NOTE:  If a person or public body that files an appeal of a decision of the Township of Mulmur 
Committee of Adjustment in respect of the proposed consent does not make written submissions 

14

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258
mailto:takinson@mulmur.ca


Dated June 17, 2021 

to the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment before it gives or refuses to give a provisional 
consent, the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal may dismiss the appeal.   If you wish to be notified 
of the decision of the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment in respect of the proposed 
consent, you must make a written request to the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment. 

See Map for illustration purposes only. This is not a plan of survey. A digital version is 
available by email.  

15



TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR 
COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT

CONCESSION 2 EHS, EAST PART LOT 1 PCL 2 & PCL 3
CONCESSION 2 EHS, EAST PART LOT 1 PCL 4 & PCL 5
CONCESSION 2 EHS, EAST PART LOT 1 PCL 1 & PCL 2

Application Number: B5-2021(CHAUDHARY)/ B6-2021 (CHOUHAN)/B13-2021 (CHOUDHRY)

July 21, 2021 Committee of Adjustment, Township of Mulmur

16



SITE LOCATION
• The Subject Lands are located on the North side of 

Highway 89 west of Airport Road between the 1st 
Line EHS and the 2nd Line EHS 10 in the Township of 
Mulmur.

• The property is located within a rural area that is
largely comprised of agricultural and environmental
lands with an aggregate operation to the north. 

• Surrounding Uses –
• North: Aggregate, Agricultural and

environmental lands associated with Boyne
Valley. 

• West: Aggregate, Agricultural, Residential and
some highway commercial along Highway  89
at the intersection of Highway 10.

• South: Agricultural and environmental lands.
• East: Aggregate, Agricultural with some

Residential along Highway 89.

17



PURPOSE:
• The Purpose of the Consent applications is to 

reconfigure five deficient lots into four 
developable residential lots.

• The owners have purchased these lots with
the intention of applying for consents for lot
conveyances in order to create suitably sized 
parcels of land for residential development.

• The parcels currently are vacant.

18



PROPOSAL 
CONSENT APPLICATION #1: B5-2021 (Choudhry/Chaudhary)

• This application for consent pertains to lands located at 
CONCESSION 2 EHS, EAST PART LOT 1 PCL 2 & PCL 3.

• The application proposes to merge two individual 1400m2
lots (parcels 2 and 3) in order to create one 2800m2 Rural
Residential (RR) lot.

• The parcels currently are vacant.

• Lots 2 and 3 do not meet the minimum lot frontage 
requirement of 45 m or lot area requirement of 0.4 ha of 
the Rural Residential (RR) Zone.  

19



PROPOSAL 
CONSENT APPLICATION #2: #B6-2021(Chouhan):

• This application  pertains to the lands located at 
CONCESSION 2 EHS, EAST PART LOT 1 PCL 4 & PCL 5. 

• The application proposes to sever 0.17 ha (1700m2) 
from the existing 0.60 hectare lot (#5)  and convey 
the land to the adjacent 0.15 ha (1500 m2) lot.(#4). 
The retained lot would have a lot area of 0.43 ha 
(4300 m2).

• MTO did comment and requested a minor change to 
the severed parcel, and we would agree with this 
change.

20



PROPOSAL 
CONSENT APPLICATION #2: #B6-2021(Chouhan):

• This application  pertains to the lands located at 
CONCESSION 2 EHS, EAST PART LOT 1 PCL 4 & PCL 5. 

• MTO did comment and requested a minor change to 
the severed parcel, and we would agree with this 
change.

21



PROPOSAL 

CONSENT APPLICATION #3 : B13-2021(Choudhry):

• This application for consent pertains to the lands located at 
CONCESSION 2 EHS, EAST PART LOT 1 PCL  2. 

• This application proposes to sever .056ha from Lot 2 and convey to 
Lot 1. 

• Lot 1 and 2 do not meet the minimum lot frontage requirement of 
45 m or lot area requirement of 0.4ha  of the Rural Residential (RR) 
Zone in which they are located. 

CONSENT SKETCH #3:

22



PROPOSED LOT CONFIGURATION

23



TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR ZONING BY-LAW 

• The lots are zoned as Rural Residential (RR). 

• Each of the lots are existing conveyable parcels. 

• The proposed lots will more closing meet the RR zone 

provisions. 

24



CONCLUSION

• The proposed development is consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement. 

• The proposed development conforms to the Growth Plan for the Greater Golden 
Horseshoe.

• The proposed development conforms to the County of Dufferin and Township of 
Mulmur Official Plans.

• The proposed application complies with the Township of Mulmur Zoning By-law 
Amendment, as amended. 

25



LOFT PLAN N IN G

P.O. Box 246. STN MAIN
Collingwood, Ontario
LgY 325

7o.5.446.1168
kristine@loft planni ng.com
loftplanning.com

April l62O2l

Ms. Trocey Atkinson
CAO/Plo nner/Actin g Clerk
Township of Mulmur
758070 2nd Line E

Mulmur ON
L9V OGB

Deor Ms. Atkinson

RE: Plonning Juslificotion Leller
Two Proposed Consenls
LoI2- PT tT l, CON 2 EHS, AS lN MFl7188l; MUTMUR

Lot 3 - PT tT l, CON 2 EHS, AS lN MFl98188; MUTMUR

Lot 5 - PT tT 1 CON 2 EHS MUTMUR AS lN MFl93815 EXCEPT Pl 4,7R3700; MULMUR

We hove been retoined by londowners Mono Choudhry, Kulvinder Kumor Choudhory ond Ritu

Chouhon, owner of the obove-noted londs, to oct os plonners for opplicotions for Consent thoi will

focilitoie consents for conveyonces. The purpose of these opplicotion is to reduce four deficient lots

to three developoble lots. This Plonning Justificoiion Letter is being submitted os port of o complete
opplicotion in support of ihe plonning opplicotions.

The Subject Londs ore locoted on the north side of Highwoy 89 west of Airport Rood beiween the lsl

Line EHS ond ihe 2no Line EHS I O. The owners hove purchosed o series of lots wiih the intention of
opplying for consents for lot conveyonces in order to creote development porcels of lond. Their

intention is to construct single detoched units.

The proposol includes the following,

Consenl 1 - To merge Lol2 qnd Lot 3.

Provisions Lot 2 Lot 3 Merged Lot 2 ond 3

Lot Frontoge 21 m 2lm 42m

Lot Areo l4OOsqm 1400sq m 2800 sq m

t londsn of Sub1.0 Locotion & Descriptio

CHA.4852l (Choudhory)

26



P.O. Box 246, STN MAIN
Collingwood, Ontario
LgY 325

LOFT PLAN N IN G
Consenl2 - Lot 5 - To sever o portion of lol5 ond convey to lot 4.

7o.5.446.1168
kristi ne@loft planni ng.cpm
loftplanning.com

Provisions Severed Retoined Enlorged

Lot Frontoge 24.4 m 68m 45.7 m

Lot Areo lZO0sqm 4300 sq m 3200 sq m

The porcels currently ore vocont, undeveloped lond but hove been mointoined os seporotely
conveyoble porcels. The existing lois ore considered legol non-conforming in view of the Township of
Mulmur Zoning By-low 28-l B. Lots 2, 3 ond 4 do not meet the minimum lot frontoge requirement of 45

m or lot oreo requirement of 0.4 ho of the Rurol Residentiol (RR) Zone in which they ore locoted. Lot 5

meets the Township's zoning by-low requirement.

The Subject Londs comprise vocont scrublond with some vegetotion in the form of trees oround the
boundory of ihe site. The property is locoted within o rurol oreo thot is lorgely comprised of ogriculturol
ond environmentol londs with on oggregote operotion to the north. The londs hove fronioge on

Highwoy 89. The surrounding lond uses ore described os follows:

o Norlh: Aggregote, Agriculturol ond environmentol londs ossocioied with Boyne Volley.

o Eosl: Aggregote, Agriculturolwith some Residentiol olong Highwoy 89.

o Soulh: Agriculiurol ond environmeniol londs.

o Wesl: Aggregote, Agriculturol, Residentiol ond some highwoy commerciol olong Highwoy 89

of ihe interseciion of HighwoY 10.

The Boyne Volley Provinciol Pork is locoted to the northwest of the property within the Niogoro
Escorpment Areo thot troverses the oreo northword from the southwest. The neorest communities
include Violet Hill to the eost ond Primrose to the west of the intersection of Highwoy 10.

A review of the relevont plonning documents must be undertoken to determine conformity of the

opplicotions to the Plonning Aci os well os the provinciol ond municipol plonning documents. A review

of the Consent Applicotions bosed on the opplicoble plonning documenis mode the following
conclusions:

l. The Applicolions hove Reoord for Mqllers of Provinciol lnleresl (Section 2) of lhe Plqnning Acl
l??O). The new lot configurotion will result in developoble building lots.

2

2.O Exisling ond Surrounding Uses

3.0 Policy Anolysis

CHA.48521 (Choudhory)

27



LOFT PLAN N ING

P.O. Box 246. STN MAIN
Collingwood, Ontario
LgY 325

7o5.446.1168
kristi ne@loft plann i ng.com
loftplanning.com

2. The Applicotions qre consistent with the Provinciol Policy Stolemenl 2020 ond conform lo the
Growlh Plon for lhe Greoter Golden Horseshoe. The Provinciol policies qnd plons permit
residentiol uses in rurol oreos on londs olreody zoned for residentiol use ond development thot
is compotible with ihe surrounding uses ond con be sustoined on rurol service levels.

3. The Applicolions conform to lhe Dufferin Counly ond Township of Mulmur Officiql Plons. The

Dufferin County Officiol Plon ond the Township of Mulmur Officiol Plon permit technicol
severonces which do not result in the creotion of o new lot.

4. The Applicolions conform lo the inlenl of lhe Township of Mulmur Zoninq Bv-low. The Subjeci
Londs comprise pre-existing undersized lots ond the new lot configurotion will creote
developoble lots thot mointoin the intent of the Zoning By-low.

A detoiled review of the opplicoble plonning documents is provided in the following sections.

3.1 Plonning Act

The Plonning Act provides the legislotive fromework for lond use plonning decisions in Ontorio ond must

be considered by decision mokers when reviewing development opplicotions. Sections 2 (Provinciol

lnterest), 3 (Provinciol Plons) ond 53 (Consents) of the Plonning Act opply to the opplicotions.

. Section 2 of the Plonning Act requires the considerotion of motters of "Provinciol lnterest"
including proteciion of resources, orderly development of communiiies ond the oppropriote
locotion of growth ond development.

The opplicotions propose the reconfigurotion of existing residentiol lots to enoble their development
for single detoched units. Given thot the lots ore designoted ond zoned for rurol residentiol uses, the
Subject Londs ore considered on oppropriote locotion for development ond the proposed consent
opplicotions will focilitote the development of the londs for this purpose. While it is noted thot on
oggregote operotion is locoted odjocent to ihe Subject Londs, the lots ore existing ond ore not
onticipoted io hinder oggregote operotions.

. Section 3 (5) (o) of the Plonning Act requires thot plonning decisions be consistent with policy
siotements ond conform to provinciol plons thot ore issued under the Act.

The Provinciol Policy Stotement (PPS) 2020 ond the Growth Plon for the Greoter Golden Horseshoe

opply to the opplicotions. Both of these documents ore oddressed within this letter.

. Section 53 permits the opprovol of consents if o plon of subdivision is not necessory for the proper
ond orderly development of the municipolity'

The opplicoiions propose technicol consents ond will not result in the creotion of lots, in foct there is o

net loss on one lot.

The proposed Consents meet the requirements of the Plonning Act RSO.

3.2 Provincial Policy Sfofemenf (PPS)

CONCTUSION:

CHA.4852l (Choudhory) 3

28



P.O. Box 246. STN MAIN
Collingwood, Ontario
LgY 325

LOFT PLAN N IN G

705.446.il68
kristi ne@loft planni ng.com
loftplanning.com

The Provinciol Policy Stotement (PPS) 2020 promotes efficient development poiterns thot support vioble
communities, focilitote economic growth ond protect the environment ond public heolth ond sofety.
Vioble ond heolthy rurol oreos ore supported by promoting rurol chorocier ond regenerotion,
qccommodoting o ronge of housing in settlemeni oreos ond using rurol infrostructure efficiently (S.

l.l.4.l). Growth ond development generolly ore directed to rurol settlement oreos, but locolly
oppropriote residentiol development is permitted on rurol londs (S. 

,l.,l.5.2) ond development thot is

compotible with the rurol londscope ond con be sustoined by rurol service levels is promoied (S.

r . r .5.3).

Section 2.5.2.4 protects minerol oggregote operotions from development ond octivities thot would
preclude or hinder their operotion or ore incompotible bosed on public heolthy ond sofety. Typicolly,

residentiol uses would be discouroged from locoting next to on oggregote operotion. The Subject
Londs ore designoted ond zoned for rurol residentiol uses. The lois ore existing ond in foct this proposol

will reduce the net density of lots by one.

The proposed consents will not result in lot creotion but rother will enoble existing residentiol lots to be
reduced in number ond reconfigured to o size ihot will fociliiote construction of resideniiol dwellings.
The proposed opplicotions support the PPS policies by promoting rurol residentiql development on

londs identified for this use ond bosed on the ovoiloble rurol infrostructure.

Conclus.ion: Consislency with lhe Provinciol Policy Stqtemenl2020 hqs been demonslroled.

3.3 Growlh Plqn for lhe Greofer Golden Horseshoe

The Subject Londs ore locoted within the Greoter Golden Horseshoe ond, therefore, the Growth Plon

policies must be considered. The Growth Plon generolly discouroges growth ond development outside
of seitlement oreos, however, new multiple lots or units for residentiol developmeni ore permitted on

rurol londs in sife-specific locotions with opproved zoning or designotion in on officiol plon thot
permitied this type of developmeni os of June I 6,2006 (5.2.2.9). Accordingly, the development of
the Subjeci Londs for residentiol purposes is permiiied. The proposed Consents will focilitote the
construction of new residentiol dwellings on lqnds olreody designoted for this type of development.

Conclusion: Conformity to the Growlh Plon for the Greoter Golden Horseshoe hos been demonsfrqted.

3.4 Dufferin Counly Ofriciol PIon

The Subject Londs ore identified os o "Countryside Areo" on Schedule B Community Struciure ond
Lond Use ond os being within on Aggregote Resource Areo on Schedule D in the Dufferin County
Officiol plon. The Countryside Areo policies in Section 4 ond the policies thot regulote oggregote uses

in Section 4.4 ore opplicoble io the opplicoiions. Policies thot guide the review of consents ore
provided in Section 8.6.4.

. Counlryside Areo
The Countrys ide Areo encomposses londs outside of settlement oreos ond includes ruro londs ond
importont resource oreos such os minerol oggregote oreos. The County supports o heo thy ond vioble
Countryside Areo by mointoining the rurol chorocter ond leveroging rurol ossets, protecting
ogncu ture, directinq qrowth the efficient use of infrostructure ond

CHA.4852l (Choudhory)

to settlemeni oreos, ond Promotin
4

29



LOFT PLAN N IN G

P.O. Box 246, STN MAIN
Collingwood, ontario
L9Y 325

705.446.1168
kristi ne@loft planni ng.com
loftplanning.com

minerol ond oggregote resources for their long-term use (S. 4.1). The Plon stotes thot limited residentiol
development of up to ihree lots is permitted on rurol lqnds, ond thot specific permitted uses will be
estoblished in the locol municipol plon ond zoning by low (S.4.3). The Subject Londs ore designoted
os Rurolin the Township of Mulmur Officiol Plon ond ore zoned Rurol Residentiol in the Township's Zoning

By-low ond, therefore, the residentiol uses of which the proposed conseni opplicotion will fociliiote ore
permitted.

. Aggregole Resource Policies

Seciion 4.4 reflecls the PPS by protecting existing pits ond quorries from octivities thot could preclude
or hinder their continued use. Recogniiion of the permissions for residentiol uses on the Subject Londs

ore pre-existing ond, os indicoted the proposolwill reduce the number of lots by one. Accordingly, it is

not expected thot the rurol residentiol uses will impoct or hinder the oggregoie operotions on the
odjocent londs.

o Consent Policies

The policies in Section 8.6.4 (Consent to Sever) oddress lot creotion ond do not specificolly oddress

technicolseveronces such os proposed by the Consent Applicotion. Nevertheless, this Section requires

thot consent opplicotions be in conformiiy with locol ond County Officiol Plon os well os provinciol
policy. The proposed consents conform to Provinciol, County ond locol plonning policies.

Conclusion: Conformity to the Dufferin Counly Officiol Plon hqs been estoblished.

3.5 Officisl Planfor fhe Iownship of Mvlmvr

The Subject Londs ore designoted os o "Rurol" on Schedule Al Community Structure ond Lond Use D

in the Officiol Plon for ihe Township of Mulmur. Growth Monogement policies in Section 5.2 ond Rurol

policies in Section 5.8 opply to the proposed Consents os well os Rurol lond use designotion policies in
Section 6.2.

. Rurql Policies
Rurol residentiol development is permiited on existing vocont lots provided the lot is lorge enough to
sustoin privote sewoge ond woter services ond will not detroct from the surrounding rurol uses (S. 5.2).

The Rurol Areos policies in Section 5.8 olso permit limited residentiol development ond promote
development ihoi is compotible with the rurol londscope ond thot con be sustoined on rurol service
levels. Rurol resideniiol developmeni is recognized os port of whot mokes up the rurol chorocter ond
smoller lot sizes, frontoges ond setbocks ore not chorocteristic of ihe rurol oreo (S. 5.26). The Plon

encouroges ihe Township to mitigote ond minimize impocts on the rurol chqrocter of the surrounding

oreo ond the Township in generol. Finolly, Section 6.2 identifies o voriety of permitted uses in the Rurol

designotion including single detoched residentiol dwellings.

Residentiol uses ore recognized os o permitted use by the Township's Officiol Plon ond lot
configurotions thqt reflect ihe rurol chorocter of the oreo ore supported. The proposed Consent will

reduce the number of lots from four to three ond will creote lorger lots thot ore more in keeping with
the Rurol Residentiol Zone regulotions ond thot con support the development of single detoched

5CHA.4852l (Choudhory)

30



P.O. Box 246, STN MAIN
Collingwood, Ontario
LgY 325

705.445.1168
kristi ne@loft planni ng.com

LOFT PLAN N lN G roftplannine.com

dwellings. The Consents will focilitote o loi configurotion thoi better supports the rurol policies of the
Township's Officiol Plon.

. lol Creolion
Section 5.36 ond 6.2.5 provide policies thot guide lot creotion in Mulmur Township. Section 5.36

provides lond division policies thoi opply to oll lond use designotions ond guide the creotion of new
lots. The proposed Consenis do not result in lot creotion but rother in o reduction of the number of lots

from four to three. Section 6.2.5 provides lot creotion policies specific to the Rurol designotion. This

section permits technicol ond boundory odjustment severonces provided they do not creote o new
lot or re-divide o porcel of lond thot hod merged in the post. The Plon defines technicol reosons os

meoning "severonces for purposes such os eosemenfs, corrections of deeds, quif cloims, ond minor
boundory odjusfmenfs, which do nof resu/f in fhe creotion of o new lol". The opplicotions ore
considered iechnicol os no new lots will be creoied but rother the boundories will be odjusted to
creote developoble porcels of lond.

Finolly, Section 6.2.5 ideniifies thot the lots will be subject to the criterio ond policies of the Ministry of
Tronsportotion given their frontoge on Highwoy 89.

Conclusion: Conformity lo the Officiql Plon of the Township of Mulmur hos been estoblished.

3.5 Township of MulmurZoning By'Iaw 28'18

The Subject Londs ore zoned Rurol Residentiol (RR) in the Township of Mulmur Zoning By-low. Section
4.2 provides the zone regulotions for ihe Rurol Residentiol Zone which permits o single detoched
dwelling os well os on odditionql single dwelling (ASD or ottoched occessory dwelling unit or hobitoble
pool house. The Rurol Residentiol Zone Requirements ore os follows:

Section 3.lO.2.3which is entitled, Exisfing Undersized Lofs of Record, indicotes thot, Lofs which hove
been increosed in size fottowing possing of fhis By-law to comply wifh fhe obove minimum frontoge
ond lot oreo sfondords moy o/so be used in occordonce with fhis provision. This proposol does increose
the lot sizes to more oppropriotely reflect the zoning provisions.

6

32 ho .43 ho.28 hoMinimum Lot Areo 0.4 ho

45.7 m 68.,l m42.6 mMinimum Lot
Frontoge

45m

Rurol Residentiol

(RR)

Proposed

Lol2/3Merged Merged Lot 4 Retoined Lol
5

Requirements

CHA.4852l (Choudhory)

31



P.O. Box 246. STN MAIN
Collingwood, Ontario
LgY 325

70s.446.1168
kristi ne@loft planni ng.com
loftplanning.comLOFT PLAN N IN G

4.O Conclusions

This Plonning Report hos been prepored in support of the opplicoiions for technicol Consents which
willfocilitote the re-configurotion of exisiing lots on the Subject Londs into porcels fhot con support the
development of single detoched homes. The opplicotions ore in keeping with the Plonning Act RSO

lgg}, ore consistent with the Provinciol Policy Stotement. 2020, ond conform to the Growth Plon for the
Greoter Golden Horseshoe, the Dufferin Couniy Officiol Plon, the Officiol Plon of ihe Township of
Mulmur ond the Township of Mulmur Zoning Bv-low 28-l B. Furthermore, it is our opinion thot the
opplicotions represent good lond use plonning.

Yours truly,

Kristine A. Loft BES BAA MCIP RPP

Principol

Attoched: Conseni Sketches

CHA.4852l (Choudhory) 7

32



CON II

Township of Mulmur

Lot l

21
21

Lot 5Lot 4Lot 3

1400m2

21 .3m

@(o

Lot 2

1400m2

N

A

Town of Mono

Gonsent Sketch
Kulvinder Ghaudhary
(LPl File:GHA.48521)
Township of Mulmur
County of Dufferin

Legend

El Benefitting Parcel (0.14ha)

El Lands to be Transferred (0.14ha)

0102030
EE-:-IMelres

LOFT PLANNING
February 21,2021

33



CON II

Township of Mulmur

Lot I

21.3m 24.4m

t5

4300m2

31

1700m2

Lot 4

1500m2

Lot 3Lot 2

N

A

Town of Mono

10 20

Gonsent Sketch
Kulvinder Ghaudhary
(LPl File:GHA.48521)
Township of Mulmur
Gounty of Dufferin

Legend

E Benefitting Parcel (0.1 5ha)

E Lands to be Transferred (o.17ha)

E Retained Lands (o.43ha) LOFT PLANNING
February 21,2021

0

34



LOFT PLANNING

CHA.48521 (Chaudhary)           1 

June 16, 2021 

Ms. Tracey Atkinson 
CAO/Planner/Acting Clerk 
Township of Mulmur 
758070 2nd Line E  
Mulmur ON 
L9V 0G8 

Dear Ms. Atkinson: 

RE:  Planning Justification Letter 
Proposed Consent 
Lot 2 – CON 2 E E PT LOT 1 PLC 2 
Owner: Kulvinder Chaudhary and Mona Choudhry 

We have been retained by Kulvinder Chaudhary and Mona Choudhry, owners of the above-noted 
lands, to act as planners for application for Consent that will facilitate a lot addition. The purpose of 
this application is to sever a portion of Lot 2 and convey to Lot 1. This Planning Justification Letter is 
being submitted as part of a complete application.  

1.0 Location & Description of Subject Lands 

The Subject Lands are located on the north side of Highway 89 west of Airport Road between the 1st 
Line EHS and the 2nd Line EHS 10. The owners have purchased a series of lots with the intention of 
applying for consents for lot conveyances in order to create suitably sized development lots.   

The proposal includes the following,  

Consent 1 – To sever a portion of Lot 2 and convey to Lot 1 

Provisions Severed Retained (to be 
merged under 

separate application) 

Enlarged Lot 1 

Lot Frontage 8.7 m 12.6 m 21.3 m 

Lot Area 596 m2 864 m2 1461 m2 

The parcel is currently vacant land but has been maintained as a separate conveyable parcel.  Lot 1 
and 2 do not meet the minimum lot frontage requirement of 45 m or lot area requirement of 0.4 ha of 

35



LOFT PLANNING

CHA.48521 (Chaudhary)           2 

the Rural Residential (RR) Zone in which they are located. The proposal would enlarge Lot 1 to more 
appropriately meet the zoning provisions.  

2.0 Existing and Surrounding Uses 

The Subject Lands comprise vacant land with some vegetation in the form of trees around the 
boundary of the site.  The property is located within a rural area that is largely comprised of agricultural 
and environmental lands with an aggregate operation to the north. The lands have frontage on 
Highway 89.  The surrounding land uses are described as follows: 

● North: Aggregate, Agricultural and environmental lands associated with Boyne Valley. 
● East: Aggregate, Agricultural with some Residential along Highway 89. 
● South:  Agricultural and environmental lands.
● West: Aggregate, Agricultural, Residential and some highway commercial along Highway 89 

at the intersection of Highway 10. 

The Boyne Valley Provincial Park is located to the northwest of the property within the Niagara 
Escarpment Area that traverses the area northward from the southwest.  The nearest communities 
include Violet Hill to the east and Primrose to the west at the intersection of Highway 10. 

3.0 Policy Analysis 

A review of the relevant planning documents must be undertaken to determine conformity of the 
application to the Planning Act as well as the provincial and municipal planning documents.  A review 
of the Consent Application based on the applicable planning documents made the following 
conclusions: 

1. The Applications have Regard for Matters of Provincial Interest (Section 2) of the Planning Act,
1990). The new lot configuration will result in developable building lots.

2. The Applications are consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement 2020 and conform to the
Growth Plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe.  The Provincial policies and plans permit
residential uses in rural areas on lands already zoned for residential use and development that
is compatible with the surrounding uses and can be sustained on rural service levels.

3. The Applications conform to the Dufferin County and Township of Mulmur Official Plans.   The
Dufferin County Official Plan and the Township of Mulmur Official Plan permit technical
severances which do not result in the creation of a new lot.

4. The Applications conform to the intent of the Township of Mulmur Zoning By-law.  The Subject
Lands comprise pre-existing undersized lots and the new lot configuration will create
developable lots that maintain the intent of the Zoning By-law.

A detailed review of the applicable planning documents is provided in the following sections. 

36



LOFT PLANNING

CHA.48521 (Chaudhary)           3 

3.1 Planning Act 

The Planning Act provides the legislative framework for land use planning decisions in Ontario and must 
be considered by decision makers when reviewing development applications.  Sections 2 (Provincial 
Interest), 3 (Provincial Plans) and 53 (Consents) of the Planning Act apply to the applications.    

• Section 2 of the Planning Act requires the consideration of matters of “Provincial Interest”
including protection of resources, orderly development of communities and the appropriate
location of growth and development.

The application proposes the reconfiguration of an existing residential lot to enable development. 
Given that the lot is designated and zoned for rural residential use, the Subject Lands are considered 
an appropriate location for development and the proposed consent application will facilitate the 
development of the lands for this purpose.  While it is noted that an aggregate operation is located 
adjacent to the Subject Lands, the lots are existing and are not anticipated to hinder aggregate 
operations.  

• Section 3 (5) (a) of the Planning Act requires that planning decisions be consistent with policy
statements and conform to provincial plans that are issued under the Act.

The Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) 2020 and the Growth Plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe 
apply to the application.  Both of these documents are addressed within this letter. 

• Section 53 permits the approval of consents if a plan of subdivision is not necessary for the proper
and orderly development of the municipality.

The application proposes to sever a portion of Lot 2 and convey to Lot 1. 

CONCLUSION:   The proposed Consents meet the requirements of the Planning Act RSO. 

3.2 Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) 

The Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) 2020 promotes efficient development patterns that support viable 
communities, facilitate economic growth and protect the environment and public health and safety. 
Viable and healthy rural areas are supported by promoting rural character and regeneration, 
accommodating a range of housing in settlement areas and using rural infrastructure efficiently (S. 
1.1.4.1).  Growth and development generally are directed to rural settlement areas, but locally 
appropriate residential development is permitted on rural lands (S. 1.1.5.2) and development that is 
compatible with the rural landscape and can be sustained by rural service levels is promoted (S. 
1.1.5.3). 

Section 2.5.2.4 protects mineral aggregate operations from development and activities that would 
preclude or hinder their operation or are incompatible based on public healthy and safety.  Typically, 
residential uses would be discouraged from locating next to an aggregate operation.  The Subject 
Lands is designated and zoned for rural residential use and the lot is already existing.  

37



LOFT PLANNING

CHA.48521 (Chaudhary)           4 

The proposed Consent will not result in lot creation but will enable existing residential lots to be reduced 
in number and reconfigured to a size that will facilitate construction of residential dwellings.  The 
proposed application support the PPS policies by promoting rural residential development on lands 
identified for this use and based on the available rural infrastructure. 

Conclusion:  Consistency with the Provincial Policy Statement 2020 has been demonstrated. 

3.3 Growth Plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe 
The Subject Lands are located within the Greater Golden Horseshoe and, therefore, the Growth Plan 
policies must be considered.  The Growth Plan generally discourages growth and development outside 
of settlement areas, however, new multiple lots or units for residential development are permitted on 
rural lands in site-specific locations with approved zoning or designation in an official plan that 
permitted this type of development as of June 16, 2006 (S. 2.2.9).  Accordingly, the development of 
the Subject Lands for residential purposes is permitted.  The proposed Consent will facilitate the 
construction of new residential dwellings on lands already designated for this type of development. 

Conclusion:  Conformity to the Growth Plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe has been demonstrated. 

3.4 Dufferin County Official Plan 
The Subject Lands are identified as a “Countryside Area” on Schedule B Community Structure and 
Land Use and as being within an Aggregate Resource Area on Schedule D in the Dufferin County 
Official Plan. The Countryside Area policies in Section 4 and the policies that regulate aggregate uses 
in Section 4.4 are applicable to the applications. Policies that guide the review of consents are 
provided in Section 8.6.4. 

• Countryside Area
The Countryside Area encompasses lands outside of settlement areas and includes rural lands and 
important resource areas such as mineral aggregate areas.  The County supports a healthy and viable 
Countryside Area by maintaining the rural character and leveraging rural assets, protecting 
agriculture, directing growth to settlement areas, and promoting the efficient use of infrastructure and 
mineral and aggregate resources for their long-term use (S. 4.1). The Plan states that limited residential 
development of up to three lots is permitted on rural lands, and that specific permitted uses will be 
established in the local municipal plan and zoning by law (S. 4.3).  The Subject Lands are designated 
as Rural in the Township of Mulmur Official Plan and are zoned Rural Residential in the Township’s Zoning 
By-law and, therefore, the residential uses of which the proposed consent application will facilitate are 
permitted. 

• Aggregate Resource Policies
Section 4.4 reflects the PPS by protecting existing pits and quarries from activities that could preclude 
or hinder their continued use.  Accordingly, it is not expected that the rural residential uses will impact 
or hinder the aggregate operations on the adjacent lands.     

• Consent Policies

38



LOFT PLANNING

CHA.48521 (Chaudhary)           5 

The policies in Section 8.6.4 (Consent to Sever) address lot creation and do not specifically address 
technical severances such as proposed by the Consent Application.  Nevertheless, this Section requires 
that consent applications be in conformity with local and County Official Plan as well as provincial 
policy.  The proposed consent conforms to Provincial, County and local planning policies. 

Conclusion:  Conformity to the Dufferin County Official Plan has been established. 

3.5 Official Plan for the Township of Mulmur 

The Subject Lands are designated as a “Rural” on Schedule A1 Community Structure and Land Use D 
in the Official Plan for the Township of Mulmur.  Growth Management policies in Section 5.2 and Rural 
policies in Section 5.8 apply to the proposed Consents as well as Rural land use designation policies in 
Section 6.2.   

• Rural Policies
Rural residential development is permitted on existing vacant lots provided the lot is large enough to 
sustain private sewage and water services and will not detract from the surrounding rural uses (S. 5.2). 
The Rural Areas policies in Section 5.8 also permit limited residential development and promote 
development that is compatible with the rural landscape and that can be sustained on rural service 
levels.  Rural residential development is recognized as part of what makes up the rural character and 
smaller lot sizes, frontages and setbacks are not characteristic of the rural area (S. 5.26). The Plan 
encourages the Township to mitigate and minimize impacts on the rural character of the surrounding 
area and the Township in general.  Finally, Section 6.2 identifies a variety of permitted uses in the Rural 
designation including single detached residential dwellings. 

Residential uses are recognized as a permitted use by the Township’s Official Plan and lot 
configurations that reflect the rural character of the area are supported.  The proposed Consent will 
configure a lot that is more in keeping with the Rural Residential Zone regulations and that can support 
the development of a single detached dwelling.  The Consent will facilitate a lot configuration that 
better supports the rural policies of the Township’s Official Plan. 

• Lot Creation
Section 5.36 and 6.2.5 provide policies that guide lot creation in Mulmur Township. Section 5.36 provides 
land division policies that apply to all land use designations and guide the creation of new lots. The 
proposed Consent does not result in lot creation. Section 6.2.5 provides lot creation policies specific to 
the Rural designation.  This section permits technical and boundary adjustment severances provided 
they do not create a new lot or re-divide a parcel of land that had merged in the past. The Plan defines 
technical reasons as meaning “severances for purposes such as easements, corrections of deeds, quit 
claims, and minor boundary adjustments, which do not result in the creation of a new lot”.  The 
application is considered technical as no new lots will be created but rather the boundaries will be 
adjusted to create developable parcels of land. 

Finally, Section 6.2.5 identifies that the lot will be subject to the criteria and policies of the Ministry of 
Transportation given their frontage on Highway 89.  

39



LOFT PLANNING

CHA.48521 (Chaudhary)           6 

Conclusion:  Conformity to the Official Plan of the Township of Mulmur has been established. 

3.5 Township of Mulmur Zoning By-law 28-18 

The Subject Lands are zoned Rural Residential (RR) in the Township of Mulmur Zoning By-law.  Section 
4.2 provides the zone regulations for the Rural Residential Zone which permits a single detached 
dwelling. The Rural Residential Zone Requirements are as follows: 

Rural 
Residential 
(RR) 

Requirements 
275 m2 

Proposed 
Severed 

Lot 
Retained 

Lot Enlarged Lot Amalgamated 
Lot 

Minimum Lot 
Area 0.4 ha 0.06 ha 0.09 ha 0.15 ha 0.2 ha 

Minimum 
Lot 
Frontage 

45 m 8.7 m 12.6 m 21.3 m 30 m 

Section 3.10.2.3 which is entitled, Existing Undersized Lots of Record, indicates that, Lots which have 
been increased in size following passing of this By-law to comply with the above minimum frontage 
and lot area standards may also be used in accordance with this provision. This proposal does increase 
the lot sizes to more appropriately reflect the zoning provisions.  

4.0 Conclusions 

This Planning Report has been prepared in support of an application for Consent which will facilitate 
the enlargement of Lot 1. The application is in keeping with the Planning Act RSO 1990, is consistent 
with the Provincial Policy Statement, 2020, and conforms to the Growth Plan for the Greater Golden 
Horseshoe, the Dufferin County Official Plan, the Official Plan of the Township of Mulmur and the 
Township of Mulmur Zoning By-law 28-18. Furthermore, it is our opinion that the application represents 
good land use planning. 

Yours truly, 

Kristine A. Loft BES BAA MCIP RPP 
Principal 

Attached: Consent Sketch 

40



Subject
 Lands

Saugeen River

Scale:

Figure 1
Consent Sketch Lot 2 

CON 2 E E PT LOT 1 PCL 2 
Township of Mulmur

Planner-Agent:

Date:

Project #:
#CHA 48521

Municipal #:
----

June 2021

41



3. Purpose of this ApPlication

Proposed transaction (check appropriate box)

n Transfer d
tr Acharge tr

Creation of a new lot
A lease

d Addition to a lot
tr A correction of title

tr An easement
tr Other

Specify Purpose, ie. Building lot, farm severance, lot addition, etc.

tO MERGE TWO INDIVIDUAL 1400m2 LOTS (LOT 2 AND LOT 3) lN ORDER TO CREATE ONE 2800m2 RURAL RESIDENTIAL LOT

Name of person(s) to whom land or interest in land is to be transferred, leased or charged

TBD

4. Description of Subject Land and Servicing lnformation

Frontage (m) Severed
21.3m+ 21.3m

Merged and Retained
42.6m

Depth (m)
68.6m + 68.6m 68.6m

Area (m)
1400m2 +1400m2 2800m2

5. Land Use

Date Property Acquired
TBD

Existing Use

VACANT RESIDENTIAL

Proposed Use

RESIDENTIAL

Existing and Proposed buildings and Structures

Type of
Building or
Structure

Set Backs (m) Height
(m)

Dimensions
(mxm)

Area
(m2)

Date of
Construction /

Proposed
Construction

use has
continued (for

existing
buildings &Front Rear Side Side

N/A O Existing
n Proposed

tr Existing
tr Proposed

tr Existing
tr Proposed

tr Existing
tr Proposed

tr Existing
O Proposed

tr Existing
tr Proposed

Water
tr Private Well
tr Communal Well
D Municipal Water
tr Other:

Sewage Disposal
tr Private Septic

Communal Septic

Storm Drainage
O Sewer
tr Ditches
tr Swales
tr Other:

Tile Drainage
trNo
tr Yes, please mark on site Plan

location of tile runs

2

42



6. Zoning and Official Plan lnformation
Cunent Zoning

Rural Residential (RR)

Current Official Plan

Rural

Related Applications under the Planning Act, if any including Official Plan,
Official Plan Amendment, Zoning By-law Amendment, Minister's Zoning Order
(amendment), Consent or Plan of Subdivision:

Has subject lands even been subject of an application under the
Planning Act?

File #: Status:

Provide an expl of how the application conforms to the Official Plan

See Planning Justification Report

Are any of the following uses or features on the subject land or within 500 metres of the subject land, unless otheMise specified? Please check the
appropriate boxes. if anv applv.

ljse or Feature On the Subject Land Within 500 metres of Subject
Land, unless otherwise specific
(indicate approximate distance)

Agricultural buildings/structure or manure storage facilities
NO NO

A Landfill
NO NO

A provincially significant wetland (Class 1, 2 or 3 wetland)

NO NO

A locally significant wetland

NO NO

Flood Plain

NO NO

A rehabilitated mine site
NO NO

A non-operating mine site within 1 kilometre of the subject land

NO Nr.l

An active mine site
NO (GRAVEL PIT)

An industrial or commercial use (speciry uses)

NO NO

Does the proposed development produce greater than 4500 litres of effluent per
day?

lf ves. attach a servicinq options report and hvdro qeoloqical report

tl Yes druo

Are the lands part of a Nutrient Management Plan? tr Yes d r.ro

Please provide plan number and date approved by OMAFRA

Are there any livestock facilities within 500 metres of the subiect lands? tr Yes q No

lf yes, provide a Farm Data Sheet completed by each livestock facility owner for each of the livestock facilities. http://mulmur.caldepartments/planninq

aJ

43



7. Consistency with Policy Documents

Does this application:

Alter the boundary of a settlement area?
tr Yes V trto

Create a new settlement area? n Yes dNo

Remove lands from an employment area?

lf yes, provide details of any Ofiicial Plan or Ofiicial Plan Amendment on a separate submission

tr Yes ilNo

Are the subject lands in an area where conditional zoning may apply? tr Yes

lf yes, provide details of how this application conforms to Official Plan conditional zoning policies on a separate submission

[y' ruo

ls the proposed application consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement and any other Policy Statements
issued under subsection 3(1) of the Planning Act:

M Y"t trNo

KRISTINE LOFT, LOFT PLANNING INC

Name of individual having knowledge of the policy statements. A report may
be required to accompany this application and support the above statement of

consistency.

Signature

Are the subject lands within the Niagara Escarpment Greenbelt Plan area? EI Yes d r.ro

Are the subject lands Wthin the Greater Golden Horseshoe Growth Plan area? d v". trNo

Does the proposed application conform to or does not conflict with the Provincial Plans, including the
Greenbelt Plan and Growth Plan:

KRISTINE LOFT, LOFT PLANNING INC.

/ v". trNo

Name of individual having knowledge of the policy statements. A report may
be required to accompany this application and support the above statement of

consistency.

Signature

8. History of the Subject Land

Has the subject land ever been the subject of an application for approval of a
plan of subdivision or consent under the Planning Act?

lf yes, and if known, provide the file number and the decision made on the application:

D Yes dNo n Unknown

lf this application is a re-submission of a previous consent application, describe how it has been changed from the original application

Has any land been severed from the parcel originally acquired by the owner of the subject land?

lf yes, provide for each parcel severed, the date of transfer, the name of transferee and the land use:

tr Yes dNo

4

44



Has any land been severed from the original, 40 hectare (approx..) parcel

lf yes, provide details:

tr Yes dNo

9. Other lnformation

Please provide any other information that may be useful to the Council or other agencies in reviewing this application, ie. health department, conservation
authoritv, etc.

10. Sketch (please use metric units)

The application shall be accompanied by a sketch showing the following:

The boundaries and dimensions of the subject land, the part that is to be severed and the part that is to be retained
The boundaries and dimensions of any land owned by the owner of the subject land and that abuts the subject land
The distance between the subject land and the nearest Township lot line or landmark, such as a railway crossing or bridge
The location of all land previously severed from the original approximate 40 hectare parcel
The approximate location of all natural and artificial features on the subject land and adjacent lands that in the opinion of the applicant may

affect the application, such as buildings, railways, roads, watercourses, drainage ditches, river or stream banks, wetlands, wooded areas,
wells and seotic tanks

d fne existing uses on adjacent lands
il fne location, width and name of any roads within or abutting the subject land, indicating whether it is an unopened road allowance, a public

travelled road, a private road or right of way
V fne localion and nature ofany easement affecting the subject land

{dvvv

5

45



3. Purpose of this Application

Proposed transaction (check appropriate box)

tr Transfer tr
tr A charge tr

Creation of a new lot
A lease

d Addition to a tot
tr A correction of title

tr An easement
tr Other

Specify Purpose, ie. Building lot, farm severance, lot addition, etc.

TO SEVER.lTHECTARESFROMTHEEXISTING,60HECTARELOTANDCONVEYTHELANDTHEADJACENT.lSHECTARELOT

Name of person(s) to wtrom land or interest in land is to be transferred, leased or charged

PCL 4

4. Description of Subject Land and Servicing lnformation

Frontage (m) Severed

24.4m

Retained

68,t m

Depth (m)
68.6m 68 7ml60 8m

Area (m)
17OOm2 4300m2

5. Land Use

Date Property Acquired
TBD

Existing Use

VACANT RESIDENTIAL

Proposed Use

RESIDENTIAL

Existing and Proposed buildings and Structures

Type of
Building or
Structure

Set Backs (m) Height
(m)

Dimensions
(mxm)

Area
(m2)

Date of
Construction /

Proposed
Construction

Time use has
continued (for

existing
buildings &
structures)

Front Rear Side Side

N/A tr Existing
tr Proposed

EI Existing
tr Proposed

tr Existing
tr Proposed

tr Existing
tr Proposed

El Existing
tr Proposed

tr Existing
tr Proposed

Water
tr Private Well
E Communal Well
O Municipal Water
tr Other:

Sewage Disposal
Private Septic
Communal Septic

tr
tr
tr

Storm Drainage
E Sewer
tr Ditches
tr Swales
tr Other:

Tile Drainage
trNo
tr Yes, please mark on site Plan

location of tile runs

2

46



6. Zoning and Official Plan lnformation
Current Zoning

RURAL RESIDENTIAL(RR)

Current Official Plan

RURAL

Related Applications under the Planning Act, if any including Official Plan,
Official Plan Amendment, Zoning By-law Amendment, Minister's Zoning Order
(amendment), Consent or Plan of Subdivision:

Has subject lands even been subject of an application under the
Planning Act?

File #: Status:

Provide an explanation of how the application to the Official Plan

Are any of the following uses or features on the subject land or within 500 metres of the subject land, unless otherwise specified? Please check the
aoorooriate boxes. if anv aoolv.

Use or Feature On the Subject Land Within 500 metres
Land, unless otherwise speciflc

mate

Agricultural buildings/structure or manure storage facilities
NO NO

A Landfill
NO NO

A provincially significant wetland (Class 1, 2 or 3 wetland)
NO NO

A locally significant wetland
NO NO

Flood Plain
NO NO

A rehabilitated mine site
NO

NO

A non-operating mine site within 1 kilometre of the subject land
NO NO

An active mine site
NO GRAVEL PIT

An industrial or commercial use (speciff uses)

NO NO

Does the proposed development produce grealer than 4500 litres of effluent per

day?

lf ves. attach a servicino oDtions reoort and hvdro oeolooical report

fl Yes duo

Are the lands part of a Nutrient Management Plan? tr Yes druo

Please provide plan number and date approved by OMAFRA

Are there any livestock facilities within 500 metres of the subject lands? tr Yes g No

lf yes, provide a Farm Data Sheet completed by each livestock facility owner for each of the livestock facilities. htto://mulmur.caldepartments/plannino

aJ

47



7. Consistency with Policy Documents

Does this application:

Alter the boundary of a settlement area?
tr Yes Vruo

Create a new settlement area? tr Yes dNo

Remove lands from an employment area?

lf yes, provide details of any Official Plan or Official Plan Amendment on a separate submission

tr Yes dNo

Are the subject lands in an area where conditional zoning may apply? tr Yes

lf yes, provide details of how this application conforms to Official Plan conditional zoning policies on a separate submission

Vruo

ls the proposed application consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement and any other Policy Statements
issued under subsection 3(1) ofthe Planning Act:

M Y"t trNo

KRISTINE LOFT LOFT PLANNING INC.

Name of individual having knowledge of the policy statements. A report may
be required to accompany this application and support the above statement of

consistency.

Signature

Are the subject lands within the Niagara Escarpment Greenbelt Plan area? tr Yes { No

Are the subject lands within the Greater Golden Horseshoe Growth Plan area? d ves trNo

Does the proposed
Greenbelt Plan and

application conform to or does not conflict with the Provincial Plans, including the
GroMh Plan:

/ Y"" trNo

KRISTINE LOFT, LOFT PLANNING INC.

Name of individual having knowledge of the policy statements. A report may
be required to accompany this application and support the above statement of

consistency.

Signature

8. History of the Subject Land

Has the subject land ever been the subject of an application for approval of a
plan of subdivision or consent under the Planning Act?

lf yes, and if knovvn, provide the file number and the decision made on the application:

tr Yes dNo tr Unknown

lf this application is a re-submission of a previous consent application, describe how it has been changed from the original application

Has any land been severed from the parcel originally acquired by the owner of the subject land?

lfyes, provide for each parcel severed, the date oftransfer, the name oftransferee and the land use:

tr Yes dNo

4

48



Has any land been severed from the original, 40 hectare (approx..) parcel

lf yes, provide details:

n Yes dNo

9. Other lnformation

Please provide any other information that may be useful to the Council or other agencies in reviewing this application, ie. health department, conservation
authoritv. etc.

10. Sketch (please use metric units)

The application shall be accompanied by a sketch showing the following

{
dd

The boundaries and dimensions of the subject land, the part that is to be severed and the part that is to be retained
The boundaries and dimensions of any land owned by the owner of the subject land and that abuts the subject land

The distance between the subject land and the nearest Township lot line or landmark, such as a railway crossing or bridge
The location of all land previously severed from the original approximate 40 hectare parcel
The approximate location of all natural and artificial features on the subject land and adjacent lands that in the opinion of the applicant may
afiect the application, such as buildings, railways, roads, watercourses, drainage ditches, river or stream banks, wetlands, wooded areas,

wells and septic tanks
The existing uses on adjacent lands
The location, width and name of any roads within or abutting the subject land, indicating whether it is an unopened road allowance, a public

travelled road, a private road or right of way
The location and nature of any easement affecting the subject land

d
d

d
d
d

5

49



2 

3. Purpose of this Application
Proposed transaction (check appropriate box) 

 Transfer
 A charge

 Creation of a new lot
 A lease

 Addition to a lot
 A correction of title

 An easement
 Other

Specify Purpose, ie. Building lot, farm severance, lot addition, etc. 

Name of person(s) to whom land or interest in land is to be transferred, leased or charged 

4. Description of Subject Land and Servicing Information
Frontage (m) Severed Retained 

Depth (m) 

Area (m) 

5. Land Use
Date Property Acquired 

Existing Use Proposed Use 

Existing and Proposed buildings and Structures 

Type of 
Building or 
Structure 

Set Backs (m) Height 
(m) 

Dimensions 
(m x m) 

Area 
(m2) 

Date of 
Construction / 

Proposed 
Construction 

Time use has 
continued (for 

existing 
buildings & 
structures) 

Front Rear Side Side 

 Existing
 Proposed

 Existing
 Proposed

 Existing
 Proposed

 Existing
 Proposed

 Existing
 Proposed

 Existing
 Proposed

Water 
 Private Well
 Communal Well
 Municipal Water
 Other: __________

Sewage Disposal 
 Private Septic
 Communal Septic
 Other:_______________

Storm Drainage 
 Sewer
 Ditches
 Swales
 Other: _____________

Tile Drainage 
 No
 Yes, please mark on site plan

location of tile runs

VACANT RURAL RESIDENTIAL

April 2021

TBD

12.6 m8.7 m

68.6m 68.6m

596 sqm 864 sqm

N/A

Residential Building Lot

50



3 

6. Zoning and Official Plan Information
Current Zoning Current Official Plan 

Related Applications under the Planning Act, if any including Official Plan, 
Official Plan Amendment, Zoning By-law Amendment, Minister’s Zoning Order 
(amendment), Consent or Plan of Subdivision: 

Has subject lands even been subject of an application under the 
Planning Act? 

File #:  Status: 

Provide an explanation of how the application conforms to the Official Plan 

Are any of the following uses or features on the subject land or within 500 metres of the subject land, unless otherwise specified? Please check the 
appropriate boxes, if any apply. 

Use or Feature On the Subject Land Within 500 metres of Subject 
Land, unless otherwise specific 
(indicate approximate distance) 

Agricultural buildings/structure or manure storage facilities 

A Landfill 

A provincially significant wetland (Class 1, 2 or 3 wetland) 

A locally significant wetland 

Flood Plain 

A rehabilitated mine site 

A non-operating mine site within 1 kilometre of the subject land 

An active mine site 

An industrial or commercial use (specify uses) 

Does the proposed development produce greater than 4500 litres of effluent per 
day? 

 Yes  No

If yes, attach a servicing options report and hydro geological report 

Are the lands part of a Nutrient Management Plan?  Yes  No

Please provide plan number________________________________ and date approved by OMAFRA ______________________________________ 

Are there any livestock facilities within 500 metres of the subject lands?  Yes  No

If yes, provide a Farm Data Sheet completed by each livestock facility owner for each of the livestock facilities. http://mulmur.ca/departments/planning 

Rural Residential (RR) Rural

See Planning Justification Report

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

(GRAVEL PIT)

NO

Additional Consent Submitted
B5.2021 Being Processed

51

http://mulmur.ca/departments/planning


4 

7. Consistency with Policy Documents

Does this application: 

Alter the boundary of a settlement area? 
 Yes  No

Create a new settlement area?  Yes  No

Remove lands from an employment area?  Yes  No

If yes, provide details of any Official Plan or Official Plan Amendment on a separate submission 

Are the subject lands in an area where conditional zoning may apply?  Yes  No

If yes, provide details of how this application conforms to Official Plan conditional zoning policies on a separate submission 

Is the proposed application consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement and any other Policy Statements 
issued under subsection 3(1) of the Planning Act: 

 Yes  No

Name of individual having knowledge of the policy statements. A report may 
be required to accompany this application and support the above statement of 

consistency. 

Signature 

Are the subject lands within the Niagara Escarpment Greenbelt Plan area?  Yes  No

Are the subject lands within the Greater Golden Horseshoe Growth Plan area?  Yes  No

Does the proposed application conform to or does not conflict with the Provincial Plans, including the 
Greenbelt Plan and Growth Plan: 

 Yes  No

Name of individual having knowledge of the policy statements. A report may 
be required to accompany this application and support the above statement of 

consistency. 

Signature 

8. History of the Subject Land

Has the subject land ever been the subject of an application for approval of a 
plan of subdivision or consent under the Planning Act? 

 Yes  No  Unknown

If yes, and if known, provide the file number and the decision made on the application: ___________________________________________________ 

If this application is a re-submission of a previous consent application, describe how it has been changed from the original application 

Has any land been severed from the parcel originally acquired by the owner of the subject land?  Yes  No

If yes, provide for each parcel severed, the date of transfer, the name of transferee and the land use: 

KRISTINE LOFT, LOFT PLANNING INC.

KRISTINE LOFT, LOFT PLANNING INC.

Consent application for lot addition currently being processed by municipality. (B5 2021)

Consent application for lot addition currently being processed by 
municipality. (B5 2021)

52



5 

Has any land been severed from the original, 40 hectare (approx..) parcel  Yes  No

If yes, provide details: 

9. Other Information

Please provide any other information that may be useful to the Council or other agencies in reviewing this application, ie. health department, conservation 
authority, etc. 

10. Sketch (please use metric units)

The application shall be accompanied by a sketch showing the following: 

 The boundaries and dimensions of the subject land, the part that is to be severed and the part that is to be retained
 The boundaries and dimensions of any land owned by the owner of the subject land and that abuts the subject land
 The distance between the subject land and the nearest Township lot line or landmark, such as a railway crossing or bridge
 The location of all land previously severed from the original approximate 40 hectare parcel
 The approximate location of all natural and artificial features on the subject land and adjacent lands that in the opinion of the applicant may

affect the application, such as buildings, railways, roads, watercourses, drainage ditches, river or stream banks, wetlands, wooded areas,
wells and septic tanks

 The existing uses on adjacent lands
 The location, width and name of any roads within or abutting the subject land, indicating whether it is an unopened road allowance, a public

travelled road, a private road or right of way
 The location and nature of any easement affecting the subject land

53



Minimum Distance Separation I
Worksheet 1
Prepared By: Kristine Loft

Page 1 of 1AgriSuite 3.4.0.18
Date Prepared: May 31, 2021 2:17 PM

588676

Description: Lot Addition/Merger

Application Date: Monday, May 31, 2021

Municipal File Number: Chaudhray

Proposed Application: Lot creation that results in a cluster of four, or more, non-agricultural use lots in immediate 
proximity to one another 
Type B Land Use

Applicant Contact Information
K Chaudhary

Location of Subject Lands
County of Dufferin, Township of Mulmur
MULMUR, Concession: 2 EAST OF HURONTARIO STREET, Lot: 32

Roll Number: 221600000205702

Calculation Name: Farm 1
Description:

Farm Contact Information
K Chaudhray

Location of existing livestock facility or anaerobic digester
County of Dufferin, Township of Mulmur
MULMUR, Concession: 2 EAST OF HURONTARIO STREET, Lot: 32

Roll Number: 221600000409800

Total Lot Size: 33.8 ha

The barn area is an estimate only and is intended to provide users with an indication of whether the number of livestock entered is
reasonable.

Manure
Type Type of Livestock/Manure

Existing 
Maximum
Number

Existing 
Maximum 
Number (NU)

Estimated 
Livestock Barn
Area

Solid Horses, Large-framed, mature; > 680 kg (including unweaned offspring) 15 21.4 453 m²

The livestock/manure information has not been confirmed with the property owner and/or farm operator.

Existing Manure Storage: V3. Solid, outside, no cover, >= 30% DM

Design Capacity (NU): 21.4

Potential Design Capacity (NU): 42.9

Factor A
(Odour Potential)

0.7 X

Factor B
(Size)

245.71 X

Factor D
(Manure Type)

0.7 X

Factor E
(Encroaching Land Use)

2.2 =

Building Base Distance �F'
(minimum distance from livestock barn)

265 m (869 ft)

Storage Base Distance 'S'
(minimum distance from manure storage)

265 m (869 ft)

(actual distance from livestock barn)

126 m (413 ft)

(actual distance from manure storage)

126 m (413 ft)

Preparer Information
Kristine Loft

Email: kristine@loftplanning.com

Signature of Preparer: Date:
Kristine Loft

NOTE TO THE USER:
The Ontario Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs (OMAFRA) has developed this software program for distribution and use with the Minimum Distance 
Separation (MDS) Formulae as a public service to assist farmers, consultants, and the general public. This version of the software distributed by OMAFRA will be 
considered to be the official version for purposes of calculating MDS. OMAFRA is not responsible for errors due to inaccurate or incorrect data or information; mistakes
in calculation; errors arising out of modification of the software, or errors arising out of incorrect inputting of data. All data and calculations should be verified before 
acting on them.

54



Minimum Distance Separation I
Worksheet 1
Prepared By: Kristine Loft

Page 1 of 1AgriSuite 3.4.0.18
Date Prepared: May 31, 2021 2:39 PM

225037

Description: Lot Addition/Merger

Application Date: Monday, May 31, 2021

Municipal File Number: Chaudhray

Proposed Application: Lot creation for a maximum of three non-agricultural use lots 
Type A Land Use

Applicant Contact Information
K Chaudhary

Location of Subject Lands
County of Dufferin, Township of Mulmur
MULMUR, Concession: 2 EAST OF HURONTARIO STREET, Lot: 32

Roll Number: 221600000205702

Calculation Name: Farm 1
Description:

Farm Contact Information
K Chaudhray

Location of existing livestock facility or anaerobic digester
County of Dufferin, Township of Mulmur
MULMUR, Concession: 2 EAST OF HURONTARIO STREET, Lot: 32

Roll Number: 221600000409800

Total Lot Size: 33.8 ha

The barn area is an estimate only and is intended to provide users with an indication of whether the number of livestock entered is
reasonable.

Manure
Type Type of Livestock/Manure

Existing 
Maximum
Number

Existing 
Maximum 
Number (NU)

Estimated 
Livestock Barn
Area

Solid Horses, Large-framed, mature; > 680 kg (including unweaned offspring) 15 21.4 453 m²

The livestock/manure information has not been confirmed with the property owner and/or farm operator.

Existing Manure Storage: V3. Solid, outside, no cover, >= 30% DM

Design Capacity (NU): 21.4

Potential Design Capacity (NU): 42.9

Factor A
(Odour Potential)

0.7 X

Factor B
(Size)

245.71 X

Factor D
(Manure Type)

0.7 X

Factor E
(Encroaching Land Use)

1.1 =

Building Base Distance �F'
(minimum distance from livestock barn)

132 m (435 ft)

Storage Base Distance 'S'
(minimum distance from manure storage)

132 m (435 ft)

(actual distance from livestock barn)

126 m (413 ft)

(actual distance from manure storage)

126 m (413 ft)

Preparer Information
Kristine Loft

Email: kristine@loftplanning.com

Signature of Preparer: Date:
Kristine Loft

NOTE TO THE USER:
The Ontario Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs (OMAFRA) has developed this software program for distribution and use with the Minimum Distance 
Separation (MDS) Formulae as a public service to assist farmers, consultants, and the general public. This version of the software distributed by OMAFRA will be 
considered to be the official version for purposes of calculating MDS. OMAFRA is not responsible for errors due to inaccurate or incorrect data or information; mistakes
in calculation; errors arising out of modification of the software, or errors arising out of incorrect inputting of data. All data and calculations should be verified before 
acting on them.

55



1

Roseann Knechtel

Subject: FW: Hwy 89 lots 
Attachments: cid16%253aX%253aRgAAAAC32GU4%

252bVGvSLfvrqwx4Lq6BwBfMn8yQ2J9TLVy50ty84IjAAAAAAEMAABfMn8yQ2J9TLVy50ty84IjAAWUVw
o3AAAJ%253aEACQ7r6D%252bqqAQpalxbYZPQ00.pdf

From: Leyten, Martin (MTO)   
Sent: Thursday, June 24, 2021 8:02 AM 
Subject: RE: Hwy 89 lots  

Hi Tracey & Kristine, 

The Ministry of Transportation (MTO) has completed a cursory review of the subject property and the 
proposal for boundary adjustments.  The proposal has been considered in accordance with the 
requirements of the Public Transportation and Highway Improvement Act, MTO’s Highway Access 
Management Guidelines and all related policies. The following outlines our comments. 

Highway 89 at this location is classified as a 2B Arterial Highway in MTO’s Access Management 
Classification System.  As such, all requirements, guidelines and best practices in accordance with 
this classification shall apply.   

The subject property is located adjacent to Highway 89, within MTO’s Permit Control Area (PCA), and 
as such, MTO permits are required before any demolition, grading, construction or alteration to the 
site commences. 

MTO requires all buildings, structures and features integral to the site to be located a minimum of 8.0 
metres from the highway property limit, inclusive of driveway lanes. 

Currently as the plan is today, a driveway lane will run parallel to Highway 89 within MTO’s 8.0m 
setback, in order to avoid this Lot 5 will need to maintain a minimum depth of 18.0 m rather then the 
proposed 7.8m This will allow the property to construct a driveway lane outside of MTOs setback 
requirements. 

MTO has also received entrance applications for adjacent lots, given that there are proposed 
boundary adjustments outstanding for all of these lots MTO will be placing the entrance permits on 
hold. 

If you have any questions please feel free to contact me directly. 

Thanks 

Martin 

56



wsp.com 

MEMO 
TO: County of Dufferin 

FROM: Matt Alexander, Project Manager, WSP 

Angela Zhao, Project Planner, WSP 

SUBJECT: Consent Application (File #: B5-21, B6-21), CON 2EEPT LOT I PCL l; 
CON 2EEPT LOT I PCL2, CON 2EEPT LOT I PCL 3, CON 2 E, 
Township of Mulmur, ON  

DATE: May 17, 2021 

Recommendation 
Based on our review, the proposal is consistent with the Rural Lands designation and the 
related policies in the Dufferin County Official Plan. It is recommended that:  

• Consultation occur with the Township of Mulmur and the Nottawasaga
Conservation Authority (NVCA) related to the potential impacts to source water
because the subject properties are located within a source water protection area
(Significant Groundwater Recharge Area and Low & High Aquifer Vulnerability).

Summary 
The purpose of the two consent applications are the following: 

B5-2021 – Lot Consolidation 
The application proposes to merge two (1) lots, each having an area of 1400 
square metres, for the purpose of creating one (1) lot with an area of 2800 square 
metres.  

B6-2021 – Lot Addition 
The application proposes to sever 0.17 hectares from the existing 0.60-hectare lot 
and convey the severed lands to the adjacent 0.15-hectare lot. 

The documents received by WSP on May 11th, 2021 include: 

• Consent Application Form & Cover Letter; and
• Notice of Public Meeting;

The circulation documents were reviewed against the Dufferin County Official Plan. 

57



Page 2 

Dufferin County Official Plan (2017) 
The subject property is within the Countryside Area designation under Schedule 
B (Community Structure and Land Use) and within the Rural designation under Schedule 
C (Agricultural Area and Rural Lands) of the County Official Plan. The intent of the Rural 
Lands designation is to protect the natural amenities and rural character of the County 
while promoting development opportunities related to the management or use of 
resources, resource-based recreational uses (including recreational dwellings), tourism, 
limited residential development, home occupations and home industries, and other 
rural land uses that cannot be located in settlement areas.  

The County Official Plan does not have specific policies as it relates to boundary 
adjustment in Rural Lands and defers to the local municipal policies. 

Under Appendix 2 (Source Water Protection) the subject property is located within 
a source water protection area (Significant Ground Water Recharge Area and Low Aquifer 
Vulnerability). Policy 5.4.2(c) states that prior to the approval of development applications 
within designated vulnerable areas, the proponents shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of 
the County, local municipality, Conservation Authority and Province, where necessary, 
that the quality and quantity of municipal drinking water sources will not be negatively 
impacted. It is anticipated that the Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority (NVCA) 
will provide further review and comments with respect to the requirements for Source 
Water Protection as it relates to the changes proposed on the subject properties. 

Given that access to the proposed development is not located on a Provincial Highway, the 
Ministry of Transportation should provide comments regarding access. 

Recommendation 
Based on our review, the proposal is consistent with the Rural Lands designation and the 
related policies in the Dufferin County Official Plan. It is recommended that:  

• Consultation occur with the Township of Mulmur the Nottawasaga Conservation
Authority (NVCA) related to the potential impacts to source water because the
subject properties are located within a source water protection area (Significant
Groundwater Recharge Area and Low & High Aquifer Vulnerability).

58



wsp.com 

MEMO 
TO: Dufferin County 

FROM: Matt Alexander, Project Manager, WSP 

William Turman, Planner, WSP 

SUBJECT: Application for Consent– B13-2021 

Con 2 E E PT LOT 1 PCL 2, Mulmur, ON 

DATE: June 24, 2021 

Recommendation 
The proposal generally conforms with the Countryside Area designation and the related 
policies in the Dufferin County Official Plan. It is recommended that: 

• Confirmation be provided as to whether residential use is compatible with
surrounding aggregate extraction, and whether it satisfies minimum separation
distance requirements

• Confirmation be provided as to whether the unevaluated wetlands adjacent
(within 120m) to the subject properties are deemed significant

• Confirmation be provided as to whether an Environmental Impact Statement
(EIS) is required relative to the proximity of unevaluated wetlands.

• Consultation occur with the Township of Mulmur and the Nottawasaga Valley
Conservation Authority (NVCA) related to the potential impacts to source water
because the subject properties are located within a source water protection area
(Low Vulnerability Aquifer and Significant Groundwater Recharge Area).

Summary 

The purpose of the Application for Consent is to sever a lot with 8.7 metres of frontage on 
Highway 89 and an area of 0.056 hectares and convey it to the abutting lot in order to create 
a Rural Residential (RR) building lot. The retained lot will have a frontage of 12.6 metres 
and an area of 864 square metres (0.0864 hectares). The enlarged lot will have a frontage 
of 30 metres and an area of 2023 square metres (0.2023 hectares).  

The documents received by WSP on June 21, 2021 include: 
• Notice of Complete application and Public Meeting

The circulation documents were reviewed against the Province’s Natural Heritage mapping 
and the Dufferin County Official Plan. 

59



Page 2 

Provincial Policy Statement, 2020 (PPS) and Province of Ontario’s Natural 
Heritage Mapping 

As a result of Growth Plan 2019 (as amended), the Province’s Natural Heritage mapping 
must be studied and implemented into the County’s Official Plan before it can be applied 
at a local level. However, as it relates to land use designations, the mapping should continue 
to be used as a guide to determine if the subject property is identified with identified Natural 
Heritage features, should the County or local Official Plans not reflect current mapping. 

Under Ontario’s Natural Heritage mapping, the subject property is adjacent to the Niagara 
Escarpment Plan area.  

Figure 1: Ontario Natural Heritage Areas 

Dufferin County Official Plan (2017) 
The subject property is within the Rural Lands designation under Schedule B (Community 
Structure and Land Use) and within the Rural designation under Schedule C (Agricultural 
Area and Rural Lands) of the County Official Plan. The intent of the Rural Lands 
designation is to protect the natural amenities and rural character of the County while 
promoting development opportunities related to the management or use of resources, 

60



Page 3 

resource-based recreational uses (including recreational dwellings), tourism, limited 
residential development, home occupations and home industries, and other rural 
land uses that cannot be located in settlement areas. 

Per section 4.3.2, limited residential development, home occupations, and home industries 
are permitted with the Rural Lands designation. 

Per section 4.3.2 (e) of the County Official Plan, the specific permitted uses and accessory 
uses will be established in the local municipal official plans and implementing zoning by-
laws. 

Per section 4.3.3(i), an appropriate separation distance will be established between rural 
industrial land use and any sensitive land use, based upon the Ministry of Environments 
relevant guidelines related to land use compatibility. The subject properties are located 
adjacent to several existing aggregate pits or quarries.  

Schedules E (Natural Heritage Features) identifies Unevaluated Wetlands adjacent to the 
Subject Properties. Further consultations with the township of Mulmur, the township of 
Mono, and the NVCA should be undertaken to determine whether the wetlands are deemed 
significant and whether the proposed development will have a negative impact on the 
wetlands. Section 5.3.4 of the County Official Plan directs that development and site 
alteration adjacent to significant woodlands is not permitted unless it has been 
demonstrated that there will be no negative impacts on the natural features or their 
ecological functions through preparation of an EIS. 

Figure 2 Schedule C: Natural Heritage Features

61



Page 4 

The subject properties are located on a County Road and as such, County Public Works 
should provide any comments regarding access., the Township should provide comments 
regarding access. 

Under Appendix 2 (Source Water Protection) the subject property is located within a source 
water protection area (Significant Groundwater Recharge Area). Policy 5.4.2(c) states that 
prior to the approval of development applications within designated vulnerable areas, the 
proponents shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of the County, local municipality, 
Conservation Authority and Province, where necessary, that the quality and quantity of 
municipal drinking water sources will not be negatively impacted. It is anticipated that the 
NVCA will provide further review and comments with respect to the requirements for 
Source Water Protection as it relates to the changes proposed on the subject properties. 

Figure 3: Appendix 2: Source Water Protection 

Recommendation 
The proposal generally conforms with the Countryside Area designation and the related 
policies in the Dufferin County Official Plan. It is recommended that: 

62



Page 5 

• Confirmation be provided as to whether residential use is compatible with
surrounding aggregate extraction, and whether it satisfies minimum separation
distance requirements

• Confirmation be provided as to whether the unevaluated wetlands adjacent
(within 120m) to the subject properties are deemed significant

• Confirmation be provided as to whether an Environmental Impact Statement
(EIS) is required relative to the proximity of unevaluated wetlands.

• Consultation occur with the Township of Mulmur and the Nottawasaga Valley
Conservation Authority (NVCA) related to the potential impacts to source water
because the subject properties are located within a source water protection area
(Low Vulnerability Aquifer and Significant Groundwater Recharge Area).

63



1

Roseann Knechtel

Subject: FW: 519-21-372 - Consent Application B13-2021 - 205701 and 205702 Highway 89

From: "Hall, Charleyne 

Date: June 29, 2021 at 10:30:27 AM EDT 
To: Tracey Atkinson 
Subject: 519‐21‐372 ‐ Consent Application B13‐2021 ‐ 205701 and 205702 Highway 89 

Good morning Tracey, 

Bell Canada has no concerns with Application for Consent B13‐2021 regarding 205701 and 205702 
Highway 89. 

Thank you, 

Charleyne 

Right of Way Associate  
140 Bayfield Street, Floor 2, Barrie ON L4M 3B1 
T: 705-722-2264  Toll Free: 1-888-646-4817 
she/her 
Recognizing traditional territory of Haudenosaunee and Anishnaabeg Peoples; part of the Upper Canada 
Treaties. 

64



Minimum Distance Separation I
Worksheet 1
Prepared By: Kristine Loft

Page 1 of 1AgriSuite 3.4.0.18
Date Prepared: May 31, 2021 2:39 PM

225037

Description: Lot Addition/Merger

Application Date: Monday, May 31, 2021

Municipal File Number: Chaudhray

Proposed Application: Lot creation for a maximum of three non-agricultural use lots 
Type A Land Use

Applicant Contact Information
K Chaudhary

Location of Subject Lands
County of Dufferin, Township of Mulmur
MULMUR, Concession: 2 EAST OF HURONTARIO STREET, Lot: 32

Roll Number: 221600000205702

Calculation Name: Farm 1
Description:

Farm Contact Information
K Chaudhray

Location of existing livestock facility or anaerobic digester
County of Dufferin, Township of Mulmur
MULMUR, Concession: 2 EAST OF HURONTARIO STREET, Lot: 32

Roll Number: 221600000409800

Total Lot Size: 33.8 ha

The barn area is an estimate only and is intended to provide users with an indication of whether the number of livestock entered is
reasonable.

Manure
Type Type of Livestock/Manure

Existing 
Maximum
Number

Existing 
Maximum 
Number (NU)

Estimated 
Livestock Barn
Area

Solid Horses, Large-framed, mature; > 680 kg (including unweaned offspring) 15 21.4 453 m²

The livestock/manure information has not been confirmed with the property owner and/or farm operator.

Existing Manure Storage: V3. Solid, outside, no cover, >= 30% DM

Design Capacity (NU): 21.4

Potential Design Capacity (NU): 42.9

Factor A
(Odour Potential)

0.7 X

Factor B
(Size)

245.71 X

Factor D
(Manure Type)

0.7 X

Factor E
(Encroaching Land Use)

1.1 =

Building Base Distance �F'
(minimum distance from livestock barn)

132 m (435 ft)

Storage Base Distance 'S'
(minimum distance from manure storage)

132 m (435 ft)

(actual distance from livestock barn)

126 m (413 ft)

(actual distance from manure storage)

126 m (413 ft)

Preparer Information
Kristine Loft

Email: kristine@loftplanning.com

Signature of Preparer: Date:
Kristine Loft

NOTE TO THE USER:
The Ontario Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs (OMAFRA) has developed this software program for distribution and use with the Minimum Distance 
Separation (MDS) Formulae as a public service to assist farmers, consultants, and the general public. This version of the software distributed by OMAFRA will be 
considered to be the official version for purposes of calculating MDS. OMAFRA is not responsible for errors due to inaccurate or incorrect data or information; mistakes
in calculation; errors arising out of modification of the software, or errors arising out of incorrect inputting of data. All data and calculations should be verified before 
acting on them.

65



From: Ryan Post
To: Tracey Atkinson
Subject: FW: Comments for 3 consents (residential lot craation)
Date: July 12, 2021 7:19:42 AM
Attachments: B5-2021 Notice.pdf

B6-2021 Notice.pdf
B13-2021 Notice.docx

Tracey:
To follow up on the below note, I have no comments/issues  with the attached three proposed consent applications from a SWP vantage.
Sincerely
Rpost

Ryan Post M.Sc., P. Geo | Manager, Watershed Science

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority
8195 8  Line, Utopia, ON L0M 1T0
T 705-424-1479, ext. 249 
rpost@nvca.on.ca│nvca.on.ca

Important note: I am currently working remotely as the Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority is taking preventative measures to limit the spread of COVID-19.
You may experience some delays or disruptions as we follow recommendations of public health experts.

This e-mail message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential and privileged information.  Any unauthorized review,
use, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the original message.

From: Amy Knapp 
Sent: Friday, July 9, 2021 9:55 AM
To: Ryan Post <rpost@nvca.on.ca>
Cc: 'Tracey Atkinson' <tatkinson@mulmur.ca>
Subject: Comments for 3 consents (residential lot craation)

Good Morning Ryan,

I am in receipt of three consent applications (see attached) that I need your assistance on.  The subject lands are outside of NVCA Regulated Jurisdiction and I have
provided you with my response below for context.   In looking as Source Water Protection,  the property has been identified as a Significant Groundwater Recharge
and a corner of the retained land are within an HVA.

Can you review the materials attached and below and respond directly to Tracey?  Thanks in advance.  Amy

The Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority (NVCA) has reviewed the planning application related and have determined the
subject lands and proposed consent is not within:

·  a flood susceptible area;
·  a hazardous site (characterized by unstable soils or bedrock);
·  an erosion hazard area, or;
· an area subject to this Authority’s Development, Interference With Wetlands and Alterations To Shorelines and

Watercourses Regulation (Ontario Regulation 172/06).
·  No Natural Heritage Features present

th

66

mailto:rpost@nvca.on.ca
mailto:tatkinson@mulmur.ca
mailto:sflannagan@nvca.on.ca
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fnvca.on.ca%2F&data=04%7C01%7Crpost%40nvca.on.ca%7C05ee27deb963402704c108d915353308%7C7ace599cd405459da9bcd4df21aa2ef4%7C0%7C0%7C637564140490055392%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=wLGzKHXffX%2BV16yWVeyW2kRXjF4vp%2FR6N8bQOSBMgZc%3D&reserved=0



 
CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR 


NOTICE OF COMPLETE APPLICATION & PUBLIC MEETING 
B5-2021 CHAUDHARY 


Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment will hold a public meeting under section 53 (5) of 
the Planning Act, R.S.O.1990 c.P.13,as amended.  


This meeting is being conducted by means of Electronic Participation by a majority of 
members, as permitted by Section 238 (3.3) of the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended. 


USING VIDEO AND/OR AUDIO CONFERENCING.  


To connect only by phone, please dial any of the following numbers.  When prompted, please 
enter the meeting ID provided below the phone numbers.  You will be placed into the meeting 
in muted mode. If you encounter difficulty, please call the front desk at 705-466-3341, ext. 0  


+1 647 374 4685 Canada 
+1 647 558 0588 Canada 
+1 778 907 2071 Canada 
+1 438 809 7799 Canada 


 +1 587 328 1099 Canada Meeting ID: 846 0224 8258 


To connect to video with a computer, smart phone or digital device and with either digital audio 
or separate phone line, download the zoom application ahead of time and enter the digital 
address below into your search engine or follow the link below. Enter the meeting ID when 
prompted.   


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258 Meeting ID: 846 0224 8258 


 
The meeting is being held to consider an application for Consent which has been submitted. 
The following are the particulars:  
 
MEETING DATE AND TIME: July 21, 2021 at 9:00am 
APPLICATION NUMBER: B5-2021 
OWNER/APPLICANT: CHOUDHRY MONA / CHAUDHARY KULVINDER KUMAR 
LOCATION: CONCESSION 2 EHS, EAST PART LOT 1 PCL 2 & PCL 3 
 
PURPOSE: The application proposes to merge two individual 1400m2 lots (parcels 2 and 3) in 
order to create one 2800m2 Rural Residential (RR) lot. 
 
Additional information is available for public inspection by request. If you require additional 
information on this application, it may also be obtained by contacting the CAO/Planner, Tracey 
Atkinson, 705 466 3341 X222 or by email: takinson@mulmur.ca during regular office hours.  


NOTE:  If a person or public body that files an appeal of a decision of the Township of Mulmur 
Committee of Adjustment in respect of the proposed consent does not make written submissions 



https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258

mailto:takinson@mulmur.ca





to the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment before it gives or refuses to give a provisional 
consent, the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal may dismiss the appeal.   If you wish to be notified 
of the decision of the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment in respect of the proposed 
consent, you must make a written request to the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment. 


See Map for illustration purposes only. This is not a plan of survey. A digital version is 
available by email.  
 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Dated May 18, 2021 








 
CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR 


NOTICE OF COMPLETE APPLICATION & PUBLIC MEETING 
B6-2021 CHOUHAN 


Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment will hold a public meeting under section 53 (5) of 
the Planning Act, R.S.O.1990 c.P.13,as amended.  


This meeting is being conducted by means of Electronic Participation by a majority of 
members, as permitted by Section 238 (3.3) of the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended. 


USING VIDEO AND/OR AUDIO CONFERENCING.  


To connect only by phone, please dial any of the following numbers.  When prompted, please 
enter the meeting ID provided below the phone numbers.  You will be placed into the meeting 
in muted mode. If you encounter difficulty, please call the front desk at 705-466-3341, ext. 0  


+1 647 374 4685 Canada 
+1 647 558 0588 Canada 
+1 778 907 2071 Canada 
+1 438 809 7799 Canada 


 +1 587 328 1099 Canada Meeting ID: 846 0224 8258 


To connect to video with a computer, smart phone or digital device and with either digital audio 
or separate phone line, download the zoom application ahead of time and enter the digital 
address below into your search engine or follow the link below. Enter the meeting ID when 
prompted.   


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258 Meeting ID: 846 0224 8258 


 
The meeting is being held to consider an application for Consent which has been submitted. 
The following are the particulars:  
 
MEETING DATE AND TIME: July 21, 2021 at 9:00am 
APPLICATION NUMBER: B6-2021 
OWNER/APPLICANT: CHOUHAN RITU/ VARVARO VINCENZO 
LOCATION: CONCESSION 2 EHS, EAST PART LOT 1 PCL 4 & PCL 5 
 
PURPOSE: The application proposes to sever 0.17 ha (1700m2) from the existing 0.60 hectare 
lot and convey the land to the adjacent 0.15 ha (1500 m2) lot. The retained lot would have a lot 
area of 0.43 ha (4300 m2). 
 
Additional information is available for public inspection by request. If you require additional 
information on this application, it may also be obtained by contacting the CAO/Planner, Tracey 
Atkinson, 705 466 3341 X222 or by email: takinson@mulmur.ca during regular office hours.  



https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258





NOTE:  If a person or public body that files an appeal of a decision of the Township of Mulmur 
Committee of Adjustment in respect of the proposed consent does not make written submissions 
to the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment before it gives or refuses to give a provisional 
consent, the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal may dismiss the appeal.   If you wish to be notified 
of the decision of the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment in respect of the proposed 
consent, you must make a written request to the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment. 


See Map for illustration purposes only. This is not a plan of survey. A digital version is 
available by email.  
 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







Dated May 18, 2021 














CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR

NOTICE OF COMPLETE APPLICATION & PUBLIC MEETING

B13-2021 CHAUDHARY

Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment will hold a public meeting under section 53 (5) of the Planning Act, R.S.O.1990 c.P.13,as amended. 

		This meeting is being conducted by means of Electronic Participation by a majority of members, as permitted by Section 238 (3.3) of the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended. USING VIDEO AND/OR AUDIO CONFERENCING. 

To connect only by phone, please dial any of the following numbers.  When prompted, please enter the meeting ID provided below the phone numbers.  You will be placed into the meeting in muted mode. If you encounter difficulty, please call the front desk at 705-466-3341, ext. 0 

+1 647 374 4685 Canada

+1 647 558 0588 Canada

+1 778 907 2071 Canada +1 438 809 7799 Canada

	+1 587 328 1099 Canada	Meeting ID: 846 0224 8258

To connect to video with a computer, smart phone or digital device and with either digital audio or separate phone line, download the zoom application ahead of time and enter the digital address below into your search engine or follow the link below. Enter the meeting ID when prompted.  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258	Meeting ID: 846 0224 8258







The meeting is being held to consider an application for Consent which has been submitted. The following are the particulars: 



MEETING DATE AND TIME: July 21, 2021 at 9:00am

APPLICATION NUMBER: B13-2021

OWNER/APPLICANT: CHOUDHRY MONA

LOCATION: CON 2 E E PT LOT 1 PCL 2



PURPOSE: 	The application proposes to sever +/- 0.056 ha (0.14 acres) from Lot 1 and convey it to Lot 1 in order to create a Rural Residential (RR) building lot.



Additional information is available for public inspection by request. If you require additional information on this application, it may also be obtained by contacting the CAO/Planner, Tracey Atkinson, 705 466 3341 X222 or by email: takinson@mulmur.ca during regular office hours. 

NOTE:  If a person or public body that files an appeal of a decision of the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment in respect of the proposed consent does not make written submissions to the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment before it gives or refuses to give a provisional consent, the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal may dismiss the appeal.   If you wish to be notified of the decision of the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment in respect of the proposed consent, you must make a written request to the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment.

See Map for illustration purposes only. This is not a plan of survey. A digital version is available by email. 





































Dated June 17, 2021



image2.png



image3.png



image1.jpeg





From: Amy Knapp
To: Tracey Atkinson
Subject: NVCA Comments for CofA - Application B06-2021
Date: July 9, 2021 9:33:29 AM

Good Morning Tracey,

The Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority (NVCA) has reviewed the
planning application related and have determined the subject lands and
proposed consent is not within:

a flood susceptible area;
a hazardous site (characterized by unstable soils or bedrock);
an erosion hazard area, or;

an area subject to this Authority’s Development, Interference With
Wetlands and Alterations To Shorelines and Watercourses Regulation
(Ontario Regulation 172/06).
No Natural Heritage Features present

Amy Knapp¦Planner III
Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority
8195 8  Line, Utopia, ON L0M 1T0
T 705-424-1479 ext.233¦F 705-424-2115
aknapp@nvca.on.ca¦nvca.on.ca

I am currently working remotely as the Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority is taking
preventative measures to limit the spread of COVID-19. You may experience some delays or
disruptions as we follow recommendations of health professionals to slow the virus from spreading.

This e-mail message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may
contain confidential and privileged information.  Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution is
prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the
original message.

From: Tracey Atkinson <tatkinson@mulmur.ca> 
Sent: Friday, July 9, 2021 9:03 AM
To: Amy Knapp <aknapp@nvca.on.ca>

th

67



BUILDING SERVICES 

County of Dufferin | Phone: 519-941-2816 
55 Zina Street, Orangeville, ON L9W 1E5 | Fax: 519-941-4565 
www.dufferincounty.ca | E-mail: building@dufferincounty.ca

Date: June 24, 2021 

To: Tracey Atkinson CAO/Planner 
Township of Mulmur 

Re: Consent file # B13-2021 
      Township of Mulmur, County of Dufferin. 

This letter serves to confirm that I have commenced a preliminary review of the 
application B13-2021 and request for comment. 

After review of the application for lot addition, the Building Division would like to 
note that we have the following concerns. 
- please add the condition to your decision that the applicant shall provide a
satisfactory Lot Suitability letter for the sewage disposal system from the County
of Dufferin Building Division for the newly enlarged lot.
-Please add the condition that the retained must be merged with Part Lot 3 as per
the provided sketch and not left as a non-buildable lot.
-Please add the condition that entrance and construction permits are required from
Ministry of Transportation, Highway Corridor Management or favorable comments
that they have no concerns.

It should be noted that the applicant is required to apply for building permit to our 
office with respect to the above property before any type of construction begins on 
either the severed or retained. 

If you should have any questions pertaining to this letter, please do not hesitate to 
contact the undersigned. 

Regards, 

Doug Kopp CBCO 
Plans Examiner 

68



BUILDING SERVICES 

County of Dufferin | Phone: 519-941-2816 
55 Zina Street, Orangeville, ON L9W 1E5 | Fax: 519-941-4565 
www.dufferincounty.ca | E-mail: building@dufferincounty.ca

Date: June 24, 2021 

To: Tracey Atkinson CAO/Planner 
Township of Mulmur 

Re: Consent file # B13-2021 
      Township of Mulmur, County of Dufferin. 

This letter serves to confirm that I have commenced a preliminary review of the 
application B13-2021 and request for comment. 

After review of the application for lot addition, the Building Division would like to 
note that we have the following concerns. 
- please add the condition to your decision that the applicant shall provide a
satisfactory Lot Suitability letter for the sewage disposal system from the County
of Dufferin Building Division for the newly enlarged lot.
-Please add the condition that the retained must be merged with Part Lot 3 as per
the provided sketch and not left as a non-buildable lot.
-Please add the condition that entrance and construction permits are required from
Ministry of Transportation, Highway Corridor Management or favorable comments
that they have no concerns.

It should be noted that the applicant is required to apply for building permit to our 
office with respect to the above property before any type of construction begins on 
either the severed or retained. 

If you should have any questions pertaining to this letter, please do not hesitate to 
contact the undersigned. 

Regards, 

Doug Kopp CBCO 
Plans Examiner 

69



Date: July 21, 2021 

To: Committee of Adjustment 

From: John Willmetts, Director of Public Works 

Re: B5 – CHAUDHARY  

ROAD WIDENING 

With respect to this application, I have no conditions or concerns. 

Yours truly, 

John Willmetts 
John Willmetts 
Director of Public Works 
Township of Mulmur 

70



Date: July 21, 2021 

To: Committee of Adjustment 

From: John Willmetts, Director of Public Works 

Re: B6 – CHAUDHARY  

ROAD WIDENING 

With respect to this application, I have no conditions or concerns. 

Yours truly, 

John Willmetts 
John Willmetts 
Director of Public Works 
Township of Mulmur 

71



Page 1 of 7 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT 
SUBJECT: Tracey Atkinson, BES MCIP RPP 
MEETING DATE: July 21, 2021 
SUBJECT: B05-2021 (Chaudhary) 

B06-2021 (Chouhan) 
B13-2021 (Chaudhary) 

______________________________________________________________________ 

PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this report is to assess the planning merits of three applications for 
consent to merge/adjust boundary lines to establish four building lots from five existing 
parcels.   

• B05-2021 proposes to merge two individual 1400m2 lots (parcels 2 and 3) in order
to create one 2800m2 Rural Residential (RR) lot. (This lot would further be
reduced to an area of 2238m2 through application B13-2021)

• B06-2021 proposes to sever 0.17 ha (1700m2) from the existing 0.60 hectare lot
and convey the land to the adjacent 0.15 ha (1500 m2) lot. The retained lot would
have a lot area of 0.43 ha (4300 m2).

• B13-2021 proposes to sever 0.05ha (562m2) from parcel 2 and add it to lot 1,
resulting in a total lot area of 0.20 ha for lot 1.

BACKGROUND: 

FILE NO B05-2021, B06-2021, B13-2021 
ROLL NO 2216000002057010000 (Parcel 1) 

2216000002057020000 (Parcel 2) 
2216000002057030000 (Parcel 3) 
2216000002057040000 (Parcel 4) 
2216000002057050000 (Parcel 5) 

OWNER 5:  CHOUDHRY MONA (Parcel 2) 
     CHAUDHARY KULVINDER KUMAR (Parcel 3) 
6:  VARVARO VINCENZO (Parcel 4) 
      CHOUHAN RITU (Parcel 5) 
13: CHOUCHAN JAGBISH (Parcel 1) 

  being transferred from SRAN AJEET PAL 
ADDRESS Highway 89 

72



Page 2 of 7 

EXISTING CONFIGURATION 

The subject lands are identified on the aerial photograph and described in the table 
below.  

PARCEL AREA FRONTAGE 
1 1461m2 (.36 acres) 21.3m (70’) 
2 1400 m2 (.36 acres) 21m (70’) 
3 1400m2 (.36 acres) 21m (70’) 
4 1400m2 (.36 acres) 21m (70’) 
5 6000m2 (1.47 acres) 92m (300’) 

PROPOSED CONFIGURATION 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 5: CONCESSION 2 EHS, EAST PART LOT 1 PCL 2 & 
PCL 3 
6: CONCESSION 2 EHS, EAST PART LOT 1 PCL 4 
& PCL 5 
13: CONCESSION 2 EHS, EAST PART LOT 1 PCL 
4 & PCL 1 & PCL 2 

OFFICIAL PLAN: Rural      
Features: Aggregate Resource 

     Vulnerable Aquifer (Lot 5) 
ZONING: Rural Residential (RR) 
NEC/Greenbelt: N/A 
NVCA Regulated: N/A 
Natural Heritage System Regulated Wetland South of Subject lands 
Agricultural Land Base Candidate Area (Not recommended by Council) 
Application Submission Date: April 19, 2021, April 19, 2021, June, 2021 
Public Meeting Date: July 21, 2021 

73



Page 3 of 7 

The proposed configuration would result in a total of 4 parcels, as shown in the sketches 
below.  B05-2021 proposes to merge Lot 2 and 3, resulting in a combined area of 
2800m2, being 0.28 hectares, and a frontage of 42m.  

B06-2021 proposes a boundary adjustment of 24.4m frontage and 1700m2 area from Lot 
5 to Lot 4, with the enlarged Lot 4 having a combined frontage of 45.7m and area of 
3200m2.  Lot 5 would be left with 68m of frontage and an area of 4300 sq ft.  

Lot 1 +2  Lot 2 + 3 Lot 4 Enlarged Lot 5 Decreased 
Area (approx.) 0.20 ha .22 ha .32 ha .43 ha 
Frontage 
(approx.) 

30m 30m 45m 68m 

Use Proposed 
Residential 

Proposed 
residential 

Proposed 
residential 

Proposed 
residential 

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT: 
This application is aligned with the following strategic plan path: 
4. Growing a Sustainable Mulmur: Being Proactive in Sustainable Initiatives to ensure
the long term well being of Mulmur (includes Resources/Financial/People).

FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 

74



Page 4 of 7 

No financial impact. Processing costs are generally covered by the application fee. 

ANALYSIS: 

The application was supported by the following submissions: 

• Loft Planning Report, April 16, 2021
• Loft Planning Report, June 16, 2021

PLANNING POLICIES & PROVISIONS: 

The applications do not create new lots but rather would allow existing lots to be 
developed.   

Provincial Policy Statement (2020) 
The 2020 Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) contains broad policy direction and policy 
direction on lot creation and development of the Rural and Agricultural Areas, and 
provides for limited development on rural lands. The PPS provides for limited 
development on Rural lands.   

The PPS also provides protection for mineral aggregates, water resources and natural 
heritage features.    

Growth Plan (2019, consolidated Aug 2020) 

A Place to Grow: Growth plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe, provides high-level 
policy direction relating to the development of healthy, safe and balanced communities.  
The Growth Plan directs the majority of development to settlement areas except where 
otherwise permitted.  Section 2.2.9(3) of the GP provides for rural land uses that will not 
negatively affect agriculture and Section 2.2.9.6 allows for consideration of some lots 
within the rural area.    

Natural Heritage System 

The subject lands are not regulated by the Conservation Authority nor are they mapped 
as part of the Natural Heritage System.  It is noted that a wetland is identified south of 
Highway 89.  

Comments are anticipated from the NVCA regarding the wetland feature. 

Niagara Escarpment Plan 

The subject lands are not regulated by the Niagara Escarpment Plan.  

NVCA 
The subject lands are not regulated by the NVCA regulation. 

County Official Plan 

75



Page 5 of 7 

The subject lands are designated “Rural Lands” and identified as being within a 
significant groundwater recharge area and low & high aquifer vulnerability” in the County 
Official Plan schedules.   

Comments dated May 17, 2021 were received from the County of Dufferin (WSP 
Planning Consultants) 

Mulmur Official Plan (2012) 

The lot creation policies of section 5.36 and 6.2.5 area applicable to the subject 
applications. The policies permit technical severances and boundary adjustments that do 
not create a new building lot.  

Section 6.2.5 of the Official Plan includes the following: 

Other technical or boundary correction severances are generally permitted, 
provided that they do not result in the creation of a new lot or the re-division of 
parcels that have merged, unless, in the latter instance, the severance is 
otherwise permitted by this Plan and both the severed and retained lots conform 
to the requirements of the Zoning By-law. Lot enlargements and boundary line 
adjustments are generally permitted, provided the purposes and overall intent of 
this Plan are maintained.  

The Official Plan also contains policies with respect to wetlands, vulnerable aquifers, 
frontage on a Provincial Highway and Minimum Distance to livestock facilities/odour.  

The subject lands are identified as having aggregate resources and back on to an 
aggregate operation.  While it is not desirable to limit access to aggregates, by building 
houses on them, the existing lots area already created, and the subject applications 
would result in less development than originally anticipated.   

There appears, from aerial photography, that there may be an equestrian livestock 
facility approximately 130m south of the subject lands.  A minimum distance separation 
calculation is required to confirm conformity with the MDS section of the Township’s 
planning documents.  It is noted that the current MDS provisions apply to existing vacant 
lots.   

Zoning By-law 
The applications do not create new lots but rather would allow existing lots to be 
developed.  The current zoning by-law minimum lot size provisions are not met by the 
current undersized lot areas of Lots 1 to 4. The subject applications would allow all lots 
to meet the minimum requirements of the zoning by-law (through the undersized lot 
provision).  

The subject lands are zoned Rural Residential, an excerpt from which is provided below. 

76



Page 6 of 7 

4.2.1 Permitted Uses 

i) Single Detached Dwelling
ii) additional single dwelling (ASD)  or attached accessory dwelling unit or habitable pool house 
iii) bed and breakfast
iv) home industry
v) home occupation 
vi) the keeping of not more than 50 chickens on a lot of not less than 0.5 ha and at a location not less  than 60 m 

from any dwelling on an adjacent lot.

4.2.2 Regulations for Permitted Rural Residential Uses 

i) Minimum Lot Area  0.4 ha 
ii) Minimum Lot Frontage 45 m 
iii) Minimum Yard Requirements
 a) Front Yard 20 m 
 b) Interior Side Yard 6 m
 c) Exterior Side Yard 20 m
 d) Rear Yard 20 m 
iv) Maximum Lot Coverage 10% 

v) Maximum Height 10.5 m 

The existing parcels, with the exception of Parcel 5, do not meet the minimum lot area 
and minimum lot area requirements of the Rural Residential Zone.  However, the zoning 
by-law, in section 3.10.2.3 provides leniency to the minimum requirements for existing 
undersized lots.  The existing lots, if successfully merged and adjusted, would be able to 
form 3 lots that would meet the minimum requirements.  

3.10.2.3 Existing Undersized Lots of Record 

Where a lot, having a lesser lot area and/or lot frontage than required herein, existed on the date 
of passing of this By-law, or where such a lot is created by a public authority, such smaller lot may 
be used and a permitted building or structure may be erected, altered and/or used on such 
smaller lot provided that the lot has at least 30 m of frontage, an area of at least 0.2 hectares, is 
located on a maintained public road and all other applicable zone provisions of this By-law are 
complied with.  

Lots which have been increased in size following passing of this By-law to comply with the above 
minimum frontage and lot area standards may also be used in accordance with this provision.  

AGENCY COMMENTS 
Comments received are appended to this report, and recommendations for provisional 
consent condition have been included in the draft decision.  

Comments were received from the Ministry of Transportation (MTO) regarding the 
proposed access location for Lots 4 and 5.  The applicant has submitted a revised sketch 
which would maintain the frontage of Lot 5 but still adjust the boundary allowing all lots to 
meet the minimum lot area provision. The reconfiguration may result in a deficient lot 
frontage for lot 4.  Provided there is sufficient room for an access and setbacks, a zoning 
amendment could be considered if necessary.  

77



Page 7 of 7 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended:  

THAT applications B5-2021, B6-2021 and B13-2021 be approved subject to the standard 
conditions, as well as addressing MTO entrance requirements, water 
vulnerability/Source Water, wetland south of Highway 89, and Minimum Distance 
Separation from the barn south of Highway 89. 

It is noted that there may need to be a condition with respect to registration in a specific 
order to the intent of the applications. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Tracey Atkinson 
__________________________________ 
Tracey Atkinson, BES MCIP RPP 
Planner 

78



DECISION OF COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT WITH REASONS 
(The Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. 13, s. 45 (8), 1994 c. 23, s.26.) 

CERTIFICATION 
(The Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. p. 13 s. 45 (10) 

I, Tracey Atkinson, Clerk of the Township of Mulmur, hereby certify that the above is a true copy of the decision of 
the Committee of Adjustment for the Township of Mulmur with respect to the application recorded herein. 

............................................................... 
Tracey Atkinson, Clerk, Township of Mulmur 

The last date that this decision may be appealed to the Ontario Land Tribunal is ______, 2021. 
NOTICE OF LAST DAY OF APPEALING TO THE ONTARIO LAND TRIBUNAL (OLT) 

The applicant, the Minister, or any other person who has an interest in this matter may, within twenty (20) days of 
the date of this notice, appeal to the Ontario Land Tribunal against the decision of the Committee by serving 
personally or sending by registered mail to the Secretary-Treasurer of the Committee a Notice of Appeal along with 
Appellant Form (A1) available from the Township office or from the OLT website at www.elto.gov.on.ca setting out 
the objection to the decision and the reasons for the objection and accompanied by the fee of $300.00 payable by 
certified cheque or money order to the MINISTER OF FINANCE as prescribed by the Ontario Land Tribunal as 
payable on an appeal from a Committee of Adjustment to the Board. 

Tracey Atkinson, Clerk  
Telephone: (705) 466-3341 Ext 222   Date of Mailing:  July ______, 2021 
tatkinson@mulmur.ca Last day to appeal to OLT: August ___ , 2021 

FILE NO. B6-2021  CHOUHAN RE:   Boundary Adjustment 

The following decision was reached by the Committee of Adjustment for the Township of Mulmur at the 
meeting on July 21, 2021: 

That Application No. B6-2021 submitted by Ritu and Nakshat Chouhan for a boundary adjustment from 
CON 2 EHS W, EAST PART LOT 1 PARCEL 5 (R#2 05705) to CON 2 EHS W, EAST PART LOT 1 
PARCEL 4 (R#2 05704) be approved subject to the following: 

• That the boundary adjustment applies to a minimum 500 m2 parcel of land rounded to two decimal places
be added to CON 2 EHS W, EAST PART LOT 1 PARCEL 4 (R#2 05704) subject to MTO Satisfaction of
lot configuration.

• Taxes and/or penalties must be paid in full up to and including the current fiscal year on all related
properties, if the amount is known.

• The deed for the subject severance must be presented to the Secretary Treasurer prior to one year after
the date of decision; a copy of the consent decision to be kept on file at the Township solicitor’s office.

• Two paper copies of the registered plan of survey and one digital copy be provided, including
documentation from the surveyor certifying that the digital copy was created from the same file that was
used to plot the original paper copies. The digital copy shall be of a format to the Township’s satisfaction.
The paper copy shall be circulated to the Township for review prior to registration.

• Compliance with all bylaws, including, but not limited to zoning, site plan and property standards.
• That the lot complies with MDS1 analysis between any nearby livestock facilities/anaerobic digesters on

separate lots in accordance with the Minimum Separation Distance Document and provide proof of
attempted confirmation with the facility operators/owners.

• That the applicant shall, at his-her own expense, undertake a Zoning Bylaw Amendment to address any
Zoning requirements that cannot be fulfilled through the Boundary Adjustment including but not limited to
MDS setbacks, lot size and minimum frontage requirements, only if required.

• The application is to comply with all requirements from the MTO to obtain an approved entrance permit.
Prior to endorsement of the deeds, the Municipality shall receive confirmation from the MTO, that their
conditions have been fulfilled to their satisfaction.

• The severed parcel shall be subject to Section 50(3) of the Planning Act.
• The solicitor for the owner of the lot to which the severed parcel is to be added shall provide an

undertaking to make an application for consolidation within thirty days following registration of the deed
for the resulting enlarged parcel, and to provide the Township with documentation which demonstrates
that the consolidation has taken place.

• That all conditions of consent be fulfilled within one year of the date of notice of decision where failure to
do so will cause the application to be null and void.

REASON:   Conforms to the Township’s Official Plan with the proposed conditions. 

79

mailto:tatkinson@mulmur.ca


DECISION OF COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT WITH REASONS 
(The Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. 13, s. 45 (8), 1994 c. 23, s.26.) 

CERTIFICATION 
(The Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. p. 13 s. 45 (10) 

I, Tracey Atkinson, Clerk of the Township of Mulmur, hereby certify that the above is a true copy of the decision of 
the Committee of Adjustment for the Township of Mulmur with respect to the application recorded herein. 

............................................................... 
Tracey Atkinson, Clerk, Township of Mulmur 

The last date that this decision may be appealed to the Ontario Land Tribunal is ______, 2021. 
NOTICE OF LAST DAY OF APPEALING TO THE ONTARIO LAND TRIBUNAL (OLT) 

The applicant, the Minister, or any other person who has an interest in this matter may, within twenty (20) days of 
the date of this notice, appeal to the Ontario Land Tribunal against the decision of the Committee by serving 
personally or sending by registered mail to the Secretary-Treasurer of the Committee a Notice of Appeal along with 
Appellant Form (A1) available from the Township office or from the OLT website at www.elto.gov.on.ca setting out 
the objection to the decision and the reasons for the objection and accompanied by the fee of $300.00 payable by 
certified cheque or money order to the MINISTER OF FINANCE as prescribed by the Ontario Land Tribunal as 
payable on an appeal from a Committee of Adjustment to the Board. 

Tracey Atkinson, Clerk  
Telephone: (705) 466-3341 Ext 222    Date of Mailing:  July ______, 2021 
tatkinson@mulmur.ca Last day to appeal to OLT: August ___ , 2021 

FILE NO. B5-2021  CHOUDARY / CHAUDHARY RE:   Boundary Adjustment 

The following decision was reached by the Committee of Adjustment for the Township of Mulmur at the 
meeting on July 21, 2021: 

That Application No. B5-2021 submitted by Kulvinder Chaudhary and Mona Choudhery for a boundary 
adjustment to merge from CON 2 EHS W, EAST PART LOT 1 PARCELS 2 & 3 (R#2 05702 & R#2 
05703) be approved subject to the following: 

• That the boundary adjustment merge two parcels of land, both being approximately 0.36 acres (+/- 5%)
rounded to two decimal places to create one lot approximately 0.72 acres (+/- 5%) with a frontage of
approximately 42.56m subsequent to the completion of File No. B13-2021 Choudhry.

• No fragment parcel shall exist through this transaction.
• Taxes and/or penalties must be paid in full up to and including the current fiscal year on all related

properties, if the amount is known.
• The deed for the subject severance must be presented to the Secretary Treasurer prior to one year after

the date of decision; a copy of the consent decision to be kept on file at the Township solicitor’s office.
• Two paper copies of the registered plan of survey and one digital copy be provided, including

documentation from the surveyor certifying that the digital copy was created from the same file that was
used to plot the original paper copies. The digital copy shall be of a format to the Township’s satisfaction.
The paper copy shall be circulated to the Township for review prior to registration.

• Compliance with all bylaws, including, but not limited to zoning, site plan and property standards.
• That the lot complies with MDS1 analysis between any nearby livestock facilities/anaerobic digesters on

separate lots in accordance with the Minimum Separation Distance Document and provide proof of
attempted confirmation with the facility operators/owners.

• That the applicant shall, at his/her own expense, undertake a Zoning Bylaw Amendment to address any
Zoning requirements that cannot be fulfilled through the Boundary Adjustment, which may include but not
limited to MDS setbacks, lot size and minimum frontage requirements.

• The application is to comply with all requirements from the MTO to obtain an approved entrance permit.
Prior to endorsement of the deeds, the Municipality shall receive confirmation from the MTO, that their
conditions have been fulfilled to their satisfaction.

• The transaction shall be subject to Section 50(3) of the Planning Act.
• The solicitor for the owner of the lot to which the severed parcel is to be added shall provide an

undertaking to make an application for consolidation within thirty days following registration of the deed
for the resulting enlarged parcel, and to provide the Township with documentation which demonstrates
that the consolidation has taken place.

• That all conditions of consent be fulfilled within one year of the date of notice of decision where failure to
do so will cause the application to be null and void.

REASON:   Conforms to the Township’s Official Plan with the proposed conditions. 

80

mailto:tatkinson@mulmur.ca


DECISION OF COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT WITH REASONS 
(The Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. 13, s. 45 (8), 1994 c. 23, s.26.) 

CERTIFICATION 
(The Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. p. 13 s. 45 (10) 

I, Tracey Atkinson, Clerk of the Township of Mulmur, hereby certify that the above is a true copy of the decision of 
the Committee of Adjustment for the Township of Mulmur with respect to the application recorded herein. 

............................................................... 
Tracey Atkinson, Clerk, Township of Mulmur 

The last date that this decision may be appealed to the Ontario Land Tribunal is ______, 2021. 
NOTICE OF LAST DAY OF APPEALING TO THE ONTARIO LAND TRIBUNAL (OLT) 

The applicant, the Minister, or any other person who has an interest in this matter may, within twenty (20) days of 
the date of this notice, appeal to the Ontario Land Tribunal against the decision of the Committee by serving 
personally or sending by registered mail to the Secretary-Treasurer of the Committee a Notice of Appeal along with 
Appellant Form (A1) available from the Township office or from the OLT website at www.elto.gov.on.ca setting out 
the objection to the decision and the reasons for the objection and accompanied by the fee of $300.00 payable by 
certified cheque or money order to the MINISTER OF FINANCE as prescribed by the Ontario Land Tribunal as 
payable on an appeal from a Committee of Adjustment to the Board. 

Tracey Atkinson, Clerk  
Telephone: (705) 466-3341 Ext 222    Date of Mailing:  July______, 2021 
tatkinson@mulmur.ca Last day to appeal to OLT: August ___ , 2021 

FILE NO. B13-2021  CHOUDHRY RE:   Boundary Adjustment 

The following decision was reached by the Committee of Adjustment for the Township of Mulmur at the 
meeting on July 21, 2021: 

That Application No. B13-2021 submitted by Mona Choudhry for a boundary adjustment from CON 2 
EHS W, EAST PART LOT 1 PARCEL 2 (R#2 05702) to CON 2 EHS W, EAST PART LOT 1 
PARCEL 1 (R#2 05701) be approved subject to the following: 

• That the boundary adjustment applies to a 562 m2 (+/- 5%) parcel of land rounded to two decimal places
with a frontage of 8.7m be added to CON 2 EHS W, EAST PART LOT 1 PARCEL 1 (R#2 05701).

• Taxes and/or penalties must be paid in full up to and including the current fiscal year on all related
properties, if the amount is known.

• The deed for the subject severance must be presented to the Secretary Treasurer prior to one year after
the date of decision; a copy of the consent decision to be kept on file at the Township solicitor’s office.

• Two paper copies of the registered plan of survey and one digital copy be provided, including
documentation from the surveyor certifying that the digital copy was created from the same file that was
used to plot the original paper copies. The digital copy shall be of a format to the Township’s satisfaction.
The paper copy shall be circulated to the Township for review prior to registration.

• Compliance with all bylaws, including, but not limited to zoning, site plan and property standards.
• That the lot complies with MDS1 analysis between any nearby livestock facilities/anaerobic digesters on

separate lots in accordance with the Minimum Separation Distance Document and provide proof of
attempted confirmation with the facility operators/owners.

• That the applicant shall, at his-her own expense, undertake a Zoning Bylaw Amendment to address any
Zoning requirements that cannot be fulfilled through the Boundary Adjustment including but not limited to
MDS setbacks, lot size and minimum frontage requirements.

• The application is to comply with all requirements from the MTO to obtain an approved entrance permit.
Prior to endorsement of the deeds, the Municipality shall receive confirmation from the MTO, that their
conditions have been fulfilled to their satisfaction.

• The severed parcel shall be subject to Section 50(3) of the Planning Act.
• The solicitor for the owner of the lot to which the severed parcel is to be added shall provide an

undertaking to make an application for consolidation within thirty days following registration of the deed
for the resulting enlarged parcel, and to provide the Township with documentation which demonstrates
that the consolidation has taken place.

• That all conditions of consent be fulfilled within one year of the date of notice of decision where failure to
do so will cause the application to be null and void.

REASON:   Conforms to the Township’s Official Plan with the proposed conditions. 

81

mailto:tatkinson@mulmur.ca


CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR 
NOTICE OF COMPLETE APPLICATION & PUBLIC MEETING 

B7-2021 BRUCE TRAIL 
Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment will hold a public meeting under section 53 (5) of 
the Planning Act, R.S.O.1990 c.P.13,as amended.  

This meeting is being conducted by means of Electronic Participation by a majority of 
members, as permitted by Section 238 (3.3) of the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended. 

USING VIDEO AND/OR AUDIO CONFERENCING.  

To connect only by phone, please dial any of the following numbers.  When prompted, please 
enter the meeting ID provided below the phone numbers.  You will be placed into the meeting 
in muted mode. If you encounter difficulty, please call the front desk at 705-466-3341, ext. 0  

+1 647 374 4685 Canada
+1 647 558 0588 Canada
+1 778 907 2071 Canada
+1 438 809 7799 Canada
+1 587 328 1099 Canada Meeting ID: 846 0224 8258 

To connect to video with a computer, smart phone or digital device and with either digital audio 
or separate phone line, download the zoom application ahead of time and enter the digital 
address below into your search engine or follow the link below. Enter the meeting ID when 
prompted.   

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258 Meeting ID: 846 0224 8258 

The meeting is being held to consider an application for Consent which has been submitted. 
The following are the particulars:  

MEETING DATE AND TIME: July 21, 2021 at 9:00am 
APPLICATION NUMBER: B7-2021 
OWNER/APPLICANT: THE BRUCE TRAIL CONSERVANCY 
LOCATION: CONCESSION 2 WHS, EAST PART LOT 22 (PRINCE OF WALES) 

PURPOSE: The application proposes to sever a +/- 8.1 ha (20 acre) building lot from a 41.6 ha 
(103 acre) parcel. 

Additional information is available for public inspection by request. If you require additional 
information on this application, it may also be obtained by contacting the CAO/Planner, Tracey 
Atkinson, 705 466 3341 X222 or by email: takinson@mulmur.ca during regular office hours.  

NOTE:  If a person or public body that files an appeal of a decision of the Township of Mulmur 
Committee of Adjustment in respect of the proposed consent does not make written submissions 

82

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258


to the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment before it gives or refuses to give a provisional 
consent, the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal may dismiss the appeal.   If you wish to be notified 
of the decision of the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment in respect of the proposed 
consent, you must make a written request to the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment. 

See Map for illustration purposes only. This is not a plan of survey. A digital version is 
available by email.  

Dated May 18, 2021 

83



CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR 

NOTICE OF COMPLETE APPLICATION & PUBLIC MEETING 

B11-2021 BRUCE TRAIL (COHEN) 

Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment will hold a public meeting under section 53 (5) of 
the Planning Act, R.S.O.1990 c.P.13,as amended.  

This meeting is being conducted by means of Electronic Participation by a majority of 
members, as permitted by Section 238 (3.3) of the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended. 

USING VIDEO AND/OR AUDIO CONFERENCING.  

To connect only by phone, please dial any of the following numbers.  When prompted, please 
enter the meeting ID provided below the phone numbers.  You will be placed into the meeting 
in muted mode. If you encounter difficulty, please call the front desk at 705-466-3341, ext. 0  

+1 647 374 4685 Canada
+1 647 558 0588 Canada
+1 778 907 2071 Canada
+1 438 809 7799 Canada
+1 587 328 1099 Canada Meeting ID: 846 0224 8258 

To connect to video with a computer, smart phone or digital device and with either digital audio 
or separate phone line, download the zoom application ahead of time and enter the digital 
address below into your search engine or follow the link below. Enter the meeting ID when 
prompted.   

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258 Meeting ID: 846 0224 8258 

The meeting is being held to consider an application for Consent which has been submitted. 
The following are the particulars:  

MEETING DATE AND TIME: July 21, 2021 at 9:00am 
APPLICATION NUMBER: B11-2021 
OWNER/APPLICANT: 2798986 ONTARIO INC 
LOCATION: CON 2 W E PT LOT 21 (638040 PRINCE OF WALES ROAD) 

PURPOSE: The application proposes to sever +/- 3.3 ac for the development of the Bruce Trail. 

Additional information is available for public inspection by request. If you require additional 
information on this application, it may also be obtained by contacting the CAO/Planner, Tracey 
Atkinson, 705 466 3341 X222 or by email: takinson@mulmur.ca during regular office hours.  

NOTE:  If a person or public body that files an appeal of a decision of the Township of Mulmur 
Committee of Adjustment in respect of the proposed consent does not make written submissions 
to the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment before it gives or refuses to give a provisional 

84

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258


consent, the Ontario Land Tribunal may dismiss the appeal.   If you wish to be notified of the 
decision of the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment in respect of the proposed consent, 
you must make a written request to the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment. 

See Map for illustration purposes only. This is not a plan of survey. A digital version is 

available by email.  

Dated June 3, 2021 

85



CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR 

NOTICE OF COMPLETE APPLICATION & PUBLIC MEETING 

B12-2021 BRUCE TRAIL (SALES) 

Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment will hold a public meeting under section 53 (5) of 
the Planning Act, R.S.O.1990 c.P.13,as amended.  

This meeting is being conducted by means of Electronic Participation by a majority of 
members, as permitted by Section 238 (3.3) of the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended. 

USING VIDEO AND/OR AUDIO CONFERENCING.  

To connect only by phone, please dial any of the following numbers.  When prompted, please 
enter the meeting ID provided below the phone numbers.  You will be placed into the meeting 
in muted mode. If you encounter difficulty, please call the front desk at 705-466-3341, ext. 0  

+1 647 374 4685 Canada
+1 647 558 0588 Canada
+1 778 907 2071 Canada
+1 438 809 7799 Canada
+1 587 328 1099 Canada Meeting ID: 846 0224 8258 

To connect to video with a computer, smart phone or digital device and with either digital audio 
or separate phone line, download the zoom application ahead of time and enter the digital 
address below into your search engine or follow the link below. Enter the meeting ID when 
prompted.   

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258 Meeting ID: 846 0224 8258 

The meeting is being held to consider an application for Consent which has been submitted. 
The following are the particulars:  

MEETING DATE AND TIME: July 21, 2021 at 9:00am 
APPLICATION NUMBER: B12-2021 
OWNER/APPLICANT: SALES SUE ELAINE / SALES CHRISTOPHER TAYLOR 
LOCATION: CON 2 W W PT LOT 21 (598011 2ND LINE WEST) 

PURPOSE: The application proposes to sever +/- 1.3 acres for the development of the Bruce Trail 
and convey +/- 0.3 acres to the Township of Mulmur. 

Additional information is available for public inspection by request. If you require additional 
information on this application, it may also be obtained by contacting the CAO/Planner, Tracey 
Atkinson, 705 466 3341 X222 or by email: takinson@mulmur.ca during regular office hours.  

NOTE:  If a person or public body that files an appeal of a decision of the Township of Mulmur 
Committee of Adjustment in respect of the proposed consent does not make written submissions 

86

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258


to the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment before it gives or refuses to give a provisional 
consent, the Ontario Land Tribunal may dismiss the appeal.   If you wish to be notified of the 
decision of the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment in respect of the proposed consent, 
you must make a written request to the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment. 

See Map for illustration purposes only. This is not a plan of survey. A digital version is 

available by email.  

Dated June 3, 2021 

87



April22,2O2l

Township of Mulmur
758O7o 2nd Line East

Mulmur, ON

LgV OG8

Bruce Trail
CONSERVANCY

5l*z(rL\

.qtu
Jtl ,t

t] .:*r,,

a

Attention: Tracey Atkinson, CAO I ClerklPlanner

RE: Consent to sever conservation land from property described as East Part Lot 22, Concession 2

West, Township of Mulmur, County of Dufferin (ARN: 22160000060890000000)

Bruce Trail Conservancy (BTC) owns the subject property described above. We respectfully submit the

attached Consent application and associated sketches for your review and consideration. The purpose

and effect of this application is to support the severance of the existing building lot from the subject

property and to secure approx. 33.51 hectares for the Bruce Trail Optimum Route and conservation

corridor. The BTC plans to sell the reduced size building lot in order to recoup funds for conserving these

lands.

Subject Property & Proposal

The subject property comprises more or less 41,6 hectares (L02.8 acres) located on Prince of Wales

Road north of 20th Sideroad, in the Township of Mulmur. The property is designated mostly Escarpment

Protection, with the south-west corner of the property being designated Escarpment Natural under the

Niagara Escarpment Plan.

BTC is seeking consent to sever and sell approximately 8.09 hectares (20.0 acres) subject to a survey,

from the subject lands, allowing the BTC to recoup funds to secure a portion of the Bruce Trail Optimum

Route and protect over 80 acres of Niagara Escarpment lands for conservation in perpetuity.

Our application is consistent with the Lot Creation policies under of the Niagara Escarpment Plan (NEP),

including policies under Part 2.4.Lzthat permit a severance for conservation and Bruce Trail purposes,

which is also consistent with policies under Part 3 (Niagara Escarpment Parks and Open Space System).

BTC is a recognized public body within the NEP, and is able to sever land for conservation and Bruce Trail

purposes. ln this instance, approx. 620 metres of Bruce Trail Optimum Route will be secured.

Permitted uses within the Escarpment Natural and Escarpment Protection areas include single dwellings,

and the Bruce Trail. The proposed lot oeation will allow for these uses to continue on separate lots of
record. lt is also important to note that existing agricultural practices will be allowed to continue on the

conservation lands. Agricultural policies are designed to protect agricultural land from incompatible

development. These lands are marginal, used mainly for pasture, something the BTC has committed to
maintaining via a land use agreement with the farmer (Carl Cosack). Mr. Cosack has and will continue to
use these lands to pasture cattle, which will support his businesses, Peace Valley Ranch and Raw Hides

P.O. Box 857, Hamilton, ON LgN 3N9 Canada T. 905-529-6821 1-800-665-4453 F. 905-529-6823 E. info@brucetrail.org

88



Adventures. ln return, Mr. Cosack will continue to permit the Bruce Trail to cross his adjacent lands. The
BTC has a letter of intent with Mr. Cosack committing to maintain this relationship.

To ensure we maintain the existing community and open landscape character of the Escarpment, as well
as preserve existing natural heritage, agricultural and hydrologic features and functions, we have
proposed the following lot sizes and configurations for each parcel:

a Conservatlon lot (Retained by BTCI: +/- 82.8 acres - to be preserved and protected as part of
the Bruce Trail conservation corridor. More than 600 metres of Bruce Trail Optimum Route will
cross this part of the property, securing public access to the Niagara Escarpment, protecting and
enhancing habitat for species at risk, and enhancing hiker safety.

a Building Lot (To be severed): +/- 20.0 acres - hypothetical 2 storey dwelling consisting of an

area of 454.5 square metres and having a maximum height of 8 metres, and an attached garage

consisting of an area of approximately 47.5 square metres, private sewage disposal system and
a driveway.

Please note that Bruce Trail Conservancy will not be developing the building lot. The proposed
development is hypothetical only and is intended to support the severance of this lot for a single
dwelling.

The Niagara Escarpment recently issued a Notice of Decision for conditional approval of our
Development Permit application (File No. M/L/2020-2O2U374l.ln order to satisfy Condition #3 of the
approval, we are pursuing consent to sever the proposed lot.

The Township of Mulmur has approved a number of conservation severances in the past for this area
Examples include; FILE NO. BOI/20L0 (Toronto District School Board), FILE NO. BO4/20L4 (Chisholm).

The Bruce Trail Conservancy has completed more than 90 conservation severances in other jurisdictions,

such as the Town of Halton Hills, Town of Caledon, Municipality of Meaford, Town of Blue Mountains,
City of Burlington, Town of Mono, amongst others, to secure the Bruce Trail corridor.

Background

The Bruce Trail is Canada's oldest and longest footpath. lt was founded in the early 1960s as a way of
raising awareness for the need to protect the Niagara Escarpment. Today, the Bruce Trail stretches 895
kilometres from Queenston on the Niagara River to the tip of the Bruce Peninsula. lncluding side trails, it
is more than 1,300 kilometres long, and it is recognized as one of Canada's premier natural recreational
opportunities and one of the world's great hiking trails. lt forms an integral part of the Southern Ontario
landscape, allowing people to explore the beautiful Niagara Escarpment, and become more aware of the
need for its preservation.

Over the past 50 years, the Bruce Trail and the work of the Bruce Trail Conservancy has brought about
expansive and lasting benefits for the people of Ontario. The Bruce Trail Conservancy has been
responsible for conserving more than 15,000 acres and to date has secured 69 percent ofthe Bruce
Trail's Optimum Route, The work continues, however, to secure the remaining links within the NEPOSS

consisting of over 153 parks and open spaces, the majority of which are connected by the Bruce Trail.

P.O. Box857, Hamilton, ON L8N 3N9 Canada T.905-529-6821 1-800-665-4453 F.905-529-6823 E. info@brucetrail.org

89



Preserving this property will add a further 82.8 acres to NEPOSS and secure 620 metres of Bruce Trail

Optimum Route (broad overview map attached).

We thank you for your consideration of this matter and look forward to hearing from you soon. You can

reach me at 800-555-4453 ext. 235 or adiamond@brucetrail.org you have any questions or require any

further information.

Best regards,

Antoin Diamond, MCIP, RPP

Vice President of Land Acquisition
The Bruce Trail Conservancy

P.O. Box 857, Hamilton, ON LgN 3N9 Canada T. 905-529-6821 1-800-665-4453 F. 905-529-6823 E. info@brucetrail.org

90



3. Purpose of thls Appllcatlon

Proposed transaclion (check appropriate box)

tr Transfer XI
tr Acharge tr

Creation of a new lot
A lease

D Addition to a tot
tl A correction of title

tr An easement
tr Other

Specify Pupee, ie. Building lot, farm severance, lot addition, etc.

Conservation severance of +/- 33.5 ha for the protection of Niagara Escarpment land$ and the Bruce Trail
Name of person(s) to whom land or interest in land is to be transfened, leased or charged

+/- Ll ha building lot to be severed and transfened to a buyer TBD

4. Descrlptlon of SubJect Land and SeMcing lnformatlon

Frontage (m) Severed
+l-215.1

Retained
+t-392.1

Depth (m)
+l- 413.9 +l- 685.6

Area (m)
+/- 8.1 ha / 80,937 sq.m +i. 33.5 ha 1335,080 sq.m

5. Land Use

Use Use

riculture Bruce Trail Conservation/Bruce Trail, Agriculture, Single Dwel ling

Existing end Froposed buildings and Etructures

Type of
Building or
Struciure

Set Backs (m) Height
(m)

Dimensions
(mxm)

Area
{rn2)

Date of
Conbtruction I

Proposed
Construction

Time use has
continued (for

existing
buildings &
structures)

Front Rear Side Side

Single Dwelling
tr Existing
8l Proposed

+l-N2 r/-100 rt- 25 +l- 156 +/- 8m +l- 20 x 17.6 +l- 4M TBD

Garage

U Existing
F Proposed

i l- 285 rl-140 +l-32 +l- 175 +l- 4 +l-6.6 x7.2 +t- 47.5 TBD

tl Existing
El Proposed NO

The
E: BT(
e fiqur

is not
)s are

ng the br
cal for th

ilding lot.
, purooses

tr Existing
tr Proposed

Ot el taoltsn ngaD [lorng e rverope T rr tne Ntru

t] Existing
E Proposed

tr Existing
tr Proposed

Water
fl PrivateWell
tr Communal Well
U Municipal Water
tr Othen

Sewage Disposal
m Private Septic
tr Communal Septic

Storm Drainage
tr Sewer
E Ditches
tr Swales
tr Othen

Tile Drainage
mNo

Yes, please mark on site plan
location of tile runs

2

91



6. Zonlng and Offlclal Plan lnformatlon
Curent Zoning

Niagara Escarpment Commission

Current Official Plan

Agriculture, Niagara Escarpment Plan Area
Related Applications under the Planning Act, if any including Offiaial Plan,
Official Plan Amendment, Zoning By-law Amendment, Ministefs Zoning Order
(amendment), Consent or Plan of Subdivision:

Has Eubject land$ even been subject of an application under the
Planning Act?

File #: Status:

Provide an explanation of how the application conforms to the Ofiicial Plan

Sec. 6.4.5.4: lot may be severed from an original half township lot for permitted use
Sec. 6.4.8.6: Bruce Trail is an essential component of NEPOSS linking parks, open space areas and natural areas
through a trailconidor

Part2.4.12 of NEP parmits severances for conservation and Bruce Trail purposes.
BTC is a recognized "public body" within the NEP

Are any of the following uses or features on the subject land or within 500 metres of the subject land, unless otherwise specitied? Please check the
aoorooriate boxes" if anv aoolv.

Uee or Feature On the Subject Land Within 5(Xl metreo of Subject
Land, unless otheruise specific
{indicate aDDroxiffi ate distance)

Agricuttural buildingslstruc'ture or manure storage facilitiee
285 m (northeast)

A Landfill

A provincially significant vr,etland (Class 1, 2 or 3 wetland)

A localty sgnificant uetland
410 m (east)

Flood Plain

A rehabilitated mine site

A non-operating mine site within 1 kilometre of the subject land

An active mine site

An industrial or commercial use (specify uses)

Does the proposed development produce greater than 4500 litres of effluent per
day?

lf ves. attach a servicino ootions reoort and hvdro oeolooical report

tr Yes XNo

Are the lands part of a Nutrient Management Plan? tr Yes nNo

Pleaseprovideplannumber-anddateapprovedbyoMAFRA
Are there any livestook facilities within 500 metres of the subject lands? F Yes tr No

lf yes, provide a Farm Data Sheet completed by each livestock facility owner for each of the livestock facilities. htto;i/mulmur.caldepartments/plannino

J

92



7. Gonslstency wlth Pollcy Documents

Does this application:

Alter the boundary of a settlement area?
tr Yes Xl No

Create a new settlement area? n Yes ENo

Remove lands from an employment area?

tf yes, provide details of any Official Plan or Official Plan Amendment on a separate submission

tr Yes ENo

Are the subject lands in an area where conditional zoning may apply? tr Yes

tf yes, provide details of how this application conforms to Ofiicial Plan conditional zoning policieE on a separate submission

ENo

ls the proposed application oonsistent with the Provincial
isoued under subsection 3(1) ofihe Planning Act:

Joel Swagerman, MCIP RPP

Policy Statement and any other Policy Statements tr Yes FNo

Name of individual having knowledge of the policy statements. A report may
be required to accompany this application and support the above statement of

consistencY.

Are the subject lands within the Niagara Escarpment Greenbelt Plan area? A Yes trNo

Are the subject lands within the Greater Golden Hor$eshoe Grc\ivth Plan area? tr Yes FNo

Does the proposed application conform to or does not conflict with the Provincial Plans, including the
Greenbelt Plan and Growth Plan:

xl Yes nNo

Joel Swagerman, MCIP RPP
Name of individual having kno\ivledge of the polioy statements. A report may

be required to accompany this applic€tion and support the above statement of
consistency.

L Hletory of the SubJect Land

Has the subject land ever been the subject of an application for approval of a
plan of subdlvision or consent under the Planning Act?

lf yes, and if known, provide the file number and the decision made on the application:

tr Yes FNo tl Unknown

lf this application is a re-submission of a previous consent application, deecribe how it has been changed from the original application

Has any land been severed from the parcel originally acquired by the owner of the subjec't land?

lf yes, provide for each parcel severed, the date of transfer, the name of transferee and the land use:

n Yes tX No

4

93



Has any land been severed from the original, 40 hectare (approx..) parcel

lf yes, provide details:

tr Yes FNo

9. Other lnformation

Please provide any other information that may be usefulto the Council or other agencies in revlewing this application, ie. health department, conservation
authoritv. etc.

10. Sketch (please use metric units)

The application shall be accompanied by a sketch showing the following:

tr The boundaries and dimensions of the subject land, the part that is to be severed and the part that is to be retained
tr The boundaries and dimensions of any land owned by the owner ofthe subject land and that abutsthesubjec't land
tr The distance between the subject land and the nearest Township lot line or landmark, such as a railway crossing or bridge
tr The location of all land previously severed from the original approximate 40 hectare parcel
tr The approximate location of all natural and artificial features on the subject land and adjacent lands that in the ofinion of the applicant may

affect the application, such a$ buildings, railways, roads, \,rratercourses, drainage ditches, river or stream banks, wetlands, wooded areas,
\ €lls and septic tanks

tl The existing u6es on adjacent lands
tr The location, width and name of any roads within or abufting the subject land, indicating whether it is an unopened road allovvianct, a public

travelled road, a private road or right of way
tr The location and nature of any easement affecting the subject land

5

94



a

t:i

at'

a\
i:

-.

s
s

3@

I'

+
q.

4Ie{
C)

o

o
+

,(F
$ +oe

\)t

r
i
h
F
=z

o
E

b
4

o
+ @o

o
o

CJ

{\"

ti_oT

l_oT :Z :J

.. t'r

;,
_i l:'

ca-:)T ii Ti:--:i?;i-1

Nre'S

PI.AN OF STJRVEY OF
LOT22

eoilcEsstoN 2
WEST OF HUROI{TARIO STREET

TOWT{SHIP OF MULTER
COTJT{TY OF DUFFERN

l:l

ffiMATM&dTffiPN6gfu
tmnd6lhtffiwNffiDAt

Aswff1:l&
[GNOI

$
$

:
BWINGAND @iWG N@:

.6effiDEd@

L

o.t

c

ffiffi
ffiE:

g
I
$i

F

slJM*sCER1HAE

g6MW

95



AGRICULTURAL/
RESIDENTIAL

+

I

t

It,l
ll

a
to
I
I

E

I

I

I
I

N3-'

Severeil//////

//
+l-

////
,//

BeToil'lt
11

'll
ll

$

AGRICULTURAL/
RESIDENTIAL

h
t>
I

' 82.8 acres +/-
BTC to Retain

For Conservation and
Bruiel Trall optimum Route

-$43

-a

AGRICULTURAL/
RESIDENTIAL

AGRICULTURAL t

I

I
t
I

-.|.F
P
JJ

C)
ao

I
I

I
I
I

'I

Pf
J
J
aao

d

NOTE: Acreage and dimensions are based on Ownership Parcel

Bruce Trail Conservancy
81-105

legal Description
Address: PRINCE OF WALES RD

ERLt22;Con2W
Former Township of Mulmur

Township of Mulmur
County of Dufferin

ARN: 221 60000060890000000

Ownership Parcel Acreage: 102.8

o Bruce Trail
CONSERVANCY

sGIe in metres

o 100

1:5,000
1 inah equals 127 fretets

200

EI
EI
:
-

Retained Patcel

severed Ptrcd

Severan(e Line

Building Envelope

Driveway

Contour (5 metre)

QJ wut"t

J 
,, 
j wetland

Wooded Area

f] ownerhip Parcel

MD-l 983-UTM-Zone-l 7N, Transverle lr'leKator ffoiedion.
[4ay not be repoduced whhod p€mitslon. This it not a plan ol rutvey.

hcfudee Mater'€l @ 2021 of tlE Queen't Prhter lor ontar'p. All RqhB ReteNed.

O The Bruce Trail coniervancy, 2021 . All Rights Res€toed.

Map Author: Joel Swagerman Published: 2021{4_2096



Minimum Distance Separation I
Worksheet 1
Prepared By: Joel Swagerman, Land Acquisition Planner, Bruce Trail Conservancy

Page 1 of 1AgriSuite 3.4.0.18
Date Prepared: May 26, 2021 9:27 AM

716831

Description: Prince of Wales Rd

Application Date: Tuesday, May 25, 2021

Municipal File Number:

Proposed Application: Lot creation for a maximum of three non-agricultural use lots 
Type A Land Use

Applicant Contact Information
Not Specified

Location of Subject Lands
County of Dufferin, Township of Mulmur
MULMUR, Concession: 2 WEST OF HURONTARIO STREET, Lot: 22

Roll Number: 2216000006089000000

Calculation Name: Farm 1
Description:

Farm Contact Information
Carl Cosack
Peace Valley Ranch Ltd.

Phone #1: 519-925-6628

Location of existing livestock facility or anaerobic digester
County of Dufferin, Township of Mulmur
MULMUR, Concession: 2 WEST OF HURONTARIO STREET, Lot: 23

Roll Number: 2216000006090000000

Total Lot Size: 39.5 ha

The barn area is an estimate only and is intended to provide users with an indication of whether the number of livestock entered is
reasonable.

Manure
Type Type of Livestock/Manure

Existing 
Maximum
Number

Existing 
Maximum 
Number (NU)

Estimated 
Livestock Barn
Area

Solid Beef, Cows, including calves to weaning (all breeds), Yard/Barn 33 33.0 153 m²

Existing Manure Storage: V1. Solid, inside, bedded pack

Design Capacity (NU): 33.0

Potential Design Capacity (NU): 99.0

Factor A
(Odour Potential)

0.7 X

Factor B
(Size)

314.85 X

Factor D
(Manure Type)

0.7 X

Factor E
(Encroaching Land Use)

1.1 =

Building Base Distance �F'
(minimum distance from livestock barn)

170 m (557 ft)

Storage Base Distance 'S'
(minimum distance from manure storage)

170 m (557 ft)

(actual distance from livestock barn)

360 m (1181 ft)

(actual distance from manure storage)

360 m (1181 ft)

Preparer Information
Joel Swagerman
Land Acquisition Planner
Bruce Trail Conservancy

Email: jswagerman@brucetrail.org

Signature of Preparer: Date:
Joel Swagerman, Land Acquisition Planner

NOTE TO THE USER:
The Ontario Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs (OMAFRA) has developed this software program for distribution and use with the Minimum Distance 
Separation (MDS) Formulae as a public service to assist farmers, consultants, and the general public. This version of the software distributed by OMAFRA will be 
considered to be the official version for purposes of calculating MDS. OMAFRA is not responsible for errors due to inaccurate or incorrect data or information; mistakes
in calculation; errors arising out of modification of the software, or errors arising out of incorrect inputting of data. All data and calculations should be verified before 
acting on them.

May 26, 2021

97



98



Bruce Trail
CONSERVANCY

May 26,2O2L

Township of Mulmur
758070 znd Line East

Mulmur, ON

tgv0G8

Attentlon: Tracey Atklnson, CAO/Clerk/Planner

RE: Consent to sover conservation land as lot addition from property descrlbed as East Part Lot 21,
Concesslon 2 West, Township of Mulmur, County of Dufferin (ARN; 22160@0060870000000)

Bruce Trail Conservancy (BTC) is acting as agent for the owner of the property described above, 2798986
Ontario lnc., c/o Paul Cohen. We respectfully submit the attached Consent application and associated
sketches for your review and consideration. The purpose and effect of this application is to support the
severance of approximately 1.33 hectares to add to the adJacent BTC lands to secure the Bruce Trail
Optimum Route and conservation corridor. Mr. Cohen has generously agreed to donate these lands to
BTC to further our rnission-

Subiect Property & Proposal

The subject property comprises more or less 40.47 hectares {100 acres) located on the north-west
corner of the unimproved portion of 20 Sideroad and Prince of Wales Road at 638040 Prince of Wales
Road in the Township of Mulmur. The property is designated mostly Escarpment Protection, with the
north-west corner of the property being designated Escarpment Natural under the Niagara Escarpment
Plan.

BTC is seeking consent to sever approximately 1.33 hectares (3.3 ac) from the subject lands to secure a
connecting corridor for the Bruce Trail with approximately 22 metres of frontage on the unimproved
portion of 20 Sideroad. The corridor will be a lot addition to the adjacent 33-2 hectares {82 ac) owned by
BTC, which is currently subject to a consent application for conservation and Bruce Trail purposes
submitted to the Township April22,202 (Flle No. 87-2021). A third consent application (Sales) is being
submitted concurrently for the purpose of a lot addition from the Sales property to the Cohen lands, in
order to widen the coridor ln this location. Please see accompanying Sales property consent
application. ln total, these conservation severances will secure a kilometre of Bruce Trail Optimum
Route and protect approx. 88 acres of sensitive Ntagara Fscarpment lands for conservation ln
perpetuity.

We have confirmed with the NEC that the subject application, as well as the Sales application, are
consistent with the Lot Creation policies of the Niagara Escarpment Plan (NEP), including policies under
Paftz. .L?that permit a severance for conservation and Bruce Trail purposes, which is also consistent
with policies under Part 3 {Niagara Escarpment Park and Open Space System). BTC is a recognized
public body wilhin the NEP, and is able to sever land for conservation and Bruce Trail purposes. ln both

P.O. Box 857, Hamilton, ON LBN 3N9 Canada T. 905-529S821 1-800{654453 F,905-529€423 E. info@brucetail.org
99



instances no new lots are being created, in that both are lot additions that wlll secure the Bruce Trail
Optimum Route.

The Township of Mulmur has approved a number of conservation severances ln the past for this area.
Examples include; FILE NO. B0l/2010 (Toronto DistrictSchool Board), FILE NO. BA4|20L4 (Chisholml.

Background

The Bruce Trail is Canada's oldest and longest footpath. lt was founded in the early 1960s as a way of
ralslng awareness for the need to protect the Niagara Escarpment. Today, the Bruce Trail stretches 895
kilometres from Queenston on the Niagara River to the tip of the Bruce Peninsula. lncluding side trails, it
is more than 1,300 kilometres long, and it is recognized as one of Canada's premler natural recreational
opportunities and one of the world's great hiking trails. lt forms an lntegral part of the Southern Ontario
landscape, allowing people to explore the beautiful Nlagara Escarpment and become more aware of the
need for its preservation.

Over the past 50 years, the Bruce Trail and the work of the Bruce Trail Conservancy has brought about
expansive and lasting benefits for the people of Ontario. The Bruce Trail Conservancy has been
responsiblefor conserving more than 16,000 acres and to date has secured 69 percent of the Bruce
Trail's Optlmum Route. The work continues, however, to secure the remaining links within the NEPOSS

consisting of over 163 parks and open spaces, the majority of which are connected by the Bruce Trail.
Preserving this property will add a further 3.3 acres to NEPOSS and secure 510 metres of Bruce Trail
Optimum Route {broad werview map dtached).

We thank you for your consideration of this matter and look forward to hearing from you soon. You can
reach me at 800-665-t1453 ext. 231 or iswaserman@brucetrail.ors you have any questions or require
any further information.

Best regards,

Joel Swagerman, MCIP, RPP

Land Acquisition Planner
The Bruce Trail Conservancy

P.O, Box 857, Hamilton, ON LAN 3Ng Canada T. 905-5296821 1-800{654453 F, 905-529-6823 E. info@brucebail.org
100



3. Purpose of thls Application

Proposed transaction (check appropriate box)

n Transfer trg Acharge tr
Creation of a new lot
A lease

H Addition to a lot
n A correction of title

n An easement
tr Other

Specify Purpose, ie. Building lot, farm severance, lot addition, etc.

Conservation severance of +/- 3.3 ac for the Bruce Trail and Conservation purposes
Name of person(s) to whom land or interest in land is to be transferred, leased or charged

Bruce Trail Conservancy

4. Description of Subject Land and Servicing lnformation

Frontage {m) Severed
(On unopened portion of 20th Sdrd) +t 24 m +l- 614 m of Wales Rd)

Depth (m)
+/- 614 m +i- 670 m

Area (m)
+/- 13,354 sq m (1.33 ha) +/- 410,756 sq m (41.8 ha)

5. Land Use

Date Property Acquired
Dcc.l5,2O2O

Existing Use

Residential, Agricultural

Proposed Use

Residential, Agricultural, Bruce Trail & Conservation
Existing and Proposed buildings and Struotures

Type of
Building or
Structure

Set Backs (m) Height
(m)

Dimensions
(mxm)

Area
(m2)

Date of
Construction /

Proposed
Con$kuction

Time use has
continued (for

existing
buildings &
strrrctrrres)

Front Rear Side Side

House
E Existing
n Proposed 40 630 r90 420 il lOx2l 2ro r890 l3l years

Barn 1

E Existing
n Proposed 90 590 220 370 t5 ll x 18.4 203 s l9lo a lll ycErr

Bam 2
Sl Existing
n Proposed 65 600 250 350 5.2 7.6 x 18.4 t4I e 1940 ll 8l yeqrg

n Existing
E Proposed

tl Existing
tr Proposed

tr Existing
n Proposed

Water
m PrivateWell
n Communal Well
tr Municipal Water
n Other:

Sewage Disposal
E Private Septic
tr Communal Septic

Storm Drainage
n
a
tr
tr

Sewer
Ditches
Swales
Other:

Tile Drainage
VNotr Yes, please mark on site plan

location of tile runs

2

101



6. Zoning and Official Plan lnformation
Current Zoning

Niagara Escarpment Commission

Current Official Plan

Niagara Escarpment Commission
Related Applications under the Planning Act, if any including Official Plan,
Official Plan Amendment, Zoning 8y-lawAmendment, Minister's Zoning Otder
(amendment), Consent or Plan of Subdivision:

Has subject lands even been subject of an application underthe
Planning Act?

File # Status:

Provide an explanation of how the application conforms to the Official Plan

Sec. 6.4.5.4: lot may be severed from an original half township lot for permitted use
Sec. 6.4.8.6: Bruce Trail is an essential component of NEPOSS linking parks, open space areas and naturalareas
through a trail corridor

Par|2.4.12 of NEP permits severances for conservation and Bruce Trail purposes.
BTC is a recognized "public body" within the NEP

Are any of the followng uses or features on the subject land or within 500 metres of the subject land, unless otheMise specified? Please check the
aooropriate boxes. if anv aoolv.

Use or Feature On the Subject Land Within 500 metres of Subject
Land, unless otherwise specific
f indicate annroximate distance)

Agriculiural buildings/structure or manure storage facilities
no no

A L.andfill
no no

A provincially significant wetland (Class 1, 2 or 3 wetland)
no no

A locally significant wetland
no no

Flood Plain
no no

A rehabilitated mine site
no no

A non-operating mine site within 1 kilometre of the subject land
no no

An active mine site
no no

An industrial or commercial use (specify uses)
no no

Does the proposed development produce greater than 4500 litres of effluent per
day?

lf ye$. attach a servicins options report and hvdro geological report

n Yes E/ No

Are the lands part of a Nutrient Management PIan? E Yes gNo

Please provide plan num and date approved by OMAFRA

Are there any livestock facilities within 500 metres of the subject lands? U Yes g No

lf yes,provideaFarmDataSheetcompletedbyeachlivestockfacilityownerforeachofthelivestockfacilities. lrltp.i7'mulnur.pa/.depa(qeltsrhlgnntng

J

102



7. Consistency with Policy Documents

Does this application:

Alter the boundary of a settlement area?
n Yes Ul No

Create a new settlement area? n Yes D[ No

Remove lands from an employment area?

lf yes, provide details of any Otficial Plan or Official Plan Amendment on a separate submission

B Yes trNo

Are the subject lands in an area where conditional zoning may apply? tr Yes

lf yes, provide details of how this application conforms to Official Plan conditional zoning policies on a separate submission

DI No

ls ihe proposed application consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement and any other Policy Statements Ul Yes Cl No
issued under subseciion 3(1 ) of the Planning Act:

Joel Swagerman, MCIP, RPP

Name of individual having knowledge of the policy statements. A repo* may
be required to accompany this application and support the above statement of

consi$tency.

Signature

Are the subject lands within the Niagara Escarpment Greenbelt Plan area? E Yes nNo

Are the subject lands within the Greater Golden Horseshoe Growth Plan area? n Yes Ul No

Does the proposed application conform to or does not conflict with the Provincial Plans, including the m Yes nNo
Greenbelt Plan and Growth Plan:

Joel Swagerman, MCIP, RPP
Name of individual having knowledge of the policy statements. A report may

be required to accompany this application and support the above statement of
consistency.

Signature

8. History of the Subject Land

Has the subject land ever been the subject of an application for approval of a
plan of subdivision or consent under the Planning Act?

lf yes, and if known, provide the file number and the decision made on the application:

tr Yes Dl No n Unknown

lf this application is a re-submission of a previous consent application, describe how it has been changed from the original application

Has any land been severed from the parcel originally acquired by the owner of the subject land?

lf yes, provide for each parcel severed, the date of transfer, the name of transferee and the land use:

n Yes mNo

4

103



Has any land been severed from the original, 40 hectare (approx..) parcel

lf yes, provide details;

E Yes FNo

9. Other lnformatlon

Please provide any other inlormation that may be useful to the Council or other agencies in reviewing this application, ie. health department, conservation
authoritv- etc.

10. Sketch (please use metric unit$)

The application shall be accompanied by a sketch shoWng the following:

tr The boundaries and dimensions of the subject land, the part that is to be severed and the part that is to be retained
E The boundaries and dimensions of any land owred by the owner of the subject land and that abuts the subject land
tl The distance between the subject land and the nearest Township lot line or landmark, such as a railway crossing or bridge
tr The location of all land previouely severed from the original approximate 40 hectare parc€l
tr The approximate location of all natural and artificial features on the subject land and adjacent lands that in the opinion of the applicant may

affect the application, such as buildings, railways, roads, watercourses, drainage ditches, river or stream banks, wetlands, wooded areas,
wells and septic tanks

tr The exisiing uses on adjacent lands
tr The location, width and name of any roads within or abutting the subject land, indicating whether it is an unopened road allowance, a public

travelled road, a private road or right of way
tr The location and nature of any easement affecting the subject land

5

104



ol

!
tt
rl

fl
/2

RESIDENTIAL

\\_

Ilt
I

,-*1\$'

AGRICULTURAL

2
9l
oo

o

aoo

\\
ttaa

\\
\\

=ttat
\\

i'
ll
ll
l1

l1

ll
ll

\\
-).il\

ll 1
))

t.u'\\
\\

,
),///

t
t
I
I
I
I

I
t
t
t

t
\
I

".161
<l

g!1.L

t
I
t

t
t
t
I
I
t
I
I

t
I
I
I
I
I
t
t
t
I
t

t
I
I
I
I
I

I
t
t

t
I
t
I
I

I

lOO;2 acres +/-
Owner to Retain

I
I
t
I
t
t

I
I
t
t
t
t
I
I
t

t
I
I
I

,<l
rn&,<1

t
I

I

a\
I
t
I
t
I

AGRICULTURAL

3

AGRICULTURAU
RESIDENTIAL

AGRICULTURAL

3.3 acres +/-
To Be Severed

AGRICULTURAL

23"u
Cohen
81-102

l-egal Deccrhtion
Address: 638040 PRINCE OF WALES RD

EPtLt2l;Con2W
Former Township of Mulmur

Townslrip of Mulmur
County of Dufferin

ARN: 221 60000050870000000

Assessed Acreage: 100-00
GlS Acreage: 103.50

o Bruce Trail
CONSERVANCY

scar€ in metres

o loo 200

1:6,O0o
I inch eq)alt t52 frete6

May M be retroducedlrifiou perm;tiq. IhE i5 not a pld of $ruey.
cmtahs htqmatim li(sr€d nds $e 0p€0 Gsment LieRe- onttE.
O 2021 o{ the Queen 5 Rints fq ontalo. AS Ridrl5 Re5eryed,

O lhe &u(e TrailCon*ryancy,2021.All Rqht5 Retered.

Map Aulhori Joel Swagermah Published: 202145-26

EI
EI
!G-

I

Sevcred Parcel

R€tained Parcel

s€verance Line

Driveway

Building

+ Stream (permanent)

----- Stream 0ntermiftenl)

QJ w"t t

Woodld Area

f] ownerchipParcel

105



50

Jr!

20

+
F
o
g)o

a
oo
o

3.3 acres +/-

Honeywood Ridge
Bruce Trail Conservancy

o Bruce Trail
CONS E RVANCY

scale in metres
TffiT-----------"1
0 100 200

1:10,000
1 in<h equals 254 freterc

E SubjectPropenies

Contour (5 metre)

+ Stream (permanent)

----- Stream (intermittent)

Wetland

Wooded Area

Owne15hip Par(el

Ql wutu'

NAD-]983_1]Tlr'l_Zone_l 7N, Tranrvase fulercalor proiectjon.

[4ay not be reproduced wilhout pemigsion. Th], ir not a plan of suto€y.

lncl!der l,4al€rial iO 2021 of the Qu€en r Printer fd onrario. All Rights Rer€rved.

{ -l'e I uce Trail Conreryancy 202L All RighB Reservpi.

MapAuthor:JoelSvragerman Published:2021-05-18106



3. Purpose of this Application

Proposed transaction (check appropriate box)

n Transfer d
n Acharge n

Creation of a new lot
A lease

d Addition to a lot
E A correction of title

n An easement
U Other

Specify Furpose, ie. Building lot, farm severance, lot addition, etc.

Conservalion severance of +l- 0.5 ha for Conservation of Niagara Escarpment Lands and securement of the Bruce Trail Conidor

Name of person(s) to whom land or interest in land is to be transferred, leased or charged

Bruce Trail Conservancy

4. Description of Subiect Land and Servicing lnformation

Frontage (m) Severed
+/. 251.5 m

Retained
N/A

Depth (m)
+/- 656.4 m +l- 31^1 m

Area (m) +/- 0.5 ha (5,261 sq.m.) +/- 16.0 ha (160,255 sq.m.)

5. Land Use

Date Property Acquired
1995

Existing Use

Residential, Agriculture, Bruce Trail

Proposed Use

Residential, Agriculture, Bruce Trail
Existing and Proposed buildings and Structures

Type of
Building or
Structure

Set Backs (m) Height
(m)

Dimensions
(mxm)

Area
(m2)

Date of
Construction /

Proposed
Construction

Time use has
continued (for

existing
buildings &
structures)

Front Rear Side Side

House
d Existing
tr Proposed .r/- 63.8 -t- 584.6 +/- 18.8 +l- 197.8 7 24 x2O 480 1987 34 years

t] Existing
n Proposed {

n Existing
n Proposed

n Existing
n Proposed

B Existing
n Proposed

n Existing
n Proposed

Water
d PrivateWell
D Communal Well
tr Municipal Water
tr Other:

Sewage
V
E
tr

Disposal
Private Septic
Communal Septic
Othe

Storm Drainage
n Sewer
V Ditche$
tr Swales
n Other:

Tile Drainaoe
dN;
tr Yes, please mark on site plan

location of tile runs

2

107



6. Zoning and Ofricial Plan lnformation
Cunent Zoning

Niagara Escarpment Commission

Cuffent Official Plan

Niagara Escarpment Commission
Related Applications under the Planning Act, if any including Official Plan,
Official Plan Amendment, Zoning By-lawAmendment, Minister's Zoning Order
(amendment), Consent or Plan of Subdivision:

To be lot addition to
Cohen consent (638040 Prince of Wales Rd)

Has subject lands even been subject of an application under the
Planning Act?

File #: Status:

Provide an explanation of how the application conforms to the Official Plan

Sec. 6.4.5.4: lot may be severed from an original half township lot for permitted use
Sec. 0.4.8.6: Bruce Trail is an essential component of NEPOSS linking parks, open space areas and natural areas
through a trail corridor

fq{ 2.4. t 2 of NEP permits severances for conservation and Bruce Trail purposes.
BTC is a recognized "public body" within the NEP

Are any of the following uses or features on the subject land or within 500 metres of the subject land, unless otnerwise specineOZ ntease cfreck tfre -
appropriate boxes, if any applv.

Use or Feature On the Subject Land Within 500 metres of Subject
Land, unless otherwise specific
f indicate aooroximate distance)

Agricultural buildings/structure or manure storage facilities
No No

A Landfill
No No

A provincially significant wetland (Class 1, 2 or 3 wetland)
No No

A locally significant wetland
No No

Flood Plain
No No

A rehabilitated mine site
No No

A non-operating mine site within 1 kilomeke of the subject land
No No

An active mine site
No No

An industrial or commercial use (specify uses)
No No

Does the proposed development produce greater than 4500 litres of effluent per
day?

lf yes, aftach a servicing options report and hydro geological report

D Yes F/No

Are the lands part of a Nutrient Management Plan?

Pleaseprovideplannumber-anddateapprovedbyoMAFRA

n Yes ryNo

Are there any livestock facilities within 500 metres of the subject lands? n yes V No

lf yes, provide a Farm Data Sheet completed by each livestock facility owner for each of the livestock facilities. http://mulmur.caldepaltrTrel[gblgo{l]g

a
J

108



7. Consistency with Pollcy Documents

Does this application:

Alter the boundary of a settlement area?
tr Yes d tto

Create a newsettlement area? n Yes dNo

Remove lands from an employment area?

lf yes, provide details of any Official Plan or Official Plan Amendment on a separate submission

E Yes dNo

Are the subject lands in an area where conditional zoning may apply? n Yes

lf yes, provide details of how this application conforms to Official Plan conditional zoning policies on a separate submission

VNo

ls the proposed application consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement and any other Policy Statements g Yes fl No
issued under subsection 3(1) ofthe Planning Act:

Joel Swagerman, MCIP, RPP

Name of individual having knowledge of the policy statements. A report may
be required to accompany this application and support the above statement of

consistency.

Signature

Are the subject lands within the Niagara Escarpment Greenbelt Plan area? d Yes nNo

Are the subject lands within the Greater Golden Horseshoe Growth Plan area? n Yes VNo

Does the proposed application conform to or does not conflict with the Provincial Plans, including the E/ Yes nNo
Greenbelt Plan and Grovyth Plan:

Joel Swagerman, MCIP, RPP
Name of individual having knowledge of the policy statements. A report may

be required to accompany this application and support the above statement of
consisiency.

8. History of the Subject Land

Has the subject land ever been ihe $ubject of an application for approval of a
plan of subdivision or consent under the Planning Act?

lf yes, and if known, provide the file number and the deci$ion made on the application

fl Yes 6/ No tr Unknown

lf this application is a re-submission of a previous consent application, describe how it has been changed from the original application

Has any land been severed from the parcel originally acquired by the owner of the subject land?

lfyes, provide for each parcel severed, the date oftransfer, the name oftransferee and the land use

n Yes VNo

4

109



Has any land been severed from the original, 40 hectare (approx.,) parcel

lf yes, provide details:

tr Yes Et/ tto

9. Other lnformation

Please provide any other information that may be usefulto the Council or other agencies in reviewing this application, ie. health department, conservation
authoritv. etc.

10. Sketch (please use metric unitsl

The application shall be accompanied by a sketch showing the following:

tr The boundarie$ and dimensions ofthe subject land, the partthat is to be severed and the partthat is to be retained
fl The boundaries and dimensions of any land owned by the owner of the subject land and that abuts the subject land
n The distance between the subject land and the nearest Township lot line or landmark, such as a railway crossing or bridge
tr The location of all land previously severed from the original approximate 40 hectare parcel
tr The approximate location of all natural and artificial features on the subject land and adjacent lands that in the opinion of the applicant may

afiect the application, such as buildings, railways, roads, w?ter6ourses, drainage ditches, river or stream banks, wetlands, wooded areas,
wells and septic tanks

E The existing uses on adjacent lands
tl The location, width and name of any roads within or abutting the subject land, indicating whether it is an unopened road allowance, a public

travelled road, a private road or right of way
tr The location and nature of any easement affecting the subjec{ land

5

110



111



Niagara Escarpment Commission 

232 Guelph St.  
Georgetown, ON  L7G 4B1 
Tel:  905-877-5191 
Fax: 905-873-7452 
www.escarpment.org

Commission de l’escarpement du Niagara 

232, rue Guelph 
Georgetown ON  L7G 4B1 
No de tel. 905-877-5191 
Télécopieur 905-873-7452 
www.escarpment.org

March 28, 2021 

STAFF REPORT 

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT APPLICATION M/L/2020-2021/374 
Bruce Trail Conservancy (BTC) c/o Joel Swagerman 
Part Lot 22 E, Concession 2 WHS 
Township of Mulmur, County of Dufferin 

RECEIVED: December 9, 2020 

SOURCE: Bruce Trail Conservancy (BTC) c/o Joel Swagerman (applicant) 
Paddles Up Equities c/o Cedric Pakham (Owner) 

PROPOSAL:  To sever a ± 33.2 ha (82.0 ac) parcel from a 41.6 ha (102.8 ac) vacant 
agricultural property for conservation purposes (BTC Trail and Conservation lands) 

Note: The application seeks to construct a 2 storey ± 464.5 (5,000 sq ft) single dwelling with a 
maximum height to peak of 8 m (26.2 ft), a 47.5 sq m (511 sq ft) attached garage, a private 
sewage treatment system, well, and driveway on the retained 8.1 ha (20 ac) lot. This proposal 
has been provided to NEC Staff as a hypothetical scenario thus it will not form part of this 
approval. The owner of the severed lot will be required to submit a separate NEC DPA when 
plans for the single dwelling are finalized and if the consent application is approved.  

RELATED FILES:  

None. 

NIAGARA ESCARPMENT PLAN (2017): 

Designation:    Escarpment Protection Area, Escarpment Natural Area 
Permitted Use:  Public Body Lot Creation 
Development Criteria: General (2.2); Lot Creation (2.4), Agriculture (2.8), Bruce Trail (2.14) 

LOCAL OFFICIAL PLAN: 
Official Plan:  Township of Mulmur Official Plan 
Designation:  Escarpment Natural Area, Escarpment Protection Area 
Permitted Use:  Uses in conformity with the NEP.  
In conformity with NEP: Yes 

112



2 

REGIONAL OFFICIAL PLAN: 
Official Plan:  County of Dufferin Official Plan 
Designation:  Escarpment Natural Area, Escarpment Protection Area 
Permitted Use:  Uses in conformity with the NEP 
In conformity with NEP: Yes.  

PROVINCIAL POLICY STATEMENT (PPS):  

Section 2.0 of the PPS identifies the Province’s objectives respecting the long-term protection 
of natural heritage and water resources for their economic, environmental and social benefits. 
Part 2.1 requires that natural features and areas shall be protected for the long-term and Part 
2.1.2 identifies that the diversity and connectivity of natural features in an area, and the long-
term ecological function and biodiversity of natural heritage systems, should be maintained, 
restored or, where possible, improved, recognizing linkages between and among natural 
heritage features and areas, surface water features and ground water features.  

Section 1.1.5.2 supports resource-based recreational uses while promoting recreational 
opportunities on rural lands in Section 1.1.5.3. No additional building lots are being proposed 
and no physical development is proposed at this time. The proposal is not anticipated to impact 
the on-site hazards or natural heritage resources.  

The proposal is consistent with the PPS (2020). 

CONSULTED AGENCIES: 

Township of Mulmur:  

Planning 

1. The Township prefers that the applicants maintain the prime agricultural land in the
larger parcel. The proposed severance will split up prime agricultural lands, with class 1
agricultural lands being maintained on the conservation parcel. The preferred
configuration would be to maintain the prime agricultural land on a single parcel.

2. A new dwelling would be subject to development charges.
3. Entrance permit will be required by Public Works for the severed parcel proposed

driveway
4. The Township reserves the ability to provide additional comments through its severance

process, including conditions and may require the Bruce Trail Conservatory lands be
merge with abutting lands, as well as a road widening along the severed and retained
parcel.

County of Dufferin: 

Development and Tourism. 

• Consultation occur with the Province to confirm the proposal conforms with the
Greenbelt Plan (2017);

113



3 

• Consultation occur with the Town to ensure appropriate mitigation measures be
implemented as recommended in the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry’s
“Wildland Fire Assessment and Mitigation Standards” due to the presence of hazardous
forest types for wildland fire;

• Confirmation be provided as to whether the woodlands located on subject property are
deemed significant and whether an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) is required
relative to the proximity of woodlands and wetlands; and

• Consultation occur with the Township of Mulmur and the Nottawasaga Valley
Conservation Authority (NVCA) related to the potential impacts to source water due to
the subject property being located within a source water protection area (Low
Vulnerability Aquifer and Significant Groundwater Recharge Area) as indicated in
Appendix 2 of the Dufferin County Official Plan (2017).

Building and By-Law 

Please be advised that the application for the above noted address has not revealed any 
issues. The Building Department has no other comments at this time.  

Please be advised that this is a preliminary review by the Building Department and that a full 
review of the proposed project will be completed upon receipt of a complete set of construction 
drawings. 

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority (NVCA) 

The subject property is captured within Ontario’s Natural Heritage System. Though the need 
for a Natural Heritage Evaluation may be triggered through NEP policy, the NVCA is of the 
opinion that the development is likely to result in minimal impact to the Natural Heritage System 
and that such studies could be waived or highly scoped, considering no physical development 
is occurring at this time. The NVCA is available for further consultation on Natural Heritage 
concerns should the NEC require more detail in that regard. 

Bruce Trail Conservancy 

No comments received.  

COMMENT: 

• The property is designated as Escarpment Natural Area and Escarpment Protection Area.
The proposed severance would result in the creation of a ±8.1 ha rural residential property
and a ± 33.2 ha property for conservation use and for the Bruce Trail Optimum Route.

• The east half of the property is predominantly flat, sloping slightly in an east to west
direction. The eastern portion of the property slopes more predominantly in an east to west
direction. The southwest corner of the property is designated Escarpment Natural Area due
to the presence of a portion of a significant woodland.

114



4 

• The Bruce Trail Main Trail traverses the western edge of the property in a north/south
direction. The trail provides passage for hikers through two woodlands at either side of the
subject lands.

• No physical development is proposed through this application. A proposed dwelling was
originally incorporated into the development proposal. However, upon review NEC Staff
identified potential policy issues related to the proposed siting that would require additional
studies per Parts 2.2.2, 2.5.1, 2.5.2, 2.5.3, 2.5.4, 2.10.2, and 2.13.2 of the NEP (2017).
These policy concerns related to the siting of the dwelling on slopes associated with the
brow of the escarpment, in an area of potential karst (likely), a meandering driveway through
the lower slopes of the escarpment, the potential for impact to areas of archaeological
potential, and impacts to scenic resources that could not be assessed due to lack of detail
in the submission.

• NEC Staff discussed these challenges with the applicant and provided the option to move
forward with the lot division portion of the application only. The applicant accepted the
suggestion with the understanding that a further application would have to be made by the
new owner of the property for the proposed development and that studies would be required
at that time if the current siting of the dwelling is to remain unchanged.

• NEC Staff are of the opinion that while the suggested building envelope cannot be
confirmed without study, there is confidence that a viable building envelope does exist on
what will be the newly created parcel. The envelope would be in close proximity to Prince
of Wales Road, at a lower elevation, where the topography of the lands is relatively flat.
This would reduce the potential for impact to the scenic resources of the escarpment,
eliminate the need to traverse the lower slopes with a long meandering driveway, and would
be in an area that is not identified as potential karst. An archaeological assessment may
still be required for the alternative envelope.

• The newly proposed rural residential property will be created entirely within the Escarpment
Protection Area designation and thus future development will be contained to that
designation. The lands are subject to slopes that could impact the location of a future
residence however there is ample space near the frontage of Prince of Wales Road that is
flat and not subject to any potential hazards. The proposal conforms with Part 2.2 (General)
of the NEP (2017).

• Part 2.4.12 of the NEP permits a public body to create a new lot through acquisition,
disposal, or exchange provided such a lot would not conflict with the lot creation policies of
the applicable land use designations (Part 1.4.4). This proposal represents an acquisition
by the Bruce Trail Conservancy.

• Part 1.4.4.2 (c) allows for a severance by a public body so long as no new building lot is
created. The current vacant lands represent one building lot; the retained lot will be used
for conservation/Bruce Trail uses only, thus no new building lot is realized through the
proposed lot creation. The proposal conforms with Part 2.4 (Lot Creation) of the NEP
(2017).

115



5 

• Despite being historically farmed and in active agricultural production, the lands are not
identified as prime agricultural lands as mapped in the Agricultural Land Base provided by
OMAFRA. There is no conflict with Part 2.8 (Agriculture) of the NEP (2017).

• Given the retained parcel of lands will contain significant road frontage along Prince of
Wales Road there is the possibility that the property could act as an access point offering
parking and overnight rest areas supporting local hikers. The BTC is required to enter into
an agreement with the NEC stating no residential or commercial development of the lands.
There is no conflict with Part 2.14 (Bruce Trail) of the NEP (2017).

• The proposal is consistent with the PPS (2020). There were no objecting commenting
agencies.

RECOMMENDATION:  The proposal be approved subject to the conditions listed on the 
attached Appendix. 

John Stuart

116



APPENDIX 
Bruce Trail Conservancy 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL      M/L//2020-2021/374 

1 

1. Development shall occur in accordance with the Site Plan, Development Permit
Application and Conditions as approved.

2. The Development Permit shall expire three years from its date of issuance unless the
development has been completed in accordance with the Development Permit.

3. The landowner shall obtain a Consent to sever the proposed lot in accordance with this
Development Permit and shall complete the transfer of title in accordance with the
Development Permit.

4. That prior to the issuance of the Development Permit that the applicant enters into an
agreement with the Niagara Escarpment Commission to prohibit the construction of a
single dwelling on the retained lands.

ADVISORY NOTES: 

a) This Development Permit does not limit the need for or the requirements of any other
applicable approval licence or certificate under any statute (e.g., Ontario Building Code,
Conservation Authorities Act, Endangered Species Act, etc). The Niagara Escarpment
Commission Development Permit is required prior to the issuance of any other
applicable approval, licence or certificate.

117



Niagara Escarpment Commission 

1450 7th Avenue East 
Owen Sound, ON N4K 2Z1 
Tel. No. (519) 371-1001  
Fax No. (519) 371-1009 
www.escarpment.org 

Commission de l’escarpement du Niagara 

1450 7e avenue Est 
Owen Sound, ON N4K 2Z1 
No de tel. (519) 371-1001 
Télécopieur (519) 371-1009 
www.escarpment.org 

April 9, 2021 

To: Applicant/Agent/Owner; Assessed owners of land within 120 m of the subject 
property; Consulted Agencies; Parties who requested Notice or are considered to 
have an interest in the Decision. 

Re: NOTICE OF DECISION 
Development Permit Application: M/L/2020-2021/374 

Attached is a Notice of Decision from the Niagara Escarpment Commission regarding an 
application for a Niagara Escarpment Development Permit.  

You have the right to appeal this decision. If you have reason to appeal, you must submit a 
copy of an Appeal Form or a written letter, specifying your reasons for appeal, within 
14 days of the date of this letter.  

An Appeal Form can be downloaded from www.escarpment.org. If you submit a written 
letter of appeal, please include your name, address, daytime phone number, e-mail 
address and your fax number. The completed Appeal Form or the letter of appeal must be 
submitted via fax, email, courier or in person to this office (address and fax # above) or 
sent by email to necowensound@ontario.ca 

Please note that the last day that appeals may be received is: April 23, 2021 (midnight). 

The Commission’s decision is confirmed if no appeal is received within the 14 days. 

If the Commission's decision is appealed, a Hearing Officer will be appointed by the 
Minister of Natural Resources and Forestry to conduct a Hearing. The Hearing Office may 
contact you for additional information regarding your appeal, and all parties will be notified 
by mail of the time and location of the Hearing. If you appealed, you are expected to attend 
the Hearing to present your reasons for appeal. If the appeal is withdrawn or the appellant 
fails to appear at the Hearing, the Commission’s decision is confirmed.  

If you have questions about this process or about the details of the Development Permit 
application, please contact me at 905-703-5837 or John.Stuart@ontario.ca  

Yours truly, 

John Stuart, MCIP RPP 
Senior Planner 

118

http://www.escarpment.org/
mailto:necowensound@ontario.ca
mailto:John.Stuart@ontario.ca


NOTICE OF DECISION 

OF THE NIAGARA ESCARPMENT COMMISSION 

REGARDING 

AN APPLICATION FOR A DEVELOPMENT PERMIT UNDER SECTION 25 
OF THE NIAGARA ESCARPMENT PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT ACT, 

R.S.O. 1990, Chapter N.2 

FILE NUMBER: M/L/2020-2021/374 

LOCATION: Part Lot 22 E, Concession 2 WHS 
Township of Mulmur, County of Dufferin 
ARN 221600000608900 

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: 

To sever a ± 33.2 ha (82.0 ac) parcel from a 41.6 ha (102.8 ac) vacant 
agricultural property for conservation purposes (BTC Trail and Conservation lands). 

Note: The application seeks to construct a 2 storey ± 464.5 (5,000 sq ft) single dwelling 
with a maximum height to peak of 8 m (26.2 ft), a 47.5 sq m (511 sq ft) attached garage, 
a private sewage treatment system, well, and driveway on the retained 8.1 ha (20 ac) lot. 
This proposal has been provided to NEC Staff as a hypothetical scenario thus it will not 
form part of this approval. The owner of the severed lot will be required to submit a 
separate NEC DPA when plans for the single dwelling are finalized and if the consent 
application is approved.  

DECISION of the NIAGARA ESCARPMENT COMMISSION: 

The application for a Development Permit, as described above, has been: 
CONDITIONALLY APPROVED. 

The Conditions of Approval are listed on the attached APPENDIX. 

DATE:  March 31, 2021 SIGNED: 
  Kim Peters, MCIP/RPP, Manager (A) 

THIS IS NOT A DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 
DEVELOPMENT IS NOT TO COMMENCE UNTIL THE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 

HAS BEEN ISSUED

119



APPENDIX 

Part Lot 22 E, Concession 2 WHS 
CONDITIONS of APPROVAL  M/L/2020-2021/374 

Page 1 of 1 

1. Development shall occur in accordance with the Site Plan, Development Permit
Application and Conditions as approved.

2. The Development Permit shall expire three years from its date of issuance unless
the development has been completed in accordance with the Development Permit.

3. The landowner shall obtain a Consent to sever the proposed lot in accordance
with this Development Permit and shall complete the transfer of title in accordance
with the Development Permit.

4. That prior to the issuance of the Development Permit that the applicant enters into
an agreement with the Niagara Escarpment Commission to prohibit the
construction of a single dwelling on the retained lands.

ADVISORY NOTES: 

a) This Development Permit does not limit the need for or the requirements of any
other applicable approval licence or certificate under any statute (e.g., Ontario
Building Code, Conservation Authorities Act, Endangered Species Act, etc). The
Niagara Escarpment Commission Development Permit is required prior to the
issuance of any other applicable approval, licence or certificate.

120



! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

(
(
((
(
((
(
(

(
(
((
(
((
(
(

(
(
((
(
((
(
(

Kilgorie

Conover

Ruskview

Terra Nova

Redickville

Black Bank

Honeywood

Black Bank Hill

Pi
ne

River

Lisle Creek

COUNTY OF DUFFERIN

TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR

TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON

2ND LINE W

2ND LINE E
COUNTY RD 21

CO
UNTY RD 124

RIVER RD

CENTRE
RD

3RD LINE

SI DERD 15

PRINCE O
F W

ALES RD

M
ULM

UR M
ELANCTHO

N TLINE

SIDERD 30

1ST LIN
E E

SIDERD 20

SIDERD 20

SIDERD 15

CENTRE RD

1ST LIN
E E

Niagara Escarpment Plan
PRINCE OF WALES RD
File: M/L/2020-2021/374

Subject Property
Plan Designations

Escarpment Natural Area
Escarpment Protection Area

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

Escarpment Rural Area

(
(
((
(
(

Mineral Resource Extraction Area
Public Land (in Parks
and Open Space System)
Roads
Waterbodies
Watercourse
Upper Tier Municipality
Lower/Single Tier Municipality
Lot and Concession Boundary

NOTE: The Niagara Escarpment Plan Designation boundaries shown
on this map are approximate and subject to confirmation through

Site Inspection and the application of the 'Interpretation of Boundaries'
section of the Niagara Escarpment Plan

´

0 380 760 1140 1520

Metres

1:50,000Scale

Printed on Dec 09, 2020

© Queen’s Printer for Ontario and its licensors. [2019]
May Not be Reproduced without Permission.

THIS IS NOT A PLAN OF SURVEY.
This map is illustrative only.  Do not rely on it as being a precise indicator of routes,

location of features, nor as a guide to navigation.  Base derived from various sources.
Map compiled and produced by the Geographic Information Systems

(GIS) Department of the Niagara Escarpment Commission,
Ministry of Natural Resources

Map 1AMap 1AMap 1AMap 1A

Subject Property

121



50
0 445

405
400

 

 

Lot Configuration
PRINCE OF WALES RD
File: M/L/2020-2021/374

Subject Property
Roads
Waterbodies
Watercourse
Contour (5 metre intervals)
Upper Tier Municipality
Lower/Single Tier Municipality
Lot and Concession Boundary
Parcel Boundary

´

0 75 150 225 300

Metres

1:10,000Scale

Printed on Dec 09, 2020

© Queen’s Printer for Ontario and its licensors. [2019]
May Not be Reproduced without Permission.

THIS IS NOT A PLAN OF SURVEY.
This map is illustrative only.  Do not rely on it as being a precise indicator of routes,

location of features, nor as a guide to navigation.  Base derived from various sources.
Map compiled and produced by the Geographic Information Systems

(GIS) Department of the Niagara Escarpment Commission,
Ministry of Natural Resources

Map 2Map 2Map 2Map 2

122



Proposed Severance
Sketch
Project: Paddles Up

29119-20 Bruce Trail
January 28th, 2021

123



124



125



126



o PnoM &rnegLY tfosr oFS)6SeT

& F ErorrFffOutrot*
}lrWrtitb.r*
XfA*tsrLrrrItrr3{l.tcl-.rfr-
-bElhrtrrg*r

nrmsglt llbrx! or H Sbega friE
So[rtl&nrs tSt Ctr*. anm
t$idfrilE: tr$ trar tlf fu rtre
ugarteb: LG..hrl tg* Ct mir

FARM DATA SHEET
Ulnhnum Ohtrnce Seper,afon I (m$l

otrpoltinrbc*
Tdrphms
rtnt*&r ld
Ttr!ile t*c[o3ri{c'cs.dl 0th fteftervg'bctffihtc*d
Clmetddrnco tdlr tha hrao* h& b !r tFt lql r!dh. bnd ur3Cbrcrr&blcohmfic IIHTfla ltln.oUrdn *

OtE

u,lrloctF.cfrf €fn):

ffiffirEr*rE&Fnr!.ct!,
Eolld,anl.o.i

-il,trrtlrrrf-If drG

ffil$#sH:*ffiffiitr"orv
tlla

_ft.t

-bdh g
Hot tip f Manm drElba poyiredh firaeB

brphgrturfrg of ircc$dc

o
vt
w
rA
v{
tr
lr!
I,l
w
L2
f,i
E
N{

I

Orp ornucbaflrsor mrnrffiit lfrrffrEstt, frrrCod( q$dponixlq inEarbd bA riyceb* h.f,rt to' irduder a{ rr*,rru c re"r*r c*.iGEi-"*"roi, ou"rL*

v-4

frru$&ilga
TtP.'

Ebhs

v4
) t1<

ltan hfCqr#DQcrhdon

Eir

Aah{lID.
tM

ECG'GIfr

D*tC,et{A

s*llg

tb.tes

bllosp

o..arlp{bn l{ddt!
C.Fctt,

ffiT__

lbirr .-"Htatrurr lbnlr d q lrlu * il tct F{dU

bm.rlflf ollf[rlf thfE I aq hc dd rlfl5Sry

Anhr{ItF.
o?bdd

gofr

chtats

Trnl(lyt

H

br

127



@ /xofmt Srnmtl ,tlaeft oP S:A5*et.

& FARfiI DATA SHEET
lllnlmum lltstrnco Separ:eton I (f,DS0

CbbAit&ccu tl3''

F'E mlrE',€t,tftonGft
l*ry,ha*ld;t*
rrtOrcr*r
-rCta.taa..r-Ealh-ilrFfri&a

Prrmunt tihncr *ru$n g6ngc fr;q
9q{mfrn.rSf dtrr.[!r,orrs!Ulidl*nrt:tetUErl'f C,rffioi$trtctrillltaAynjH

noEe,
DtrI

Oum€t

Tclepnme
ftr*ie*f

o
YI
vt
Y!
Y'
It
F
UI
vl
L2
xr
n,
Ht

Lffi

Cor*crrfn lltroor-tq.5ijol€a
t-r Ectdhf tutftqrTble l{ed*t8ilrc. olt 0E lol S.rc be htrrnar ffig blocrtod

CNoerrl &Hrcc fisn tre hrccbct h*ybhiltlqt.rrfrrhndlrtc
Chradfilr'rcr ton llrc rnftrc |l!r l[dr6Sott tirr€{bct
$grilcdLi\E6ct O$l.r &

&+RL cesiq l{ot rirg e fterre $orsoe rfiiil b€

Livr*d.FSS(E*n): &rerrnsebqnr o, pGrfienod 3hrfi,rr€t rdtt [vsecl GrpiedAnrund<eoiny *o hcfudlr d lttgllno trms,hl

_tri
_bd

h
Lflrtenet

TrDctr-&b
Ocrs$Aon

llftdTyp.
*I&rtl

8..tC*

Wra

tlofsea

Stlo€p

llondrlg
C|!.cry

ffi
flrg.UItoE
E:;;ffi:---

O*rlgfon

hfirr *rftdilrrll frec r*, rG d rtq-or.ry

btfrC.qotFtE|thar f E hc drrrrlldcfry

^t 
ndtte.

chlrrfl
Go.il

Ct$am

l/bd

ou'rat

br

ltoaaga and

128



BUILDING SERVICES 

County of Dufferin | Phone: 519-941-2816 
55 Zina Street, Orangeville, ON L9W 1E5 | Fax: 519-941-4565 
www.dufferincounty.ca | E-mail: building@dufferincounty.ca

Date: June 10, 2021 

To: Tracey Atkinson CAO/Planner 
Township of Mulmur 

Re: Consent file # B11-2021 
      Township of Mulmur, County of Dufferin. 

This letter serves to confirm that I have commenced a preliminary review of the 
application B11-2021 and request for comment. 

After review of the application, the Building Division would like to note that we 
have no further concerns. 

It should be noted that the applicant is required to submit an application for 
building permit to our office with respect to the above property before any type of 
construction begins on either the severed or retained. 

If you should have any questions pertaining to this letter, please do not hesitate to 
contact the undersigned. 

Regards, 

Doug Kopp CBCO 
Plans Examiner 

129



BUILDING SERVICES 

County of Dufferin | Phone: 519-941-2816 
55 Zina Street, Orangeville, ON L9W 1E5 | Fax: 519-941-4565 
www.dufferincounty.ca | E-mail: building@dufferincounty.ca

Date: June 10, 2021 

To: Tracey Atkinson CAO/Planner 
Township of Mulmur 

Re: Consent file # B12-2021 
      Township of Mulmur, County of Dufferin. 

This letter serves to confirm that I have commenced a preliminary review of the 
application B12-2021 and request for comment. 

After review of the application, the Building Division would like to note that we 
have no further concerns. 

It should be noted that the applicant is required to submit an application for 
building permit to our office with respect to the above property before any type of 
construction begins on either the severed or retained. 

If you should have any questions pertaining to this letter, please do not hesitate to 
contact the undersigned. 

Regards, 

Doug Kopp CBCO 
Plans Examiner 

130



wsp.com 

MEMO 
TO: County of Dufferin 

FROM: Matt Alexander, Project Manager, WSP 

Angela Zhao, Project Planner, WSP 

SUBJECT: Consent Application (File #: B11-21), 638040 Prince of Wales Road, 
Township of Mulmur, ON 

DATE: July 12, 2021 

Recommendation 
Based on our review, the proposal is consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement, 2020 
and related policies in the Dufferin County Official Plan. It is recommended that:  

• Confirmation be provided as to whether an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS)
is required relative to the presence of woodlands on the subject property; and

• Consultation occur with the Township of Mulmur the Nottawasaga Conservation
Authority (NVCA) related to the potential impacts to source water because the
subject properties are located within a source water protection area (Low Aquifer
Vulnerability and Significant Groundwater Recharge Area).

Summary 
The purpose of the consent application is to severe a parcel of land with an area of 
approximately 1.34 hectare which will be used to facilitate the development of the Bruce 
Trail. The balance of the lands with an area of approximately 40.55 hectares will be 
retained.  

The documents received by WSP on June 4th, 2021 include: 

• Notice of Public Meeting;

The circulation documents were reviewed against the Dufferin County Official Plan. 

Provincial Policy Statement, 2020 (PPS), Province of Ontario’s Natural 
Heritage Mapping  

As a result of Growth Plan 2019, the Province’s Natural Heritage mapping must be studied 
and implemented into the County’s Official Plan before it can be applied at a local level. 
However, as it relates to land use designations, the mapping should continue to be used as 
a guide to determine if the subject property is identified with identified Natural Heritage 

131



Page 2 

features, should the County or local Official Plans not reflect current mapping. Under 
Ontario’s Natural Heritage mapping, the subject property contains woodlands.  

Dufferin County Official Plan (2017) 

The subject property is within the Countryside Area designation under Schedule 
B (Community Structure and Land Use) and within the Rural Lands designation under 
Schedule C (Agricultural Area and Rural Lands) of the County Official Plan. The intent of 
the Rural Lands designation is to protect the natural amenities and rural character of the 
County while promoting development opportunities related to the management or use of 
resources, resource-based recreational uses (including recreational dwellings), tourism, 
limited residential development, home occupations and home industries, and other 
rural land uses that cannot be located in settlement areas.  

Per Section 4.3.3 (m) of the County OP, lot creation will only be permitted in accordance 
with the policies of this Plan and the local municipal official plan. Per Section 4.3.2 of the 
OP, the Rural Lands designation permits limited residential development, which includes 
no more than three new lots or units; 

Schedule E (Natural Heritage Features) identifies woodlands on the subject 
property. Further consultation with the Township of Mulmur, the NVCA should be 
undertaken to determine whether the woodlands are deemed significant and whether the 
proposed development will have a negative impact on the woodlands. Section 5.3.4 of the 
County Official Plan directs that development and site alteration adjacent to significant 
woodlands is not permitted unless it has been demonstrated that there will be no negative 
impacts on the natural features or their ecological functions through preparation of an EIS. 

Under Appendix 2 (Source Water Protection) the subject property is located within 
a source water protection area (Low Aquifer Vulnerability and Significant Groundwater 
Recharge Area). Policy 5.4.2(c) states that prior to the approval of development 
applications within designated vulnerable areas, the proponents shall demonstrate to the 
satisfaction of the County, local municipality, Conservation Authority and Province, where 

132



Page 3 

necessary, that the quality and quantity of municipal drinking water sources will not be 
negatively impacted. It is anticipated that the NVCA will provide further review and 
comments with respect to the requirements for Source Water Protection as it relates to the 
changes proposed on the subject properties.  

Given that the proposed development is not located on a County Road, the Town should 
provide any comments regarding access.  

Recommendation 
Based on our review, the proposal is consistent with the Rural Lands designation and the 
related policies in the Dufferin County Official Plan. It is recommended that:  

• Confirmation be provided as to whether an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS)
is required relative to the presence of woodlands on the subject property; and

• Consultation occur with the Township of Mulmur the Nottawasaga Conservation
Authority (NVCA) related to the potential impacts to source water because the
subject properties are located within a source water protection area (Low Aquifer
Vulnerability and Significant Groundwater Recharge Area).

133



1

Roseann Knechtel

Subject: FW: 519-21-341 - Consent Application B11-2021 - 638040 Prince of Wales Road

From: Hall, Charleyne  
Sent: June 11, 2021 2:04 PM 
To: Tracey Atkinson  
Subject: 519‐21‐341 ‐ Consent Application B11‐2021 ‐ 638040 Prince of Wales Road 

Good afternoon Tracey, 

Bell Canada has no concerns with Application for Consent B11‐2021 regarding 638040 Prince of Wales Road. 

Thank you, 

Charleyne 

Right of Way Associate  
140 Bayfield Street, Floor 2, Barrie ON L4M 3B1 
T: 705-722-2264  Toll Free: 1-888-646-4817 
she/her 
Recognizing traditional territory of Haudenosaunee and Anishnaabeg Peoples; part of the Upper Canada Treaties. 

134



1

Roseann Knechtel

Subject: FW: 519-21-333 - Consent Application B12-2021 - 598011 2nd Line West

From: Hall, Charleyne  
Sent: June 11, 2021 2:34 PM 
To: Tracey Atkinson  
Subject: 519‐21‐333 ‐ Consent Application B12‐2021 ‐ 598011 2nd Line West 

Good afternoon Tracey, 

Bell Canada has no concerns with Application for Consent B12‐2021 regarding 598011 2nd Line West. 

Thank you, 

Charleyne 

Right of Way Associate  
140 Bayfield Street, Floor 2, Barrie ON L4M 3B1 
T: 705-722-2264  Toll Free: 1-888-646-4817 
she/her 
Recognizing traditional territory of Haudenosaunee and Anishnaabeg Peoples; part of the Upper Canada Treaties. 

135



Date: July 21, 2021 

To: Committee of Adjustment 

From: John Willmetts, Director of Public Works 

Re: B7 – 2021 BRUCE TRAIL 

ROAD WIDENING SEVERED AND RETAINED 

With respect to this application, I request that the Committee impose the following 
conditions, 

1. Acquire a road widening (3.05 metres) from the severed and retained portions.

It would be advisable to impose this condition to allow the Township more flexibility to 
perform necessary road improvements in the future. 

Yours truly, 

John Willmetts 
John Willmetts 
Director of Public Works 
Township of Mulmur 

136



Site Visit
(Driveway Location) 

Date:        July 21, 2021 
To:     Committee of Adjustment 
From:     John Willmetts, Director of Public Works 

Re: B-7 – 2021 BRUCE TRAIL 

Comments: 

This proposed severance has a suitable location for a driveway. The final 
location will be determined when the entrance permit is granted. 

Regards, 

John Willmetts 
Director of Public Works 

137



Date: July 21, 2021 

To: Committee of Adjustment 

From: John Willmetts, Director of Public Works 

Re: B11 – BRUCE TRAIL  

ROAD WIDENING 

With respect to this application, I have no conditions or concerns. 

Yours truly, 

John Willmetts 
John Willmetts 
Director of Public Works 
Township of Mulmur 

138



Date: July 21, 2021 

To: Committee of Adjustment 

From: John Willmetts, Director of Public Works 

Re: B12 – BRUCE TRAIL  

ROAD WIDENING 

With respect to this application, I have no conditions or concerns. 

Yours truly, 

John Willmetts 
John Willmetts 
Director of Public Works 
Township of Mulmur 

139



1

Tracey Atkinson

From: Amy Knapp <aknapp@nvca.on.ca>
Sent: July 8, 2021 4:06 PM
To: Tracey Atkinson
Subject: NVCA Comments for CofA
Attachments: NVCA Comments (B08- 2021) 08-JUL-2021.pdf

Good Afternoon Tracey, 

The Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority (NVCA) has reviewed the planning applications 
contained within this email and can offer the following for consideration: 

Consent – B8-2021– 796186 3rd Line (Creation of a new lot) 

Comments attached for consideration. 

Consent – B10-2021– 758008 2nd Line East (Boundary Adjustment) 

The Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority (NVCA) has reviewed the above noted application 
for consent for the purpose of a boundary adjustment. Based on our mandate and policies under 
the Conservation Authorities Act, we have no objection to the approval of the application. 

Consent – B11-2021– 638040 Prince of Wales Road (Creation of a new lot) 

The Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority (NVCA) has reviewed the above noted application 
for consent. Based on our mandate and policies under the Conservation Authorities Act, we have 
no objection to its approval. We also offer the following comments: 

The property falls partially within an area affected by Ontario Regulation 172/06 (the Authority’s 
Development, Interference with Wetlands and Alterations to Shorelines and Watercourses 
Regulation) due to a watercourse (Pine River), an unevaluated wetland, floodplain, slope erosion 
hazard areas and associated buffers. The proposed severed lot is outside of the NVCA’s Regulatory 
jurisdiction. 

NVCA staff note that the severed parcel contains a natural heritage feature that is part of a large 
continuous patch of forested land which may be a candidate Significant Woodland. NVCA staff 
further note that the natural heritage feature is designated as a Natural Area within the Niagara 
Escarpment Plan which restricts all development within this category.   

Consent – B12-2021– 598011 2nd Line West 

The application proposes to sever+/-1.3 acres for the development of the Bruce Trail and 
convey+/-0.3 acres to the Township of Mulmur. 

The Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority (NVCA) has reviewed the application and based 
on our mandate and policies under the Conservation Authorities Act, we have no objection to its 
approval.  

Thank you for circulating these applications and please forward a copy of any decision and notice 
of any appeals filed for the above reference applications  

Sincerely, 

Amy Knapp│Planner III 

140



Page 1 of 10 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT 
SUBJECT: Tracey Atkinson, BES MCIP RPP 
MEETING DATE: July 21, 2021 
SUBJECT: B7-2021 (The Bruce Trail Conservancy) 

B11-2021 (Cohen) 
B12-2021 (Sales) 

______________________________________________________________________ 

PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this report is to assess the planning merits of three applications for 
consent for the benefit of the Bruce Trail Conservancy.    

• B7-2021 (The Bruce Trail Conservancy) proposes to sever a +/- 8.1 ha (20 acre)
building lot from a 41.6 ha (103 acre) parcel. The severed lot would be a building
lot.  The retained lots would be sterilized from future residential construction
through the Niagara Escarpment Decision.

• B11-2021 (Cohen) proposes to sever +/- 3.3 ac from the rear of the 40 ha property for
the development of the Bruce Trail as a boundary adjustment.

• B12-2021 (Sales) proposes to sever +/- 1.3 acres from the 16 ha property for the
development of the Bruce Trail and convey +/- 0.3 acres to the Township of Mulmur
for road purposes as boundary adjustments.

BACKGROUND: 

FILE NO B7-2021, B11-2021, B12-2021 
ROLL NO 7:   2216000006089000000 

11: 2216000006087000000 
12: 2216000006167500000 

OWNER 7:   THE BRUCE TRAIL CONSERVANCY 
11:  2798986 ONTARIO INC (COHEN) 
12:  SALES SUE ELAINE  / SALES CHRISTOPHER 

TAYLOR 
ADDRESS 7:   PRINCE OF WALES 

11:  638040 PRINCE OF WALES ROAD 
12:  598011 2ND LINE WEST 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 7:   CONCESSION 2 WHS, EAST PART LOT 22 
11: CON 2 W E PT LOT 21 

141



Page 2 of 10 

EXISTING CONFIGURATION 

The subject lands are identified on the NEC map excerpt below. 

PROPOSED CONFIGURATION 

The proposed configuration is shown in the following figures. 

12:  CON 2 W W PT LOT 21 

OFFICIAL PLAN: Niagara Escarpment – Protection Area, Natural Area 

Features: Natural Heritage System 
Wooded Area (10-40ha size) 

ZONING: n/a 
NEC/Greenbelt: Escarpment Protection Area 

Escarpment Natural Area 

NVCA Regulated: Yes – beyond area of proposal 
Natural Heritage System Yes – entire parcels 
Agricultural Land Base No 
Application Submission Date: April 20, 2021, June 3, 2021, June 3, 2021 
Public Meeting Date: July 21, 2021 

B7-2021 

B11-2021 

B12-2021 

142



Page 3 of 10 

B7-2021 

B11-2021 

143



Page 4 of 10 

B12-2021 

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT: 
This application is aligned with the following strategic plan path: 
4. Growing a Sustainable Mulmur: Being Proactive in Sustainable Initiatives to ensure
the long term well being of Mulmur (includes Resources/Financial/People).

FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 
No financial impact. Processing costs are generally covered by the application fee. 

ANALYSIS: 

The application was supported by the following submissions: 

• Niagara Escarpment Development Permit Approval (B7-2021)
• Planning Submission, April 22, 2021 (Bruce Trail Conservancy B7-2021)
• Farm Data Sheet (Peace Valley Ranch)
• Planning Submission, May 26, 2021 (Bruce Trail Conservancy – Cohen:

B11-2021)
• Planning Submission, May 26, 2021 (Bruce Trail Conservancy – Sales:

B12-2021)

144



Page 5 of 10 

PLANNING POLICIES & PROVISIONS: 

Application B7-2021 creates a building lot. 
Applications B11-2021 and B12-2021 do not create any new building lots and do not 
have frontage, except the 20m width, as would be created through the land dedication to 
the Township’s ROW to the summer road (i.e not a year-round municipally maintained 
road).  

Provincial Policy Statement (2020) 
The 2020 Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) contains broad policy direction and policy 
direction on lot creation and development of the Rural and Agricultural Areas, and 
provides for limited development on rural lands. The PPS provides for limited 
development on Rural lands.   

The PPS also provides protection of natural heritage features.  

Growth Plan (2019, consolidated Aug 2020) 

A Place to Grow: Growth plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe, provides high-level 
policy direction relating to the development of healthy, safe and balanced communities.  
The Growth Plan directs the majority of development to settlement areas except where 
otherwise permitted.  Section 2.2.9(3) of the GP provides for rural land uses that will not 
negatively affect agriculture and Section 2.2.9.6 allows for consideration of some lots 
within the rural area.    

Natural Heritage System 

Provincial mapping of the Natural Heritage System for the Growth Plan does not apply 
until it has been implemented in the County Official Plan.  Until that time, the policies 
apply to areas that were mapped in the existing County and local plans.  

The Township provided comments on the NEC circulation indicating that the  Township  
prefers  that the  applicants  maintain  the  prime  agricultural  land  in  the larger parcel. 
The proposed severance will split up prime agricultural lands, with class 1 agricultural 
lands being  maintained on the conservation  parcel.  The  preferred configuration would 
be to maintain the prime agricultural land on a single parcel.

The Township also reserved the ability to provide additional comments through its 
severance process,  including conditions and may require the Bruce Trail Conservatory 
lands be merge with abutting  lands.

145



Page 6 of 10 

The subject lands are entirely within an “undifferentiated” area of the Provincial Natural 
Heritage System.  The lands include a wooded area, and farmland.  The Township maps 
the wooded area, which is approximately over 40 ha in size and extends over 
neighbouring properties.  

5.20.1 Significant Woodlands 

For the purposes of this Plan, a woodland is significant if it constitutes a forested area of 
at least 10 ha in size and  is: ecologically important in terms of features such as species 
composition, age of trees and stand history; functionally important due to its contribution 
to the broader landscape because of its location, size or due to the amount of forest 
cover in the planning area; or economically important due to site quality, species 
composition, or past management history. 

Single, multiple or successive development or site alteration activities resulting in 
degradation that threatens the health and integrity of significant woodlands or their 
ecological functions, shall not be permitted. 

Development and site alteration shall not be permitted in significant woodlands or on 
adjacent lands unless it has been demonstrated, through an EIS, that there will be no 
negative impacts on the woodland or on its ecological functions. Adjacent lands are 
defined for the purposes of this Section as lands within 120 m. of the significant 
woodland. 

Comments are anticipated from the NVCA and/or Dufferin County regarding the Natural 
Heritage features.  

Niagara Escarpment Plan 

The subject lands are designated Escarpment Protection Area and Escarpment Natural 
Area.   

B7-2021 
On B7-2021, the Natural designation reflects a wooded area in the South-West corner of 
the subject lands.  The proposed lot would be entirely within the Protection designation.  

NEC staff commented that: 

“Part 2.4.12 of the NEP permits a public body to create a new lot through acquisition, 
disposal, or exchange provided such a lot would not conflict with the lot creation 
policies of the applicable land use designations (Part 1.4.4). This proposal represents 
an acquisition by the Bruce Trail Conservancy.”  

A Conditional Approval was granted by the Niagara Escarpment Commission (NEC) on 
March 31, 2021, which includes a requirement to prohibit the construction of a dwelling 
on the retained lands, through an agreement.  

NEC staff commented that: 
“Part 1.4.4.2 (c) allows for a severance by a public body so long as no new building 
lot is created. The current vacant lands represent one building lot; the retained lot will 

146



Page 7 of 10 

be used for conservation/Bruce Trail uses only, thus no new building lot is realized 
through the proposed lot creation. The proposal conforms with Part 2.4 (Lot 
Creation) of the NEP (2017).”  

The policies of the Niagara Escarpment Plan are embedded in the Township Official 
Plan, and referred in the applicable section of this report.  

A copy of the NEC planning report is attached. The NEC report identifies a number of 
potential issues with the building envelop that require additional study.  

“No physical development is proposed through this application. A proposed dwelling 
was originally incorporated into the development proposal. However, upon review 
NEC Staff identified potential policy issues related to the proposed siting that would 
require additional studies per Parts 2.2.2, 2.5.1, 2.5.2, 2.5.3, 2.5.4, 2.10.2, and 2.13.2 
of the NEP (2017). These policy concerns related to the siting of the dwelling on 
slopes associated with the brow of the escarpment, in an area of potential karst 
(likely), a meandering driveway through the lower slopes of the escarpment, the 
potential for impact to areas of archaeological potential, and impacts to scenic 
resources that could not be assessed due to lack of detail in the submission.”  

“NEC Staff are of the opinion that while the suggested building envelope cannot be 
confirmed without study, there is confidence that a viable building envelope does 
exist on what will be the newly created parcel. The envelope would be in close 
proximity to Prince of Wales Road, at a lower elevation, where the topography of the 
lands is relatively flat. This would reduce the potential for impact to the scenic 
resources of the escarpment, eliminate the need to traverse the lower slopes with a 
long meandering driveway, and would be in an area that is not identified as potential 
karst. An archaeological assessment may still be required for the alternative 
envelope.”  

B11-2021, B12-2021 
The Niagara Escarpment plan supports the boundary adjustments for the purpose of the 
Bruce Trail Conservancy. Through legal mechanisms the proposed lots may be merged 
with abutting trail lands to achieve boundary adjustments opposed to lot creations which 
could be available for building lots.  

NVCA 

The portions of subject lands proposed for the lot creations are not regulated by 
the Conservation Authority.  Comments from the NVCA are included in this package.   

County Official Plan 

The subject lands are designated “Countryside Area” and “Rural Lands” in the County 
Official Plan schedules.  The Countryside designation provides for the protection of 
agricultural areas, while allowing some growth and development. The majority of the 
agricultural land is proposed to be within the retained parcel.  Comments are anticipated 
from the County of Dufferin related to the County OP policies. 

147



Page 8 of 10 

Mulmur Official Plan (2012) 

The lot creation policies of section 6.4.6.4 apply to the Escarpment Protection Area.  It is 
noted that the proposed severance does create a new building lot, but that the retained 
lands are proposed to be sterilized, through a development agreement, thereby resulting 
in no increase in development rights, although the change of ownership will likely result 
in development.  

6.4.6.4 NEW LOTS 

New lots may be created subject to conformity with the applicable policies and Development 
Criteria of the Niagara Escarpment Plan, the general lot creation policies of this Plan and the 
following. 

Provided no new building lot(s) is created, a severance may be permitted for: 

• the purpose of correcting conveyances, provided the correction does not include the
re-creation of merged lots;

• the purpose of enlarging existing lots;

• as part of, or following, the acquisition of lands by a public body; or

• as part of, or following, the acquisition of lands by an approved
conservation organization for the purpose of establishing a nature preserve.

Agriculture and Minimum Distance Separation 
Every house introduced within an Agricultural area limits the flexibility of future barn 
placement. The proposed severance is a vacant parcel and is zoned to allow for the 
development of one single detached dwelling, to be located almost anywhere on the 
property.  The proposed severance would create an opportunity for a dwelling that may 
impact agricultural operations.  It is noted that the current ownership by the Bruce Trail 
has lead to the subject lands being conserved, and rented to a local farmer, and no 
residential development establishing on the subject lands. It is noted that although the 
lands are actively farmed, they were not identified by the Province as part of the 
Agricultural Land Base mapped by OMAFRA 

There are livestock operations in proximity to the subject lands as well as barns that are 
capable of being used for livestock.  

Based on the information provided by the applicant, the Minimum Distance Separation 
(MDS) arcs do not impact the proposed development.  The MDS circles of influence is 
170m which does not extend onto the subject lands and therefore does not impact the 
proposed lot creation.  It is noted that the barns on the subject lands appear to be 
significantly larger than the area estimated for the livestock in the applicants calculation. 
However, as noted in the applicants calculation, the actual distance between the barn 
and lot is significantly larger.  

148



Page 9 of 10 

The Township Official Plan contains high-level protection for agriculture and prime 
agricultural lands.  The proposal does represent a removal of lands from the agricultural 
land base, even though they are not identified has have a high capability for agriculture.  
We note that the preservation of larger parcels of pasture lands, for example, play a 
significant role in the larger agricultural system.  While the NEC plan and Provincial 
Prime Agricultural Land mapping and MDS do not prevent the consideration of the 
proposed lot creation, it is noted that the proposed severance may result in the removal 
of pasture/crop lands, and reducing parcel size may result in a decrease in agricultural 
productivity. 

The Township is  concerned with Rural Character and the introduction of new building 
lots within the Escarpment.  In this instance, the Township is concerned with the 
preceived precedent setting, where a public body is permitted to create a building lot.  It 
is recognized that the retained lands, in this instance, are sterilized, such that the total 
dwelling yield is unchanged.    

The Township is concerned that the building lot that is being created has not been 
supported by the environmental and possible archeological studies that may be 
necessary to establish a building envelop.  The Township prefers to ensure that a 
building envelop is available so that it is not creating lots that are unbuildable.  However, 
in this instance, it would be within the jurisdiction of the NEC to issue a permit at the time 
of an application.  The NEC believe that there is a viable building envelop within the 
proposed lot. 

Zoning By-law 

The subject lands are within the Niagara Escarpment Plan and therefore not subject 
to the provisions of the zoning by-law.  

AGENCY COMMENTS 

Comments  were received from Dufferin County, NEC, NVCA and Bell. 

The Township has concerns with illegal and unsafe parking practices of some trail 
users and the lack of parking options in proximity to trail access points. Mulmur 
staff have shared these concerns with the Bruce Trail Conservancy staff, and 
expressed a need for parking lots in relation to increased trail development in 
proximity to municipal roads. The Township has provided preliminary content 
for such an agreement, and are scheduled to meet with the Bruce Trail 
Conservancy staff.  A road widening was previously aquired. 

149



Page 10 of 10 

Respectfully submitted, 

Tracey Atkinson 
__________________________________ 
Tracey Atkinson, BES MCIP RPP 
Planner 

RECOMMENDATION: 

While the Township is concerned with the proposed lot creation, the NEP policies, which 
apply to the subject lands, do support the application and the NEC has issued a 
conditional permit for same. 

Should the Committee of Adjustment support application B7-2021, it is recommended that 
it be approved subject to standard conditions, fulfilling NEC permit requirements with 
respect to building on the retained lands, parking lot agreement, and recognize 
that the NEC permit process will assess any future EIS, archeological studies and 
building locations.  

Further, it is recommended that applications B11-2021 and B12-2021 be approved subject 
to standard conditions. 

The application proposes a land dedication (as shown in purpose on the aerial below) to the 
Township of Mulmur to connect the Municipal right-of-way.  It is noted that the (summer) road 
currently does not fall within the proposed land dedication, however, it is still beneficial for the 
Township to obtain legal access beside the forced road.  The  Township is working with the 
surveyor and legal to determine whether the Township can acquire the entire area identified in 
purple, and may have to undertake a process to acquire absolute title for a portion of the 
lands. 

150



DECISION OF COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT WITH REASONS 
(The Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. 13, s. 45 (8), 1994 c. 23, s.26.) 

CERTIFICATION 
(The Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. p. 13 s. 45 (10) 

I, Tracey Atkinson, Clerk of the Township of Mulmur, hereby certify that the above is a true copy of the decision of 
the Committee of Adjustment for the Township of Mulmur with respect to the application recorded herein. 

............................................................... 
Tracey Atkinson, Clerk, Township of Mulmur 

The last date that this decision may be appealed to the Ontario Land Tribunal is ______, 2021. 
NOTICE OF LAST DAY OF APPEALING TO THE ONTARIO LAND TRIBUNAL (OLT) 

The applicant, the Minister, or any other person who has an interest in this matter may, within twenty (20) days of 
the date of this notice, appeal to the Ontario Land Tribunal against the decision of the Committee by serving 
personally or sending by registered mail to the Secretary-Treasurer of the Committee a Notice of Appeal along with 
Appellant Form (A1) available from the Township office or from the OLT website at www.elto.gov.on.ca setting out 
the objection to the decision and the reasons for the objection and accompanied by the fee of $300.00 payable by 
certified cheque or money order to the MINISTER OF FINANCE as prescribed by the Ontario Land Tribunal as 
payable on an appeal from a Committee of Adjustment to the Board. 

Tracey Atkinson, Clerk  
Telephone: (705) 466-3341 Ext 222    Date of Mailing:  July ______, 2021 
tatkinson@mulmur.ca Last day to appeal to OLT: August ___ , 2021 

FILE NO. B7-2021  Bruce Trail Conservancy RE:   Consent Application 

The following decision was reached by the Committee of Adjustment for the Township of Mulmur at the 
meeting on July 21, 2021: 

That Application No. B7-2021 submitted by the Bruce Trail Conservancy for a lot creation from CON 2 
WHS E PT LOT 22 (R# 6 08900) be approved subject to the following: 

• That the lot creation applies to the creation of a lot of approximately 8.1 ha (+/- 5%) rounded to two
decimal places.

• Taxes and/or penalties must be paid in full up to and including the current fiscal year on all related
properties, if the amount is known.

• The deed for the subject severance must be presented to the Secretary Treasurer prior to one year after
the date of decision; a copy of the consent decision to be kept on file at the Township solicitor’s office.

• Two paper copies of the registered plan of survey and one digital copy be provided, including
documentation from the surveyor certifying that the digital copy was created from the same file that was
used to plot the original paper copies. The digital copy shall be of a format to the Township’s satisfaction.
The paper copy shall be circulated to the Township for review prior to registration.

• Compliance with all bylaws, including, but not limited to zoning, site plan and property standards.
• The Bruce Trail Conservancy enter into an agreement for the establishment of a parking lots to the

satisfaction of the Township.
• That all conditions of consent be fulfilled within one year of the date of notice of decision where failure to

do so will cause the application to be null and void.
• Cash in lieu of parkland shall be paid to the Municipality in the amount of $5,000.00

REASON:   Conforms to the Township’s Official Plan with the proposed conditions. 

151

mailto:tatkinson@mulmur.ca


DECISION OF COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT WITH REASONS 
(The Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. 13, s. 45 (8), 1994 c. 23, s.26.) 

CERTIFICATION 
(The Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. p. 13 s. 45 (10) 

I, Tracey Atkinson, Clerk of the Township of Mulmur, hereby certify that the above is a true copy of the decision of 
the Committee of Adjustment for the Township of Mulmur with respect to the application recorded herein. 

............................................................... 
Tracey Atkinson, Clerk, Township of Mulmur 

The last date that this decision may be appealed to the Ontario Land Tribunal is ______, 2021. 
NOTICE OF LAST DAY OF APPEALING TO THE ONTARIO LAND TRIBUNAL (OLT) 

The applicant, the Minister, or any other person who has an interest in this matter may, within twenty (20) days of 
the date of this notice, appeal to the Ontario Land Tribunal against the decision of the Committee by serving 
personally or sending by registered mail to the Secretary-Treasurer of the Committee a Notice of Appeal along with 
Appellant Form (A1) available from the Township office or from the OLT website at www.elto.gov.on.ca setting out 
the objection to the decision and the reasons for the objection and accompanied by the fee of $300.00 payable by 
certified cheque or money order to the MINISTER OF FINANCE as prescribed by the Ontario Land Tribunal as 
payable on an appeal from a Committee of Adjustment to the Board. 

Tracey Atkinson, Clerk  
Telephone: (705) 466-3341 Ext 222    Date of Mailing:  July ______, 2021 
tatkinson@mulmur.ca Last day to appeal to OLT: August ___ , 2021 

FILE NO. B11-2021  Bruce Trail / 2798986 Ontario Inc. (Cohen) RE:   Boundary Adjustment 

The following decision was reached by the Committee of Adjustment for the Township of Mulmur at the 
meeting on July 21, 2021: 

That Application No. B11-2021 submitted by 2978986 Ontario Inc. (Paul Cohen) for a boundary 
adjustment from CON 2 WHS PT LOT 21 (R# 6 08700) to CON 2 WHS E PT LOT 22 (R#6 08900) be 
approved subject to the following: 

• That the boundary adjustment applies to an approximate 3.3 ha (+/- 5%) parcel of land rounded to two
decimal places to be added to CON 2 WHS E PT LOT 22 (R#6 08900)

• Taxes and/or penalties must be paid in full up to and including the current fiscal year on all related
properties, if the amount is known.

• The deed for the subject severance must be presented to the Secretary Treasurer prior to one year after
the date of decision; a copy of the consent decision to be kept on file at the Township solicitor’s office.

• Two paper copies of the registered plan of survey and one digital copy be provided, including
documentation from the surveyor certifying that the digital copy was created from the same file that was
used to plot the original paper copies. The digital copy shall be of a format to the Township’s satisfaction.
The paper copy shall be circulated to the Township for review prior to registration.

• Compliance with all bylaws, including, but not limited to zoning, site plan and property standards.
• The severed parcel shall be subject to Section 50(3) of the Planning Act.
• The solicitor for the owner of the lot to which the severed parcel is to be added shall provide an

undertaking to make an application for consolidation within thirty days following registration of the deed
for the resulting enlarged parcel, and to provide the Township with documentation which demonstrates
that the consolidation has taken place.

• That all conditions of consent be fulfilled within one year of the date of notice of decision where failure to
do so will cause the application to be null and void.

REASON:   Conforms to the Township’s Official Plan with the proposed conditions. 

152

mailto:tatkinson@mulmur.ca


DECISION OF COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT WITH REASONS 
(The Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. 13, s. 45 (8), 1994 c. 23, s.26.) 

CERTIFICATION 
(The Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. p. 13 s. 45 (10) 

I, Tracey Atkinson, Clerk of the Township of Mulmur, hereby certify that the above is a true copy of the decision of 
the Committee of Adjustment for the Township of Mulmur with respect to the application recorded herein. 

............................................................... 
Tracey Atkinson, Clerk, Township of Mulmur 

The last date that this decision may be appealed to the Ontario Land Tribunal is ______, 2021. 
NOTICE OF LAST DAY OF APPEALING TO THE ONTARIO LAND TRIBUNAL (OLT) 

The applicant, the Minister, or any other person who has an interest in this matter may, within twenty (20) days of 
the date of this notice, appeal to the Ontario Land Tribunal against the decision of the Committee by serving 
personally or sending by registered mail to the Secretary-Treasurer of the Committee a Notice of Appeal along with 
Appellant Form (A1) available from the Township office or from the OLT website at www.elto.gov.on.ca setting out 
the objection to the decision and the reasons for the objection and accompanied by the fee of $300.00 payable by 
certified cheque or money order to the MINISTER OF FINANCE as prescribed by the Ontario Land Tribunal as 
payable on an appeal from a Committee of Adjustment to the Board. 

Tracey Atkinson, Clerk  
Telephone: (705) 466-3341 Ext 222    Date of Mailing:  July______, 2021 
tatkinson@mulmur.ca Last day to appeal to OLT: August ___ , 2021 

FILE NO. B12-2021  Bruce Trail / Sales RE:   Boundary Adjustment 

The following decision was reached by the Committee of Adjustment for the Township of Mulmur at the 
meeting on July 21, 2021: 

That Application No. B12-2021 submitted by Christopher, Martha and Sue Sales for a boundary 
adjustment from CON 2 WHS W PT LOT 21 (R# 6 16750) to CON 2 WHS E PT LOT 22 (R#6 08900) 
be approved subject to the following: 

• That the boundary adjustment applies to an approximate 1.10 acres (+/- 10%) parcel of land rounded to
two decimal places to be conveyed to CON 2 WHS E PT LOT 22 (R#6 08900) subsequent to the
completion of File No. B11-2021 Bruce Trail / Cohen

• The applicant shall, at his/her own expense, convey to the Municipality sufficient lands being
approximately 0.2 acres (+/- 10%) rounded to two decimal places, located west of “no mans land”. Deeds
are to be submitted to the Municipality, for review and approval, accompanied by a solicitor’s certificate
indicating that the title is free and clear of all encumbrances and the Municipality has a good and
marketable title. A copy of the plan of survey depicting the conveyance shall be provided to the
Municipality for their records.

• That the Bruce Trail Conservancy, Christopher, Martha and Sue Sales and Paul Cohen (2798986 Ontario
Inc.) provide conformation that they have no claim to “no mans lands” to the Township’s solicitors
satisfaction.

• Taxes and/or penalties must be paid in full up to and including the current fiscal year on all related
properties, if the amount is known.

• The deed for the subject severance must be presented to the Secretary Treasurer prior to one year after
the date of decision; a copy of the consent decision to be kept on file at the Township solicitor’s office.

• Two paper copies of the registered plan of survey and one digital copy be provided, including
documentation from the surveyor certifying that the digital copy was created from the same file that was
used to plot the original paper copies. The digital copy shall be of a format to the Township’s satisfaction.
The paper copy shall be circulated to the Township for review prior to registration.

• Compliance with all bylaws, including, but not limited to zoning, site plan and property standards.
• The severed parcel shall be subject to Section 50(3) of the Planning Act.
• The solicitor for the owner of the lot to which the severed parcel is to be added shall provide an

undertaking to make an application for consolidation within thirty days following registration of the deed
for the resulting enlarged parcel, and to provide the Township with documentation which demonstrates
that the consolidation has taken place.

• That all conditions of consent be fulfilled within one year of the date of notice of decision where failure to
do so will cause the application to be null and void.

REASON:   Conforms to the Township’s Official Plan with the proposed conditions. 

153

mailto:tatkinson@mulmur.ca


CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR 
NOTICE OF COMPLETE APPLICATION & PUBLIC MEETING 

B8-2021 CLARK 
Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment will hold a public meeting under section 53 (5) of 
the Planning Act, R.S.O.1990 c.P.13,as amended.  

This meeting is being conducted by means of Electronic Participation by a majority of 
members, as permitted by Section 238 (3.3) of the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended. 

USING VIDEO AND/OR AUDIO CONFERENCING.  

To connect only by phone, please dial any of the following numbers.  When prompted, please 
enter the meeting ID provided below the phone numbers.  You will be placed into the meeting 
in muted mode. If you encounter difficulty, please call the front desk at 705-466-3341, ext. 0  

+1 647 374 4685 Canada
+1 647 558 0588 Canada
+1 778 907 2071 Canada
+1 438 809 7799 Canada
+1 587 328 1099 Canada Meeting ID: 846 0224 8258 

To connect to video with a computer, smart phone or digital device and with either digital audio 
or separate phone line, download the zoom application ahead of time and enter the digital 
address below into your search engine or follow the link below. Enter the meeting ID when 
prompted.   

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258 Meeting ID: 846 0224 8258 

The meeting is being held to consider an application for Consent which has been submitted. 
The following are the particulars:  

MEETING DATE AND TIME: July 21, 2021 at 9:30am 
APPLICATION NUMBER: B8-2021 
OWNER/APPLICANT: 1066886 Ontario Inc c/o John Clark 
LOCATION: CON 3 E E PT LOT 3 RP 7R506 PART 2 

PURPOSE: The application proposes to sever a +/- 4.8 ha (12 acre) lot containing an existing 
house and shed. The retained lot is proposed to be 15.4 ha (38.2 acres) in size and comprises 
vacant woodlands (Natural Heritage System and Earth Science ANSI). 

Additional information is available for public inspection by request. If you require additional 
information on this application, it may also be obtained by contacting the CAO/Planner, Tracey 
Atkinson, 705 466 3341 X222 or by email: takinson@mulmur.ca during regular office hours.  

154

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258


NOTE:  If a person or public body that files an appeal of a decision of the Township of Mulmur 
Committee of Adjustment in respect of the proposed consent does not make written submissions 
to the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment before it gives or refuses to give a provisional 
consent, the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal may dismiss the appeal.   If you wish to be notified 
of the decision of the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment in respect of the proposed 
consent, you must make a written request to the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment. 

See Map for illustration purposes only. This is not a plan of survey. A digital version is 
available by email.  

Dated May 25, 2021 

155



COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT PUBLIC MEETING
1066886 ONTARIO INC. (JOHN CLARK)

796186 3rd Line, Township of Mulmur
CON 3 EE PT LOT 3 RP 7R506 PART 2

B8-2021 CLARK

July 21, 2021 Committee of Adjustment Public Meeting

156



Site Location: 796186 3rd Line East, Township of Mulmur
• The property is located on the west side of the 3rd Line

approximately 2 ½ kms north of the intersection of the 3rd Line
and Highway 9. 

• The Subject Lands are 20 hectares in lot area with a frontage of
approximately 300 metres on the 3rd Line.

• The lands are occupied by a single detached residence and a
shed with a large woodlot area.

• The property is identified as being part of the  Provincial’s Natural
Heritage System as well as within an Earth Science Area of
Natural and Scientific Interest (ANSI).

• The Subject Lands are located within a rural area with a range of 
rural residential, agricultural and farm related uses as well as 
environmental areas particularly to the north west

• Surrounding Uses –
• North: Agricultural/Rural Lands, Violet Hill Farm,

wedding venue.
• West: Agricultural & Natural Area.
• South: Natural Area & Violet Hill community.
• East: Rural/Agricultural Farms and Rural Residential Lots

157



Proposal:

• The Consent application will facilitate the
creation of a rural residential lot on rural lands.

• The application proposes to sever a +/- 4.8 ha 
(12 acre) lot containing an existing house and 
shed.

• The retained lot is proposed to be 15.4 ha 
(38.2 acres) in size and comprises vacant 
woodlands (Natural Heritage System and 
Earth Science ANSI).

• No impacts are anticipated on ecological 
features or functions that are associated with 
the Subject Lands.

158



Township of Mulmur Land Use Designation and Zoning
• The Subject Lands are designated as “Rural” in the Township 

of Mulmur Official Plan.

• The Subject Lands are zoned as “Countryside” (A) in the 
Township of Mulmur Zoning By-law. 

The Consent Application is described as follows:

A.) Severed Lot: 
• will contain the existing house and shed.
• will be approximately 4.8 ha (12 ac) 
• will have  frontage of approximately 168 m (550 ft) on the 3rd 

Line.

B.) Retained Lot: 
• will be 15.4 ha (38.2 ac) in size with a
• Will have  frontage of approximately 137 m (450 ft) on the 3rd 

Line.
• The proposed retained lot comprises vacant woodlands.

o Both lots meet the zone regulations of the Countryside (A) 
Zone

TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR MUNICIPAL ZONING BY-LAW MAP

159



Environmental Impact Study (EIS)- Azimuth Environmental Consulting
• An Environmental Impact Study (EIS) was completed due to 

the identification with the Province’s Natural Heritage System 
and the ANSI (Earth Sciences). 

• Azimuth Environmental Consulting was retained to undertake 
an EIS to assess the potential impact to environmental features 
from future development of a new residential dwelling and 
ancillary structure.  

The findings of the EIS are summarized as follows:
• The environmental conditions are not limiting to the

proposed development.
• No negative impacts are anticipated to the habitat of

any documented Species at Risk nor the ecological
function of Candidate Significant Woodlands, Wildlife
Habitat or ANSI provided suggested mitigation measures
are implemented.

• The application conforms to the applicable
environmental policies.

Mitigation measures included a setback of 30 m from the 
woodland and timing of tree clearing. 

160



CONCLUSION

• The proposed development is consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement.

• The proposed development conforms to the Growth Plan.

• The proposed development conforms to the Township of Mulmur Official Plan.

• The proposed application complies with the Township of Mulmur Zoning By-
law Amendment, as amended.

161



P.O. Box 246, STN MAIN
Collingwood, Ontario
LgY 325

705.446.1168
kristine@loft planning.com
loftplanning.com

TRANSMITTAT

DAIE:

FROM:

SUBJECI:

IO:

LO FT PLAN N IN G

Moy 1 3 2021 PAGES: Submission LPI FltE NO: CLA.5032l

Trocey Alkinson, Iownship of Mulmur

Kristine Loft, MCIP RPP, Loft Plonning lnc.

Applicotion for Consent (1056886 ONTARIO INC)
796186 3RD Line, Township of Mulmur

Trocey,

Pleose find enclosed on Applicotion for Consent pertoining to the oforementioned lqnds, including
the opplicoble fees ond supporting documenis.

Should you hove ony questions regording these opplicotions, pleose do not hesitote to contoct us ot
705.446.1168.

Your truly,

Kristine Loft
Loft Plonning lnc.
krisfine @/o f t plo nni ng. co m

162



10

Rlvervlew

*

89

6

F

DIAI

KEYMAP

SUBJECT
PROPERTY

t-l
lt

)Jrj
rqGr) qe9::

J
2

z
o'
dol
lu
UIzdq
zlu
lua
F-l
ul
d
ul(}z{4
3
AId(l

I

SOUTH PART OF LOT 4 1--T 1
*

il)
o
N

Gl') \211 lr
EXIgTIN6

12c() saFl

+l
a.-

o
to
d)

I

+

bbo

coNcEggtoN 3
EAST PART LOT 3
RPI1 1R9,O6 PART 2

TOrUNgt-{tF oF tlULt'1uR
COUNTY OF DUFFERIN

UAL

E)<tsrlNG
?bo 6a,FT

SITED

196186 lt-.llRD L|NE
MULFITIR, ON1ARIO

J
dr

rO

F
i
ft_ LrDPQ 

tt

ca
Fo
Fl
tri
-l

Fa
rJ]

F

L lr_ {J(+

G
cri

$
I

+

l"It-
lcn

+,(.-

a
rq
a
cl

I

+

LANDS TO BE
RETAINED

AREA: (+/-) 39 affes PROPOgED DRIVEU,IAY FOR
RETAINED
(21' fron PROPERTY LINE) feet

1 SCALE I :250

NOTE9'

ot)-E ft - --
1. TI{I9 19 NOT A PLAN OF SURVEY AND 9IIOULD NOT BE U9ED AS 9UCH
2. SUBJECT LANDg ARE ZONED COUNTRYSIDE TA)
3, DIgTANCEg ON TI-{I9 PLAN ARE SI-.IOIiJN IN FEET AND CAN BE

CONVERTED TO I'1EIRE6 tsY I)IVIDING tsY 3.2A1
4, DII1EN9ION9 ON TFIIS gKETCI{ ARE AFPROXII1ATE AND I.{AVE

NO? BEEN VERIFIED BY SURVEY
5. gEE ATTACI]ED FOR ENVIRONMENTAL IFIPACT9 ON PROPO9EI) FROPERTIE9

SOUTH PART LOT 3

l-

DESCRIPTION: Part 1 of LOT 3, Concession 3, E,H.S,

April 16,2021

MUNICIPAL ZONING SUMMARY

796186 Third Line, Mulmur, Ontario

Severancen

NG:ZONING SUMMARY FOR: TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR

JI YFS
JI YES

4 lnm a) ah ]/t,1 \m 77h YES

JI YES
JI YFS

TIJ I<dft <dft YES

llJlv YFS

ll /lo.496 o.Lq YFS
1n qil t4 qft llJ I7qm ,* YFS

m2 I / soft IIJI YEs lNo

Siring I l0x2olt3x5m

per 5 per Unit
3x5m I l0x2}tt

N/A /I YES lNo

ft EW R :GilTrl[fir- [[fil]Illllllrliit/ill
Il l,tIIJff.IiffLfJE If |EJI.GEETI LFE]iEI-tEilEl-
Il Mlllf,r.flfinlmGr- frrfiI-rr:r. IE ffiIrfiijil
II ffiIll??f.rlll1lmtrlE]FfiTl IT'lifrl$f#f fErrirllFlil?-

srfiilrTNri-Jrn:rilr rnfiI-fl:rn Jitrrnl-rEri-
tI MrTrraiFrFf,IrmriDrirr,IliE litfiIiri-
IEI lltlllfr.TrritlFin?l:I lFrFFfiFfr'qrtftllil

Et EmmnFrE rlrfinrflrir?ill

EE

nIN

It:FfiIIl'r{1I

xI ilrqlnnmnrffiBolrefiEr

twFriGnifitlrilirr{ FF
rfi llmnr{rfi liairjrrflilGrL
filnftJrr{rfivlHirflitj'

Ir.r Mrcf[mnEf,Eti]-
lil imF.lirilFFl!-IrNrt

LANDS TO BE
SEVERED

AREA= (+/-) 12 acres

DESCRIPTION: Part 1 of LOT 3, Concession 3, E.H.S.

TE: April 16,2021Severance nds RetaiI n

MUNICIPAL ZONING SUMMARY
PROJ

796185 Third Line, Mulmur, Ontario

ZONING SUMMARY FOR: TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR
ilRFD tmrttl ,rtqFrl lmrftl rrllltDl

JI YFS I

30h t(}0fr l/l YFS I

lJl YFS I

il/ATI J I YES IN/A
N,AII J I YFq IN/A

itra 7 ll/t YEst
N/All r' I YFS IN/A

N/tll / I YFS IN/A
N/All J I YFq IN/A

IMAX. DENSIIY < l tiNtT'lt 6) N/A I N/AII/I YEs I

PARKIN6

SLinE 10x20ft
sdfi

3 per Unn

3x6m I
m O94

N/A I

N/A

II Mrilf,ral1rlil:r]- Dit--EE?.JIr
IL fil[fiffiEnmG- rr,rillrl-7l{il
-I lllnmir.]lFfEFFFlE]rtlGll-
IrI fiIrilirilEl?riilsfi?nT-
Iil mnrmrlrfir'?!\TrfinTfi:Ix
EIIImFTf{T,IIE[iffi Irfi r.IIrrr,rr*w,rr-rr,m-
trI nilNrairfiFFr.Ttirli-Hl
xl ll?ltltlEmn:rfl:lir.If,lctiffir

Ilftl Ntl![f:InTfilIIlilICIIF- IIiFtiiI-I,FriI

IiFl rilnmFFFertfitlrflr{:nirl

fFFlitlrr.-
ftnnlrlllyr*rtl

II fE{FmE-{rIrtrrril

rvrr-Ilnrv/r-.Ira
Irfir-rr:rir

-nrllfrrir

gEVERANCE 9KETCI.{
16,

CLARK RESIDENCE..13IA6 THIRD LINF EA3T, MULI'1UFE, ON.

9EVERANCE
PROPOSAL

NOTE9:
I,ffi coffiffi*& 4K UDtl.trrru
C'HffiAEroRFd
D&FS|ErOffiffit6Effi
MS|EotilgDuffi

4,WIU'd rc AR q4Are 10 COFLY
oru o,e,c,9,92ffi to BT uae@t
6ANru,APl,l4.FUN AfrACb
ToDW(.?pldtd

1ffilm PIl'wbM ruffiNllKElHF 9,& @MruION WK TO C4ffiff
ro * ff@T FEilt O,6_C.ffiEffi&fiCER$ruF[tftffi

HffiffdDE€Mrurore,
d. iaB) 3a@ Fx lat$ SNtn

CI{RITAN LIMITED

-

@r6N / wt@

RR'I CONN, ONIAR'O,
CANADA, NO6 INO

Rb/loloNs/tgsuEs
NO. 9rffifltrffi

rotaffiflr
163



LO FT PLAN N IN G

P.O. Box 246, STN MAIN
Collingwood, Ontario
LgY 325

705.446.t168
kristi ne@loft planning.com
loftplanning.com

Moy 13,2021

Ms. Trocey Atkinson,
CAO/Plonner
Township of Mulmur
758070 2no Line Eosi
Mulmur, Ontorio
L9V OG8

Deor Ms. Atkinson

RE: Plonning Justificotion letter - Proposed Consenl
796186 3'd [ine, Mulmur
Client 1066886 ONIARIO lNC. (c/o John Clork)
LPI No: P.50321

We hove been retoined by 1066886 ONTARIO lNC. (c/o John Clork) to oct os plonners for o proposed
consent opplicotion thot will focilitote the creotion of o rurol residentiol lot on the oforementioned
londs. This Plonning Justificotion Letter is being submitted os port of o complete opplicotion in support
of the plonning opplicotions.

l.l locqlion qnd Sile Descriplion

The Subject Londs ore legolly described os CON 3 E E PT LOT 3 RP 2R506, PART 2; TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR,

COUNTY OF DUFFERIN ond municipolly os796186 3'd Line, Mulmur (Figure I - Locotion). The property is

locoted on the west side of the 3'o Line opproximolely 21/zkms norih of the intersection of the 3'o Line

ond Highwoy 9.

The Subject Londs ore 20 hectores in lot oreo with o frontoge of opproximotely 300 metres on the 3'o

Line. The londs ore occupied by o single detoched residence ond o shed with o lorge woodlot oreo.
The property is identified os being port of the the Provinciol's Noturol Heritoge System os well os wilhin
on Eorth Science Areo of Noturolond Scientific lnlerest (ANSI).

1.2 Descriplion of Surroundinq Areq

The Subject Londs ore locoted within o rurol oreo with o ronge of scottered residentiol, ogriculturolond
form reloted uses os well os environmentol oreos porticulorly to the north west.

Existing ond surrounding lond uses ore described os follows:

o Norlh: Agriculturol/Rurol Londs, Violet Hill Form, o wedding venue.
o Eosf: Rurol/Agriculturol Forms ond Rurol Residentiol Lots.
r South: Noturol Areo & Violet Hill community.
o Wesl: Agriculturol/Rurol & NoturolAreo.

1.0 Bockground

cLA.5032r {1066886 ONTARIO lNC.)

164



LO FT PLAN N IN G

P.O. Box 246, STN MAIN
Collingwood, Ontario
LgY 325

705.446.t'168
kristi ne@loft planni ng.com
loftplanning.com

The Niogoro Escorpment obuis the northwest corner of the Subject Londs which extends to the west
north ond the property is identified os being within the Violet Hill Chonnel- Boyne Volley Areo of Noturol
ond Scientific lnterest (Eorth Science). A lorge extroctive oreo is locoted to ihe southwest of the Subject
Londs on the north side of Highwoy 89.

This Plonning Justificotion Repori hos been prepored in support of o consent opplicotion to creote o
rurolresidentiol lot. The Subject Londs ore designoted os "Rurol" in the Township of Mulmur Officiol Plon
ond zoned os "Countryside" (A) in the Township of Mulmur Zoning By-low. The consent opplicotion is

described os follows:

1. The Severed lot - The severed lot will contoin the exisfing house ond shed. lt will be
opproximotely 4.8 ho (12 oc) in size with o frontoge of opproximotely 1 68 m (550 ft) on the 3'a

Line.

2. The Retqined Lol - The Retoined Lot is proposed to be 
.l5.4 ho (38.2 oc) in size with o frontoge of

opproximotely 137 m (450 ft) on the 3rd Line. The proposed retoined lot comprises vocont,
woodlonds.

Both lots meet the zone regulotions of the Countryside (A) Zone. (Figure 2 - Consent Sketch (prepored
by Chriton Limited))

An Environmentol lmpoct Study (ElS) wos requested os port of the complete submission due to the
identificotion with the Province's Noturol Heritoge System ond the ANSI (Eorth Sciences). Accordingly,
Azimuth Environmeniol Consulting wos retoined to undertoke on EIS to ossess the potentiol impoct to
environmentol feotures from future development of o new residentiol dwelling ond oncillory structure.

The findings of the EIS ore summorized os follows:

o The environmentolconditions ore not limiting to the proposed development.
o No negotive impocis ore onticipoted to the hobitot of ony documented Species of Risk nor the

ecologicol function of Condidote Significont Woodlonds, Wildlife Hobitot or ANSI provided
suggesied mitigotion meosures ore implemented.

o The opplicotion conforms to the opplicoble environmentol policies.

Mitigotion meosures included o setbock of 30 m from the woodlond ond timing of tree cleoring which
will be implemented os port of ony future development.

2

2.0 Purpose of lhe Applicolion

3.0 Supporting Studies - Environmentql lmpocl Siudy

cLA.5032t {r066886 ONTARIO lNC.)

165



P.O. Box 246, STN MAIN
Collingwood, Ontario
t9Y 3Zs

705.446.1168
kristi ne@loftplanni ng.com
loftplanning.comLO FT PLAN N IN G

4.0 Policy Anolysis

A review of plonning documents must be undertoken to determine conformity of the Consent
opplicotions to the Plonning Act os well os the relevont plonning documents. Our review of the
opplicotion bosed on the opplicoble plonning policies mode the following conclusions:

l. Ihe Applicotion hos Resqrd for Motlers of Provinciol lnleresl (Seclion 2l of lhe Plqnninq Acl.
I ?90). The Applicotion will focilitote the creotion of o rurol residentiol lot on rurol londs in on oreo
olreody well developed with scottered rurol residentiol lots olong the eost side of the 3'a Line.

No impocts ore onticipoted on ecologicol feotures or functions thot ore ossocioted with the
Subject Londs.

2. The Applicolions ore consistenl wilh the Provinciol Policv Slolemenl2020. The relevont provinciol
policies permit single detoched dwellings on Rurol Londs.

3. Ihe Applicotions conforms lo lhe Counlv of Dufferin ond ihe Township of Mulmur Officiol Plons.

The Dufferin County Officiol Plon ond the Township of Mulmur Officiol Plon both permit rurol
residentioluses in the ruroloreo ond the proposed consent oppropriotely oddresses the consent
policies thot guide lot creotion on the Subject Londs.

4. The Applicotions conform to lhe intenl of lhe Township of Mulmur Zonino Bv-low. Rurol Resideniiol
uses ore permitted in the Countryside Zone ond the proposed lots meet the Countryside Zone
regulotions.

A detoiled review of the opplicoble plonning documents is provided in the following sections

4.1 Plonning Acf

The Plonning Act must be considered when reviewing development opplicotions. Seciions 2 (Provinciol
lnterest), Section 3 (Provinciol Plons) ond Section 53 (Consents) of the Plonning Act opply to the
Consent ond Zoning By-low Amendment opplicotions os follows:

. Seciion 2 of the Plonning Act requires considerotion of motters of provinciol interest which
includes the protection of ecologicolsystems, the conservotion of feotures of scientific interest
ond the oppropriote locotion of growth ond development.
,/ The Subject Londs ore locoted on Rurol Londs within the Township of Mulmur on which rurol

residentiol uses ore permitted.
,/ The proposed lots reflect other lond porcels ond uses olong the 3'o Line.
./ An EIS wos undertoken io evoluote the potentiol impoct of proposed works on noturol

heritoge feotures ond functions ossocioted with the Subject Londs, concluding thot no
impocts ore onticipoted.

. Section 3 (5) (o) of the Plonning Act requires thot plonning decisions be consistent wiih policy
stotements ond conform to provinciol plons thot ore issued under the Act.
,/ The Provinciol Policy Stotement (PPS) 2020 opplies to the opplicotions ond is oddressed in

following sections.
3cLA.5032r (r066886 ONTARIO lNC.)

166



LOFT PLAN N IN G

P.O. Box 246, STN MAIN
Collingwood, Ontario
LgY 325

705.446.1168
kristi ne@loft planni ng.com
loftplanning.com

Seclion 53 of the Plonning Act permits lond division through consent provided o plon of
subdivision is not oppropriote.
,/ A consent is oppropriote given thot one lot will be creoted.

Conclusion: The proposed Consent meets the requirements of the Plonning Act RSO

4.2 Provinciol Policy Sfofemenf (PPS)

The Provinciol Policy Stotement (PPS) provides policy direction on motters of provinciol interest reloted
to lond use plonning ond development. The PPS promotes oppropriote development while protecting
resources, public heolth ond sofety ond the quolity of the noturolond built environment. Policies thot
guide growth ond development in Rurol Areos ore provided in Sections 

,l.,l.4 ond 1.,l.5. The Subject
Property is considered Rurol Londs in the context of the PPS.

. Section 1.1.4 supports rurol oreos by building upon rurol chorocter, promoting regeneroiion,
occommodoting o ronge ond mix of housing in rurol settlement oreos, encouroging the
conservotion ond redevelopment of existing rurol housing stock on rurol londs ond using
infrostructure ond public service focilities efficiently. Growth ond development moy be directed
to Rurol Londs in occordonce with policy 1.1.5.

. Seclion 1.1.5 permits resideniiol development, including lot creotion, thot is locolly oppropriote
on Rurol Londs. Development thot is compotible with the rurol londscope ond con be sustoined
by rurol service levels is promoted ond lot creotion must comply with the MDS Formuloe.

The proposed new lot thot will be creoted ihrough the consent opplicotion is of o similor configuroiion
to other lots olong the 3,4 Line in this oreo. The severed lot will comprise the existing single detoched
house ond shed ond the retoined lot comprises o lorge, voconl wooded lot. Both the retoined ond
severed lot will be pdvoiely serviced. The retoined porcelwill be o vocont lot with on ovoiloble building
envelope.

Finolly, Section 2.0 of the PPS provides policies for the Wise Use ond Monogement of Resources which
ore relevont to the proposed opplicoiions given the locotion within on Areo of Noturol ond Scientific
lnterest (Eorth Sciences).

Section 2.1 ol the PPS does not permit development ond site olierotion in significont feotures or
on odjocent londs to noturol heritoge feotures ond oreos unless it hos been demonstroted no
negotive impocts on the noturol feotures or their ecologicol functions.

/ The Environmentol lmpoct Study undertoken in support to the opplicotions identified the
noturol heritoge feotures ossocioted with the Subject Londs. The EIS concluded no
negotive impocts to the Condidote Significont Woodlond, Condidote Significont Wildlife
Hobitot ond Eorth Science ANSI ossocioied with the property ond odjocent londs.

a

a

Conclusion: The proposed Consent is consistent with the Provinciol Policy Stotement 2020

cLA.5032r (r066886 ONTARIO lNC.) 4

167



P.O. Box 246, STN MAIN
Collingwood, Ontario
LgY 325

LO FT PLAN N IN G
4"3 Growlh Pldn for fhe Greofer Golden Horseshoe (PPS)

705.446.1168
kristi ne@loft plann i ng.com
loftplanning.com

The Subject Londs ore locoted within the Greoter Golden Horseshoe Growth Plon Areo ond ore
identified os pori of the Growth Plon's Noturol Heritoge System. The Growth Plon provides policy
direction on where ond how growth should occur in Section 2.0 ond provides policies to protect
importont hydrologic ond noturol heritoge feotures ond oreos in Section 4.0.

Section l.O of the Growth Plon does not specificolly oddress the creotion of o single loi in o rurol oreo.
The Growth Plon promoies the development of complete communities, directing the mojority of
growth ond development to settlement oreos where it con be efficiently serviced. Section 4.2 of Ihe
Growth Plon provides policies for the Noturol Heritoge System which requires thot new development
or site olterotion must demonslrote no negoiive impocts on key noturol heritoge feotures. As

described, the EIS confirmed thot no negotive impocts ore expected on ony ossocioted noturol
heritoge feotures.

Conclusion: The proposed Consent conforms to the Growth Plon for the Greoter Golden Horseshoe.

4.4 County of Dufferin Official Plan

The Subject Londs ore designoted os "Countryside Areos" (Section 4) ond identified os "Rurol Londs"
(Section 4.3). Woodlonds hove been identified on Schedule E ond El of the County's Officiol Plon os
porl of the County's Preliminory Noturol Heritoge System (Section 5.3.4). The properiy olso is subject to
the policies within 5.3.3 which oddress Areos of Noturol ond Scientific lnterest ond policies lhot oddress
properties with oreos of steep slopes (Section 6.2.1). A summory of the relevont policies ore os follows:

. Counlryside Areqs encomposs the londs outside of settlement oreos ond include prime
ogriculturoloreos, rurol londs, noturol heritoge feoiures ond noturolresource oreos. Like the PPS,

growth generolly is directed io settlement oreos ond County policies emphosize mointoining
ond building upon the rurol chorocter, leveroging of rurol omenities, ond protecting ond
enhoncing the noturol environment (Section 4.1). Growth ond development moy be
occommodoted on Rurol Londs in occordonce with the policies in Section 4.3.

Rurol londs ore comprised of londs outside of settlement oreos thot ore not prime ogriculturol
londs. Residentiol development of up to three lots is permitted ond must be compotible with
the rurol londscope ond sustoined on rurol service levels which generolly is privote services
(Section 4.3). All development must comply with the MDS Formuloe.

Development ond site olteroiion ore not permitted within or odjocent to Significont Woodlonds
(Section 5.3.4) unless it hos been demonsiroted thqt there will be no negotive impocts on the
noturolfeotures or their ecologicol functions through the preporotion of on ElS.

Development ond site olierotion olso ore noi permitted within orodjoceni to on Areos of Nolurol
qnd Scientific lnleresl (ANS!) unless it hos been demonstroted thot there will be no negotive
impocts on the noturol feotures or their ecologicolfunctions through the preporotion of on ElS.

a

a

5cLA.5032r {1066886 ONTARIO lNC.)

168



LOFT PLAN N IN G

P.O. Box 246, STN MAIN
Collingwood, Ontario
LgY 325

705.446.il68
kristi ne@loft planning.com
loftplanning.com

Generolly, development is directed owoy from oreos of noturol hozords including steep slopes
(Section 6.2.1).

. Consents must be in occordonce with policies the locol ond County Officiol Plons os well os
provinciol policy (Section 8.6.4)

An EIS wos undertoken which ossessed the potentiol direci ond indirect impocts of proposed works on
the noturol heritoge feotures ond functions identified on the Subject Londs ond on odjocent londs.
The EIS concluded ihot no impocts ore onticipoted on ony ossocioted noturol heritoge feotures or
functions, nor on londform feotures reloted to the Eorth Sciences ANSI ond confirmed thot the
environmentol conditions ore not limiting to the proposed development. The severed ond retoined
lots ore similor[ sized to other lots olong this stretch of the 3'o Line ond ore reflective of the rurol
londscope in this oreo ond both con be supported bosed on the ovoiloble rurol services. Lostly, no
MDS concerns hove been identified.

Conclusion: The proposed Consent conforms to the County of Dufferin Officiol Plon.

4.5 lownship of Mulmur Official PIon

The Subject Londs ore designoted os Rurol in the Township of Mulmur Officiol Plon (Figure 3 - Officiol
Plon) ond hove severol identified feoiures including o significont wooded oreo of l0 ho, o wetlond
bordering the property to the southwest ond on Eorth Sciences ANSI ocross the property. Severol
relevont policies opply to the opplicotions in oddition to consent policies which guide the creotion of
new lots.

. Seclion 5.8 provides lond use policies for the Rurol Areos of the Township which permits uses ond
octivities reloted to the monogement or use of resources, resource-bosed recreotionol octivities,
limited residentiol development ond other rurol lond uses. A ronge of uses ore permilted
including single detoched residences (Section 6.2.3) Development must be oppropriote to the
ovoiloble infrostructure, sustoined on rurol service levels ond compotible with the rurol
londscope, ond new uses musi meet the MDS Formuloe.

,/ The new, odditionol lot con be supported bosed on the rurolinfrostructure ond is compotible
with odjoceni development. The proposed lol configurotion is in keeping with other lots

olong the 3d Line. No MDS concerns hove been identified. (Figure 5 - MDS Colculotions)

r Seclion 5.18 protects wetlonds ond significont noturol feotures ond oreos from development
ond site olterotion which could ihreoten the heolth or integrity of these feotures. Development
is not permitted within orodjocenl to these feotures unless the ecologicolfunction of the feoiure
or the odjocent londs hos been evoluoted ond there will be no negotive impocts.

o A Cqlegory 2 Nolurol Feoture wos identified ocross the Subjecl Londs which recognizes the Eorth

Sciences ANSlocross the property. Cotegory Two noturol feotures moy be copoble of sustoining
some development ond site olterotion.

. A wooded oreo over lO ho is identified on the northwest corner of the Subject Londs.

Developmeni or site olterotion is not permitied within or odjocent (,l20 m) to the feoture unless

a

6cLA.5032r (r066886 ONTARTO lNC.)

169



P.O. Box 246, STN MAIN
Collingwood, Ontario
LgY 325

LOFT PLAN N IN G

705.446.r'168
kristi ne@loftplanni ng.com
loftplanning.com

it hos been demonstroted through on EIS thot there will be no negotive impocts on the feoture
or its ecologicolfunction (Seclions 5.20.1).
./ The EIS evoluoted the potentiol impoct on both the noturol heritoge ond londform feotures

ossocioted with the Subjeci Londs ond identified no potentiol negotive impocts due to the
proposed works.

. Section 5.23 requires thot prior to the submission of on opplicotion for development within on
ANSI, consultotion with the ministry of Noturol Resources must be undertoken.
,/ The Ministry of Noturol Resources odvised thot they do not commenf on site specific

development opplicotions.

. Section 5.35 provides generol Development Criterio thot opply to development in the Township
including the following opplicoble criterio:

o The site con support the use without o significont negotive impoct on noturol resources
ond feotures ond the culturol ond orchoeologicol heritoge resources on the site, or the
scenic resources ond chorocter of the rurol oreo;

o The cumulotive impoct of development does not result in unocceptoble impocts on the
obove resources ond feotures;

o The development is not out of chorocter, but rother is in keeping with or contributes
positively to the existing built environment;

o The site is not considered hozordous to life or property due to the presence of noturol
hozords such os unstoble soil conditions or possible flooding, or humon-mode hozords
such os pollution;

o Development meeis oll other opplicoble federol, provinciol ond municipol requirements,
including heolth ond sofety, ond servicing requirements ond emission stondords; ond,

o Development does not result in the potentiol for predictoble ond significont lond use
conflicts, including conflicts with ogriculturol, extroctive industriol ond indusiriol
operotions.

The Development Criterio under Section 5.35 generolly ore more opplicoble lo o lorger development
opplicotion. Nevertheless, the criterio hove been considered through this report ond through the EIS

thoi olso hos been submitted with this opplicotion. The review of the proposed Consent concludes thot
the opplicotion is oppropriote, ond the londs con support the development with minimol impocts on
noturolfeotures nor odjocent uses. The proposed lots ore similor to other lots in ihe oreo ond ore lorge
with buildings set bock from the 3,o Line. The proposed rurol residentiol lots will contribute positively to
the rurol otmosphere in this oreo ond ore considered compotible with surrounding uses.

o lol Creotion policies thot opply to ihe Subject Londs includes generol policies in Section 5.36 os
well os Section 5.25 thot ore specific to lot creotion on rurol londs. The proposed consent sotisfies
the opplicoble lot creotion policies os follows:

i. No more thon 3 lots/or uniis ore permitted outside of settlemenl oreos unless prior
opprovol ond o moximum of three lots per originol township lot.
./ Only 1 new lot will be creoted on o 50 ocre porcel of lond.

7c1A.50321 (r066886 ONTARIO lNC.)

170



LOFT PLAN N ING

P.O. Box 246, STN MAIN
Collingwood, Ontario
LgY 325

7o5.446.1164
kristi ne@loft plann ing.com
loftplanning.com

Size ond configurotion of new lots will be subject to opplicoble requirements of relevont
plonning documents. Voriotions in size ond configurotion ore encouroged, ond
considerotion of physicol ond environmentol must be undertoken to ensure building
envelopes thot creote development which is compotible with noturol ond rurol
sunoundings.

Ribbon or strip development generolly musi be ovoided through considerotion to the
existing lot pottern ond cumulotive lot pottern to ensure the development pottern
remoins rondom.
,/ The proposed lots meet the zone stondords thot opply to the Subject Londs ond

reflect the size ond configurotion of other rurol residentiol lots olong the 3'o Line.
/ The EIS reviewed the building envelope ond concluded no concerns in regord to

compotibility with the noturol feotures.
,/ The proposed lots do not contribute to ribbon or strip development olong the west

side of the 3,o Line. The proposed lots ore lorge with lorge frontoges relotive to lots

olong the eost side of the 3,o Line, ond therefore will present some voriety regording
lot structure in this oreo.

iv. Frontoge onto o public rood mointoined yeor-round.
,/ The lots hove frontoge onto the 3ro Line.

v. Lots which provide noturolscreening of building envelopes is preferred ond screening of
developmeni from the rood is encouroged.
./ Both the Retoined ond the Severed Lots ore well treed ond the buildings on the

Severed Loi ore set bock from the rood ond well screened by vegetotion.

vi. New lots sholl not be permitted where the development is on londs conioining physicol
constroints to developmeni without the written opprovol of the Nottowosogo Volley
Conservotion Authority ond the Dufferin County Building Deportment.
'/ No physicolconstroints hove been identified.

vii. New lots sholl not be permitted where ihe lot to be severed or retoined contoins o
residence which wos permilted or opproved os o temporory use (such os o gorden suite),
second unit, or second residentiol unit dwelling, or form help house, or ony other
detoched dwelling.
./ N/A

viii. The creotion of new lots within or odjocent to the resources ond feotures identified on
Schedule 84 (Noiurol Resources ore only permitted in occordonce with the policies of
this Plon - the SW portion of the property is clossified os on "Attroctive" NEC View Roting.
/ The Consent conforms to the policies of the Township of Mulmur Officiol Plon.

ix. Lot lines through noturol hozord oreos or sites thot pose o significont sofety threot, ond
through significont noturol heritoge feotures or oreos sholl be ovoided.
,/ The EIS confirmed no concerns wiih the proposed Consent.

Conclusion: Conformity to the Township of Mulmur Officiol Plon hos been estoblished.

ilt

8cLA.5032r {1066886 ONTARIO lNC.)

171



P.O. Box 246, STN MAIN
Collingwood, Ontario
LgY 325

LOFT PLAN N IN G
4"& T'owarshfp af lhlrv.lrnlu.r ZaninE By-few

705.446.1168
kristi ne@loft planni ng.com
loftplanning.com

The londs ore zoned Countryside (A) (Figure 4 - Zoning Bylow) which permits o ronge of uses including
single detoched dwellings, os well os o ronge of rurol, ogriculturol ond ogriculturolly reloled uses. The

following is o zoning conformity chort for the Countryside Zone:

Counlryside (A) Zone Severed Reloined
Min. lol Areo 8+ ho 2-7.99 ho 15.5 ho 4.9 ho
Min. lol fronloqe 100 m

.l00 
m 167 m 126 m

Min. Fronl Yqrd 30m 20m 198 m Vocont
Min. Side Yqrd
(lnlerior)

2Om l0 m 62m+ Vocont

Min. Side Yord
(Exlerior)

30m 20m Not Applicoble Not
Aoolicoble

Min. Reqr Yord 20m l0m 23m Voconi
Moximum Heighl r0,5 m ]0.5 m 2 stories Vocont
Moximum lol
Coveroqe

5% 10% 0.4% Vocont

The proposed lois both meet the requirements of the current Countryside (A) zone provisions

This Plonning Lelter hos been prepored in support of on opplicotion for Consent of 796186 3rd Line in
the Township of Mulmur. The opplicotion is in keeping with the Plonning Act RSO 1990, is consistent with
the teme ond conforms to the n the Greot
Horseshoe, the Couniy of Dufferin Officiol Plon, the Township of Mulmur Officiol Plon ond the Townshio
of Mulmur Zoning Bv-low. Furthermore, it is our opinion thot the opplicotion represents good lond use
plonning.

Yours truly,

Kristine A. Loft BES BAA MCIP RPP

Principol

Attoched:
Figure I - Locotion
Figure 2 - Consent Sketch
Figure3-Officiol Plon
Figure 4-Zoning By-low
Figure 5 - MDS Colculotions

crA.50321 (r066886 ONTARTO lNC.) 9

172



$
I

Con 4 EHS Lot 4

n2 HS Lot 5

3 EHS Lo1 4

Con 4 EHS Lot 3

Con 2 EHS Lot 4

Cor: 3 EH S Lot 3

Con 4 EHS Lot 2

Con 2 EHS Lot l
i

Con 3 s Lot 2

Con 2 EHS Lot 2

Cor3E Lor 1

I
: Con 2 EHS Lotl-'

Pt
IV

Figure 1

LOCATION

Planner-Agent:

LOFT PLANNING

Municipal #:

Project #:
cLA.50321

Date:
May'132021

Scale:
Not to scale

173



10

stat

8

89

?

c k
a

KEYMAP

SUBJECT
PROPERry

t-
I

)
'I

I

I

l
.q
a
ttl

j
oz

zo
dx
dt
lu
(Jlzoq
zIll
tu3Fl
lu
0
lrluz{30j
AIdo

I
I

I

I

I

Gt-) "b9::
SOUTH PART OF LOT 4 -{

I o
o
N

\211 fr s
N

Gt-) D<tgflN6
1200 s@,Ff.

oao+,(-
o
't)lI)

I

+

coNcEggtoN 3
EAgT PART LOT 3
RPI'1 1R9Ob PART 2

TOtUNgt{P OF l",lULl'1UR
COUNTY OF DUFFERIN

utsr

E)<ISTING
&o &Ff

9HED

196t96 T].{RD L|NE
I.,IULFIUR, ONTARIO

J(l! ll)
F

ej-lr_
GbLgeQ 

rr
+,
(F

6
dl
rt

I

+

l"lr-
l((t

ea
FoJ
frrJ

Fa
r4
F

I
+tg
\s
$l
a
(rf

I
+

LANDS TO BE
RETAINED

AREA: (+/-) 39 acres
PROPOSED DRIVEu}AY FOR
RETAINED 0 feet(21' fram PROPERTY LINE)

1 SCALE L :250

NOTE9'

Gt)-E ft -
I. TIII9 19 NOT A PLAN OF gI,JRVFT AND SITOULD NOT BE USED A9 gUCI-{

2. SUBJECI LANDg ARE ZONED COUNTRYgIDE (A)
3. DIgTANCES ON Tl'1I9 PLAN ARE gIiOtUN IN FEET AND CAN tsE

CONVERTED TO FIETRE9 BY DIVIDIN6 AY 3.2A1
4. DII.IENgIONg ON THIS gKETCH ARE APPROXII.IATE AND I]AVE

NOt BEEN VERIFIED EY oURVEY
5. gEE ATTACHED FOR ENVIRONT.JENTAL II-IPACTg ON PROPOgED PROPERTIEg

SOUTH PART LOT 3

DESCRIPTION: Part 1 of LoT 3, Concession 3, E.H.S.

April 16,2021Severance nds Severed

NICIPAL ZONING SUMMARY

795185 Third Line, Mulmur, Ontario

ECT: J

ZONING SUMMARY FOR: TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR
ll IIEFn lhrftl

JI YES I

JI Ytss I

vl YES I

JI YES ItOm I 32-4ft
tlJ I YEs 

'
N/A I N'A

JI YES I

JI YES IlOh T 32-Aft
tlJ I YLs I.aff I .dt

q
tqn I t6ft

m2 I
NU

NU

NU
SlrlnS

3 per Unh
3x6m I 

';0t2grtm l!9{ sqft

5 pe. Unh
3r6n / 1fi20ft

tr,A r{ra ]/t YES I NU

I I LTffff,r.ItTrF,- 
-liEII;til?1I 

Ifr'fiilIr;Flt?ll
tI fiTrJfr.Tl]l-r.T57rr- rr,n:il-tf:rrI ErFrfiITFiirlI
-I lfiflr3ir.]n-I7lllfiflTlllil1l 

-rfiI-Rr{il 
Ir'rfiI/IT{',.lI

fiIl,fLrEriFIIn IFFFIIII 
-ffiI-tfrif 

ItFfiI-r,E{i-

IFI i'firmFirrtTrfil''lrrrtril

llllt]mrlTl|rnrfF!:lr.ITrfilfir
ilfCnf.llffd'FlilGl-

ftf.Tr,qhl.tdTflmtrlf

fE Enr rw-rrrmr 
-tIJI--r.f,.-

II lrNMTfiITTFrJiTTff- IEFtiir-ui-

TiiTlrrmF-{ffirr f:rf]il-tF{il

III nrrrrEnFir!-Inmr

LANDS TO BE
SEVERED

AREA: (+/-) 12 acres
MUNICIPAT ZONING SUMMARY

April 15,2021PROJECT: John ClarkSeverance nds

DESCRIPTION: Part 1of LOT 3, Concession 3, E.H.S.

r 796185 Third Line, Mulmur, Ontario

zoNlNG SUMMARY FoR: TOWNSHIP OF MUTMUR

PARI(ilG SPACES

Sltlnt
3 per

3r5m I 
':ot2gft

N/A I

II MILrrr.InI:tr- Iai?Irl;?Ffir rFrrFrTr'-

-l r,tnTrilFFF TTr; n r"lr 
-rfiI-rfil 

iI rlll--llA
II ffiI' F II?I I r,rrrTi J- 

-f',il--TTTif -V 
I- 

-!l 

A
Il llllTr:li*TrfifzHrrllilyrdl 

-rfiI-r,TiTil 
ll7/!r-17n

rfiI mlrrflr nTfinirt 
-r;'ti?--'l$itl-.ltj!r-vnITiITfTf fl i-{ffi f:r-rfi II:Fl-TirrVf f 

-Itn

IiI ttlrFnr.T*lr.rnrrp- IiiFltErlSriil 
-tll--!rAIt:l EllrilDtIfTE lfEifJltreff'-f r!itr,Ft?i-, 

- 
rrffrS-Tn

IiI lltlrrr.llTjnETEcr- JFI-f-ttfttIn]Gtt it 
-llrrtITnIif|I firttrFrilrilarFqr- rrFtitl-lFrir IlIfr-In

1!rr*rllgq
tEll4tll{t.l
lllll*rlIlpI
tllr'r*rllilI
lErr*r111q
lgr'r*rlllll
tgl'r*rltttEl'rarlltt r
lg-'rarll1191
lErrarlrrtlr

IiFl lrnilrnr'lEi:rfiErflrdr!?ilil xr-

ITI hqrlfrreslTl-tnrFr xtNI;-N

T

gEVERANCE gKEIc,HCLARK REgIDENCE
EIA6 THIRD LINE EAgT,I'1ULI"IUR, ON,

9EVERANCE
PROPO5AL

NOTE9,
Li{!AtrIEIOR ruffi & DWffi auffilffifoM

ffiffiE ffiE IEIrcSl![Jfr FOR srurc@.Pta arre
Y

DffiEIOffiD*HSffi
ffi:FlxcuruuDubiK

CI{RITAN LIT'IITED
ffi t w

RR'I @Nf 4TARIO,
CAWA,N@ rc

DESCRIPTIONNO.

Rh/19roNg/t6grjE9 2lo4
9lffiTffiI

ffiaffiint
174



s
I

96?10

7s6?&5

j

Con 3 EHS Lot 4

1g!

7S6'183

i7$6'r17

Igs{ 73

196'155
i
i
I

l:
i TgEt 55

t
t

r49

Con I LHS L*t 3 s6 1 42

796t 25

1{B

Figure 3
OFFICIAL PLAN - TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR

Planner-Agenl:

LOFT PLANNING

Municipal #:

Project #:
cLA. 50321

Date:
May 13 2021

Scale:
Not to scale

175



s
I

796205

Con 3 5HS Lot 4

9{

796t83

17

173

7S8{ 55

7961 55

t4s

Con 3 LHS Lot 3 s6142

i
I

I

i 7S6 1 25

!

i8

Figure 4
ZONING BYLAW - TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR

Planner-Agent:

LOFT PLANNING

Municipal #:

Project #:
cLA. 50321

Date:
May 132021

Scale:
Not to scale

176



177



3. Purpose of this APplication

Proposed transaction (check appropriate box)

tl Transfer / Creation of a new lot
tr Acharge tr Alease

tr Addition to a lot
tr A correction of title

tr An easement
tr Other

Specify Purpose, ie. Building lot, farm severance, etc.

LOT C REATION/SEVERANCE
Name of person(s) to

TBD

or interest in land is to be or charged

4. Description of Subject Land and Servicing lnformation

Frontage (m) Severed
167m

Retained

125m
Depth (m)

289 m 678 m

Area (m)
4.8 ha 15.7 ha

5. Land Use

Date Property Acquired
January 2015

Existing Use

RURAL

Proposed Use

RURAL
Existing and Proposed buildings and Structures

Type of
Building or
Structure

Set Backs (m) Height
(m)

Dimensions
(mxm)

Area
(m2)

Date of
Construction /

Proposed
Construction

Time use has
continued (for

existing
buildings &
slructures)Front Rear Side Side

DWELLING
d Existing
E Proposed

ACCESSORY
BUILDING

d Existing
D Proposed

PROPOSED
BUILDING
ENVELOPE

trd Existing
Proposed

n Existing
tr Proposed

tr Existing
tr Proposed

tr Existing
tr Proposed

Water
v
E
tr
tr

Private Well
Communal Well
Municipal Water
Other: _

Sewage
{

Disposal
Private Septic
Communal Septic

Storm Drainage
tr Sewer
il Ditcnes
tr Swales
tr Other:

Tile Drai
d

nage
No
Yes, please mark on site Plan
location of tile runs

2

178



6. Zoning and Official Plan lnformatlon

Current Zoning

Countryside (A)

Current Official Plan

RURAL

Related Applications under the Planning Act, if any including Official Plan'
Official Plan Amendment, Zoning BylawAmendment, Ministefs Zoning Order
(amendment), Consent or Plan of Subdivision:

Two previous consents. File numbers unknown.

Has subject lands even been
Planning Act?

of an application under the

File #:

2 previous consents

Status:

Provide an explanation of how the application conforms to the Official Plan

See Planning Report.

Are any of the uses or features on the subject land or 500 metres of the subject land, unless otherwise Please check the

if
Use or Feature On the Subject Land Within 500 metres of Subject

Land, unless otherwise sPecific
(indicate aooroximate distance)

Agricultural buildings/structure or manure storage facilities
NO YES

A Landflll
NO NO

A provincially significant wetland (Class 1,2 or 3 wetland)
NO NO

A locally significant wetland
NO NO

Flood Plain
NO NO

A rehabilitated mine site
NO NO

A non-operating mine site within 1 kilometre of the subject land
NO NO

An active mine site
NO NO

An industrial or commercial use (specifo uses)
NO NO

Does the proposed development produce greater than 4500 litres of effluent per O Yes d No

day?

lfves, attach a servicing options report and

Are the lands part of a Nutrient Management Plan? tr Yes dNo

Please provide plan num and date approved by OMAFRA

Are there any livestock facilities within 500 metres of the subject lands? tr Yes d No

lf yes, provide a Farm Data Sheet completed by each livestock facility owner for each of the livestock facilities. http://mulmur.ca/deoartments/plannino

Ĵ

179



7. Consistency with Policy Documents

Does this application:

Alter the boundary of a settlement area?
tr Yes {No

Create a new settlement area? tr Yes druo

Remove lands from an employment area?

lf yes, provide details of any Ofiicial Plan or Official Plan Amendment on a separate submission

tr Yes druo

Are the subject lands in an area where conditional zoning may apply? n Yes

lf yes, provide details of how this application conforms to Official Plan conditional zoning policies on a separate submission

g/ ruo

ls the proposed application consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement and any other Policy Statements
issued under subsection 3(1) of the Planning Act'

tr Yes d tto

Kristine Loft, Loft Planning lnc. \(fi sfril9 ln(r+
Name of individual having knowledge of the policy statements. A report may

be required to accompany this application and support the above statement of
consistency.

Signature

Are the subject lands within the Niagara Escarpment Greenbelt Plan area? tr Yes gNo

Are the subject lands within the Greater Golden Horseshoe Growth Plan area? d Yes trNo

Does the proposed application conform to or does not conflict with the Provincial Plans, including the V Yes trNo
Greenbelt Plan and Growth Plan:

Kristine Loft, Loft Planning lnc.
Name of individual having knovvledge of the policy statements. A report may

be required to accompany this application and support the above statement of
consistency.

sig

8. History of the Subject Land

Has the subject land ever been the subject of an application for approval of a
plan of subdivision or consent under the Planning Act?

lf yes, and if known, provide the file number and the decision made on the application:

tr Yes d tto tr Unknown

lf this application is a re-submission of a previous consent application, describe how it has been changed from the original application

Has any land been severed from the parcel originally acquired by the owner of the subject land?

lf yes, provide for each parcel severed, the date of transfer, the name of transferee and the land use:

tr Yes dNo

4

180



Has any land been severed from the original, 40 hectare (approx..) parcel

lf yes, provide details:

tr Yes dNo

9. Other lnformation

Please provide any other information that may be useful to the Council or other agencies in reviewing this application, ie. health department, conservation
authoritv. etc.

{0. Sketch (please use metric units)

The application shall be accompanied by a sketch showing the following

The boundaries and dimensions of the subject land, the part that is to be severed and the part that is to be retained
The boundaries and dimensions of any land owned by the owner of the subject land and that abuts the subject land

The distance between the subject land and the nearest Township lot line or landmark, such as a railway crossing or bridge
The location of all land previously severed from the original approximate 40 hectare parcel

The approximate location of all natural and artificial features on the subject land and adjacent lands that in the opinion of the applicant may
affect the application, such as buildings, railways, roads, watercourses, drainage ditches, river or stream banks, wetlands, wooded areas,

wells and septic tanks
The existing uses on adjacent lands
The location, width and name of any roads within or abutting the subject land, indicating whether it is an unopened road allowance, a public

havelled road, a private road or right of way
The location and nature of any easement affecting the subject land

tr
tr
d

dd

vv
d

5

181



FARM DATA SHEET
Minimum Distance Separation I (MDS[

NOTE t a TxE FACiltrY owNER

Yow to.rperattun nt lit!1nq out thi!
Sle{( Ml rrclp ,o c0s u/c ttril kcwlhtl uses witt bc locrted n s{/fibtr
tilshlucc hotr yafi opIndon

Permanent Menure or Material Storage Types

Solid Manure: 18% dry maller, o. more
Liquid Manure: Less than 1g% dry mafler
Oigastate: Less than 1g% dry matter

I

I

Filc.No.

Applicant

0

V?
V3

l1
v5
1/s

L2
M1
u2
H1

NO sr '1.t 
. ,, .r:, ,-r ,n r,,.,rgrare-at stofed fo.,65 tha^ ,4 oays,Solo , rrrr: brnt(d a)tl

Sol'd olrs,da cursr.r

::19 :{:* no sqr searer rhan o. &Lar 30% dry maner!orl0. oulsicle no te. 18.; to tess thin 30". d"y m;her 
"Jth 

*u"rg ,qu,6 *_q a1oog"
l,ffiff t ntr:,;'"'i:,[jx:i- ""t 

c'v "ii"'' ;; ;;;;"1;;';non s,orase

Liourd. outstde sri a Darharcit, f,ght fihrhg @El
Uqud (d'gest8tej ouErde ncover
Lrguid odsfe ..,-rr. i i a'rn.il!r.il rturt,^O ri.vr.
L qu'd cjsde. ' ..ov.:' \t.r,lXI-valh-,iJ s\re,,
Lquio. Alrtr rr{ trrr \Frl.rDr:r\ sxr,<
liqlid. oltlidc, .o s)K,., ski0e{,-srda{ storr{a

oe provrded in square metr€s

Animal Type
or Material Housing

Capacity'
tvta"uii stoiisi

TypE'
Feed.rs {/ - 16 monlhr)
8a!jkirsrn,drtf.. i r' _ 1?,S ildrdh,tl

9_l'91.!ke9p.:c ! i,,!-'t7.5honlht)

Description

Oes E bucj(s itur mcat tr,i rrcluds Unwaned ul!!r j,r\J 4 'rpt,r .,,./.f ,rsj
Oes E buctr {lo, .Ji,,y rndudes unwlned,)ils jrJtr1u 3,rttr(4nfr,{sJ
Krds d t*der trds)

oiiaiCatire I rrn @H i'!y or i,1r&l,r!l
I drq,.Jr.r'r,rJ, S45 ,4 - 636 l(9 (for exmpl€ _ | t(nirrilr* t
U, r,'..r rr.,r,,.,: 455 k,, _ S4S,u,1 examDle _ (i er,,..fyr,
li",.r|,t'nrJ\nt 364 tri _4SS rn rrgrexample _ ilrreyr)

Heilers 1l rcmhs to tcshenrng)
'.r,,!',.r.,,r j82La_545r,:!,.,..i...ri.. r,:,,r::,,.1
Medrum-l.amed iaB kg - t55 ,,r (io, *.,r.q, , (ir .,.,r 1y. .
SmalLt ahed; t25 rq - 364 rq (tor q.{r,r0r. .,.rr:!,y:ii

Calws(ii-Smonlhs)
Large.tramed, 45 r,r - 1g2 kg ti rr €xafipta - j"lolslsos)
Me<tUhJ.ared. 39I I- i.g !,r.,,,..,.r,i.,/..,.,.r^:nys/
Smal.I€fied 30k9- 1?5\.1,.,- rr.:,;rl L,r,.r!\J

SoE wth frne.. , r .*. ,,. ,,.T,.,,,..,
s* *rn,itr". o.y.o;;;;;;;:* 

;'dv vveanins r${ !'/i

Ereder rrtl' I' i{,,I bam designrd .iir.rr,n,;r(y ,oi this fr{jo:1r)
V\teanarsl/ kg-2?til

one or more barns or permanent strucrures with rivesrock occupred portions, intended forA livestock facility also inciudes ari -""rr;;;;;t;;ri ,.","r]g"'."""0 anaercbic dige6ters.

Ao-|F -- LvREErtTyl Tt+€p F
n+ls P E>P€DT Y*

Turkeys

i!{4 3.!gl all6rtEnsfc. koh I,r,-.t f,,.j.,
I .1y!:r 

'{fi.{s 
{.hy olds unl,l tEnslerred rnto layer t),ynl

g.o ler D'ee4er groErs ta'.r.,(/ feqa'e! t€nsler.ea cr, to rr.., ,.. o,,,
Brorlef lfeeder lAyorS {,aalg9 tefiales lEnsfer€d in tCfr ,I!r-r b3m)
groders Or an I wek (yct|
Brorie.S cn a 9 Wk (;yiJ, j

Sroders ci a 10 v€e; cycje
gfolers on a i2 @6( ct.l':
Sroters cn.r,rl gjrer

(dly old !n!, tiansieoeC
luti.'

lO layqf trJrir/v Irrr.r,
t breeCe. lry.rs {trtlasr lemates transler€d rn ,rOfi

Ereeder toms

Bror'crs {rJiy olds tg 6 2 Lgl

Hsr loj,V aids uF tO 6.2 to to 10 I cq 7 5 kg rs tyl,,:.rl
toms r'rnr otds 10 over 10 g !! to 20 kq t4 5 rq ,s lyi,,;r)

at olier

,,t,I.,t.r bah)

Swine

Horses

Sheep

Olher

,.)r\,r i raoodes
lo a roi rOI

9enrrali.g
f'''laxnun 29391y ql pefian€nl Slorages Al ary time sold Or ltQurd €p€gty

Anaerobrc
[_irr1g111a]1

xeeping or housing

Mrk"led

CtilnJed

Max,msm 6pejt) al teftaoent stofages al aiy t,he $lid or iiqu,d €pEcity

of livss1g.1

13 ^,)oT 4 .4ldFSTOcR laltr L, f P /^) Of 5P,+T/aAI ayl

Goals

Livestock Facitity (Barn)

h!/,,
182



Ontario
Minimum Distance Separation I

POST
Prepared By: Townshlp Mulmur

Description:

Appllcatlon Date:

Municipal Flle Number

Proposed Appllcation:

Applicant Contact Information
John Clark

Existing Vacant Barn

Tuesday, March 16, 2021

P2-2021

Lot creation for a maximum of three non-agricultural use lots
Type A Land Use

Location of Subject Lands
County of Dutferin, Township of Mulmur
MULMUR, Concession: 3 EAST OF HURONTARIO STREET, Lot: 3

RollNumber: 2216000002041000000

Galculation Name:
Descrlptlon:

POST

Farm Contact Information Location ol existing livestock faclllty or anaerobic digester
Not Specified County of Dufferin, Township of Mulmur

MULMUR, Concession: , Lot:

Roll Number: 2216 i
Total Lot Size: 6.87 ha

The barn area is an estimate only and is intended to provide users with an indication of whether the number of livestock entered is
reasonable.

Type of Livestock/Manure

The calculated setback is based on assumptions for an unoccupied barn or unused storage that may
not reflect the actual design capacity.

Estimated
Llvestock Barn
Area

Solid Unoccupied Livestock Barn, - 450 m2 22.5 450 m2

Existing Manure Storage: V1 . Solid, inside, bedded pack

Design Capaclty (NU): 22.5

Potential Design Capacity (NU): 45.0

Factor A Factor B Factor D Factor E Building Base Distance F'
(Odour potential) (Size) (Manure Type) (Encroaching Land Use) (minimum distance lrom livestock barn) (actual distance from livestock barn)

1.0 X 25O X O.7 X 1.1 = 193 m (632 ft) TBD

Storage Base Distance'S'
(minimum distanco from manure storage) (actual distance lrom manure storage)

193 m (632 ft) TBD

I
-t--

Existing
Maximum
Number

Existlng
Maximum
Number (NU)

Manure
Type

Preparer lnlormation
Township Mulmur

Signature of Preparer:
TownshiP Mulmur

NOTE TO THE USER:
fhi Ontario Minisiry ol Agriculture, Food and Rural Atfairs (OMAFRA) has developed this software program lor distribution and use.with the Minimum Distance
SeDaration (MDS) Formu-lae as a dublic service to assist faimers, consultants, and the general public. This version of the sottware distributed by OMAFRA will be
Considered io be ihe official versicin for purposes of calculating MDS. OMAFRA is not responsible lor errors due lo inaccurate or incorrect data or information; mistakes
ilc;6uittioh;;tors irGing out ol moOiiicaiion of the sottware: or errors arising out of incbrrect inputting of data. All data and calculalions should be verified before
acting on them.

Date Prepared: Mar 16,2021 10:51 AM
35291 1AgriSuite 3.4.0.18 Page 1 of 1

183



184



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 

Scoped Environmental Impact Study 

796186 Third Line 

Township of Mulmur, Dufferin County 

Prepared for: 
John Clark 

Prepared by: 
Azimuth Environmental 

Consulting, Inc. 

May 2021 

AEC 21-171 

185



642 Welham Road, Barrie, Ontario  L4N 9A1 
telephone: (705) 721-8451 • fax: (705) 721-8926 • info@azimuthenvironmental.com • www.azimuthenvironmental.com 

 May 18, 2021 AEC 21-171 

John Clark 
426155 25th Sideroad 
Mono ON 
L9V 1E3 

Re: Scoped Environmental Impact Study for a Proposed Severance on 796186 
Third Line, Township of Mulmur, Dufferin County 

Dear Mr. Clark: 

Azimuth Environmental Consulting, Inc. was retained to provide an Environmental 
Impact Study report for a proposed severance and residential development at the location 
described above.  The purpose of this report is to provide the Township of Mulmur and 
other review agencies with an understanding of natural environmental conditions and 
potential for impacts related to the proposed development on significant natural heritage 
features and functions of the property and adjacent lands.  This report also documents the 
natural environmental features present within the property and adjacent lands with regard 
to Species at Risk and their habitats. 

Should you have any questions or require additional information please do not hesitate to 
contact the undersigned. 

Yours truly, 
AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 

Lisa Moran, B.Sc.Env. 
Terrestrial Ecologist  

186



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. II 

Table of Contents 

page 

Letter of transmittal i 

1.0 INTRODUCTION ................................................................................ 1 

2.0 PLANNING CONTEXT ...................................................................... 1 

2.1 Provincial Planning Policy (2020)........................................................................ 1 
2.2 Growth Plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe, 2020 ..................................... 2 
2.3 Endangered Species Act, 2007............................................................................... 3 
2.4 Dufferin County Official Plan (2017) .................................................................. 3 
2.5 Township of Mulmur Official Plan (2012).......................................................... 4 
2.6 Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority ..................................................... 4 

3.0 STUDY APPROACH ........................................................................... 4 

4.0 EXISTING CONDITIONS .................................................................. 5 

4.1 Land Use ................................................................................................................ 5 
4.2 Vegetation .............................................................................................................. 6 
4.3 Wildlife ................................................................................................................... 7 
4.4 Species at Risk ....................................................................................................... 7 
4.5 Wetlands ................................................................................................................ 7 
4.6 Significant Woodland ........................................................................................... 7 
4.7 Significant Valleyland ........................................................................................... 8 
4.8 Significant Wildlife Habitat ................................................................................. 8 
4.9 Areas of Natural and Scientific Interest ............................................................. 9 
4.10 Fish and Fish Habitat ........................................................................................... 9 
4.11 Natural Heritage Features Summary.................................................................. 9 

5.0 PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT .......................................................... 9 

6.0 IMPACT ASSESSMENT ................................................................... 10 

6.1 Habitat for Threatened and Endangered Species ............................................ 10 
6.1.1 Barn Swallow, Bobolink and Eastern Meadowlark (adjacent lands) ........... 10 
6.1.2 Butternut ....................................................................................................... 10 
6.1.3 Little Brown Myotis, Northern Myotis, Tri-colored Bat .............................. 11 

6.2 Candidate Significant Woodland ...................................................................... 11 
6.3 Candidate Significant Wildlife Habitat ............................................................ 12 

6.3.1 Raptor Wintering Area ................................................................................. 13 
6.3.2 Bat Maternity Colonies ................................................................................. 13 

187



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. III 

6.3.3 Woodland Raptor Nesting Habitat and Woodland Area-Sensitive Bird 
Breeding Habitat........................................................................................................ 13 
6.3.4 Reptile Hibernaculum ................................................................................... 13 
6.3.5 Open Country Bird Breeding Habitat ........................................................... 13 
6.3.6 Habitat for Special Concern and Rare Wildlife Species ............................... 14 

6.4 Area of Natural and Scientific Interest .................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

7.0 POLICY CONFORMITY ................................................................. 16 

7.1 Provincial Policy Statement ............................................................................... 16 
7.2 Growth Plan ........................................................................................................ 16 
7.3 Endangered Species Act ..................................................................................... 17 
7.4 County of Dufferin Official Plan ....................................................................... 17 
7.5 Township of Mulmur Official Plan (2012)........................................................ 17 
7.6 Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority ................................................... 17 

8.0 RECOMMENDATIONS ................................................................... 15 

8.1 Species at Risk ..................................................................................................... 15 
8.2 Migratory Breeding Birds and SAR Bats ......................................................... 15 
8.3 Sediment and Erosion Controls ......................................................................... 16 
8.4 Operations ........................................................................................................... 16 

9.0 CONCLUSIONS ................................................................................. 17 

10.0 REFERENCES ................................................................................... 19 

188



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. IV 

List of Figures 

Figure 1: Study Area Location 
Figure 2: Environmental Features 
Figure 3: Proposed Development 

List of Tables 

Table 1: Summary of Vegetation Communities 
Table 2: Species at Risk Habitat Summary and Assessment 

List of Appendices 

Appendix A: Municipal Planning Information 
Appendix B:  NVCA Information 
Appendix C:  Provincial Information 
Appendix D:  Proposed Site Plan

189



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 1 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
Azimuth Environmental Consulting, Inc. (Azimuth) was retained by John Clark to 
prepare a Scoped Environmental Impact Study (Scoped EIS) for a proposed severance 
and subsequent construction of a single detached dwelling, driveway, and accessory 
structures at 796186 Third Line, Township of Mulmur (Township), Dufferin County 
(County) (Figure 1).  Pre-consultation with the Township, County and Nottawasaga 
Valley Conservation Authority (NVCA) revealed the need for an EIS to be undertaken 
due to the presence of woodlands and the Primrose-Boyne Valley Earth Science Area of 
Natural and Scientific Interest (ANSI) on and adjacent to the property (Appendix A and 
B).   

This purpose of this Scoped EIS is to identify the candidate Key Natural Heritage 
Features (KNHFs) present within the study area and address potential impacts to 
candidate KNHFs.  A review of background information in combination with a single site 
visit was undertaken on March 29, 2021 to identify natural heritage features and 
functions as candidates for consideration as significant KNHFs associated with the study 
area.  This report also examines potential for Species at Risk (SAR) protected under the 
Endangered Species Act, 2007 (ESA) within the study area.  The potential for negative 
impacts to natural heritage features resulting from the proposed development is 
considered and recommendations for avoidance and mitigation are provided.   

2.0 PLANNING CONTEXT 
2.1 Provincial Planning Policy (2020) 

The Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) (MMAH, 2020a) outlines policies related to 
natural heritage features (Section 2.1) and water resources (Section 2.2).  Ontario's 
Planning Act, (1990) requires that planning decisions shall be consistent with the PPS.  
The study area for this assessment is located entirely within Ecoregion 6E.  According to 
the PPS development and site alteration shall not be permitted in:  

 Significant wetlands in Ecoregions 5E, 6E and 7E; and,
 Significant coastal wetlands.

Similarly, Section 2.1.5 of the PPS states that, unless it has been demonstrated that there 
will be no negative impacts on the natural features or their ecological functions, 
development and site alteration shall not be permitted within: 

a) significant wetlands in the Canadian Shield north of Ecoregions 5E, 6E; and 7E;
b) significant woodlands in Ecoregions 6E; and 7E;
c) significant valleylands in Ecoregions 6E; and 7E;

190



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 2 

d) significant wildlife habitat;
e) significant areas of natural and scientific interest; and,
f) coastal wetlands in Ecoregions 5E, 6E; and 7E that are not subject to policy

2.1.4(b)

It is ultimately the responsibility of the Province and/or the Municipality to designate 
areas identified within Section 2.1.4 and 2.1.5 of the PPS as 'significant'. 

Section 2.1.6 of the PPS states that development and site alteration is not permitted in 
fish habitat except in accordance with federal and provincial requirements.  

Section 2.1.7 of the PPS states that development and site alteration shall not be permitted 
in habitat of Endangered and Threatened species, except in accordance with provincial 
and federal requirements. 

Furthermore, under Section 2.1.8 of the PPS, no development and site alteration will be 
permitted on lands adjacent to natural heritage features and areas identified in policies 
2.1.4, 2.1.5 and 2.1.6 unless the ecological function of the adjacent lands has been 
evaluated and it has been demonstrated there will be no negative impacts on the natural 
features and ecological functions. 

2.2 Growth Plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe, 2020 

The Growth Plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe (Growth Plan; MMAH, 2020b) 
informs decision-making regarding growth management and environmental protection in 
the Greater Golden Horseshoe, which includes the property.   

A Natural Heritage System for the Growth Plan has been mapped by the province.  
However, as per Section 4.2.2.4, provincial mapping of the Natural Heritage System for 
the Growth Plan does not apply until it has been implemented in the applicable upper or 
single tier official plan.  Until that time, the policies in the Growth Plan that refer to the 
Natural Heritage System for the Growth Plan will apply outside settlement areas to the 
natural heritage systems identified in official plans that were approved and in effect as of 
July 1, 2017.  The natural heritage system identified within the Town’s Official Plan is 
described in Section 2.5 below. 

Section 4.2 of the Growth Plan outlines protections for natural heritage features and 
functions within the Natural Heritage System.  Key natural heritage features are defined 
within the Growth Plan as “habitat of endangered species and threatened species; fish 
habitat; wetlands; life science ANSIs, significant valleylands, significant woodlands; 
significant wildlife habitat (including habitat of special concern species); sand barrens, 

191



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 3 

savannahs, and tallgrass prairies; and alvars,” while key hydrologic features are defined 
as “permanent streams, intermittent streams, inland lakes and their littoral zones, seepage 
areas and springs, and wetlands.” 

Section 4.2.3.1 states that outside of settlement areas, development and site alteration is 
not permitted in key natural heritage features that are part of the Natural Heritage System 
or in key hydrologic features, with some exceptions. 

As per Section 4.2.4.1, outside settlement areas, a proposal for new development or site 
alteration within 120 metres of a key natural heritage feature within the Natural Heritage 
System or a key hydrologic feature will require a natural heritage evaluation or 
hydrologic valuation that identifies a vegetation protection zone, which: 

a. is of sufficient width to protect the key natural heritage feature or key
hydrologic feature and its functions from the impacts of the proposed change;

b. is established to achieve and be maintained as natural self-sustaining
vegetation; and

c. for key hydrologic features, fish habitat, and significant woodlands, is no less
than 30 metres measured from the outside boundary of the key natural
heritage feature or key hydrologic feature.

2.3 Endangered Species Act, 2007 

Ontario’s ESA provides regulatory protection to Endangered and Threatened species 
prohibiting harassment, harm and/or killing of individuals and destruction of their 
habitats.  Habitat is broadly characterized within the ESA as the area prescribed by a 
regulation as the habitat of the species or an area on which the species depends, directly 
or indirectly, to carry on its life processes including reproduction, rearing of young, 
hibernation, migration or feeding. 

The various schedules of the ESA included under O. Reg. 230/08 identify SAR in 
Ontario.  These include species listed as Extirpated, Endangered, Threatened and Special 
Concern.  As noted above, only species listed as Endangered and Threatened receive 
protection from harm and destruction to habitat on which they depend.   

2.4 Dufferin County Official Plan (2017) 

The property is designated as Rural according to Schedule C (Appendix A).  As per 
Section 4.3.2 of the Official Plan, limited residential development which includes no 
more than three new lots of units is permitted within the Rural designation.  

192



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 4 

Woodlands have been mapped on the property that are also part of the County’s 
Preliminary Natural Heritage System according to Schedule E and E1 (Appendix A).  As 
per Section 5.3.4 of the Official Plan,  development and site alteration will not be 
permitted within or adjacent to significant woodlands unless it has been demonstrated 
that there will be no negative impacts on the natural features or their ecological functions 
through the preparation of an EIS. 

2.5 Township of Mulmur Official Plan (2012) 

The property is designated as Rural according to Schedule A1 – Land Use Designations 
(Appendix A).  As per Section 5.8 of the Official Plan, limited residential development 
may be permitted within Rural areas. 

Wooded Area and an Earth Science ANSI have been mapped on the property according 
to Schedule B2 – Category Two Natural Features (Appendix A). According to Section 
5.1.8 of the Official Plan, unless it has been demonstrated that there will be no negative 
impacts, on the natural features or their ecological functions, development and site 
alteration shall not be permitted in significant woodlands or ANSIs. 

According to Schedule B3 (Physical Constraints and Hazards), the property has some 
areas of Moderate Slope. 

2.6 Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority 

The study area is located within the jurisdiction of the NVCA.  The study area includes 
lands subject to O. Reg. 172/06 – “Regulation of Development Interference with 
Wetlands and Alterations to Shorelines and Watercourses” by the NVCA.  Under 
Regulation 172/06, the NVCA requires that approvals be obtained for any proposed 
development or site alteration within areas regulated under a Conservation Authority’s 
jurisdiction.  However, there is no development or site alteration proposed within any 
NVCA regulated lands (Appendix B).  

3.0 STUDY APPROACH 
Azimuth attended the property on March 29, 2021 to carry out an assessment of the 
natural features within the study area.  The site investigation was undertaken subsequent 
to snow melt, therefore natural feature limits were not obscured by snow cover.  It is 
acknowledged that the site visit occurred prior to the growing season of mid-May when 
vegetation surveys are typically accepted by regulatory agencies, however due to the lack 
of snow cover, Azimuth was able to accurately delineate vegetation communities therein. 

193



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 5 

Prior to undertaking the field study an initial classification of habitats was undertaken 
using recent air photo imagery for an area encompassing the study area, defined as the 
property delineated in Figure 1 and adjacent lands (i.e. lands within approximately 120 
metres (m) of the property boundary).  Within the property, our search effort/assessment 
was focused within areas of proposed development including areas within approximately 
50m.  Vegetation boundaries were checked in the field and delineated as illustrated in 
Figure 2.  Vegetation community types were classified using the Ecological Land 
Classification for Southern Ontario: First Approximation (ELC: Lee et al., 1998; 2008).  
Natural features in the overall planning area beyond the defined study area limits are 
discussed where applicable throughout this report.   

A SAR screening was undertaken for the scope of this assignment that compares the 
habitat requirements of species with potential to occur in the overall planning area with 
habitat types that occur on the property.  The screening was based on air photo 
interpretation combined with onsite evaluation of habitats within the study area.   

A Terms of Reference for the above survey program was provided to the NVCA on 
March 17, 2021, to which a response was received on March 23, 2021 (Mike Francis, 
Planning Ecologist) confirming the scope of the program undertaken was acceptable and 
provided some additional information for consideration.  A consultation record between 
Azimuth and the NVCA is provided in Appendix B. 

A request for background information including SAR data was provided to the Ministry 
of the Environment, Conservation and Parks (MECP) on April 23, 2021 (Appendix C).  
MECP responded on May 18, 2021 to indicate that they do not have any other SAR 
occurrences to add to our consolidated list (Shamus Snell, Acting Management 
Biologist).  A consultation record between Azimuth and the MECP is provided in 
Appendix C. 

The Township requested MNRF be contacted as it relates to SAR and the ANSI.  The 
landowner reached out to Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry (MNRF) to acquire 
this information.  A response was provided on March 4, 2021 (Kim Benner, District 
Planner).  A consultation record between the landowner and the MNRF is provided in 
Appendix C. 

4.0 EXISTING CONDITIONS 
4.1 Land Use 

Currently, a single-detached residence exists on the property with access off of the Third 
Line.  Associated amenities include septic, well, shed (outbuilding) and lawn.  The 

194



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 6 

remainder of the property is undeveloped and is primarily composed of forested 
communities.  It is our understanding that at least a portion of the property (i.e. southern 
half of the property) was the location of a former nursery operation, as such; much of the 
existing tree cover originates from nursery tree planting.   

Adjacent lands are primarily agricultural and rural residences with woodland extending 
onto adjacent lands.  To the south appears to be an early successional area that is utilized 
recreationally (including for motorized vehicles) as evidenced by the trail network.   

4.2 Vegetation 

A field survey was undertaken to evaluate vegetation community types including 
representative plant species compositions on March 29, 2021, noting that no snow cover 
was present.  Property access was granted within the property boundary only (Figure 2), 
and therefore alternative survey techniques (i.e. “fenceline”/binocular surveys) were 
completed for lands located beyond the property line.  The site visit was undertaken by a 
qualified Terrestrial Ecologist with knowledge of rare, Threatened, and Endangered plant 
species with potential to occur in the area, acknowledging that most herbaceous plants 
could not be identified in the late winter/early spring period.  

There are no elements of occurrence (EO_ID) within the property or adjacent lands for 
provincially Endangered or Threatened, or provincially rare vegetation species according 
to the MNRF Natural Heritage Information Centre (NHIC) database.  A detailed survey 
was undertaken to identify Butternut (Juglans cinerea) trees in proximity to the proposed 
development.  Two Butternuts were observed on the property (Figure 2). 

None of the vegetation communities or species documented are of federal or provincial 
conservation concern (NHIC, 2021). 

Vegetation communities within the property were determined in accordance with the 
ELC system, and are summarized as observed in Table 1 and illustrated on Figure 2.  
Vegetation communities identified within the study area are listed as follows: 

 FODM3 Dry-Fresh Poplar-White Birch Deciduous Forest

 FODM4-11 Dry-Fresh Black Locust Deciduous Forest

 FODM5-1 Dry-Fresh Sugar Maple Deciduous Forest

 FOMM5 Dry-Fresh White Birch-Poplar Conifer Mixed Forest

 MEGM3 Dry-Fresh Graminoid Meadow Ecosite

 TAGM3 Deciduous Plantation

195



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 7 

4.3 Wildlife 

Direct and indirect observations of wildlife (i.e. tracks, scat, fur) were collected as a 
matter of course during the March 29, 2021 site investigation, acknowledging that the 
survey occurred outside of the active period for bat species, migratory birds, reptiles, and 
amphibians.  The following species and signs thereof were observed within the study area 
limits during the site investigation: 

 Birds: American Crow, American Goldfinch, Black-capped Chickadee, Blue Jay,
Chipping Sparrow, Dark-eyed Junco, Downy Woodpecker, Ruffed Grouse
(drumming/scat), Mourning Dove, Red-breasted Nuthatch and Song Sparrow.

 Mammals: Cottontail, Coyote (scat) and White-tailed Deer (scat/browse)

4.4 Species at Risk 

A screening for SAR occurred within the planning area based on potentially suitable 
habitat features identified during the site investigation (Table 2).  The SAR assessment 
fully considers SAR with potential to occur within the planning area in a list provided 
and approved by MECP (Appendix C).  Based on this assessment in combination with 
vegetation communities and other environmental features observed during the site 
investigation, the following species are considered below in this report: 

 Threatened and Endangered:
o Barn Swallow, Bobolink and Eastern Meadowlark (adjacent lands);
o Butternut (confirmed on the property); and
o Little Brown Myotis, Northern Myotis, Tri-colored Bat

 Special Concern: Common Nighthawk, Eastern Wood-pewee, Monarch, and
Wood Thrush

4.5 Wetlands 

There were no wetlands identified on or adjacent to the property based on our March 29, 
2021 field investigation and available on Township, County, or Provincial mapping 
resources (NHIC, 2021; Appendix C).   

4.6 Significant Woodland 

The woodland area within the northern and western portion of the property have been 
identified as Woodlands according to the County of Dufferin and as Category Two 

196



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 8 

Natural Feature Wooded Area (>10 hectares (ha)) according to the Township of Mulmur 
(Appendix A). 

Within the Township of Mulmur, there is approximately 45% woodland cover; therefore, 
a woodland must be at least 50ha in size or larger to be considered significant according 
to the Natural Heritage Reference Manual (NHRM; OMNR, 2010).  The woodland on the 
property and extending onto adjacent lands is >50ha in size and may qualify as 
significant according to the province. 

The woodland on the property potentially meets the following NHRM standards for 
consideration as a Significant Woodland feature: 

 Contiguous woodland is ~90ha in size.  This includes woodland on the property
and extending onto adjacent lands;

 Woodland Interior (adjacent contiguous woodland may provide at least 8ha of
interior habitat);

 Proximity to other woodlands and other habitats (within 30m of wetland features)
 Linkages (provides a linkage between woodland and wetland habitats); and
 Water protection (a mapped watercourse traverses through the contiguous

woodland/wetland feature).

Based on the above assessment, the woodland may qualify as Significant Woodland. 

4.7 Significant Valleyland 

No portion of the study area is identified as Significant Valleyland, nor assigned a similar 
designation on Township, County, or Provincial mapping resources (NHIC, 2021).  
Moderate slopes are present on the property, as per Township mapping.  However, was 
no evidence of any watercourses/drainage features. 

Therefore, there are no valleyland features located within the study area according 
standards presented in the NHRM, requiring a defined watercourse between substantial 
embankments to be considered as such.  

4.8 Significant Wildlife Habitat 

An assessment of the potential for Significant Wildlife Habitat (SWH) within study area 
was conducted using the criteria outlined within MNRF’s Significant Wildlife Habitat 
Technical Guide (2000) and the accompanying the Ecoregion 6E Criteria Schedules 
(MNRF, 2015b).  The following Candidate SWH types have potential to be present 
within the study area based on the results of the field program: 

197



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 9 

o Raptor Wintering Area;
o Bat Maternity Colonies;
o Reptile Hibernacula;
o Woodland Raptor Nesting Habitat;
o Woodland Area-Sensitive Bird Breeding Habitat;
o Open Country Bird Breeding Habitat (adjacent lands); and
o Special Concern and Rare Wildlife Species

 Common Nighthawk
 Eastern Wood-pewee
 Wood Thrush
 Monarch Butterfly

4.9 Areas of Natural and Scientific Interest 

According to provincial mapping resources, the property is within the Violet Hill 
Channel – Boyne Valley Area of Natural and Scientific Interest (Earth Science) (NHIC, 
2021).  The area is identified as having provincially significant earth science 
representation of the “type” area of the Orangeville Moraine and the Violet Hill 
meltwater channel, as well as representation of a portion of the Singhampton-Gibraltar 
Moraine complex (OMNR, 1991). 

4.10 Fish and Fish Habitat 

There are no features with potential to provide fish habitat within the property limits. 

4.11 Natural Heritage Features Summary 

The results of Azimuth’s site investigation combined with review of background 
information indicate the potential for the following candidate KNHFs within the study 
area: 

 Habitat for Endangered and Threatened Species;
o Barn Swallow, Bobolink and Eastern Meadowlark (adjacent lands);
o Butternut (confirmed on the property); and
o Little Brown Myotis, Northern Myotis, Tri-colored Bat (woodland).

 Candidate Significant Woodland (on and adjacent to property);
 Candidate Significant Wildlife Habitat; and
 Earth Science Area of Natural and Scientific Interest (Violet Hill Channel –

Boyne Valley).

5.0 PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 

The proposed development involves the severance of the lot and the construction of a 
single detached dwelling, driveway, and accessory structures on the retained parcel.  The 

198



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 10 

proposed development is within in the draft site plan presented in Appendix D.  The new 
dwelling and amenity space will be located within the limits of the woodland on the 
property, with access off of Third line along the woodland edge.   

Mapping of the proposed development as it relates to environmental features on the 
property is presented in Figure 3. 

6.0 IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
This impact assessment is prepared with regards to the construction footprint of proposed 
structures and anticipated grading limits, as described above and illustrated in Figure 3. 

6.1 Habitat for Threatened and Endangered Species 

Impacts with regards to the ESA and Habitat of Threatened or Endangered Species are 
covered under Section 9 and 10 of the ESA.  Section 9 deals directly with killing, 
harming, or harassing living members of a species while Section 10 covers destruction or 
damage to habitat of Threatened or Endangered species.  The following Threatened and 
Endangered species have the potential and/or have been confirmed to occur within the 
limits of the property and on adjacent lands: 

o Barn Swallow, Bobolink and Eastern Meadowlark (adjacent lands);
o Butternut (confirmed on the property); and
o Little Brown Myotis, Northern Myotis, Tri-colored Bat (woodland).

6.1.1 Barn Swallow, Bobolink and Eastern Meadowlark (adjacent lands) 

Barn Swallow, Bobolink and Eastern Meadowlark are grassland birds associated with 
open grassland habitat.  The barn on the adjacent lands has the potential to offer suitable 
nesting habitat for Barn Swallow.  All potentially suitable habitat for these grassland 
species are associated with adjacent agricultural lands.  The proposed development will 
occur up to the property line (driveway), however, there is no expectation that works 
would result in indirect impacts to any of these species as they tend to avoid woodland 
edges.  There will be no reduction the available grassland habitat post-development. 

6.1.2 Butternut  

Two Butternut were identified on the property.  All proposed development or site 
alteration is located >50m from the Butternuts.  There will be no impact to these trees 
post-development. 

199



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 11 

6.1.3 Little Brown Myotis, Northern Myotis, Tri-colored Bat 

Little Brown Myotis, Northern Myotis, and Tri-colored Bat may utilize woodlands as 
maternity roost sites, utilizing trees >25 centimetres (cm) diameter at breast height with 
evidence of cracks, holes, splits, lifted bark, etc. (called “snags”) to provide refuge for the 
rearing of young during the late spring and early summer months (approximately June).  
Potentially suitable habitat is primarily associated with the FODM5-1 community (Figure 
2) that contains mature trees of sufficient size to provide this potential function.

The early successional poplar/ash communities with Scot’s Pine (Pinus sylvestris) are 
generally insufficient in size and lack features that would be considered suitable for SAR 
bats.   

The proposed development will result in the removal of approximately 0.81ha of poor 
quality bat habitat (FODM3, Figure 2 and Figure 3).  Overall, approximately 17.3ha of 
woodland will remain on site including the potential high quality bat habitat within the 
Sugar Maple forest (FODM5-1 (5.9ha), Figure 2).   Providing that conformance is 
demonstrated for environmental considerations and mitigation described in Section 
below, there is no expectation that the proposed development will result in a negative 
impact to Little Brown Myotis, Northern Myotis, Tri-Colored Bat, or the habitat upon 
which they depend.  This approach is consistent with similar projects in Townships with 
a high degree of woodland representation such as Mulmur. 

6.2 Candidate Significant Woodland 

According to the PPS development and site alteration are not permitted within Significant 
Woodlands located in Ecoregion 6E, unless it can be demonstrated there will be no 
negative impacts upon the feature and its ecological functions. 

The NHRM outlines several criteria that contribute to the ecological functionality of a 
woodland feature.  As described above, the woodland on the property potentially meets 
the following NHRM standards for consideration as a Significant Woodland feature: 

 Woodland size (>50ha in size);
 Woodland Interior (adjacent contiguous woodland may provide at least 8ha of

interior habitat);
 Proximity to other woodlands and other habitats (within 30 m of wetland features)
 Linkages (provides a linkage between woodland and wetland habitats); and
 Water protection (a mapped watercourse traverses through the contiguous

woodland/wetland feature).

200



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 12 

The proposed development will occur in the southern portion of the woodland along an 
existing edge and will result in the removal of approximately 0.81ha of woodland 
(FODM3, Figure 3).  Post-development, there will be approximately 17.3ha of woodland 
on the property.  This represents a reduction in is 4.5% of woodland on site and 0.9% of 
the overall woodland community (extending off-site and on adjacent lands)  

Post development, the overall woodland would still meet the criteria to be considered 
Significant as per the NHRM: 

 Overall, the woodland will remain sufficient size to be considered significant.
The loss of 0.9% of woodland does not represent a significant loss to the system;

 There will be no reduction in off-site interior habitat;
 Proximity to other woodlands/habitats will be maintained;
 Connectivity and linkage will be maintained throughout the property and across

the landscape;
 The woodland (on adjacent lands) will continue to provide ecological benefit to

the watercourse located off of the property.

As such, the ecological functionality associated with the woodland would be expected to 
continue in a manner similar to pre-construction condition and would not be expected to 
negatively impact Candidate Significant Woodland providing conformance is 
demonstrated for environmental considerations and mitigation described in Section 8 
below. 

6.3 Candidate Significant Wildlife Habitat 

According to the PPS development and site alteration are not permitted within SWH 
located in Ecoregion 6E, unless it can be demonstrated there will be no negative impacts 
upon the feature and its ecological functions.  For the purposes of this assessment, 
Candidate SWH described below is treated as significant. 

 Raptor Wintering Area;
 Bat Maternity Colonies;
 Reptile Hibernacula;
 Woodland Raptor Nesting Habitat;
 Woodland Area-sensitive Bird Breeding Habitat;
 Open Country Bird Breeding Habitat; and
 Special Concern and Rare Wildlife Species.

 Common Nighthawk
 Eastern Wood-pewee
 Wood Thrush

201



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 13 

 Monarch Butterfly

6.3.1 Raptor Wintering Area 

Post-development, potentially suitable raptor wintering habitat will remain.  Woodland 
on and extending off of the property will continue to meet size criteria for this potential 
function (>20ha) and the overall area will continue to provide a combination of fields and 
woodlands that could provide roosting, foraging and resting habitat for wintering raptors.  
Therefore, this potential SWH function will continue post-development. 

6.3.2 Bat Maternity Colonies 

As highlighted above, potentially suitable habitat is primarily associated with the 
FODM5-1 community (Figure 2) that contains mature trees of sufficient size to provide 
this potential function.  The early successional poplar/ash communities with Scot’s Pine 
are generally insufficient in size and lack features that would be considered suitable for 
bat maternity colonies.  Therefore, this potential SWH function will continue post-
development.   

6.3.3 Woodland Raptor Nesting Habitat and Woodland Area-Sensitive Bird Breeding 
Habitat 

The overall woodland is of sufficient size to provide these potential functions.  Due to the 
configuration of the woodland, any potential Woodland Raptor Nesting and Area-
Sensitive Bird Breeding Habitat would be associated with adjacent lands with sufficient 
interior habitat determined with a 200m buffer.  No raptor nests observed during 
Azimuth’s field investigation (undertaken during leaf-off conditions).    These potential 
SWH functions will continue post-development. 

6.3.4 Reptile Hibernaculum 

Two rock piles were noted on the property.  The rock piles are associated with 
existing/former fencelines and are highlighted on Figure 2.  It is unknown if these 
features extend below the frost line. Nonetheless, they will remain post-development 
(Figure 3).  Therefore, this potential SWH function will continue post-development.  

6.3.5 Open Country Bird Breeding Habitat 

Open Country Bird Breeding Habitat may be associated with the open/agricultural areas 
on adjacent lands.  Any grasslands of sufficient size not being actively used for intensive 
farming could provide this function.  All development is contained within the woodland 
on the property.  Therefore, this potential SWH function will continue post-development. 

202



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 14 

6.3.6 Habitat for Special Concern and Rare Wildlife Species 

Species-specific surveys to target presence/absence of Special Concern species were not 
conducted as a part of this assessment.  For the purposes of this assessment, presence of 
Special Concern species (for which suitable habitat may be present) is assumed in lieu of 
conducting appropriate screenings for these species. 

Common Nighthawk 
High quality Common Nighthawk habitat consists of open areas with little to no ground 
vegetation, such as logged or burned-over areas, forest clearings, rock barrens, peat bogs, 
lakeshores, and mine tailings (COSEWIC, 2007).  Although the species also nests in 
cultivated fields, orchards, urban parks, and along gravel roads, large gravel roofs, and 
railways, the species tends to occupy natural sites (MECP, 2021).  Open meadow within 
the property limits (MEGM3; Figure 2) may provide marginal habitat for Common 
Nighthawk.  There is no development proposed within the meadow community as such, 
no negative impact to the species or their habitat is anticipated as a result of the proposed 
development. 

Eastern Wood-pewee and Wood Thrush 
These woodland species prefer mature and intermediate age deciduous and mixed forests 
with varying degrees of undergrowth (open [Eastern Wood-pewee] and dense [Wood 
Thrush]).  They are often associated with forests dominated by Sugar Maple (Acer 
saccharum).  The overall size of the woodland habitat does not appear to be an important 
factor in habitat selection as both species have been documented in highly fragmented 
forests (COSEWIC, 2012a and COSEWIC, 2012b).  Based on this information, it appears 
that the most potentially suitable habitat on the property would be associated with the 
Sugar Maple forest community.  However, the mixed forested communities may provide 
marginal habitat for the species.  The reduction of approximately 0.8ha of marginal 
potentially suitable habitat will not reduce the overall availability of habitat for the 
species post-development.  Therefore, this potential SWH function will continue post-
development. 

Monarch Butterfly 
Monarch Butterfly can generally be identified in any old field or cultural meadow habitat 
often including disturbed ditches along road right of ways, however the key habitat is 
typically associated with tracts of old-field meadow habitat containing an abundance of 
Common Milkweed (Asclepias syriaca).  The open meadow (CUM; Figure 2) community 
present within the property limit may provide limited habitat opportunities for Monarch 
Butterfly although no Common Milkweed was noted.  Potentially suitable habitat may 

203



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 15 

also be associated with the roadside vegetation and along the edge of the woodland 
communities. 

The proposed driveway will traverse along the edge of the woodland community – which 
was largely dominated by grasses and small shrubs (i.e. Red Raspberry (Rubus idaeas 
ssp. idaeas) and dogbane (Apocyanum spp.)) with the occasional small tree (poplar 
(Populus spp.)).    Based on this information, there may be minor removals of some 
marginal habitat that may be suitable for Monarch Butterfly. 

Habitat for this species is highly represented in the general area however, and as such, no 
negative impact to the species or its habitat is anticipated as a result of the proposed 
development. 

6.4 Earth Science Area of Natural and Scientific Interest (Violet Hill Channel – 
Boyne Valley) 

The MNRF has confirmed that their ministry does not comment on site-specific proposal 
(i.e. severances) where the approval authority is the municipality.  Such planning matters 
should be deferred to the Township (Kim Benner, District Planner, March 12, 2021 e-
mail correspondence; Appendix C).  The proposed development does not represent a land 
use that would be considered incompatible with the earth science ANSI (i.e. removal of 
aggregate) (OMNR, 1991).  The proposed development will not impact the landform 
features for which the earth-science ANSI was identified.    

7.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
7.1 Species at Risk 

This report is intended as a point in time assessment of the potential to impact SAR; not 
to provide long term “clearance” for SAR.  While there is no expectation that the 
assessment should change significantly, it is the responsibility of the proponent to ensure 
that they are not in contravention of the ESA at the time that site works are undertaken.  
A review of the assessment provided in this report by a qualified person should be 
sufficient to provide appropriate advice at the time of the onset of future site works. 

7.2 Migratory Breeding Birds and SAR Bats 

Activities involving the removal of vegetation should be restricted from occurring during 
the breeding season.  Migratory birds, nests, and eggs are protected by the Migratory 
Birds Convention Act, 1994 (MBCA) and the Fish and Wildlife Conservation Act, 1997 
(FWCA).  Environment Canada outlines dates when activities in any region have 
potential to impact nests at the Environment Canada Website 

204



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 16 

(https://www.canada.ca/en/environment-climate-change/services/avoiding-harm-
migratory-birds/general-nesting-periods/nesting-periods.html).  In Zones C1 and C2 
vegetation clearing should be avoided between April 1 through August 31 of any given 
year.  If work requires that vegetation clearing is required between these dates screening 
by an ecologist with knowledge of bird species present in the area could be undertaken to 
ensure that the vegetation has been confirmed to be free of nests prior to clearing. 

It is expected that adherence to a tree clearing restriction between the above dates will 
similarly avoid potential incidental impacts to bats that may utilize woodlands within the 
study area for maternity roosting or day roosting purposes. 

7.3 Sediment and Erosion Controls 

Diligent application of sediment and erosion controls is recommended for all future 
construction activities to minimize the extent of accidental or unavoidable impacts to 
adjacent vegetation communities and wildlife habitat.  Prior to the commencement of site 
works, silt fencing should be applied along the length of directly adjacent natural or 
naturalized features, and routine inspection/maintenance of the silt fencing should occur 
throughout construction.  This will also help to define the limits of development and 
prevent incidental encroachment into non-development areas. 

7.4 Operations 

All maintenance activities required during future construction should be conducted at 
least 30m away from woodlands and/or wetlands to prevent accidental spillage of 
deleterious substances that may harm natural environments. 

8.0 POLICY CONFORMITY 
8.1 Provincial Policy Statement 

No negative impacts to the Candidate Significant Woodland, Candidate Significant 
Wildlife Habitat and Earth Science ANSI associated with the property and adjacent lands 
– Conforms.

8.2 Growth Plan 

The FODM5-1 (Figure 2) woodland on the property appears to generally align with the 
County’s Preliminary Natural Heritage System.  Although the County’s mapping is 
preliminary, for the purposes of this assessment, it is assumed that this layer will serve as 
the relevant Natural Heritage System layer for application of the Growth Plan.  
Therefore, the FODM5-1 within the mapped Natural Heritage System may meet the 
criteria for significance according to the Growth Plan (Figure 3).  There will be no 
development within the significant woodland itself.  All development, including proposed 

205



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 17 

lot lines, will be located at least 30m from the limit of the Growth Plan Significant 
Woodland (Figure 3) – Conforms. 

8.3 Endangered Species Act 

There will be no negative impact to identified potentially suitable SAR habitat on or 
adjacent to the property.   Mitigation in the form of timing of tree clearing has been 
proposed to avoid potential incidental impacts to SAR bats – Conforms. 

8.4 County of Dufferin Official Plan 

There will be no development within the woodland that is part of the County’s 
Preliminary Natural Heritage System.  All development, including lot lines, will be 
located at least 30m from the mapped woodlands and Preliminary Natural Heritage 
System (Figure 3).  There will be no negative impact to the Candidate Significant 
Woodland as per the EIS - Conforms. 

8.5 Township of Mulmur Official Plan (2012) 

Wooded Area and an Earth Science ANSI have been mapped on the property according 
to Schedule B2 – Category Two Natural Features (Appendix A). There will be no 
negative impact to the Wooded Area or Earth Science ANSI as per the EIS – Conforms. 

8.6 Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority 

The proposed development is located outside of any NVCA regulated areas.  As such, no 
permit is required from NVCA – Conforms. 

9.0 CONCLUSIONS 
Based upon our analysis, it is concluded that the environmental conditions are not 
limiting to the proposed development of a single detached dwelling, driveway, and 
accessory structures through a lot severance application, providing incorporation of the 
environmental protection measures described in Section 8 of this report are followed. 

At this time, our findings are summarized as follows: 

 The proposed site alteration is consistent with the policies of the Provincial Policy
Statement, Growth Plan, ESA, Dufferin County Official Plan, Township of
Mulmur Official Plan, and Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority O. Reg.
172/06.

 Our impact assessment has given full consideration to the habitat requirements of
all SAR assumed and documented to occur in the area and results indicate the

206



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 18 

proposed development will not result in negative direct or indirect impacts to 
habitat of SAR providing conformance is demonstrated to mitigation measures 
described in Section 8. 

 The proposed works are not expected to negatively impact the ecological
functions of Candidate Significant Woodland, Candidate Significant Wildlife
Habitat or the Earth Science ANSI outlined in Section 4.11 if the appropriate
mitigation measures outlined in Section 8 are followed.

207



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 19 

10.0 REFERENCES 

COSEWIC. 2012a. COSEWIC assessment and status report on the Eastern Wood-pewee 
Contopus virens in Canada. Committee on the Status of Endangered Wildlife in Canada. 
Ottawa. x + 39 pp. (www.registrelep-sararegistry.gc.ca/default_e.cfm). 

COSEWIC. 2012b. COSEWIC assessment and status report on the Wood Thrush 
Hylocichla mustelina in Canada. Committee on the Status of Endangered Wildlife in 
Canada. Ottawa. ix + 46 pp. (www.registrelep-sararegistry.gc.ca/default_e.cfm). 

COSEWIC. 2007. COSEWIC assessment and status report on the Common Nighthawk 
Chordeiles minor in Canada. Committee on the Status of Endangered Wildlife in Canada. 
Ottawa. vi + 35 pp. 

Dufferin County Official Plan (Consolidated July 2017). 

Endangered Species Act, Ontario. 2007. An Act to protect species at risk and to make 
related changes to other Acts. Bill 184 Chapter 6, Statutes of Ontario 2007. 

Government of Canada. 2014. Migratory Birds Convention Act. 

Lee, H.T., W.D. Bakowsky, J. Riley, J. Bowles, M. Puddister, P. Uhlig and S. McMurray. 
1998; 2008.  Ecological Land Classification for Southern Ontario.  First Approximation 
and its Application.  Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources, Southcentral Sciences 
Section, Science Development and Transfer Branch.  SCSS Field Guide  FG-02. 

Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing (MMAH), 2020a.  Provincial Policy Statement. 

Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing (MMAH), 2020b.  A Place to Grow: Growth Plan 
for the Greater Golden Horseshoe. Queen’s Printer for Ontario. iv. + 108 pp. 

Ministry of Environment, Conservation and Parks. 2021.  Ontario Species at Risk 
webpage.  Accessed April 2021. 

Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry (MNRF). 2015a. Technical Note Species at 
Risk (SAR) Bats. Region. 37 pp. 

Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry (MNRF). 2015b. Significant Wildlife Habitat 
Criteria Schedules for Ecoregion 6E. 38 pp. 

208



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 20 

Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry (MNRF). 2021. Natural Heritage Information 
Centre (NHIC) internet web page. Government of Ontario, Ministry of Natural Resources 
(https://www.ontario.ca/page/natural-heritage-information-centre). Accessed April 2021. 

Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources (OMNR). 2000. Significant Wildlife Habitat 
Technical Guide. Fish and Wildlife Branch, Wildlife Section, Science Development and 
Transfer Branch, Southcentral Science Section. Queen’s Printer for Ontario. 151 pp. 

Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources (OMNR). 2010. Natural Heritage Reference 
Manual for Policy 2.3 of the provincial policy statement, 2005 (2nd Ed.). Ontario Ministry 
of Natural Resources, Toronto, ON. 

Township of Mulmur Official Plan (Approved by MMAH 2012). 

209



DAYSTAMP:

Figure No.

REFERENCE:

C

DATE ISSUED:

PROJECT NO.:
CREATED BY:

ONSULTING, INC.ZIMUTHA ENVIRONMENTAL

LEGEND:

Q:\21 Projects\21-171 Clark EIS - Mulmur\04.0 - Drafting\21-171.dwg

Site Location

796186 Third Line,
Mulmur, ON

March 2021
JLM
21-171
MNRF 1

Approx. Property Boundary

Regional Map
Orangeville

Shelburne

Wasaga Beach

Barrie

Collingwood

Borden

210

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORIZONTAL SCALE   1:25,000

AutoCAD SHX Text
750m

AutoCAD SHX Text
250m

AutoCAD SHX Text
0



Third Line

FOMM5

FODM3

MEGM3

FODM4-11

FODM3

CVR_4

TAGM3

FODM5-1

Existing Shed
Existing Home

DATE ISSUED:
CREATED BY:
PROJECT NO.:
REFERENCE:DAYSTAMP:

C

Figure No.

ONSULTING, INC.ZIMUTHA ENVIRONMENTAL

LEGEND:

Q:\21 Projects\21-171 Clark EIS - Mulmur\04.0 - Drafting\21-171.dwg Dufferin County Maps
21-171
JLM
March 2021

2

Environmental Features

796186 Third Line,
Mulmur, ON

Approx. Property Boundary
Butternut Locations w/25m and 50m Buffers

Vegetation Communities
Rural PropertyCVR_4
Dry-Fresh Poplar-White Birch DeciduousFODM3

Dry-Fresh Black Locust Deciduous ForestFODM4-11
Dry-Fresh Sugar Maple Deciduous ForestFODM5-1
Dry-Fresh White Birch-Poplar Conifer Mixed FOMM5

Dry-Fresh Graminoid Meadow EcositeMEGM3
Deciduous PlantationTAGM3

Forest

(White Ash)Forest

Rock Piles

211

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORIZONTAL SCALE   1:2,500

AutoCAD SHX Text
75m

AutoCAD SHX Text
25m

AutoCAD SHX Text
0



Third Line

FOMM5

FODM3

MEGM3

FODM4-11

FODM3

CVR_4

Building Envelope

Driveway

TAGM3

FODM5-1

Existing Shed
Existing Home

DATE ISSUED:
CREATED BY:
PROJECT NO.:
REFERENCE:DAYSTAMP:

C

Figure No.

ONSULTING, INC.ZIMUTHA ENVIRONMENTAL

LEGEND:

Q:\21 Projects\21-171 Clark EIS - Mulmur\04.0 - Drafting\21-171.dwg Dufferin County Maps
21-171
JLM
March 2021

3

Proposed Development

796186 Third Line,
Mulmur, ON

Approx. Property Boundary

Butternut Locations w/25m and 50m Buffers

Vegetation Communities
Rural PropertyCVR_4
Dry-Fresh Poplar-White Birch DeciduousFODM3

Dry-Fresh Black Locust Deciduous ForestFODM4-11
Dry-Fresh Sugar Maple Deciduous ForestFODM5-1
Dry-Fresh White Birch-Poplar Conifer Mixed FOMM5

Dry-Fresh Graminoid Meadow EcositeMEGM3
Deciduous PlantationTAGM3

Forest

(White Ash)Forest

Rock Piles

Proposed Severance
Proposed Building Envelope (white)

County of Dufferin Preliminary Natural 

30m NHS Buffer
Heritage System (NHS)

212

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORIZONTAL SCALE   1:2,500

AutoCAD SHX Text
75m

AutoCAD SHX Text
25m

AutoCAD SHX Text
0



Table 1: Summary of Vegetation Communities, 796186 Third Line Mulmur AEC21-171

System
Community 

Class
Community 

Series
Ecosite/Vegetation 

Type
Composition Ground Cover

Terrestrial Forest
FOD, 

Deciduous 
Forest

FODM3, Dry-Fresh 
Poplar-White Birch 
Deciduous Forest 

Ecosite

A relatively young early successional community that has 
formed as a result of the previous nursery operation.    The 
diameter breast height (dbh) of the trees within this 
community ranged from 10-25 centimeters (cm) with only 
the occasional tree >25cm dbh.  The community is patchy 
with openings throughout.  Largely dominated by 
Trembling Aspen (Populus tremuloides ) with Scots Pine 
(Pinus sylvestris ), Paper Birch (Betula papyrifera ), White 
Pine (Pinus strobus ) and Sugar Maple (Acer saccharum ).  

The ground cover is composed of Red Raspberry (Rubus 
idaeus ), goldenrods including Tall Goldenrod (Solidago 
altissima ), Awnless Brome (Bromus inermis ), strawberry 
(Fragaria  sp.), avens (Geum sp.) with other open/meadow 
species.  Minor amounts of Common Buckthorn (Rhamnus 
Cathartica ) and Garlic Mustard (Alliaria petiolata ) were 
noted.

Terrestrial Forest
FOD, 

Deciduous 
Forest

FODM4-11, Dry-Fresh 
Black Locust Deciduous 

Forest

Pocket of Black Locust (Robinia pseudoacacia ) resulting 
from previous land use (nursery).

Ground cover composition similar to that within the 
FODM3.

Terrestrial Forest
FOD, 

Deciduous 
Forest

FODM5-1, Dry-Fresh 
Sugar Maple Deciduous 

Forest

Mature woodland community within the north/north-west 
portion of the property.  The dbh of the trees within the 
community were generally larger component of trees 
>25cm and up to 50cm dbh.  The community is dominated
by Sugar Maple with smaller amounts of Paper Birch,
Trembling Aspen, American Beech (Fagus grandifolia ),
American Basswood (Tilia americana ), Black Cherry 
(Prunus serotina ) and Ironwood (Ostrya virginiana ).  Two 
Butternuts were documented within this community (Figure 
2).

Ground cover was largely dominated by Herb Robert 
(Geranium robertianum ) with avens, strawberry, woodland 
sedges (Carex sp.), Spinulose Woodfern (Dryopteris 
carthusiana ) and minor amounts of Garlic Mustard.

Terrestrial Forest
FOM, Mixed 

Forest

FOMM5, Dry-Fresh 
White Birch-Poplar 

Conifer Mixed Forest

Similar to the FODM3 in age and composition, this 
community is a result of previous land use (nursery).  The 
composition is very similar but White Ash (Fraxinus 
americana ) and Scots Pine appear to be the predominant 
species with Eastern White Pine (Pinus strobus ), Black 
Walnut (Juglans nigra ) and White Spruce (Picea glauca ).

Buckthorn is common/abundant within this portion of the 
woodland in addition to Garlic Mustard, Common Burdock 
(Arctium minus ).  Red Raspberry, Red-osier Dogwood 
(Cornus stolonifera ), goldenrod, Riverbank Grape (Vitis 
riparia ) and strawberry could also be found within the 
groundcover.

Ecological Land Classification1

Table 1 (AEC21-171) 213



Table 1: Summary of Vegetation Communities, 796186 Third Line Mulmur AEC21-171

Terrestrial Meadow
MEG, 

Graminoid 
Meadow 

MEGM3, Dry-Fresh 
Graminoid Meadow 

Ecosite
 N/A

Open cultural community dominated by Awnless Brome 
with the occasional Scots Pine, White Pine and oak 
(Quercus sp .).  It appears that this community may be 
mowed periodically.

Terrestrial Plantation
TAG, Treed 
Agriculture

TAGM3, Deciduous 
Plantation

Deciduous plantation dominated by Black Walnut.
Similar groundcover composition as found within the 
MEGM3.

Table 1 (AEC21-171) 214



Table 2.  Species at Risk Habitat Summary and Assessment AEC 21-171

Taxa Common Name1 ESA 

Status2 Habitat Requirements Habitat on or Adjacent to Lands? 
Issue Related to Proposed 

Development?

Bird Bank Swallow THR
Nest in burrows it constructs in sand banks associated with valleylands and in 
fill piles/gravel pits having near vertical faces. 

No suitable habitat.  No exposed 
verticle faces observed on or adjacent 
to the property. 

No

Bird Barn Swallow THR
Build nests in manmade structures like sheds, barns, etc. and under bridges/in 
culverts, etc. 

The exterior of the dwelling and shed 
were searched for nests.  No nests 
observed. The barn on adjacent lands 
has the potential to provide habitat for 
Barn Swallow.

No

Bird Bobolink THR Large grasslands

No suitable habitat on the property.  
Adjacent agricultural lands (i.e. 
Hayfields) may provide suitable habitat 
fo the species.

No

Bird Chimney Swift THR
Build nests in chimneys and/or on walls of built structures (barns, houses, 
churches, etc .)

The chimney associated with the single 
detached dwelling is capped thus 
precluding wildife from entering.  No 
suitable habitat on or adjacent to the 
property.

No

Bird Eastern Meadowlark THR Large grasslands

No suitable habitat on the property.  
Adjacent agricultural lands (i.e. 
Hayfields) may provide suitable habitat 
fo the species.

No

Mammal Little Brown Myotis END
Mature woodlands (snag/cavity trees) and buildings (churches, older homes 
with attics, etc. )

Potentially suitable habitat may be 
present within woodland on and 
adjacent to the property.  Potentiallly 
suitable habitat may be associated with 
barn on adjacent lands.

No, provided the 
recommended mitigation 
measures are adhered to.

Mammal Northern Myotis END Mature woodlands (snag/cavity trees) 
Potentially suitable habitat may be 
present within woodland on and 
adjacent to the property.

No, provided the 
recommended mitigation 
measures are adhered to.

Mammal Tri-coloured Bat END
Mature woodlands (snag/cavity trees) and occasionally in barns or other 
buildings

Potentially suitable habitat may be 
present within woodland on and 
adjacent to the property.

No, provided the 
recommended mitigation 
measures are adhered to.

Plant Butternut END Forests, woodlands, fencerows, open lands
Azimuth's 2021 field investigation 
revealed the presence of two Butternuts 
on the property. 

No

Table 2 (AEC21-171) 215



Taxa Common Name1 ESA 

Status2 Habitat Requirements Habitat on or Adjacent to Lands? 
Issue Related to Proposed 

Development?

Bird Common Nighthawk SC
Open habitats including forest openings, pastures, open forests, marshes, 
lakeshores, gravel roads and other relatively clear areas.

Potentially suitable habtiat within 
forest openings on the property and 
open, early successional habitat on 
adjacent lands.

N/A3

Bird Eastern Wood-Pewee SC Forests
Potentially suitable woodland habitat 
on and adjacent to the property. N/A3

Bird Wood Thrush SC Mature forests
Potentially suitable woodland habitat 
on and adjacent to the property. N/A3

Reptile Snapping Turtle SC Wetland No suitable habitat. N/A3

Insect Monarch Butterfly SC
Meadow habitat where milkweed grows.

Potentially suitable habitat on and 
adjacent to the property. N/A3

1List compiled based on  SAR known/expected or documented to occur within the general area
2 Protection status under Ontario's Endangered Species Act , 2007 (ESA).   Endangered (END), Threatened (THR), Special Concern (SC)
3Not Applicable - Ontario's Endangered Species Act , 2007 does not afford individual or habitat protection to species listed as Special Concern 

Table 2 (AEC21-171) 216



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 

APPENDICES 

 Appendix A:  Municipal Planning Information 
 Appendix B:  NVCA Information 
 Appendix C:  Provincial Information 
 Appendix D:  Proposed Site Plan 

217



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 

APPENDIX A 

Appendix A:  Municipal Planning Information 

218



March 1, 2021 

John Clark 
clarkproperties@hotmail.com (sent by email only) 

Re:  Roll 2216 0000 02 0415 0000 
P2-2021 

Dear: Mr. Clark 

Thank you for pre-consulting with the Township of Mulmur regarding your proposed 
severance.  

The lands, described as part of Lot 3, Concession 3 EHS are zoned Countryside Area 
(A) and designated Rural in the Official Plan. The lands are outside of the Provincial
Agricultural Land Baes map.  The lands are within the Provincial Natural Heritage
System.  The lands are also mapped as including steep slope, woodlot, Earth Science
ANSI. It is unknown whether there is significant habitat or significant specifies
associated with the woodlot. A portion of the land is also regulated by the
Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority.

The proposed severed and retained lands would meet the minimum lot requirements 
of the Countryside Area (A) Zone.  Based on the information provided we are unable 
to confirm the compliance of existing buildings and structures and uses with the 
Township’s by-laws.   

The following is our comments based on the level of information that you provided. 
We are unable to confirm the likelihood of an application conforming to the Townships 
policies and regulations, as additional studies are required.  

- NVCA Comments dated February 1, 2021 (Amy Knapp) identified a woodlot
and slope steep erosion hazard and are within the Provincial Natural Heritage
System.  It included a requirement for a Natural Heritage Assessment and
minimum setback to a woodlot of 30 metres.

- Consent application and associated fees of $2500 required.

219

mailto:clarkproperties@hotmail.com


2 

- Minimum Distance Separation (MDS) calculation is required to confirm distance
between bank barn on lands located directly south of subject lands.  From a
preliminary calculation, it is anticipated that the building envelop would need to
be shifted west to comply with the MDS requirement, assuming the barn is
capable of housing livestock and the manure storage is in proximity to the barn.

- Subject lands include and Earth Science ANSI, being the Primrose-Boyne
Valley Provincial ANSI.  Confirmation from the Ministry of Natural Resources
regarding the unrestricted use and proposed development is required.

- Review of the Township’s Tree Cutting By-law and confirmation that the
proposed development will comply or that approval is required for the
development.  Approval is not guaranteed.

- Confirmation from the NVCA required regarding wildlife habitat and whether an
EIS is required.

- Confirmation from the Ministry of Natural Resources on whether there are any
species at risk. This may trigger an EIS.

- Driveway location would be subject to an entrance permit, and the exact
location can not be confirmed without a formal application.

- Pre-Consultation with the County of Dufferin is recommended.

Sincerely, 

Tracey Atkinson 
Township of Mulmur 

cc. Amy Knapp, NVCA (via email only)
John Willmetts, Director of Public Works
Jenny Li, Dufferin County Planner

220



1

Lisa Moran

From: John Clark [clarkproperty@hotmail.ca]
Sent: March-12-21 10:59 AM
To: Lisa Moran
Subject: Fw: Preliminary Comments for P2-2021 Clark Severance 

From: Tracey Atkinson <tatkinson@mulmur.ca> 

Sent: March 3, 2021 11:29 AM 

To: John Clark <clarkproperty@hotmail.ca> 

Subject: FW: Preliminary Comments for P2-2021 Clark Severance 

Hi John,  

Please see the comments below from Dufferin County. 

Kind regards,  

Tracey Atkinson, BES MCIP RPP Dipl M.M. | CAO | Planner | Acting Clerk 

Township of Mulmur | 758070 2nd Line E Mulmur, ON L9V 0G8 

Phone 705-466-3341 ext. 222 | Fax 705-466-2922 | tatkinson@mulmur.ca 

Join our email list to receive important information and keep up to date on the latest Township news. 

From: Jenny Li <jli@dufferincounty.ca>  

Sent: March 3, 2021 10:49 AM 

To: Tracey Atkinson <tatkinson@mulmur.ca> 

Subject: RE: Preliminary Comments for P2-2021 Clark Severance 

Good morning Tracey,  

Please see the preliminary comments I have regarding the proposed severance. Let me know if you have any questions. 

221



2

The subject property is Within the Rural Lands Designation in the County Official Plan (Schedule C). Under Section 4.3.2 Permitted Uses allow limited 

residential development, which includes no more than three new lots or units. And Under Section 4.3.3 Land Use Policies, development in rural lands will be 

subject to the policies of Section 7.3, with respect to servicing. All farm and non-farm development, including lot creation and new/expanding livestock facilities, 

will comply with the MDS as implemented through the applicable local municipal planning documents. The subject property is located on a local road,  access to 

a municipal road will require approval from the Township. Lot creation in rural lands will only be permitted in accordance with the policies of the County Official 

Plan and the local municipal Official Plan  

Natural Heritage Features and Functions 

The subject property is within the Provincial Natural Heritage System and contains Earth Science ANSI (Primrose-Boyne Valley), which is identified on Schedule E 

of the County Official Plan. Development and site alteration will not be permitted within or adjacent to ANSI’s unless it has been demonstrated that there will be 

no negative impacts on the natural features or their ecological functions through the preparation of an EIS. Also, there are woodlands on and adjacent to the 

property and the intent of the County Official Plan is to conserve existing woodlands and vegetation and prohibit incompatible land uses that deter their long 

term benefits. Woodlands are illustrated on Schedule E. Development and site alteration will not be permitted within or adjacent to significant woodlands 

unless it has been demonstrated that there will be no negative impacts on the natural features or their ecological functions through the preparation of an EIS. 

Consultation with the Township and NVCA regarding the scope of an EIS.  

6.2.1 Flooding hazards, steep slopes, unstable soils and erosion hazards 

The application should address the policies of Section 6.2.1 of the County Official Plan regarding hazard lands and ensure any necessary setbacks or buffers are 

appropriate. Policy 6.2.1 directs that development (including lot creation), be directed to areas outside of hazard lands.  

5.4.2 Sourcewater Protection 

Under Appendix 2 (Source Water Protection) the subject property is located within the Significant Groundwater Recharge Area. Policy 5.4.2(c) states that prior 

to the approval of development applications within designated vulnerable areas, the proponents shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of the County, local 

municipality, Conservation Authority and Province, where necessary, that the quality and quantity of municipal drinking water sources will not be negatively 

impacted. Consultation occur with the Township of Mulmur and the Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority (NVCA) related to the potential impacts to 

source water. 

Jenny 

Jenny Li, Planning Coordinator | Development and Tourism| County of Dufferin| Phone: 519.941.2816 Ext: 2509 | jli@dufferincounty.ca | 

55 Zina St, Orangeville, ON L9W 1E5 

We are a new department at the County of Dufferin! The Development and Tourism Department includes Planning, Building Services, Economic 

Development, Tourism and the Museum of Dufferin.  

Visit our services online at DufferinCounty.ca | JoininDufferin  | DufferinMuseum.com 

222



3

This message (including attachments, if any) is intended to be confidential and solely for the addressee. If you received this e-mail in error, please 
delete it and advise me immediately. E-mail transmission cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error-free and the sender does not accept liability for 
errors or omissions.  

223



796149

796152

796142

796155

796186

796173

796183

796161

796177

796155

796186 Third Line Mulmur

© OpenStreetMap (and) contributors, CC-BY-SA

Assessment Lot Parcels

Address Points

Official Plan Rural Lands

Provincial Plan Areas

4/23/2021, 3:56:28 PM
0 0.06 0.110.03 mi

0 0.09 0.170.04 km

1:4,514

Dufferin County
Map data © OpenStreetMap contributors, CC-BY-SA |

224



796186

796173

796183

796161

796177

796155

796186 Third Line Mulmur - Schedule E Natural Heritage Features

Dufferin, Maxar, Esri, HERE, Garmin, iPC, NRCan

Address Points

Assessment Lot Parcels

Dufferin County Boundary

Dufferin County Municipal Boundaries

Niagara Escarpment Plan Area (S. 2.3)

Woodlands (S. 5.3.4)

Regulatory Limit - Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority

4/23/2021, 4:01:15 PM
0 0.06 0.110.03 mi

0 0.09 0.170.04 km

1:4,514

Dufferin County
Dufferin, Maxar | Esri, HERE, Garmin, iPC, NRCan |

225



796186

796173

796183

796161

796177

796155

796149

796152

796142

796155

796186 Third Line - Schedule E1 Natural Heritage System (Preliminary)

Dufferin, Maxar, Esri, HERE, Garmin, iPC, NRCan

Address Points

Assessment Lot Parcels

Dufferin County Boundary

Dufferin County Community Settlement Areas Municipal Boundaries

Niagara Escarpment Plan Area (S. 2.3)

Niagara Escarpment Plan (S.2.3)

Escarpment Protection Area

County Preliminary Natural Heritage System

4/23/2021, 4:03:56 PM
0 0.06 0.110.03 mi

0 0.09 0.170.04 km

1:4,514

Dufferin County
Esri, HERE, Garmin, iPC, NRCan | Dufferin, Maxar |

226



Appendix A: Excerpt from the Township of Mulmur Official Plan Schedule A1 – Land Use Designations 

Property Location 

227



Appendix A: Excerpt from the Township of Mulmur Official Plan Schedule B2 – Category Two Natural Features 

Property Location 

228



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 

APPENDIX B 

Appendix B:  NVCA Information 

229



1

Lisa Moran

From: John Clark [clarkproperty@hotmail.ca]
Sent: March-12-21 10:57 AM
To: Lisa Moran
Subject: Fw: NVCA comments - Severance inquiry for 796186 3rd line (Mulmur)

From: Amy Knapp <aknapp@nvca.on.ca> 

Sent: February 2, 2021 9:47 AM 

To: 'John Clark' <clarkproperty@hotmail.ca> 

Subject: RE: NVCA comments - Severance inquiry for 796186 3rd line (Mulmur)

Good Morning John,

I am not sure whom in the Planning Department you may have spoken to in the past and I do not have any written documentation confirming the same . 

However, I can confirm that the Provincial Policy Statement (PPS)  has identified this property to be within the Natural Heritage System and based on aerial 

photograph below, the natural heritage feature would be the woodlot.   

In order to confirmed the significance of the natural heritage features an EIS is required to assess the potential impacts of development on such features, and 

evaluate conformity of the proposal with relevant natural heritage-related policies.  This requires an applicant  retain a qualified ecologist to prepare this 

submission, at which point the consultant shall contact NVCA planning staff to discuss the appropriate scope of required studies.

The PPS defines a natural heritage system and feature to be the following:

Natural heritage system: means a system made up of natural heritage features and areas, and linkages intended to provide connectivity (at the regional or site 

level) and support natural processes which are necessary to maintain biological and geological diversity, natural functions, viable populations of indigenous 

species, and ecosystems. These systems can include natural heritage features and areas, federal and provincial parks and conservation reserves, other natural 

heritage features, lands that have been restored or have the potential to be restored to a natural state, areas that support hydrologic functions, and working 

landscapes that enable ecological functions to continue. The Province has a recommended approach for identifying natural heritage systems, but municipal 

approaches that achieve or exceed the same objective may also be used.  

Natural heritage features and areas: means features and areas, including significant wetlands, significant coastal wetlands, other coastal wetlands in 

Ecoregions 5E, 6E and 7E, fish habitat, significant woodlands and significant valleylands in Ecoregions 6E and 7E (excluding islands in Lake Huron and the St. 

Marys River), habitat of endangered species and threatened species, significant wildlife habitat, and significant areas of natural and scientific interest, which are 

important for their environmental and social values as a legacy of the natural landscapes of an area.

230



2

Significant: means 

a) in regard to wetlands, coastal wetlands and areas of natural and scientific interest, an area identified as provincially significant by the Ontario Ministry of

Natural Resources and Forestry using evaluation procedures established by the Province, as amended from time to time;

I hope this clarifies our position.  Any other questions, please let me know.

Amy Knapp│Planner III 
Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority
8195 8th Line, Utopia, ON L0M 1T0
T 705-424-1479 ext.233│F 705-424-2115
aknapp@nvca.on.ca│nvca.on.ca

I am currently working remotely as the Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority is taking preventative measures to limit the spread of COVID-19. You 

may experience some delays or disruptions as we follow recommendations of health professionals to slow the virus from spreading.

This e-mail message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential and privileged information.  Any unauthorized 
review, use, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the original message.

From: John Clark [mailto:clarkproperty@hotmail.ca]  

Sent: Tuesday, February 2, 2021 6:55 AM 

To: Amy Knapp <aknapp@nvca.on.ca> 

Subject: Re: NVCA comments - Severance inquiry for 796186 3rd line (Mulmur)

Good morning Amy that you for your response. I am a little confused. I previously spoke to someone at nvca who looked at it on a map and 

indicated that there was no natural heritage on the property. Can you tell me where it is identified as natural heritage and what defines natural 

heritage please. Also who does natural heritage assessments.

Thanks

John

From: Amy Knapp <aknapp@nvca.on.ca> 

Sent: February 1, 2021 1:28 PM 

To: 'John Clark' <clarkproperty@hotmail.ca> 

Cc: Tracey Atkinson <tatkinson@mulmur.ca>; Morgen Wilson <mwilson@nvca.on.ca> 

Subject: NVCA comments - Severance inquiry for 796186 3rd line (Mulmur)

Good Morning John, 

The Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority (NVCA) has reviewed your inquiry for a possible severance (no concept plan 
provided) in accordance Natural Heritage and Natural Hazard policies established under the Provincial Policy Statement 2020 
(PPS) and our Planning and Regulation Guidelines established under the Conservation Authorities Act. Based upon our mandate 
and policies, the NVCA offer the following comments for consideration. 

231



3

Ontario Regulation 172/06 

We advise that a small portion of the property is regulated by the NVCA due to slope erosion hazards. 

Further, the majority of the property also contains a woodlot feature as illustrated on the attached map below. 

Natural Heritage Impacts 

Woodlands impact(s) 
SECTION 2.1.5 Policies contained within the PPS prohibit development (including lot creation) and site alteration in significant 
natural heritage features unless it has been demonstrated that there will be no negative impacts on the natural features or their 
ecological functions.  This would involve the undertaking of a Natural Heritage Assessment of the site completed by a qualified 
professional and at the your cost and risk. Further, the undertaking of this the assessment is not a guarantee an approval and 
results may not necessarily be in your favor. 

It appears woodlands would more than likely be impacted by development based on the location of the woodlots relative to the 
location of a proposed new lot and potential building envelope due to environmental restrictions (noted below). 

Our minimum setback from all woodlots is 30 metres which in this case would reduce the amount of land available for 
development.  

232



4

Adjacent to Wetlands or Woodlands impact(s) 
SECTION 2.1.8 Policies contained within the PPS prohibit development (including lot creation) and site alteration adjacent to 
significant natural heritage features unless it unless the ecological function of the adjacent lands has been evaluated and it has 
been demonstrated that there will be no negative impacts on the natural features or on their ecological functions. 

Conclusions 

In summary, it appears from a preliminary environmental perspective there may be some challenges and without a firm concept 
or supporting technical studies (Natural Heritage Assessment) staff are unable to provide a position (for or against).  The subject 
lands have been identified to be within the Provincial Natural Heritage System.  Therefore, staff recommend pre-consultation 
with the County and the Township prior to undertaking any technical study as it relates to severance policies within Natural 
Heritage features which may provide you with a clear direction. 

These comments should be considered preliminary in nature.  NVCA staff appreciates the opportunity to comment at this stage 
in the process.  Should you require any further information, please feel free to contact the undersigned. 

Amy Knapp│Planner III 
Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority
8195 8th Line, Utopia, ON L0M 1T0
T 705-424-1479 ext.233│F 705-424-2115
aknapp@nvca.on.ca│nvca.on.ca

I am currently working remotely as the Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority is taking preventative measures to limit the spread of COVID-19. You 

may experience some delays or disruptions as we follow recommendations of health professionals to slow the virus from spreading.

This e-mail message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential and privileged information.  Any unauthorized 
review, use, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the original message.

From: John Clark [mailto:clarkproperty@hotmail.ca] 

Sent: Monday, January 18, 2021 3:00 PM 

To: Amy Knapp <aknapp@nvca.on.ca> 

Subject: Severance application

Hi Amy, I have a property in Mulmur that is 50 acres. Address is 796186 3rd line. I would like to apply for a severance and there is a small corner at 

the back that is regulated by the NVCA. Could you guide me as to what the procedure is through the NVCA? Thank you.

John clark

233



This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for, or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. Users 
of the information displayed in this map product are strongly cautioned to verify all information before making any decisions. Produced by 
Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority under license with the MNRF. Reproduction of this map is prohibited without written permission from the 
Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority. © NVCA and Queen’s Printer for Ontario, 2020. 

Property Screening Report

03-May-2021

Do I need a permit?
Submit a Property Inquiry
Google Driving Directions
Info Regarding Covid-19

Email the Regulations Department
permits@nvca.on.ca

NVCA Contact InformationInformation Resources for 
Regulated Properties

(705) 424-1479
8195 8th Line,

www.nvca.on.ca

Monday to Friday
8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.

Utopia, ON L0M 1T0

except between 12:00 p.m. - 1:00 p.m.

234



1

Lisa Moran

From: Mike Francis [mfrancis@nvca.on.ca]
Sent: March 23, 2021 11:28 AM
To: Lisa Moran; Amy Knapp
Cc: tatkinson@mulmur.ca; jli@dufferincounty.ca
Subject: RE: 796186 3rd Line, Mulmur - EIS Terms of Reference

Hi, Lisa.  Some thoughts on your proposal below: 

Please ensure that your report applies the collected natural heritage information to provide an 
overall assessment of conformity and consistency with relevant provincial and local land-use 
planning policies.  The subject parcel appears to contain areas mapped by Dufferin County as 
Natural Heritage System.  This should serve as the relevant NHS layer for application and 
demonstration of conformity with policies of the provincial Growth Plan.  In order to further 
apply Growth Plan policies, please ensure that your EIS incorporate a figure which depicts the 
limits of any Key Natural Heritage Features (KNHF) and/or Key Hydrologic Features (KHF) in 
relation to proposed development.  Note that development in this context is defined as the 
actual creation of the lot itself, and not limited to a potential future dwelling envelope on the 
proposed new lot.  The scope of your data collection efforts should be planned accordingly.  With 
a proposed highly-scoped field program, it would be expected that any assumptions regarding 
natural heritage feature presence/absence would be made conservatively.   

It does not appear that I have any additional information that might assist in your report. 
 NVCA’s regulatory wetland layer does not show any mapped wetland on this parcel.  However, 
your vegetation community assessment will need to confirm if this is accurate.  

Hope this is helpful, and happy to discuss further as needed. 

Mike Francis, H.B.Sc., M.E.S., E.P. | Planning Ecologist 

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority 
8195 8th Line, Utopia, ON L0M 1T0  
T 705-424-1479 ext. 236 │F 705-424-2115  
mfrancis@nvca.on.ca│nvca.on.ca  

IMPORTANT NOTE 
I am currently working remotely as the Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority is taking preventative measures to 
limit the spread of COVID-19. You may experience some delays or disruptions as we follow recommendations of 
health professionals in this regard. 

This e-mail message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential and privileged information. Any 
unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the 
original message. 

From: Lisa Moran <Lisa@Azimuthenvironmental.Com>  
Sent: Wednesday, March 17, 2021 4:51 PM 
To: Amy Knapp <aknapp@nvca.on.ca> 
Cc: tatkinson@mulmur.ca; jli@dufferincounty.ca 
Subject: 796186 3rd Line, Mulmur - EIS Terms of Reference 

Hello Amy, 

We have been retained by the landowner, John Clark, to complete an EIS for the property located at 796186 3 rd Line, 
Township of Mulmur. 

235



2

The property is designated as Rural within the Township of Mulmur (Township) and County of Dufferin (County) Official 
Plans.  

The Primrose-Boyne Valley Earth Science ANSI is present on the property and it is primarily wooded with an existing 
single residential dwelling. The woodland on the property (and adjacent lands) may meet the definition of “significant” 
as per the Provincial Planning Policy (PPS), Township and County Official Plan. Current applicable policies (provincial, 
County and Township) currently may permit development within a Significant Woodland through the completion of an 
EIS provided it demonstrates that there will be no negative impacts on the natural features or their ecological functions. 

The southwest portion of the property is currently regulated by the Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority (NVCA) 
due to the presence of slope hazards. 

The proponent wishes to sever a parcel with the intent of constructing a single residential dwelling on the retained 
parcel. The NVCA, Township and County have advised that an EIS is required. 

The purpose of this study will be to identify natural heritage features and functions via desktop review combined with a 
single site visit undertaken in winter/spring 2021 to identify potential Key Natural Heritage Features on the property. A 
screening for the habitat of Species at Risk (SAR) listed under the Ontario’s Endangered Species Act, 2007 (ESA) 
associated with development area and adjacent lands will also be carried out as a part of this assignment. A potential 
building envelope and strategy for mitigation and/or restoration will be recommended as a component of the EIS 
report. 

Based on this information, Azimuth proposes the following scope of work for the EIS: 

Phase 1: Natural Heritage Constraints and Consultation  
This phase will assess the extent of natural features on the property, consult with the NVCA, Township and County to 
confirm the Terms of Reference and discuss the feasibility for a severance and construction of a single detached 
dwelling.  

∙ Submit an information request to the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks (MECP) to obtain
existing natural heritage data on and adjacent to the property, including SAR that have potential to occur in the
area;

∙ Contact the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry (MNRF) regarding the Earth Science ANSI regarding the
proposed land use (already completed by proponent – correspondence to be provided in EIS);

∙ Contact the regulatory agencies (NVCA, Township, County) and confirm the Terms of Reference for the EIS and
generally discuss the feasibility of the project;

∙ Conduct a desktop review of existing natural heritage features;
∙ Complete one (1) site visit of the property (winter/spring 2021) to confirm the extent of natural features onsite

which will include:
o Define and map vegetation communities following protocol of the Ecological Land

Classification for Southern Ontario. Survey efforts will focus within and adjacent to the potential
development areas (i.e. within 50m);

o Search for Butternut;
o Record all wildlife observations;

 Assess wildlife habitat functions according to provincial criteria for identification of Significant Wildlife Habitat;
 Complete an assessment of potential SAR and their habitats that could be affected within the study area;
 Subsequent to the site visit, provide a brief e-mail summary and preliminary figure (including a potential

development envelope) to the agencies with to generally discuss the feasibility of the severance and
subsequent construction of a single detached dwelling.

236



3

Phase 2: Environmental Impact Study 
Phase 2 will include preparation of an EIS report for submission to the regulatory agencies. As part of the EIS, Azimuth 
will: 

 Identify a potential building envelope and/or assess the potential direct and indirect impacts of the
proposed works on the natural heritage features and functions identified on or adjacent to the property;

 Prepare an EIS (electronic) for your review and comment. The EIS will include information on impact
mitigation/avoidance where required.

At this time, we request that you review and provide comment on the proposed scope of the EIS. We would also like to 
take the opportunity to request any available background information that may be useful for inclusion within the EIS. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you wish to discuss. 

Regards, 

Lisa Moran 
Terrestrial Ecologist 

Azimuth Environmental Consulting, Inc 
642 Welham Road 
Barrie, ON, L4N 9A1 
ph: (705) 721-8451 ext 202 
cell: (705) 331-1479 
lisa@azimuthenvironmental.com 
www.azimuthenvironmental.com 

Providing services in hydrogeology, terrestrial and aquatic ecology & environmental engineering 

At this time, I am working remotely. The Azimuth office is currently closed to the public but I can be reached on my cell or 
email.  

237



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 

APPENDIX C 

Appendix C:  Provincial Information 

238



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 1 

Information Request 

Date: April 23, 2021  Project Reference: AEC 21-171 

Azimuth Contact:  Lisa Moran, Terrestrial Ecologist 
lisa@azimuthenvironmental.com 

Attachments: Figure outlining study area 

Project Location: 796186 Third Line, Township of Mulmur, Dufferin County. UTM 
coordinates: Northern limit - 17 T 573689.63 E 4885561.84. 

Activity Description: Species at Risk (SAR) Assessment for proposed severance and 
construction of a single detached dwelling. 

The following sources were queries for natural heritage information related to the 
general location of the property: 

 Species at Risk Ontario (i.e. Ontario Regulation 230/08);
 Land Information Ontario;
 Natural Heritage Information Centre (Squares 17NJ7285, 17NJ7385, 17NJ7485);
 Ontario Breeding Bird Atlas (Square 17TNJ78); and
 Ontario Reptile and Amphibian Atlas (Square 17NJ78).

Natural Heritage Features on and Adjacent to the Property: 
 Deciduous woodland within and adjacent to study area;
 Coniferous/Mixed woodland (plantation) within study area; and
 Within Primrose-Boyne Valley Earth Science ANSI.

Consolidated SAR List for the Study Area and Adjacent Lands: 
 Birds: Barn Swallow (THR), Bank Swallow (THR), Bobolink (THR), Chimney

Swift (THR), Common Nighthawk (SC), Eastern Meadowlark (THR), Eastern
Wood-Pewee (SC), Wood Thrush (SC);

 Insects: Monarch Butterfly (SC);
 Mammals: Little Brown Myotis (END), Northern Myotis (END), and Tri-colored

Bat (END);
 Plants: Butternut (END); and
 Reptiles: Snapping Turtle (SC).

239



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 2 

Information Request 
Please confirm that the SAR list above includes all species of concern to the MECP and if 
not, please amend the list for accuracy.  

240



DAYSTAMP:

Figure No.

REFERENCE:

C

DATE ISSUED:

PROJECT NO.:
CREATED BY:

ONSULTING, INC.ZIMUTHA ENVIRONMENTAL

LEGEND:

Q:\21 Projects\21-171 Clark EIS - Mulmur\04.0 - Drafting\21-171.dwg

Site Location

796186 Third Line,
Mulmur, ON

March 2021
JLM
21-171
MNRF 1

Approx. Property Boundary

Regional Map
Orangeville

Shelburne

Wasaga Beach

Barrie

Collingwood

Borden

241

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORIZONTAL SCALE   1:25,000

AutoCAD SHX Text
750m

AutoCAD SHX Text
250m

AutoCAD SHX Text
0



9,028

796186 Third Line Mulmur

Kilometers0.30 0.16

Legend

Notes:

Make-a-Map: Natural Heritage Areas
Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry

This map should not be relied on as a precise indicator of routes or locations, nor as a guide 
to navigation. The Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry(OMNRF) shall not be 
liable in any way for the use of, or reliance upon, this map or any information on this map.

0.3

© Copyright for Ontario Parcel data is held by Queen’s Printer for Ontario and its licensors 
[2020] and may not be reproduced without permission. THIS IS NOT A PLAN OF SURVEY. © Queen's Printer for Ontario, 2020

Map created: 4/23/2021

GTA 2005 / SWOOP 2006 / Simcoe-Muskoka-Dufferin © FirstBase Solutions, 2005 / 2006 / 2008
Imagery Copyright Notices: DRAPE © Aéro-Photo (1961) Inc., 2008 - 2009

This map may not display all features listed in the legend because the feature layer 
was not turned on at the time the map was made; the features do not exist in the 
geographic range; or features have not been mapped.  Absence of a feature in the 
map does not mean they do not exist in this area.

242



1

Lisa Moran

From: Snell, Shamus (MECP) [Shamus.Snell@ontario.ca]
Sent: May 18, 2021 1:36 PM
To: Lisa Moran
Subject: MECP SARB Review: Information Request 796186 Third Line Mulmur

Hi Lisa, 

The Ministry of Environment, Conservation and Parks (MECP) SARB has conducted review of 796186 Third 
Line, Township of Mulmur for Species at Risk (SAR) occurrences and has not detected any additional SAR 
occurrences which were not already identified in the consolidated species list. 

While this review represents MECP’s best currently available information, it is important to note that a lack of 
information for a site does not mean that SAR or their habitat are not present. There are many areas where 
the Government of Ontario does not currently have information, especially in areas not previously surveyed. 
On‐site assessments will need to be performed to verify site conditions, identify and confirm presence of 
species at risk and/or their habitats. 

It is the responsibility of the proponent to ensure that SAR are not killed, harmed, or harassed, and that their 
habitat is not damaged or destroyed through the proposed activities to be carried out on the site. If the 
proposed activities can not avoid impacting protected species and their habitats then the proponent will need 
to apply for a authorization under the Endangered Species Act (ESA). 

Regards, 

Shamus Snell 
A/ Management Biologist 
Species at Risk Branch 
Ministry of Environment, Conservation and Parks 
Email: shamus.snell@ontario.ca 

From: Lisa Moran <Lisa@Azimuthenvironmental.Com>  
Sent: April 23, 2021 3:30 PM 
To: Species at Risk (MECP) <SAROntario@ontario.ca> 
Subject: Request for Preliminary Screening ‐ 796186 Third Line Mulmur 

CAUTION -- EXTERNAL E-MAIL - Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender. 
Good afternoon,  

Please find attached a request for background Species at Risk information related to 796186 Third Line Mulmur. 

Regards, 

Lisa Moran 
Terrestrial Ecologist 

Azimuth Environmental Consulting, Inc 

243



2

642 Welham Road 
Barrie, ON, L4N 9A1 
ph: (705) 721-8451 ext 202 
cell: (705) 331-1479 
lisa@azimuthenvironmental.com 
www.azimuthenvironmental.com 

Providing services in hydrogeology, terrestrial and aquatic ecology & environmental engineering 

At this time, I am  working remotely. The Azimuth office is currently closed to the public but I can be reached on my cell 
or email.  

244



245



1

Lisa Moran

From: John Clark [clarkproperty@hotmail.ca]
Sent: March-12-21 12:42 PM
To: Lisa Moran
Subject: Fw: 796186 3rd Line, Township of Mulmur
Attachments: 1991-12_Boyne_Valley_ES_Checklist.pdf

From: Benner, Kim (MNRF) <kim.benner@ontario.ca> 

Sent: March 4, 2021 9:09 AM 

To: clarkproperty@hotmail.ca <clarkproperty@hotmail.ca> 

Cc: Mott, Ken (MNRF) <ken.mott@ontario.ca> 

Subject: 796186 3rd Line, Township of Mulmur

Hi John,

My colleague, Ken Mott, has asked me to follow-up with you on your questions.

I understand that the Township has asked you to contact our ministry regarding Species at Risk information and Area of Natural and 
Scientific Information related to your property at 796186 3rd Line in the Township of Mulmur.

Our ministry no longer provides advice related to Species at Risk. This responsibility was transferred to the Ministry of Environment, 
Conservation and Parks on April 1, 2019. Please send your enquiry to SAROntario@ontario.ca.

I see that your property is located within the provincially significant earth science Primrose-Boyne River Valley Area of Natural and 
Scientific Interest (ANSI). I have attached an information checklist for this ANSI. This is the best available information that we have to 
describe this ANSI’s features, significance and sensitivity.

Our ministry does not comment on site-specific development proposals (i.e. severances) where the approval authority is the 
municipality. We encourage you to discuss planning related matters with the Township of Mulmur.

If you have any additional questions, please do not hesitate to call or e-mail me.

Regards,

246



2

Kim Benner
District Planner | Midhurst District
Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry
2284 Nursery Road, Midhurst, ON, L9X 1N8
� +1 (249) 288-4563  | � kim.benner@ontario.ca

As part of providing accessible customer service, please let me know if you have any accommodation needs or require communication 
supports or alternate formats.

247



9,028

796186 3rd Line, Township of Mulmur

Kilometers0.30 0.16

Legend

Notes:

Make-a-Map: Natural Heritage Areas
Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry

This map should not be relied on as a precise indicator of routes or locations, nor as a guide 
to navigation. The Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry(OMNRF) shall not be 
liable in any way for the use of, or reliance upon, this map or any information on this map.

0.3

© Copyright for Ontario Parcel data is held by Queen’s Printer for Ontario and its licensors 
[2020] and may not be reproduced without permission. THIS IS NOT A PLAN OF SURVEY. © Queen's Printer for Ontario, 2020

Map created: 5/3/2021

GTA 2005 / SWOOP 2006 / Simcoe-Muskoka-Dufferin © FirstBase Solutions, 2005 / 2006 / 2008
Imagery Copyright Notices: DRAPE © Aéro-Photo (1961) Inc., 2008 - 2009

This map may not display all features listed in the legend because the feature layer 
was not turned on at the time the map was made; the features do not exist in the 
geographic range; or features have not been mapped.  Absence of a feature in the 
map does not mean they do not exist in this area.

248



AZIMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, INC. 

APPENDIX D 

Appendix D:  Proposed Site Plan 

249



250



wsp.com 

MEMO 
TO: County of Dufferin 

FROM: Matt Alexander, Project Manager, WSP 

Angela Zhao, Project Planner, WSP 

SUBJECT: Consent Application (File #: B8-21), CON 3 E E PT LOT 3 RP 7R506 
PART 2, Township of Mulmur, ON 

DATE: June 28, 2021 

Recommendation 
Based on our review, the proposal is consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement, 2020 
and related policies in the Dufferin County Official Plan. It is recommended that:  

• Confirmation be provided as to whether an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS)
is required relative to the presence of woodlands on the subject property; and

• Consultation occur with the Township of Mulmur the Nottawasaga Conservation
Authority (NVCA) related to the potential impacts to source water because the
subject properties are located within a source water protection area (Low Aquifer
Vulnerability and Significant Groundwater Recharge Area).

Summary 
The purpose of the consent application is to sever a parcel of land with an area of 
approximately 4.86 hectare which contains an existing dwelling. The balance of the lands 
consisting primarily of natural heritage features with an area of 15.78 hectares will be 
retained.  

The documents received by WSP on May 28th, 2021 include: 

• Notice of Public Meeting;

The circulation documents were reviewed against the Dufferin County Official Plan. 

Provincial Policy Statement, 2020 (PPS), Province of Ontario’s Natural 
Heritage Mapping  

As a result of Growth Plan 2019, the Province’s Natural Heritage mapping must be studied 
and implemented into the County’s Official Plan before it can be applied at a local level. 
However, as it relates to land use designations, the mapping should continue to be used as 
a guide to determine if the subject property is identified with identified Natural Heritage 

251



Page 2 

features, should the County or local Official Plans not reflect current mapping. Under 
Ontario’s Natural Heritage mapping, the subject property contains woodlands.  

Dufferin County Official Plan (2017) 

The subject property is within the Countryside Area designation under Schedule 
B (Community Structure and Land Use) and within the Rural Lands designation under 
Schedule C (Agricultural Area and Rural Lands) of the County Official Plan. The intent of 
the Rural Lands designation is to protect the natural amenities and rural character of the 
County while promoting development opportunities related to the management or use of 
resources, resource-based recreational uses (including recreational dwellings), tourism, 
limited residential development, home occupations and home industries, and other 
rural land uses that cannot be located in settlement areas.  

Per Section 4.3.3 (m) of the County OP, lot creation will only be permitted in accordance 
with the policies of this Plan and the local municipal official plan. Per Section 4.3.2 of the 
OP, the Rural Lands designation permits limited residential development, which includes 
no more than three new lots or units; 

Schedule E (Natural Heritage Features) identifies woodlands on the subject 
property. Further consultation with the Township of Mulmur, the NVCA should be 
undertaken to determine whether the woodlands are deemed significant and whether the 
proposed development (land division by severance) will have a negative impact on the 
woodlands. Section 5.3.4 of the County Official Plan directs that development and site 
alteration adjacent to significant woodlands is not permitted unless it has been 
demonstrated that there will be no negative impacts on the natural features or their 
ecological functions through preparation of an EIS. 

Under Appendix 2 (Source Water Protection) the subject property is located within 
a source water protection area (Low Aquifer Vulnerability and Significant Groundwater 
Recharge Area). Policy 5.4.2(c) states that prior to the approval of development 

252



Page 3 

applications within designated vulnerable areas, the proponents shall demonstrate to the 
satisfaction of the County, local municipality, Conservation Authority and Province, where 
necessary, that the quality and quantity of municipal drinking water sources will not be 
negatively impacted. It is anticipated that the NVCA will provide further review and 
comments with respect to the requirements for Source Water Protection as it relates to the 
changes proposed on the subject properties.  

Given that the proposed development is not located on a County Road, the Town should 
provide any comments regarding access.  

Recommendation 
Based on our review, the proposal is consistent with the Rural Lands designation and the 
related policies in the Dufferin County Official Plan. It is recommended that:  

• Confirmation be provided as to whether an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS)
is required relative to the presence of woodlands on the subject property; and

• Consultation occur with the Township of Mulmur the Nottawasaga Conservation
Authority (NVCA) related to the potential impacts to source water because the
subject properties are located within a source water protection area (Low Aquifer
Vulnerability and Significant Groundwater Recharge Area).

253



30 Centre Street, Orangeville, ON L9W 2X1 | 519.941.2816 | 

dufferincounty.ca   

Date: June 16, 2021 

To: Tracey Atkinson, CAO/Planner 

Re: Application for Consent – B8-2021 

The purpose to sever a 12-acre lot containing an existing house and shed. The retained 

lot is proposed to be 38.2 acres in size. 

1066886 Ontario Inc c/o John Clark 

Concession 3 E, E Pt Lot 3 

This letter serves to confirm that I have commenced a preliminary review of the application and 

other information submitted with your request for comments. 

Please be advised that the application for the above noted address has not revealed any issues 

with regards to the Application for Consent. The Building Department has no other comments at 

this time. 

If you should have any questions pertaining to this letter, please do not hesitate to contact the 

undersigned. 

Regards, 

Rita Geurts, M.A.A.T.O., CBCO 

Building Inspector / Plans Examiner 

T: 519-941-2362 Ext. 2704 

rgeurts@dufferincounty.ca 

254

mailto:rgeurts@dufferincounty.ca


Date: July 21, 2021 

To: Committee of Adjustment 

From: John Willmetts, Director of Public Works 

Re: B8 – 2021 CLARK 

ROAD WIDENING SEVERED AND RETAINED 

With respect to this application, I request that the Committee impose the following 
conditions, 

1. Acquire a road widening (3.05 metres) from the severed and retained portions.

It would be advisable to impose this condition to allow the Township more flexibility to 
perform necessary road improvements in the future. 

Yours truly, 

John Willmetts 
John Willmetts 
Director of Public Works 
Township of Mulmur 

255



Site Visit
(Driveway Location) 

Date:        July 21, 2021 
To:     Committee of Adjustment 
From:     John Willmetts, Director of Public Works 

Re: B-8 – 2021 CLARK 

Comments: 

This proposed severance has a suitable location for a driveway. The final 
location will be determined when the entrance permit is granted. 

Regards, 

John Willmetts 
Director of Public Works 

256



Page 1 of 6 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT 
SUBJECT: Tracey Atkinson, BES MCIP RPP 
MEETING DATE: July 21, 2021 
SUBJECT: B08-2021 (Clark) 
______________________________________________________________________ 

PURPOSE: 

To assess the planning merits of an application for consent to sever a building lot. 

The application proposes to sever a +/- 4.8 ha (12 acre) lot containing an existing house and 
shed. The retained lot is proposed to be 15.4 ha (38.2 acres) in size and comprises vacant 
woodlands (Natural Heritage System and Earth Science ANSI). 

BACKGROUND: 

EXISTING CONFIGURATION 

Frontage (approximate) 300m 
Area (approximate) 20ha 
Use  Woodlot with dwelling and shed 

FILE NO B8-2021 
ROLL NO 2216000002041500000 
OWNER 1066886 Ontario Inc c/o John Clark 
ADDRESS 796186 3rd Line 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: CON 3 E E PT LOT 3 RP 7R506 PART 2 
OFFICIAL PLAN: Rural 
ZONING: Countryside Area 
NEC/Greenbelt: N/A 
NVCA Regulated: Yes 
Natural Heritage System Yes 
Agricultural Land Base No 
Application Submission Date: May 10, 2021 
Public Meeting Date: July 21, 2021 

257



Page 2 of 6 

PROPOSED CONFIGURATION 
 North portion South portion 

Area (approx.) 4.8ha (12 acres) 15.4ha (38 acres) 
Frontage (approx.) 168m (550’) 137m (450’) 
Use Existing House and Shed Building lot/woodlot 

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT: 
This application is aligned with the following strategic plan path: 
4. Growing a Sustainable Mulmur: Being Proactive in Sustainable Initiatives to ensure
the long term well being of Mulmur (includes Resources/Financial/People).

FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 
Processing costs are generally covered by the application fee. 
It is noted that lots with10 acres of woodlot may be eligible for tax incentive programs. 
As such, consideration should be had to the proposed lot area.   

ANALYSIS: 

The application was supported by the following submissions: 

• Planning Justification Report, Loft Planning, May 13, 2021
• Scoped Environmental Impact Study, Azimuth Consulting
• Severance Sketch, Chritan Limited April 2021

PLANNING POLICIES & PROVISIONS: 

Provincial Policy Statement (2020) 
The 2020 Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) contains broad policy direction and policy 
direction on lot creation. The PPS provides for limited development on Rural lands.   

The PPS also provides protection for natural heritage features and hazards and 
agricultural operations.    

Growth Plan (2019, consolidated Aug 2020) 

A Place to Grow: Growth plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe, provides high-level 
policy direction relating to the development of healthy, safe and balanced communities.  
The Growth Plan directs the majority of development to settlement areas except where 
otherwise permitted.  Section 2.2.9(3) of the GP provides for rural land uses that will not 
negatively affect agriculture and Section 2.2.9.6 allows for consideration of some lots 
within the rural area.   

Natural Heritage System 

258



Page 3 of 6 

Provincial mapping of the Natural Heritage System for the Growth Plan does not apply 
until it has been implemented in the County Official Plan.  Until that time, the policies 
apply to areas that were mapped in the existing County and local plans.  

The subject lands are entirely within an “undifferentiated” area of the Provincial Natural 
Heritage System.  The lands include a wooded area.  The Township maps the woodlot, 
which is significant in size and extends over neighbouring properties.  

5.20.1 Significant Woodlands 

For the purposes of this Plan, a woodland is significant if it constitutes a forested area of 
at least 10 ha in size and  is: ecologically important in terms of features such as species 
composition, age of trees and stand history; functionally important due to its contribution 
to the broader landscape because of its location, size or due to the amount of forest 
cover in the planning area; or economically important due to site quality, species 
composition, or past management history. 

Single, multiple or successive development or site alteration activities resulting in 
degradation that threatens the health and integrity of significant woodlands or their 
ecological functions, shall not be permitted. 

Development and site alteration shall not be permitted in significant woodlands or on 
adjacent lands unless it has been demonstrated, through an EIS, that there will be no 
negative impacts on the woodland or on its ecological functions. Adjacent lands are 
defined for the purposes of this Section as lands within 120 m. of the significant 
woodland. 

The Environmental Impact Study, submitted on behalf of the applicant is summarized as 
follows: 

• The environmental conditions are not limiting to the proposed development.
• No negative impacts ore anticipated to the habitat of any documented Species of Risk

nor the ecological function of Candidate Significant Woodlands, Wildlife Habitat or
ANSI provided suggested mitigation measures are implemented.

• The application conforms to the applicable environmental policies.
• Mitigation measures (found in section 8 of the report) are necessary to ensure policy

compliance.

Implementation of the mitigation measures could be achieved through a building envelop 
agreement, which can locate the future building placement  

Niagara Escarpment Plan 
N/A 

NVCA 
The subject lands are partially regulated, with the regulated portion being in the South-
East corner of the subject lands, following the steep slope feature mapping.  

County Official Plan 

259



Page 4 of 6 

The subject lands are designated “Countryside Area” and “Rural Lands” in the County 
Official Plan schedules.  The Countryside designation provides for the protection of 
agricultural areas, while allowing some growth and development. The County mapping 
also identifies an Earth Science ANSI and wooded area, as well as a wetland south of 
the subject lands. Comments are anticipated from the County of Dufferin related to the 
County OP policies and access. 

Mulmur Official Plan (2012) 

The Rural lot creation policies of section 6.2.5 permit the consideration of the proposed 
severance, being the third lot creation, for a total of four parcels from an original 40ha 
parcel.  The Rural lot creation policies also speak to agricultural impacts. The policy 
states that:  

Severances involving the creation of one and, in appropriate circumstances, two or a 
maximum of three new lots from the original 40 ha. Township half-lot, may be considered 
by the Committee of Adjustment where it can be shown that there will be no adverse 
effects on nearby farming operations, where impacts on the resources and natural 
features identifies on the schedules to this Plan are minimal and acceptable, and where 
the rural character of the area will be maintained. 

In assessing applications for severance, priority over the application shall be given to 
nearby agricultural operations on lands designated Agricultural under this Plan, especially 
those existing or potential operations having to conform to the Minimum Distance 
Separation requirements and/or the requirements of, and any regulations made pursuant 
to the Nutrient Management Act. 

Every house introduced within an Agricultural area limits the flexibility of future barn 
placement. The proposed severance is a vacant parcel and is zoned to allow for the 
development of one single detached dwelling, to be located almost anywhere on the 
property.  The proposed severance would permit a second buildable parcel, which 
therefore could result in double the residential impact on agricultural operations.    

There are livestock operations in proximity to the subject lands as well as barns that are 
capable of being used for livestock. The applicants retained a consultant to undertake a 
MDS calculation. The MDS circles of influence are included on the sketch provided by 
the applicant.  The circles of influence do extend onto the subject lands but do provide 
sufficient area for a dwelling outside of the circle.  

260



Page 5 of 6 

The Mulmur Official Plan contains policies with respect to maintaining the Rural 
Character, by staggering lots to limit the appearance of strip development and to provide 
a look of spaciousness, dominate by trees and open land opposed to dwellings.  The 
MDS setback require will result in a new house on the proposed retained lands likely 
being setback significantly from the right of way, although there may also be a envelop 
close to the road that would avoid MDS.  

The details of the building envelop, MDS and EIS mitigation can be addressed through a 
building envelop agreement. 

Zoning By-law 

The subject lands are zoned Countryside (A).   The Countryside (A) zone provides for a 
range of land uses and are required to have a minimum lot area of 2.0 hectares and 
frontage of 100m.  

The proposed severed and retained lots would meet the minimum requirements of the 
Countryside (A) zone.  

A range of permitted uses would be permitted subject to meeting other applicable 
policies.   

261



Page 6 of 6 

AGENCY COMMENTS 
Comments are anticipated from the NVCA with respect to the EIS. Public Works and 
Dufferin County have provided comments which are included in the information 
package. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended: 

THAT the Committee defer this application until commenting agencies have had 
sufficient time to review the supporting EIS. 

OR

THAT Committee consider approval of the proposed severance, subject to the 
standard conditions, and specific conditions identified through the studies, agency 
comments and public concerns, and more specifically, that the conditions 
recognize the mitigation measures recommended in section 8 of the EIS, 
MDS setbacks and a building envelop maximizing tree retention. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Tracey Atkinson 
__________________________________ 
Tracey Atkinson, BES MCIP RPP 
Planner 

262



DECISION OF COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT WITH REASONS 
(The Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. 13, s. 45 (8), 1994 c. 23, s.26.) 

CERTIFICATION 
(The Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. p. 13 s. 45 (10) 

I, Tracey Atkinson, Clerk of the Township of Mulmur, hereby certify that the above is a true copy of the decision of 
the Committee of Adjustment for the Township of Mulmur with respect to the application recorded herein. 

............................................................... 
Tracey Atkinson, Clerk, Township of Mulmur 

The last date that this decision may be appealed to the Ontario Land Tribunal is ______, 2021. 
NOTICE OF LAST DAY OF APPEALING TO THE ONTARIO LAND TRIBUNAL (OLT) 

The applicant, the Minister, or any other person who has an interest in this matter may, within twenty (20) days of 
the date of this notice, appeal to the Ontario Land Tribunal against the decision of the Committee by serving 
personally or sending by registered mail to the Secretary-Treasurer of the Committee a Notice of Appeal along with 
Appellant Form (A1) available from the Township office or from the OLT website at www.elto.gov.on.ca setting out 
the objection to the decision and the reasons for the objection and accompanied by the fee of $300.00 payable by 
certified cheque or money order to the MINISTER OF FINANCE as prescribed by the Ontario Land Tribunal as 
payable on an appeal from a Committee of Adjustment to the Board. 

Tracey Atkinson, Clerk  
Telephone: (705) 466-3341 Ext 222   Date of Mailing:  July ______, 2021 
tatkinson@mulmur.ca Last day to appeal to OLT: August ___ , 2021 

FILE NO. B8-2021  1066886 Ontario Inc. (Clark) RE:   Consent Application 

The following decision was reached by the Committee of Adjustment for the Township of Mulmur at the 
meeting on July 21, 2021: 

That Application No. B8-2021 submitted by 1066886 Ontario Inc. c/o John Clark for a lot creation from 
CON 3 E E PT LOT 3 RP 7R506 PART 2 (R# 2 04150) be deferred. 

263

mailto:tatkinson@mulmur.ca


CERTIFICATION 
(The Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. p. 13 s. 45 (10) 

I, Tracey Atkinson, Clerk of the Township of Mulmur, hereby certify that the above is a true copy of the decision of 
the Committee of Adjustment for the Township of Mulmur with respect to the application recorded herein. 

............................................................... 
Tracey Atkinson, Clerk, Township of Mulmur 

The last date that this decision may be appealed to the Ontario Land Tribunal is ______, 2021. 
NOTICE OF LAST DAY OF APPEALING TO THE ONTARIO LAND TRIBUNAL (OLT) 

The applicant, the Minister, or any other person who has an interest in this matter may, within twenty (20) days of 
the date of this notice, appeal to the Ontario Land Tribunal against the decision of the Committee by serving 
personally or sending by registered mail to the Secretary-Treasurer of the Committee a Notice of Appeal along with 
Appellant Form (A1) available from the Township office or from the OLT website at www.elto.gov.on.ca setting out 
the objection to the decision and the reasons for the objection and accompanied by the fee of $300.00 payable by 
certified cheque or money order to the MINISTER OF FINANCE as prescribed by the Ontario Land Tribunal as 
payable on an appeal from a Committee of Adjustment to the Board. 

Tracey Atkinson, Clerk  
Telephone: (705) 466-3341 Ext 222   Date of Mailing:  July ______, 2021 
tatkinson@mulmur.ca Last day to appeal to OLT: August ___ , 2021 

DECISION OF COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT WITH REASONS 
(The Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. 13, s. 45 (8), 1994 c. 23, s.26.) 

The following decision was reached by the Committee of Adjustment for the Township of Mulmur at the 
meeting on July 21, 2021: 

That Application No. B8-2021 submitted by 1066886 Ontario Inc. c/o John Clark for a lot creation from 
CON 3 E E PT LOT 3 RP 7R506 PART 2 (R# 2 04150) be approved subject to the following: 

• That the lot creation applies to the creation of a lot of approximately 4.8 ha (+/- 5%) rounded to two
decimal places.

• Taxes and/or penalties must be paid in full up to and including the current fiscal year on all related
properties, if the amount is known.

• The deed for the subject severance must be presented to the Secretary Treasurer prior to one year after
the date of decision; a copy of the consent decision to be kept on file at the Township solicitor’s office.

• Two paper copies of the registered plan of survey and one digital copy be provided, including
documentation from the surveyor certifying that the digital copy was created from the same file that was
used to plot the original paper copies. The digital copy shall be of a format to the Township’s satisfaction.
The paper copy shall be circulated to the Township for review prior to registration.

• Compliance with all bylaws, including, but not limited to zoning, site plan and property standards.
• The applicant shall, at his/her own expense, convey to the Municipality sufficient lands, being 3.05m,

along the frontage on severed and retained lands on 3rd Line EHS, fronting the applicant’s property to
meet the requirements of the Township for road widening as well as any land between the travelled road
and the municipal road allowance. Surveys are to be submitted to the Public Works Department, for
review and approval, prior to registration. Deeds are to be submitted to the Municipality, for review and
approval, accompanied by a solicitor’s certificate indicating that the title is free and clear of all
encumbrances and the Municipality has a good and marketable title. A copy of the plan of survey
depicting the widening shall be provided to the Municipality for their records. All diseased and dead trees
and livestock fences shall be relocated to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works

• That the registered owner shall enter into a development agreement pursuant to Section 51(26) of the
Planning Act to address all planning matters, including, but not limited to building envelope, MDC
setbacks and EIS Mitigation (found in section 8) to the satisfaction of the Township and NVCA.

• That the Owner submit an updated EIS to the satisfaction of the NVCA
• A copy of the registered agreement shall be provided to the Municipality, prior to endorsement of the

deeds for this Application for consent.
• That all conditions of consent be fulfilled within one year of the date of notice of decision where failure to

do so will cause the application to be null and void.
• Cash in lieu of parkland shall be paid to the Municipality in the amount of $5,000.00

REASON:   Conforms to the Township’s Official Plan with the proposed conditions. 

264

mailto:tatkinson@mulmur.ca


CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR 
NOTICE OF COMPLETE APPLICATION & PUBLIC MEETING 

B9-2021 STROUD 
Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment will hold a public meeting under section 53 (5) of 
the Planning Act, R.S.O.1990 c.P.13,as amended.  

This meeting is being conducted by means of Electronic Participation by a majority of 
members, as permitted by Section 238 (3.3) of the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended. 

USING VIDEO AND/OR AUDIO CONFERENCING.  

To connect only by phone, please dial any of the following numbers.  When prompted, please 
enter the meeting ID provided below the phone numbers.  You will be placed into the meeting 
in muted mode. If you encounter difficulty, please call the front desk at 705-466-3341, ext. 0  

+1 647 374 4685 Canada
+1 647 558 0588 Canada
+1 778 907 2071 Canada
+1 438 809 7799 Canada
+1 587 328 1099 Canada Meeting ID: 846 0224 8258 

To connect to video with a computer, smart phone or digital device and with either digital audio 
or separate phone line, download the zoom application ahead of time and enter the digital 
address below into your search engine or follow the link below. Enter the meeting ID when 
prompted.   

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258 Meeting ID: 846 0224 8258 

The meeting is being held to consider an application for Consent which has been submitted. 
The following are the particulars:  

MEETING DATE AND TIME: July 21, 2021 at 10:30am 
APPLICATION NUMBER: B9-2021 
OWNER/APPLICANT: MURRAY STROUD / ROBERT BRYAN 
LOCATION: CON 4 EHS PT LOT 4 RP 7R6596 PART 4 

PURPOSE: The application proposes to sever a +/- 2.43 ha (6.02 acre) building lot from a 34.74 
ha (85.84 acre) parcel. 

Additional information is available for public inspection by request. If you require additional 
information on this application, it may also be obtained by contacting the CAO/Planner, Tracey 
Atkinson, 705 466 3341 X222 or by email: takinson@mulmur.ca during regular office hours.  

NOTE:  If a person or public body that files an appeal of a decision of the Township of Mulmur 
Committee of Adjustment in respect of the proposed consent does not make written submissions 

265

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258


to the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment before it gives or refuses to give a provisional 
consent, the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal may dismiss the appeal.   If you wish to be notified 
of the decision of the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment in respect of the proposed 
consent, you must make a written request to the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment. 

See Map for illustration purposes only. This is not a plan of survey. A digital version is 
available by email.  

Dated May 1825, 2021 

266



b?

3. Purpose of this Application

{
Proposed transaction (ched( appropriate box)

tr An easeneril
tr Otter

Cteation of a na,v lot
A lease

tl Addition to a lot
tr Acorreclionoftlle

tr Transfer
tr Acharge

Specfi Purpose, ie. Building lot, fam severance, lot addition, etc.

6w',ldfu9 b+
Name of grclson(s) to vuhom hnd or inteiest in land b to be transJened, leased or charged

KoktK S*ra.a
4. Description of Subject Land and Servicing lnformation

Frontage (m)

22,3 " 2.,5 rn 1t,$;;* Rcn incd
R3t .81 ,-

Depth (m)

bbo,KA ^ 2,13 ' 36 n 4f 7. LlL n
l1 ,909. bV rnL 3X7, tVV. of rn>

Area (m)

5tlt", (053 .72 nt
5. Land Use

f,une 7t Ao2o
Date PropertyAcquired

V*o*'l l^L^d (t*"1 &t,,lr^l]
Existing Use "'T),*,*(, 

t';, rl"rl' ^/
Exislirq and Proposed buildings and Struciures

Set Badrs (m) Height
(m)

Dimensions
(mx m)

Area
(m2)

Ilab of
Construclion /

Proposed
Construclbn

Tirne use lns
continued (for

exbting
buildings &
slnr{ures)[-

Type of
Building or
Sbuclure Front Rear SidE skts

+SrK- tr
X

Existing
Proposod

tr Existing
tr Prcposed

tr Existing
tl Proposed

tr Existing
[I Proposed

tr Existing
tr Proposed

tr Existing
tr Proposed

Private V\lell
CommunalV\bll
Municipal ll\laler
Other:

*n r{ SewagqDisposal
U/ Pfnate Sedt
tr Corxrurnal Segic

StoIm Draanage
tr Seupr
tr Ditches
tr S$ales
tr Other:

Tile Drqihageg/ tto
tl Yes, please nark on site plan

locatbn ottib runs

2

100m 243.84m

267

rknechtel
Sticky Note
Applicant changed frontage to 100m and depth to 243.84m



6. Zoning and OfFcial Plan lnformation

tZutra-\
Current Official Plan

tu idro,i,^0

Cunent Zoning

Has subject hnds even been
etanniwae? 

51111
File #: Slatus:

subjec{ of an application under iheRehted Applications under the Phnning 4p1, if any induding Official Plan,
Official Plan Amendment, Zoning By{awAmendnent, Minisie/s Zoning Order
(arnendment), Consent or,Plan of Subdivbbn:

Provide an explanation of howthe apflk;atbn confonrE to the Ofiichl Phn

Are any of the following uses or features on the subject land or within 5(X) metres of the subject bnd, unless olhenarise specified? Phase cfied< the
aDDrooriate boxes- ff anv aoofu.

On the Subject Land Wrthin BtO metres of Subject
Land, unless othemise specific
lindiata anroximie disttnce)

Use or Feature

Agftiltfu ral buildingslsfi.rcture or manure storage facilities

A Landfill

A provhcia[y significant llltthnd (class I , 2 or 3 ucthnd)

A locally significant riotland

Flood Plain

A rehabilitated mine site

A non-openting mine site within 1 kilometre of the su$ecl land

An aclive mine sib

An indusfrbl or corwercial use (speciff uses)

Eloes tho proposed developrnent produce greater than 4.50O lilres of efiluent per
day?

lf ves alladr a mruicinc odions reDoil and hvdro deobdical reDort

tr Yos {*o

Please provide plan number- and dab approved by OilIAFRA

Notr YesAre the lands part of a l{utrient llanagement Plan?

Are there any livestock facilities within 5{10 metres of the subject lands? /y""^ **"t4A 7
lf yes, provide a Fam llata Sheet completed by each livestock facility owner for eac*r of the livestod< facilities. htto://mqlmur.caldgQartmentslolanninq

\Jcjk€-s
-P^rne at

3

\l^egu[sfud s\oPe

268



'-ilT;":; 
ile 

^o.lh 
bEll E,i,de {i lt& o,gi*t 1t^ol ,f lnn/.

Has any land been severed from lhe original, 40 hectare (apprcx..) parcel Yes DNo

9. Other lnformation

Please provide any other information that may be useful to the Council or other agencies in revierving this application, ila. heahh departmer*, conservation

10. Sketch (please use metric units)

The application shall be accornpanied by a sketch showing the following:

tr The boundaries and dimensions of the subject hnd, the pad thd b to be severed and the part lhat b to bo Gtained
tr The boundaries and dimensions of any land orir,ned by the owner of the.subiect land and that abuts the s*iect hrd
tr The distancs betvveen the subjeci land and the nearest Township lot line or hndmark, strch as a railuay oossiqg or bddge
tr Thd localion of all land previously severed fromthe original approxirnate 40 hociare parcel

tr The approximate location of all natural and artifrcial features on the suti€ct land and adjacent hnds H in tho of*nion of the applicant ray
afiect the application, srrc-h as buildings, railmys, roads, rmtercourses, drainage ditches, river or sfuEam banks, untbntls, wood€d areas!
vriells and seFic tanks

tr The existing uses on adjacent bnds
tr The location, wklth and name of any roqds within or abutting the sutfect hnd, indicating whether it b an tmopened road allomnce, a public

travelled road, a pd\tate road or rigl$ of vuay

tr The location and nahrre of any easernent afrecling the subiect land

<- ytrb r
t

(rrrt,orsly Evea[

fr* srhlt"Jproptr\

t

I

I

I

I

I

t
\){5{{
E

.!l

ftevt
fruv*

pr

<-l p4

Z()oC+.- 243. rm4

1.t3,36n 
-

a$ly Severcl

sulllecl
oPr.3

I
q
tr
(y
(^\

t
'l'

,uLieri l'^n/\
(;L, nedm )

g" AbEe. (t"ao. Ft ^)

(A
}J
t^t

>)

T

6
o

V3
}.

{t
s\

0
c.

-JF
"fD

$
.1,

$B
I

l*^ol- is rL'.t,( rt<'d'nl'Ll

5

?nrzr'ro Br SEveBeD
l'95llee'ft'ret

/+rt

269



*t

& FARM DATA SHEET
Minimum Distance Separation I (MDSI)

NOTE IO THE FAC'UTY OWNER:

Yout coopedm h Gtttng outthts
shet tfilt hetp'o ens'9 that M
tand u*s wttt be toated a sul&,uedfinefiom WUrop*alon,

Permanent Manure or Material Storage Types

Solid Manure: 18olo dry matter, or more
Liquid Manure: Less than 18% dry maner
Digeslate: Less than 180/o dry mater

Owner of Liveslock Facility
Telephone Civic

Dtv ._*
_ acfes

metres 4dt""t
use *-- metres *-_ feel

Date

Housing Capacity & Manure shall be provided in sguare metres

y,,lb:T9 tyTy !*nur€./materiat sro€d for ts rhan i4 daF)Jom. rEftb, bed6 Fack
Solld, fltsHe. ffpd
Soli-d, outsile. rc trr, g@Er lhan or equal 30% dry maner
Do[q, outside, no mr. iO% b less lhan 30% dry mjtter, with @wEd lquid Moff sbragesotid. outside, no @r. 18% to tes rhan 30x o,i ."iill, *i, ilJiliiiiuiJ*n_ 

"to,"g"Uquid, indde, underualh.slatEd ri@r
Liqukt, outside, w1h a pemrenl, tight fifling trr
Uquid, (dgesbtel, orlside. no @r
Uquid, outsije, w.lh a psroEt {GU0E ffi
Liqui4 outside. rc 6Er, shightffiIed sioBge
uqud, iltside, .wd, bul witr oom sb6
Lhuid, ouGftte, m w, sk pedsldsd stGg€

0
V1
v2
\t3

L1
VS
v6

L2
M1
M2
H1

Type'
Manure

&

unrefled

indudes uMan€d &

- 18245

364

Oescription

@l€sb
-16

-5

or

-636545

455

HeiteE (5 rcnrE lo

- 545142

148

125Small-f.amed:

t4839

so ks - las
with

soE or b@6with litter

ttrbam
27

- 105FeedeE

>581

227

relute: <227 un@ned
Eres 8 unwned

E raG
bederLambs

Animal Type
or ll/laterial

Cattle

Cattle

Type*
StorageHousing

Capacity'

&

is

from

olrt

to 20 is14.5

loold

Fambr€d

loN

Description

&
OG& unt,€aned
Kids

afret

lranslerred h hom
Boilers on an I rck

onag
8milere on a 'l0reek

on a '12 Eet
or unknMBroile6

in fDmbreede.

olds toBroilere

7.5lo 10.8tooldsHms

olds lo ds 10.8Ioms

or unknMolher

GEirfed

Milimum €pacily ot pemanent sbBges at any time: slid or laquid €pacity

Marimm €pacity of pmarenl stoBges at any time: std or liquid €pacity

Animal Type
or Materaal

Ghickens

to a lol nol
gseEling

Livestock Facility (Barn)i p1e o1m9r9 bams or permanent.structures with livestock occupied portions, intended forA livestock faciritv also incrudes a, manure oima;;;i;;;. and anaerobic digesters.
keeping or housing of liveslock.

>t t crrr$ir ,^^<J lc7 c{-pL,E-e. r. }
270



$2

& FARM DATA SHEET
Minimum Distance Separation I (MDSI)

JVOiE TOrlHE FAC'UTYOIM,!ER:

Your @opefi@ tn fi,ildE outahls
she' will hetp lo 

"nsarE 
LtEt@

bnd re6 wllt be toated a illart le
dls'',nce lrcm WUr opsa',on.

Permanent Manure or Material Storage Types

Solid Manure: 18% dry matter, or more
Liquid Manure: Less than 1g% dry mafler
Digeslate: Less lhan 18% dry mafier

Owner of Liveslock Facility
Telephone /t

otv
.-.."** acfes

_ feel

.-. feet

Housing Capacity & Manure shall be provided in square metres

Ito_sbcag€ cqulcd (mure.lmaterial sto€d for ls ttEn 14 days)Sofu, iGide, bedtr Bct
So[d. ouldde cde€d
Solid. oulsif. rc @. gEte. than or equat 3016 dry maner
Dot6, om$de. no lrer, lgyo b ls fian 3ott dry mjter, wittr lrwEd lhuid Moft stor4e
ilT,f;lffij ,lftrl,i'##i*1"" '0" 

c'i 
'"tr!'' *i' il-E";iiijl *o'r 

"t.;'g"
Liquil, outside, with a pemnenl, light f,iling trr
uquid, (digestaie), outside, m @r
Uquid, oulsid€, wlh a pgmaql f€ling 6s
Liquid, oulside, rc M, sl.aighl-ffiled-sioEge
uqu6, illside, @1, hra wilh @m sU6
Liquid, ouGide. no @, shDed€idod storage

0
V1

w
V3

L1
v5
v6

L2
M1
M2
H1

Civic

StorageManure
Tvpe*

6
&

unreaed

-455

364125

-27

* t45455

ttr lhlsbam

Oescription

€lBio
-16

-5

-636545

364

rulhsloHeile6

142

r48

Calves

- 18245

14839

- 125Small-t amed; 30

with

smdbmcwith

Weaners

- 105FeedeE

>68r

227

malu.e: <27 unreaned
EmsEres

indudes ufireaned&€m
or teedsLambs

Animal Type
or Material

Caltle

Swine

Sheep

Type*
ManureHousing

Capacity'
I

&

ftom

oH until to

Description

indud6hekE
OGa
lCds

lran6tered

oul lofemabs
g6ild

arommlransferedtemals
Bo1e6 on an 8

Sroib6onagwk
on a 10reek
on a 12 wek

BroileE on unknM

f6mml€nsferedtemahs
Ereeder lom

oldsSDileB

to 1O-8 6.56.2

io 20 ls14.510.8toTore

of unkmMal

GEirfed

It ilimum €pacily ot pemanent storqs at any lime: sotid o, liquid €pacity

Marimm €pacity of pemanent storage6 at any tire: mfid or liquid €peify

Animal Type
or Material

gereraling

li,lanre
to a l0l

Livestock Facility (Barn): one or more bams or permanenl.structures with rivestock occupied portions, intended forA tivestoc* faciritv arso incrudes att manure oi;;i;;;i'.il;;. and anaerobic digesters.
keeping or housing of livestock.

271



+z

& FARM DATA SHEET
Minimum Distance Separation I (MDSI)

rvor* rON{/E FACILI|YAWNER:

You cooperction ln fllttna ou thls
sh$a wtil hetp lo fr*ehal n@
land us6 wllt be loaa€da surlabte
dlstance from Wur apmuon.

Permanent Manure or Material Storage Types

Owner of Liveslock Facility

DIV

Solid Manure: 18% dry matter, or more
Liquid Manure: Less than 18yo dry mafler
Digestate: Less than 1golo dry mafter

,0.. No.stffige €quked (manure/malerial stored for l* lhan 14 days)vl Solid. lGkte. bedded e.kv2 Solld. @!slde_ 6veFd
y9 Solid. oulside. no @wr. gHter than or equal 30% dtr mahe,v4 sotid, odside. no ove, ieq. ro eii ur""i6i-u-rv ,iJnull"i',r, _*r* ,,quid Mor sroege

il ill%:l$: Jfrffi, 
t av" ro e* m"i io'ii fi ffiE: ;1il ;;*ea nquio runoti sro-ige

J: Liquid, outside, uth a pemnent, fight fitting ftr
: ! uqurd, (digestate), outside, no @ver

fi .'fiil:::ff;:l*L",lrllffillffil#trH"
-, :: Lqud. iltside, r@1, blt with open 8Hsn1 Liquid. ouGide, moE stopedaidsdstorage

_._* acfe$

4&.r
feet

Housing Capacity & Manure Storage: shall be provided in square metres
Manure

Capaqg"

lor lhis

un!!€aned

uftftrandincludes

Description

ruoths loHeifers

Calves

Small-fEmed; 30 125

-27weaners

- 105FeedeE

matuB. 227

malure; <227

Eres & mms

or feederlambs

Animal Type
or Material

Cattle

Dairy

Horses

Sheep

Housing
Capacity'

&

to

out

after

Description

indudsDes

indudes unreanedDffi&
oa

lEnsier€d

lromtEnsteredBroiler

anB
Broiletsonagweek

on a l0 wek
12 wekgroilers

orBroile6

breeder tmmnlEnsferedfemals
E.eeder loro

olds to 6-28rcileG

7.5to 10.8lo 6.2 6oldsHss
olds lo w€r 10,8 ls20Toms

or unkmmal
Milk-fed

GEin-fed

iraimum €pacjly ot pemaneol sloBges at any time: solid or liquid €pacity

€pacity
Maximum €peity of permanent storages at any time: $lid o,liquid

Animal Type
or Material

Veal

Other

to a lot not
generaling

Livestock Facitity (Barn) one or more barns or permanent.structures with rivestock occupied portions, iniended forA livestock facirity arso incrudes atr manure oi,nai.#il&:. and anaerobic digesters.
keeping or housing of livestock.

272



273



Date: July 21, 2021 

To: Committee of Adjustment 

From: John Willmetts, Director of Public Works 

Re: B9 – 2021 STROUD  

ROAD WIDENING 

With respect to this application, I have no conditions or concerns as a road widening has 
already been acquired. 

Yours truly, 

John Willmetts 
John Willmetts 
Director of Public Works 
Township of Mulmur 

274



Site Visit
(Driveway Location) 

Date:        July 21, 2021 
To:     Committee of Adjustment 
From:     John Willmetts, Director of Public Works 

Re: B9 – 2021 STROUD 

Comments: 

This proposed severance has a suitable location for a driveway. The final 
location will be determined when the entrance permit is granted. 

Regards, 

John Willmetts 
Director of Public Works 

275



BUILDING SERVICES 

County of Dufferin | Phone: 519-941-2816 
55 Zina Street, Orangeville, ON L9W 1E5 | Fax: 519-941-4565 
www.dufferincounty.ca | E-mail: building@dufferincounty.ca

Date: June 24, 2021 

To: Tracey Atkinson CAO/Planner 
Township of Mulmur 

Re: Consent file # B9-2021 
      Township of Mulmur, County of Dufferin. 

This letter serves to confirm that I have commenced a preliminary review of the 
application B9-2021 and request for comment. 

After review of the application, the Building Division would like to note that we 
have no further concerns, however please add the condition to your decision that 
the applicant shall provide a satisfactory Lot Suitability letter for the sewage 
disposal system from the County of Dufferin Building Division. 

It should be noted that the applicant is required to submit an application for 
building permit to our office with respect to the above property before any type of 
construction begins on either the severed or retained. 

If you should have any questions pertaining to this letter, please do not hesitate to 
contact the undersigned. 

Regards, 

Doug Kopp CBCO 
Plans Examiner 

276



wsp.com 

MEMO 
TO: Dufferin County 

FROM: Matt Alexander, Project Manager, WSP 

William Turman, Planner, WSP 

SUBJECT: Application for Consent– B9-2021 

Con 4 EHS PT lot 4 RP 7R6596 part 4, Mulmur, ON 

DATE: June 24, 2021 

Recommendation 
The proposal generally conforms with the Rural Lands designation and the related policies 
in the Dufferin County Official Plan. It is recommended that: 

• Confirmation be provided as to whether the woodlands on the subject property
are deemed significant.

• Confirmation be provided as to whether an Environmental Impact Statement
(EIS) is required relative to the proximity of woodlands, and the ANSI Earth
Science Area of Natural and Scientific Interest.

• The municipality is satisfied that the proposed severance would be considered
limited residential development as per Section 4.3.2 a) iii of the County Official
Plan.

• Consultation occur with the Township of Mulmur and the Nottawasaga Valley
Conservation Authority (NVCA) related to the potential impacts to source water
because the subject properties are located within a source water protection area
(Low Vulnerability Aquifer and Significant Groundwater Recharge Area).

Summary 

The purpose of the Application for Consent is to sever a lot with 100 metres of frontage on 
3rd Line East and an area of 2.4 hectares from the subject lands for development. The 
retained lands will have a frontage of 223 metres on 3rd Line East and an area of 34.7 
hectares.  

The documents received by WSP on June 16, 2021 include: 
• Notice of Complete Application and Public Meeting

The circulation documents were reviewed against the Province’s Natural Heritage mapping 
and the Dufferin County Official Plan. 

277



Page 2 

Provincial Policy Statement, 2020 (PPS) and Province of Ontario’s Natural 
Heritage Mapping 

As a result of Growth Plan 2019, the Province’s Natural Heritage mapping must be studied 
and implemented into the County’s Official Plan before it can be applied at a local level. 
However, as it relates to land use designations, the mapping should continue to be used as 
a guide to determine if the subject property is identified with identified Natural Heritage 
features, should the County or local Official Plans not reflect current mapping. 

Under Ontario’s Natural Heritage mapping, the subject property contains woodlands that 
are part of Ontario’s Natural Heritage System and is adjacent to ANSI Earth Science 
Provincially Significant area. 

Figure 1: Ontario's Natural Heritage Map showing presence of Natural Heritage System and 
adjacency of ANSI Earth Science Provincially Significant 

Dufferin County Official Plan (2017) 
The subject property is within the Countryside Area designation under Schedule B 
(Community Structure and Land Use) and within the Rural Lands designation under 
Schedule C (Agricultural Area and Rural Lands) of the County Official Plan. The intent of 
the Rural Lands designation is to protect the natural amenities and rural character of the 

278



Page 3 

County while promoting development opportunities related to the management or use of 
resource-based recreational uses (including recreational dwellings), tourism, limited 
residential development, home occupations and home industries, and other rural 
land uses that cannot be located in settlement areas. 

Per section 4.3.2, limited residential development is permitted, which includes no more 
than three new lots or units are permitted with the Rural Lands designation. It is worth 
noting that it appears this lot has been severed twice previously. As such, the municipality 
should confirm that the proposed severance would be considered limited residential 
development in accordance with Section 4.3.2 a) iii of the County Official Plan.  

Per section 4.3.3(e), lot creation will comply with the Minimum Distance Separation 
Formulae as implemented through the applicable local municipal planning documents. 
Consultation with the Township of Mulmur is recommended. 

Schedule E (Natural Heritage Features) identifies woodlands on the subject property. 
Further consultation with the Township of Mulmur and the NVCA should be undertaken 
to determine whether the woodlands are deemed significant and whether the proposed 
development will have a negative impact on the woodlands. Section 5.3.4 of the County 
Official Plan directs that development and site alteration adjacent to significant woodlands 
is not permitted unless it has been demonstrated that there will be no negative impacts on 
the natural features or their ecological functions through preparation of an EIS.  

Schedule E (Natural Heritage Features) identifies ANSI Earth Science Area of Natural and 
Scientific Interest Adjacent to the subject property. Section 5.3.3 states that development 
and site alteration will not be permitted within or adjacent to ANSI’s unless it has been 
demonstrated that there will be no negative impacts on the natural features or their 
ecological functions through the preparation of an EIS. 

Given that access to the proposed development is not located on a County Road, the 
Township should provide comments regarding access. 

Under Appendix 2 (Source Water Protection) the subject property is located within a source 
water protection area (Low Vulnerability Aquifer and Significant Groundwater Recharge 
Area). Policy 5.4.2(c) states that prior to the approval of development applications within 
designated vulnerable areas, the proponents shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of the 
County, local municipality, Conservation Authority and Province, where necessary, that 
the quality and quantity of municipal drinking water sources will not be negatively 
impacted. It is anticipated that the NVCA will provide further review and comments with 
respect to the requirements for Source Water Protection as it relates to the changes 
proposed on the subject properties. 

279



Page 4 

Recommendation 
The proposal generally conforms with the Rural Lands designation and the related policies 
in the Dufferin County Official Plan. It is recommended that: 

• Confirmation be provided as to whether the woodlands on the subject property
are deemed significant.

• Confirmation be provided as to whether an Environmental Impact Statement
(EIS) is required relative to the proximity of woodlands, and the ANSI Earth
Science Area of Natural and Scientific Interest.

• The municipality is satisfied that the proposed severance would be considered
limited residential development as per Section 4.3.2 a) iii of the County Official
Plan.

• Consultation occur with the Township of Mulmur and the Nottawasaga Valley
Conservation Authority (NVCA) related to the potential impacts to source water
because the subject properties are located within a source water protection area
(Low Vulnerability Aquifer and Significant Groundwater Recharge Area).

280



From: Amy Knapp
To: "mbryan@sutton.com"
Cc: Lee Bull
Subject: RE: Mulmur lot

Good Evening Mark,

From a ‘high level’ perspective, I can confirm that a portion of the property is regulated by the NVCA due to a
watercourse (Boyne River) and associated slope erosion hazard areas. Further, a portion of  the property also
contains a woodlot feature (a natural heritage feature) as illustrated on the aerial photograph provided. The proposed
lot is outside of the NVCA's regulatory jurisdiction.

Natural Heritage and Ecology - Advisory Comments
The proposed development shall be consistent with the following policies within the Provincial Policy Statement
(PPS 2020)

Woodlands impact(s)
SECTION 2.1.5 Policies contained within the PPS prohibit development (including lot creation) and site alteration
in significant natural heritage features unless it has been demonstrated that there will be no negative impacts on the
natural features or their ecological functions.  The proposed lot configuration appears to bisect nature heritage
features.

Adjacent to Woodlands impact(s)
SECTION 2.1.8 Policies contained within the PPS prohibit development (including lot creation) and site alteration
adjacent to significant natural heritage features unless it unless the ecological function of the adjacent lands has been
evaluated and it has been demonstrated that there will be no negative impacts on the natural features or on their
ecological functions.

Due to the presence of confirmed and candidate significant natural heritage features within proximity to the
proposed development, an EIS will be required to assess the potential impacts of development on such features, and
evaluate conformity of the proposal with relevant natural heritage-related policies.  The applicant will be required to
retain a qualified ecologist to prepare this submission, at which point the consultant shall contact NVCA planning
staff to discuss the appropriate scope of required studies. NVCA’s Planning and Regulations Guidelines stipulate a
30m setback to significant natural heritage features from development activities.

NVCA staff appreciates the opportunity to comment at this stage in the process. These comments should be
considered valid at the time of issuance and preliminary in nature. The information presented herein is based on a
preliminary concept plan and should not be considered NVCA final comments at this time.

We will require additional information (full application submission, studies and the applicable review fees) in order
to complete our review and additional comments may be provided in the future. The NVCA may at any point
change our comments should new information become available which raises concerns pertaining to the NVCA core
mandate.

Amy Knapp│Planner III
Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority
8195 8th Line, Utopia, ON L0M 1T0
T 705-424-1479 ext.233│F 705-424-2115
aknapp@nvca.on.ca│nvca.on.ca

I am currently working remotely as the Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority is taking preventative measures
to limit the spread of COVID-19. You may experience some delays or disruptions as we follow recommendations of
health professionals to slow the virus from spreading.

This e-mail message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain

281

mailto:aknapp@nvca.on.ca
mailto:mbryan@sutton.com
mailto:lbull@nvca.on.ca


1

Roseann Knechtel

Subject: FW: 519-21-353 - Consent Application B9-2021 - CONC 4 EHS PT LOT 4 RP 7R6596 PART 4

From: "Hall, Charleyne"   
Date: June 29, 2021 at 10:25:20 AM EDT 
To: Tracey Atkinson   
Subject: 519‐21‐353 ‐ Consent Application B9‐2021 ‐ CONC 4 EHS PT LOT 4 RP 7R6596 PART 4 

Good morning Tracey, 

Bell Canada has no concerns with Application for Consent B9‐2021 regarding CONC 4 EHS PT LOT 4 RP 
7R6596 PART 4. 

Thank you, 

Charleyne 

Right of Way Associate  
140 Bayfield Street, Floor 2, Barrie ON L4M 3B1 
T: 705-722-2264  Toll Free: 1-888-646-4817 
she/her 
Recognizing traditional territory of Haudenosaunee and Anishnaabeg Peoples; part of the Upper Canada 
Treaties. 

282



 

Nottawasaga Valley 
Conservation Authority 

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority 
8195 8th Line, Utopia, ON L0M 1T0 
T: 705-424-1479 ● nvca.on.ca  A member of Conservation Ontario 

July 9, 2021       SENT BY EMAIL 

Township of Mulmur 
758070 2nd Line East 
Mulmur, ON 
L9V 0G8 

Attn: Tracey Atkinson, BES MCIP RPP, 
C.A.O. / Planner
tatkinson@mulmur.ca

Dear Ms. Atkinson, 

RE: Comments for Consent Application B9-2021 
Vacant Lands on CON 4 EHS PT LOT 4 
Township of Mulmur 
NVCA ID #50009 

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority [NVCA] staff is in receipt of an application to 
create a new residential lot. The application proposes to sever a +/- 2.43 ha (6.02 acre) 
building lot from a 34.74 ha (85.84 acre) parcel.  

Staff has reviewed this application as per our delegated responsibility from the Province to 
represent provincial interests regarding natural hazards identified in Section 3.1 of the 
Provincial Policy Statement (PPS, 2020) and as a regulatory authority under Ontario 
Regulation 172/06. The application has also been reviewed through our role as a public body 
under the Planning Act as per our CA Board approved policies.  

Ontario Regulation 172/06 

The property is partially regulated for slope erosion hazards and partially regulated for slope 
erosion hazards associated with a watercourse (Boyne River) located northeast of the subject 
lands. The proposed lot is outside of the NVCA's regulatory jurisdiction. 

Further, the property contains a candidate for a significant woodlot feature (a natural 
heritage feature). Please note that the NVCA does not support proposed lot lines through 
natural heritage features. 

Provincial Policy Statement PPS (2020) 

The PPS defines development to be the creation of a new lot, a change in land use, or the 
construction of buildings and structures requiring approval under the Planning Act.  

Natural Heritage and Ecology - Advisory Comments 

Policies contained within the PPS prohibit development and site alteration within significant 
natural heritage features unless it has been demonstrated that there will be no negative 
impacts on the natural features or their ecological functions. 

In addition, policies within the PPS prohibit development (including lot creation) and site 
alteration adjacent to significant natural heritage features unless it unless the ecological 
function of the adjacent lands has been evaluated and it has been demonstrated that there 
will be no negative impacts on the natural features or on their ecological functions.  

283



Comments for Consent Application B8-2021 
796186 3rd Line 
Township of Mulmur 
NVCA ID #48866 July 9, 2021 

Page 2 of 2 

In this regard, due to the presence of confirmed and candidate significant natural heritage 
features within the proposed development, an Natural Heritage Study/EIS would be required 
to assess the potential impacts of development on such features, and evaluate conformity of 
the proposal with relevant natural heritage-related policies as part of any formal application 
submission.  The applicant would be required to retain a qualified ecologist to prepare this 
submission, at which point the consultant shall contact NVCA planning staff to discuss the 
appropriate scope of required studies 

To date, no technical studies were submitted to evaluate consistency with Section 2.0 of the 
PPS. NVCA staff are of the opinion that the above noted consent application is not consistent 
with the above noted policies of the Provincial Policy Statement.  

Conclusion 

The NVCA recommend that the consent application as applied be deferred for the following 
reasons.  

• The application is not consistent with Section 2 (Natural Heritage) policies of the
Provincial Policy Statement 2020.

• No Natural Heritage Study/EIS has been submitted.

Should you require any further information, please feel free to contact the undersigned.

Sincerely,

Amy Knapp 
Planner III

284



Page 1 of 6 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT 
SUBJECT: Tracey Atkinson, BES MCIP RPP 
MEETING DATE: July 21, 2021 
SUBJECT: B09-2021 (Stroud) 
______________________________________________________________________ 

PURPOSE: 

To assess the planning merits of an application for consent to sever a building lot. 

The application proposes to sever a +/- 2.43 ha (6.02 acre) building lot from a 34.74 ha 
(85.84 acre) parcel. 

BACKGROUND: 

A similar application was submitted in 2018 and withdrawn (MacKinnon) following 
comments from the NVCA regarding an Environmental study. 

EXISTING CONFIGURATION 

Frontage (approximate) 333mm 
Area (approximate) 34.7ha 
Use  Vacant (Building permit approved for dwelling 

FILE NO B9-2021 
ROLL NO 221600000202600 
OWNER MURRAY STROUD / ROBERT BRYAN 
ADDRESS 796205 3rd Line 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: CON 4 EHS PT LOT 4 RP 7R6596 PART 4 
OFFICIAL PLAN: Rural 
ZONING: Countryside Area / Environmental Protection 
NEC/Greenbelt: N/A 
NVCA Regulated: Yes 
Natural Heritage System Yes 
Agricultural Land Base No 
Application Submission Date: May 12, 2021 
Public Meeting Date: July 21, 2021 

285



Page 2 of 6 

on proposed retained lands) 

PROPOSED CONFIGURATION 
 North portion South portion 

Area (approx.) 32.3ha 2.4 ha (6 acres) 
Frontage (approx.) 323m 100m 
Use Residential Building lot 

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT: 
This application is aligned with the following strategic plan path: 
4. Growing a Sustainable Mulmur: Being Proactive in Sustainable Initiatives to ensure
the long term well being of Mulmur (includes Resources/Financial/People).

FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 
Processing costs are generally covered by the application fee. 

ANALYSIS: 

The application was supported by the following submissions: 

• Farm Data Sheets

PLANNING POLICIES & PROVISIONS: 

Provincial Policy Statement (2020) 
The 2020 Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) contains broad policy direction and policy 
direction on lot creation. The PPS provides for limited development on Rural lands.   

The PPS also provides protection for natural heritage features and hazards and 
agricultural operations.    

Growth Plan (2019, consolidated Aug 2020) 

A Place to Grow: Growth plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe, provides high-level 
policy direction relating to the development of healthy, safe and balanced communities.  
The Growth Plan directs the majority of development to settlement areas except where 
otherwise permitted.  Section 2.2.9(3) of the GP provides for rural land uses that will not 
negatively affect agriculture and Section 2.2.9.6 allows for consideration of some lots 
within the rural area.   

Natural Heritage System 

The subject lands are within the Provincial mapping of the Natural Heritage System 
(NHS) for the Growth Plan. 

286



Page 3 of 6 

The subject lands include a woodlot that is greater than 10ha, extending onto abutting 
properties.  The natural heritage system mapping reflects the woodlot on the southern 
portion of the subject lands.  

The subject lands also include hazard lands (outside of the NHS), being a regulated 
slope/valley, extending from the centre of the east lot line. The proposed lot would 
include lands within the woodlot and NHS, but do allow for a building envelop outside of 
both mapped features.  The proposed lot would split the natural features.  

Niagara Escarpment Plan 
N/A 

NVCA 
The subject lands are partially regulated, following the steep slope feature mapping. 

This application is a re-submission from B4, B5, B6-2018 (MacKinnon) submitted by a 
previous owner.  The previous application was withdrawn as a result of comments from 
the NVCA with respect to Natural Heritage features and study requirements.  

The following comments were submitted September 26, 2018 on a similar application. 

The NVCA has reviewed the above-noted applications for consent. Based on our 
mandate and policies established under the Conservation Authorities Act and the 
Provincial Policy Statement, we advise the Committee that at this time we are unable 
to support applications B04-18 and B05-18 and recommend that the Committee defer 
these applications until additional technical information is provided to the satisfaction 
of the NVCA. 

The NVCA regulates a local drainage feature on the north east portion of the retained 
lot - the proposed severed lots are not within an area regulated by the NVCA. To the 
south west portion of the property lies a woodland feature which is captured in the 
Provincial Natural Heritage System overlay. Due to the presence of this feature, the 
proposed lot configuration is not in compliance with Natural Heritage policies 
established under the Growth Plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe (Growth Plan). 
Growth Plan policies specifically prohibit development (including lot creation) within 
the Natural Heritage System. Section 4.2.3.1 states "Outside of settlement areas, 
development or site alteration is not permitted in key natural heritage features that are 
part of the Natural Heritage System or in key hydrologic features. Growth Plan 
policies also state that new development (including lot creation) or site alteration will 
demonstrate that there are no negative impacts on key natural heritage features or 
key hydrologic features or their functions. 

287



Page 4 of 6 

The NVCA does not support applications for consent within the Natural Heritage 
system unless it has been demonstrated that the proposed development will not 
impact natural features. This approach is in concert with the PPS which states that 
Natural Features will be protected for the long term; as well as the Growth Plan 
policies on development within the Natural Heritage System. In order to demonstrate 
no negative impact to the feature, the applicant must under take a Natural Heritage 
Assessment which, among other things, evaluates the significance of the woodland 
feature on the proposed lots and within the NHS overlay. The assessment should be 
undertaken by a qualified ecologist, and a formal study Terms of Reference should be 
scoped with NVCA staff at a preliminary stage. The NVCA is available to consult with 
the applicant to scope the studies required and provide information on the local 
connectivity of the feature as required. 

County Official Plan 

The subject lands are designated “Countryside Area” and “Rural Lands” in the County 
Official Plan schedules.  The Countryside designation provides for the protection of 
agricultural areas, while allowing some growth and development. The County mapping 
also identifies a wooded area. Comments are anticipated from the County of Dufferin 
related to the County OP policies. 

Mulmur Official Plan (2012) 

The Rural lot creation policies of section 6.2.5 permit the consideration of the proposed 
severance, being the third lot creation, for a total of four parcels from an original 40ha 
parcel.  The Rural lot creation policies also speak to agricultural impacts. The policy 
states that:  

Severances involving the creation of one and, in appropriate circumstances, two or a 
maximum of three new lots from the original 40 ha. Township half-lot, may be considered 
by the Committee of Adjustment where it can be shown that there will be no adverse 
effects on nearby farming operations, where impacts on the resources and natural 
features identifies on the schedules to this Plan are minimal and acceptable, and where 
the rural character of the area will be maintained. 

In assessing applications for severance, priority over the application shall be given to 
nearby agricultural operations on lands designated Agricultural under this Plan, especially 
those existing or potential operations having to conform to the Minimum Distance 
Separation requirements and/or the requirements of, and any regulations made pursuant 
to the Nutrient Management Act. 

Every house introduced within an Agricultural area limits the flexibility of future barn 
placement. The proposed severance is a vacant parcel and is zoned to allow for the 
development of one single detached dwelling, to be located almost anywhere on the 
property.  The proposed severance would permit a second buildable parcel, which 
therefore could result in double the residential impact on agricultural operations.    

288



Page 5 of 6 

There are livestock operations in proximity to the subject lands as well as barns that are 
capable of being used for livestock. The applicants provided Farm Data sheets with their 
application.   

MDS Calculation resulted in the following separation requirements, as shown on the map 
below. The proposed severance would not be significantly restricted due to the MDS 
setbacks.  

1. Kerr – 4 ha tillable farm with 185m2 (6 horse capacity based on floor area) facility
= 87m

2. Creighton – 20.77 ha tillable farm with 580m2 facility (19 horse capacity) = 127
MDS

3. Iliohan – 4 ha tillable farm with 278m2 facility (12 horse capacity) = 93m

In speaking with a neighbour, it was brought to our attention that there is an additional 
livestock facility located directly south of the subject lands, on the Hall/Dean property.  
An MDS calculation was prepared based on this additional information and aerial 
photography.  The original barn burned down.  Livestock (3 sheep, 2 cows and chickens) 
are housed Estimated as a 4ha parcel with a 36m2 barn, a MDS distance of 81m was 
calculated.  

The Mulmur Official Plan contains policies with respect to maintaining the Rural 
Character, by staggering lots to limit the appearance of strip development and to provide 
a look of spaciousness, dominate by trees and open land opposed to dwellings.   

The details of the building envelop and MDS can be addressed through a building 
envelop agreement. 

Zoning By-law 

289



Page 6 of 6 

The subject lands are zoned Countryside (A) and Environmental Protection (EP) along 
the steep slope.   The proposed lot is within the Countryside (A) zone. The Countryside 
(A) zone provides for a range of land uses and are required to have a minimum lot area 
of 2.0 hectares and frontage of 100m.

The proposed severed and retained lots would meet the minimum requirements of the 
Countryside (A) zone. A range of permitted uses would be permitted subject to meeting 
other applicable policies.   

 AGENCY COMMENTS 
Comments have been received from Public Works, Dufferin County, Bell and NVCA. 

It is noted that the Township received engineering information regarding entrance location 
on a previous application for the same lands. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended:  

THAT this application be deferred until an EIS has been completed to the satisfaction on 
the NVCA in support of the application.  

Respectfully submitted, 

Tracey Atkinson 
__________________________________ 
Tracey Atkinson, BES MCIP RPP 
Planner 

290



DECISION OF COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT WITH REASONS 
(The Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. 13, s. 45 (8), 1994 c. 23, s.26.) 

CERTIFICATION 
(The Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. p. 13 s. 45 (10) 

I, Tracey Atkinson, Clerk of the Township of Mulmur, hereby certify that the above is a true copy of the decision of 
the Committee of Adjustment for the Township of Mulmur with respect to the application recorded herein. 

............................................................... 
Tracey Atkinson, Clerk, Township of Mulmur 

The last date that this decision may be appealed to the Ontario Land Tribunal is ______, 2021. 
NOTICE OF LAST DAY OF APPEALING TO THE ONTARIO LAND TRIBUNAL (OLT) 

The applicant, the Minister, or any other person who has an interest in this matter may, within twenty (20) days of 
the date of this notice, appeal to the Ontario Land Tribunal against the decision of the Committee by serving 
personally or sending by registered mail to the Secretary-Treasurer of the Committee a Notice of Appeal along with 
Appellant Form (A1) available from the Township office or from the OLT website at www.elto.gov.on.ca setting out 
the objection to the decision and the reasons for the objection and accompanied by the fee of $300.00 payable by 
certified cheque or money order to the MINISTER OF FINANCE as prescribed by the Ontario Land Tribunal as 
payable on an appeal from a Committee of Adjustment to the Board. 

Tracey Atkinson, Clerk  
Telephone: (705) 466-3341 Ext 222    Date of Mailing:  July  ______, 2021 
tatkinson@mulmur.ca Last day to appeal to OLT: August ___ , 2021 

FILE NO. B9-2021  Stroud RE:   Consent Application 

The following decision was reached by the Committee of Adjustment for the Township of Mulmur at the 
meeting on July 21, 2021: 

That Application No. B9-2021 submitted by Murray Stroud for a lot creation from CON 4 EHS PT LOT 4 
RP 7R6596 PART 4 (R# 2 02600) be deferred. 

291

mailto:tatkinson@mulmur.ca


CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR 
NOTICE OF COMPLETE APPLICATION & PUBLIC MEETING 

B10-2021 MAITLAND 
Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment will hold a public meeting under section 53 (5) of 
the Planning Act, R.S.O.1990 c.P.13,as amended.  

This meeting is being conducted by means of Electronic Participation by a majority of 
members, as permitted by Section 238 (3.3) of the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended. 

USING VIDEO AND/OR AUDIO CONFERENCING.  

To connect only by phone, please dial any of the following numbers.  When prompted, please 
enter the meeting ID provided below the phone numbers.  You will be placed into the meeting 
in muted mode. If you encounter difficulty, please call the front desk at 705-466-3341, ext. 0  

+1 647 374 4685 Canada
+1 647 558 0588 Canada
+1 778 907 2071 Canada
+1 438 809 7799 Canada
+1 587 328 1099 Canada Meeting ID: 846 0224 8258 

To connect to video with a computer, smart phone or digital device and with either digital audio 
or separate phone line, download the zoom application ahead of time and enter the digital 
address below into your search engine or follow the link below. Enter the meeting ID when 
prompted.   

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258 Meeting ID: 846 0224 8258 

The meeting is being held to consider an application for Consent which has been submitted. 
The following are the particulars:  

MEETING DATE AND TIME: July 21, 2021 at 10:45 
APPLICATION NUMBER: B10-2021 
OWNER/APPLICANT: MAITLAND CAROL / BURRES GRAEME 
LOCATION: CON 2 EHS PT LOT 21 RP 7R3985 PARTS 1 and 3 (667287 20 SIDEROAD) / CON 
2 EHS E PT LOT 21 RP 7R3885 PART 1 RP 7R4560 PART 1 (758008 2ND LINE EAST) 

PURPOSE:  BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT LANDS TO BE ADDED TO THE PROPERTY TO 
THE NORTH (758008 2ND LINE EAST - CON 2 EHS E PT LOT 21 RP 7R3885 PART 1 RP 
7R4560 PART 1) 

Additional information is available for public inspection by request. If you require additional 
information on this application, it may also be obtained by contacting the CAO/Planner, Tracey 
Atkinson, 705 466 3341 X222 or by email: takinson@mulmur.ca during regular office hours.  

292

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84602248258


NOTE:  If a person or public body that files an appeal of a decision of the Township of Mulmur 
Committee of Adjustment in respect of the proposed consent does not make written submissions 
to the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment before it gives or refuses to give a provisional 
consent, the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal may dismiss the appeal.   If you wish to be notified 
of the decision of the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment in respect of the proposed 
consent, you must make a written request to the Township of Mulmur Committee of Adjustment. 

See Map for illustration purposes only. This is not a plan of survey. A digital version is 
available by email.  

Dated May 25, 2021 

293



3. Purpose of this Application

Proposed transaction (check appropriate box)

tr Transfer tr
tr A charge tr

Creation of a new lot
A lease

n Addition to a lot
n A correction of title

tr An easement
E Other Lot creation boundary

ndiuslmenl
Specif, Purpose, ie. Building lot, farm severance, lot addition, etc.

Lot creation boundary adjustment

Name of person(s) to whom land or interest in land is to be transferred, leased or charged

Carol Maitland

4. Description of Subject Land and Servicing lnformation

Frontage (m) Severed

26.87 m

Retained
26.87 m

Depth (m)
83.02 m 67.17

Area (m)
4682m2 4027 m2

5. Land Use

Date Property Acquired 
2017

Existing Use

Residential

Proposed Use

Residential

Existing and Proposed buildings and Structures

Type of
Building or
Structure

Set Backs (m) Height
(m)

Dimensions
(mxm)

Area
(m2)

Date of
Construction /

Proposed
Construction

Time use has
continued (for

existing
buildings &
slructures)

Front Rear Side Side

House Dl Existing
tr Proposed

26.87 27.92 35.02 18.51 9.144 9.49 x7.31 77.388 June 1 993 1 S93

Garage Dl Existing
EI Proposed

22.338 35.84 9.12 42.88 9.144 9.15 x 10.97 100.33 unkown NA

Shed tl Existing
tr Proposed

46.15 21.21 42.67 17.9',1 3.048 74 x .74 5.95 unknown NA

EI Existing
tr Proposed

D Existing
n Proposed

tr Existing
tr Proposed

Water
A PrivateWell
tr Communal Well
tr Municipal Water
tr Other:

Sewage Disposal
R Private Septic
D Communal Septic

Storm Drainage
tr Sewer
R Ditches
tr Swales
E Other:

Tile Drainage
trNo
D Yes, please mark on site plan

location of tile runs

2

294



6. Zoning and Official Plan lnformation

Current Zoning

Hamlet Residential

Current Official Plan

{\o,rv^r'\el
Related Applications under the Planning Act, if any including Omcial Plan,
Official Plan Amendmenl, Zoning ByJaw Amendment, Minister's Zoning Order
(amendment), Consent or Plan of Subdivision:

NA

Has subject lands even been subject of an application under the
Planning Act? NA

File #: Status

Provide an explanation of how the application conforms to the Official Plan

Are any of the following uses or features on the subject land or within 500 metres of the subject land, unless otheMise specifled? Please check the
annronriale boxes if anv aoolv

Use or Feature On the Subject Land Within 500 metres of Subject
Land, unless otheruise specific
(indicate aooroximate distance)

Agricultural buildings/structure or manure storage facilities V aHs\t8
A Landflll

A provincially significant wetland (Class 1, 2 or 3 wetland)

A locally significant wetland

Flood Plain

A rehabilitated mine site

A non-operating mine site within 1 kilometre of the subject land

An active mine site

An industrial or commercial use (speciry uses)

Does the proposed development produce greater than 4500 litres of effluent per

day?

lf ves. attach a servicino ootions reoort and hvdro qeoloqical report

tr Yes ENo

Are the lands part of a Nutrient Management Plan?

Please provide plan number- and date approved by OMAFRA

D Yes DNo

Are there any livestock facilities within 500 metres of the subject lands? tr Yes Di No

lf yes, provide a Farm Data Sheet completed by each livestock facility owner for each of the livestock facilities. http://mulmur.ca/departments/planninq

R* a-\aq

-)

295



Has any land been severed from the original, 40 hectare (approx..) parcel

lf yes, provide details:

tr Yes BNo

9. Other lnformation

Please provide any other information that may be useful to the Council or other agencies in reviewing this application, ie. health department, conservation
authoritv. etc.

10. Sketch (please use metric units)

The application shall be accompanied by a sketch showing the following

TX
d

The boundaries and dimensions ofthe subject land, the part that is to be severed and the part that is to be retained
The boundaries and dimensions of any land owned by the owner of the subject land and that abuts the subject land
The distance between the subject land and the nearest Township lot line or landmark, such as a railway crossing or bridge
The location of all land previously severed from the original approximate 40 hectare parcel
The approximate location of all natural and artificial features on the subject land and adjacent lands that in the opinion of the applicant may

affect the application, such as buildings, railways, roads, watercourses, drainage ditches, river or stream banks, wetlands, wooded areas,
wells and septic tanks
The existing uses on adjacent lands
The location, width and name of any roads within or abutting the subject land, indicating whether it is an unopened road allowance, a public

travelled road, a private road or right of way
The location and nature ofany easement afiecting the subject land

D(q
tr

DT

E

d

5

296



297



Date: July 21, 2021 

To: Committee of Adjustment 

From: John Willmetts, Director of Public Works 

Re: B10 – 2021 MAITLAND  

ROAD WIDENING 

With respect to this application, I request that the Committee impose the following condition. 

1. Acquire a road widening / Site triangle at the intersection of 20 Sideroad and 2nd Line
E,
The site triangle would measure 12 meters north and west along the property line
from the southeast corner of the lot (667287) with a line intersecting these points.

It would be advisable to impose this condition to allow the Township more flexibility to 
perform necessary road improvements in the future. 

Yours truly, 

John Willmetts 
John Willmetts 
Director of Public Works 
Township of Mulmur 

298



30 Centre Street, Orangeville, ON L9W 2X1 | 519.941.2816 | 

dufferincounty.ca   

Date: June 16, 2021 

To: Tracey Atkinson, CAO/Planner 

Re: Application for Consent - Boundary adjustment lands to be added to the property to the 

North (758008 2nd Line East) 

Maitland Carol / Burres Graeme 

758008 2nd Line, Mulmur 

Concession 2 EHS E Pt Lot 21 

This letter serves to confirm that I have commenced a preliminary review of the application and 

other information submitted with your request for comments. 

Please be advised that the application for the above noted address has not revealed any issues 

with regards to the Application for Consent. The Building Department has no other comments at 

this time. 

If you should have any questions pertaining to this letter, please do not hesitate to contact the 

undersigned. 

Regards, 

Rita Geurts, M.A.A.T.O., CBCO 

Building Inspector / Plans Examiner 

T: 519-941-2362 Ext. 2704 

rgeurts@dufferincounty.ca 

299

mailto:rgeurts@dufferincounty.ca


wsp.com 

MEMO 
TO: County of Dufferin 

FROM: Matt Alexander, Project Manager, WSP 

Angela Zhao, Project Planner, WSP 

SUBJECT: Consent Application (File #: B10-21), 758008 2nd Line East & 667282 
20 Side Road, Township of Mulmur, ON 

DATE: July 2, 2021 

Recommendation 
Based on our review, the proposal is consistent with the Community Settlement designation 
and the related policies in the Dufferin County Official Plan. It is recommended that:  

• Consultation occur with the Township of Mulmur the Nottawasaga Conservation
Authority (NVCA) related to the potential impacts to source water because the
subject properties are located within a source water protection area (High Aquifer
Vulnerability and Significant Groundwater Recharge Area).

Summary 
The purpose of the consent application is for a boundary adjustment. A parcel of land 
with a frontage of 10.06 metres and an area of 635.36 square metres will be severed from 
the subject lands and added to the adjacent property at 758008 2nd Line East. No new lot 
is being created as part of this application.  

The documents received by WSP on May 28th, 2021 include: 

• Notice of Public Meeting;

The circulation documents were reviewed against the Dufferin County Official Plan. 

Dufferin County Official Plan (2017) 

The subject property falls within the Community Settlement Area under Schedules A  
(Provincial Plan Areas) and B (Community Structure and Land Use) of the County Official  
Plan. Community Settlement Areas include small villages and rural hamlets that may 
experience limited growth through infilling and development of vacant lands. These areas  
are to maintain a rural settlement character and evolve as service and residential centres 
for their surrounding Countryside Areas. The County OP does not have specific provisions 
as it relates to lot adjustments in the Community Settlement Area.  

300



Page 2 

Under Appendix 2 (Source Water Protection) the subject property is located within 
a source water protection area (High Aquifer Vulnerability and Significant Groundwater 
Recharge Area). Policy 5.4.2(c) states that prior to the approval of development 
applications within designated vulnerable areas, the proponents shall demonstrate to the 
satisfaction of the County, local municipality, Conservation Authority and Province, where 
necessary, that the quality and quantity of municipal drinking water sources will not be 
negatively impacted. It is anticipated that the CVC will provide further review and 
comments with respect to the requirements for Source Water Protection as it relates to the 
changes proposed on the subject properties.  

Given that the proposed development is not located on a County Road, the Town should 
provide any comments regarding access.  

Recommendation 
Based on our review, the proposal is consistent with the Community Settlement designation 
and the related policies in the Dufferin County Official Plan. It is recommended that:  

• Consultation occur with the Township of Mulmur the Nottawasaga Conservation
Authority (NVCA) related to the potential impacts to source water because the
subject properties are located within a source water protection area (High Aquifer
Vulnerability and Significant Groundwater Recharge Area).

301



Page 1 of 5 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT 
SUBJECT: Tracey Atkinson, BES MCIP RPP 
MEETING DATE: July 21, 2021 
SUBJECT: B10-2021 (Maitland) 
______________________________________________________________________ 

PURPOSE: 

To assess the planning merits of an application for consent to a boundary adjustment (lot 
line addition).   

The application proposes to adjust the boundary between two parcels in Terra Nova, adding 
lands from the southern parcel to the Northern parcel, so that the ditch is complexly within the 
Northern parcel.  

BACKGROUND: 

FILE NO B10-2021 
ROLL NO 221600000512700 

221600000512900 
OWNER (Both lots in same ownership) MAITLAND CAROL / 

BURRES GRAEME 
ADDRESS  Southern Lot: 667287 20 SIDEROAD 

Northern Lot: 758008 2ND LINE EAST 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Southern Lot: CON 2 EHS PT LOT 21 RP 7R3985 
PARTS 1 and 3 
Northern Lot: CON 2 EHS E PT LOT 21 RP 7R3885 
PART 1 RP 7R4560 PART 1 

OFFICIAL PLAN: Hamlet Settlement Boundary 
Hamlet Designation   

ZONING: Hamlet Residential 
NEC/Greenbelt: N/A 
NVCA Regulated: Yes -beyond boundary adjustment proposal 

(Wetland) 
Natural Heritage System No 
Agricultural Land Base No 

302



Page 2 of 5 

EXISTING CONFIGURATION 

 North portion South portion 
Area (approx.) 4472m2 (1.09 acres) 4680 (1.17 acres) 
Frontage (approx.) 37m (122)’ 58m on 20th SR 

67m (220’) on 2nd 
Use Residential Residential 

(It is noted that the information has been taken from a combination of the applicant’s sketch 
and Township GIS, and is approximate) 

PROPOSED CONFIGURATION 
 North portion South portion 

Area (approx.) 4682m2 4027m2 
Frontage (approx.) 47.25m 56.75m 
Use Residential Residential 

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT: 
This application is aligned with the following strategic plan path: 
4. Growing a Sustainable Mulmur: Being Proactive in Sustainable Initiatives to ensure
the long term well being of Mulmur (includes Resources/Financial/People).

FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 
Processing costs are generally covered by the application fee. 

ANALYSIS: 

The application was supported by the following submissions: 

• Lot sketch

PLANNING POLICIES & PROVISIONS: 

Provincial Policy Statement (2020) 
The 2020 Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) contains broad policy direction and policy 
direction.  The PPS does not provide specific direction on boundary adjustments in 
settlement areas.  The proposed boundary adjustment is consistent with Provincial 
Policy.  

Growth Plan (2019, consolidated Aug 2020) 

Application Submission Date: May 21, 2021 
Public Meeting Date: July 21, 2021 

303



Page 3 of 5 

A Place to Grow: Growth plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe, provides high-level 
policy direction relating to the development of healthy, safe and balanced communities.  
The Growth Plan directs the majority of development to settlement areas except where 
otherwise permitted.  The proposed boundary adjustment conforms to the Provincial 
Growth Plan.  

Natural Heritage System – Not applicable 

Provincial mapping of the Natural Heritage System (NHS) for the Growth Plan does not 
apply until it has been implemented in the County Official Plan.  Until that time, the 
policies apply to areas that were mapped in the existing County and local plans.  The 
subject lands are outside of the Natural Heritage System.  It is noted that a  regulated 
(locally significant) wetland is mapped on the rear of the Northern parcel, beyond the 
lands proposed to be included in the boundary adjustment.  

The Northern parcel includes a portion of a woodlot, however, the feature is not within 
the proposed boundary adjustment.  

The subject lands also include regulated lands associated with a buffer to the regulated 
flood lands. The proposed boundary adjustment does not include the regulated lands.  

Niagara Escarpment Plan 
N/A 

NVCA 
The subject lands are partially regulated due to features on abutting lands. 

County Official Plan 

The subject lands are designated as a Settlement Area in the County Official Plan 
schedules.  Comments are anticipated from the County of Dufferin related to the County 
OP policies. 

Mulmur Official Plan (2012) 

Sections 7.1, Hamlet and 7.1.A.2, Hamlet Residential, of the Official Plan sets out 
permitted uses and general development policies.  It includes a net average lot area 
requirement of approximately 0.4ha.  The Official Plan does not contain specific 
boundary adjustment policies for the Hamlet or Hamlet Residential designation. 

Zoning By-law 

The subject lands are zoned Hamlet Residential. Based on the Township GIS mapping, 
it appears that the Northern lot does not currently meet the minimum lot frontage, being 
slightly deficient but benefiting from sections of the zoning by-law that allow deficient pre-
existing lots. Both lots currently meet the minimum lot requirements and would continue 
to meet the minimum requirements with the proposed boundary adjustment. The 

304



Page 4 of 5 

boundary adjustment would result in both lots meeting the minimum lot frontage 
requirements. The following are excerpts from the zoning by-law.  

4.5.1 PERMITTED USES 

i) single detached dwelling
ii) attached accessory dwelling unit having a maximum floor area of 80 m2 

iii) home occupation

4.5.2 REGULATIONS FOR PERMITTED USES 

i) Minimum Lot Area 0.4 ha 
ii) Minimum Lot Frontage 38.0 m 
iii) Minimum Yard Requirements
 a) Front Yard 7.5 m 
 b) Interior Side Yard 1.5 m 
 c) Exterior Side Yard 7.5 m 
 d) Rear Yard 7.5 m 
iv) Maximum Lot Coverage 20% 
v) Maximum Height 10.5 m 

3.10.2.3 Existing Undersized Lots of Record 

Where a lot, having a lesser lot area and/or lot frontage than required herein, existed on 
the date of passing of this By-law, or where such a lot is created by a public authority, 
such smaller lot may be used and a permitted building or structure may be erected, 
altered and/or used on such smaller lot provided that the lot has at least 30 m of 
frontage, an area of at least 0.2 hectares, is located on a maintained public road and all 
other applicable zone provisions of this By-law are complied with.  

Lots which have been increased in size following passing of this By-law to comply with the 
above minimum frontage and lot area standards may also be used in accordance with this 
provision.  

 AGENCY COMMENTS 

Comments were received from Dufferin County and anticipated from the NVCA.  The 
Township does not believe the current application impacts Source Water due to the nature of 
the application and approvals. 

Public Works has reviewed the application and requested a sight triangle. 

305



Page 5 of 5 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended:  

THAT Committee consider approval of the proposed severance, subject to the 
standard conditions and sight triangle.  

Respectfully submitted, 

Tracey Atkinson 
__________________________________ 
Tracey Atkinson, BES MCIP RPP 
Planner 

306



DECISION OF COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT WITH REASONS 
(The Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. 13, s. 45 (8), 1994 c. 23, s.26.) 

CERTIFICATION 
(The Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. p. 13 s. 45 (10) 

I, Tracey Atkinson, Clerk of the Township of Mulmur, hereby certify that the above is a true copy of the decision of 
the Committee of Adjustment for the Township of Mulmur with respect to the application recorded herein. 

............................................................... 
Tracey Atkinson, Clerk, Township of Mulmur 

The last date that this decision may be appealed to the Ontario Land Tribunal is ______, 2021. 
NOTICE OF LAST DAY OF APPEALING TO THE ONTARIO LAND TRIBUNAL (OLT) 

The applicant, the Minister, or any other person who has an interest in this matter may, within twenty (20) days of 
the date of this notice, appeal to the Ontario Land Tribunal against the decision of the Committee by serving 
personally or sending by registered mail to the Secretary-Treasurer of the Committee a Notice of Appeal along with 
Appellant Form (A1) available from the Township office or from the OLT website at www.elto.gov.on.ca setting out 
the objection to the decision and the reasons for the objection and accompanied by the fee of $300.00 payable by 
certified cheque or money order to the MINISTER OF FINANCE as prescribed by the Ontario Land Tribunal as 
payable on an appeal from a Committee of Adjustment to the Board. 

Tracey Atkinson, Clerk  
Telephone: (705) 466-3341 Ext 222    Date of Mailing:  July ______, 2021 
tatkinson@mulmur.ca Last day to appeal to OLT: August ___ , 2021 

FILE NO. B10-2021  Maitland RE:   Boundary Adjustment 

The following decision was reached by the Committee of Adjustment for the Township of Mulmur at the 
meeting on July 21, 2021: 

That Application No. B10-2021 submitted by Carol Maitland for a boundary adjustment from CON 2 EHS 
PT LOT 21 RP 7R3985 PARTS 1 and 3 (R#5-12700) to CON 2 EHS E PT LOT 21 RP 7R3885 PART 1 
RP 7R4560 PART 1 (R#5-12900) be approved subject to the following: 

• That the boundary adjustment conveys approximately 210m2 (+/- 5%) rounded to two decimal places to
the northern parcel being CON 2 EHS E PT LOT 21 RP 7R3885 PART 1 RP 7R4560 PART 1 (R#5-
12900).

• Taxes and/or penalties must be paid in full up to and including the current fiscal year on all related
properties, if the amount is known.

• The deed for the subject severance must be presented to the Secretary Treasurer prior to one year after
the date of decision; a copy of the consent decision to be kept on file at the Township solicitor’s office.

• Two paper copies of the registered plan of survey and one digital copy be provided, including
documentation from the surveyor certifying that the digital copy was created from the same file that was
used to plot the original paper copies. The digital copy shall be of a format to the Township’s satisfaction.
The paper copy shall be circulated to the Township for review prior to registration.

• Compliance with all bylaws, including, but not limited to zoning, site plan and property standards.
• The applicant shall, at his/her own expense, convey to the Municipality sufficient lands, being a sight

triangle measuring 12m north on 2nd Line East and 12m west along 20 Sideroad, fronting the applicant’s
property to meet the requirements of the Township for road widening as well as any land between the
travelled road and the municipal road allowance. Surveys are to be submitted to the Public Works
Department, for review and approval, prior to registration. Deeds are to be submitted to the Municipality,
for review and approval, accompanied by a solicitor’s certificate indicating that the title is free and clear of
all encumbrances and the Municipality has a good and marketable title. A copy of the plan of survey
depicting the widening shall be provided to the Municipality for their records.  All diseased and dead trees
and livestock fences shall be relocated to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works

• The severed parcel shall be subject to Section 50(3) of the Planning Act
• The solicitor for the owner of the lot to which the severed parcel is to be added shall provide an

undertaking to make an application for consolidation within thirty days following registration of the deed
for the resulting enlarged parcel, and to provide the Township with documentation which demonstrates
that the consolidation has taken place.

• That all conditions of consent be fulfilled within one year of the date of notice of decision where failure to
do so will cause the application to be null and void.

REASON:   Conforms to the Township’s Official Plan with the proposed conditions. 

307

mailto:tatkinson@mulmur.ca

	00 07 21 2021 COA Agenda
	4.0 May 12 2021 Draft minutes
	6.1.1.5 File No. B5-2021
	B5-2021 Notice
	MDS1
	MDS1x2
	B05-2021 B-6-2021 Chaudhard Combined Report (DRAFT)
	PURPOSE:
	 B06-2021 proposes to sever 0.17 ha (1700m2) from the existing 0.60 hectare lot and convey the land to the adjacent 0.15 ha (1500 m2) lot. The retained lot would have a lot area of 0.43 ha (4300 m2).
	 B13-2021 proposes to sever 0.05ha (562m2) from parcel 2 and add it to lot 1, resulting in a total lot area of 0.20 ha for lot 1.
	BACKGROUND:
	4.2.1 Permitted Uses
	4.2.2 Regulations for Permitted Rural Residential Uses
	3.10.2.3 Existing Undersized Lots of Record


	AGENCY COMMENTS
	Comments received are appended to this report, and recommendations for provisional consent condition have been included in the draft decision.
	RECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended:
	THAT applications B5-2021, B6-2021 and B13-2021 be approved subject to the standard conditions, as well as addressing MTO entrance requirements, water vulnerability/Source Water, wetland south of Highway 89, and Minimum Distance Separation from the ba...
	It is noted that there may need to be a condition with respect to registration in a specific order to the intent of the applications.

	B - 5 2021 CHAUDHARY 
	21.05.17 WSP Memo - Mulmur B5-21 and B6-21

	6.1.1.6 B5 B6 B13 MDS1x2
	6.1.1.6 B5 B6 B13 PPT_CHAUDHARY
	��TOWNSHIP OF MULMUR �COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT���CONCESSION 2 EHS, EAST PART LOT 1 PCL 2 & PCL 3�CONCESSION 2 EHS, EAST PART LOT 1 PCL 4 & PCL 5�CONCESSION 2 EHS, EAST PART LOT 1 PCL 1 & PCL 2���Application Number: B5-2021(CHAUDHARY)/ B6-2021 (CHOUHAN)/B13-2021 (CHOUDHRY)
	SITE LOCATION
	PURPOSE:
	PROPOSAL 
	PROPOSAL 
	PROPOSAL 
	PROPOSAL 
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	CONCLUSION	

	6.1.1.8 FW_ Comments for 3 consents  (residential lot craation)
	6.1.2 No. B5 2021 DRAFT Decision
	FILE NO. B5-2021  CHOUDARY / CHAUDHARY   RE:   Boundary Adjustment

	6.2 File No. B6-2021
	B6-2021 Notice
	B - 6  2021 CHAUDHARY 

	6.2.1 NVCA Comments for CofA - Application B06-2021 redacted
	6.2.2 No. B6-2021 DRAFT Decision
	FILE NO. B6-2021  CHOUHAN   RE:   Boundary Adjustment

	6.3 File No. B13-2021
	B13-2021 Notice
	B13 2021
	21.06.21_-_WSP_Memo_- 2021 - B13-2021 con 2 E E pt Lot 1 PCL 2, Mulmur
	B13 Bell Comments
	B13 Application Website.pdf
	let to Township re Chaudhary - Lot 2 16.06.2021.pdf
	let to Township re Chaudhary - Lot 2 15.06.2021
	1.0 Location & Description of Subject Lands
	2.0 Existing and Surrounding Uses
	3.0 Policy Analysis
	3.1 Planning Act
	3.2 Provincial Policy Statement (PPS)

	4.0 Conclusions

	Consent Sketch Lot 2
	Sheets and Views
	JT Tremble Drawing Set 2019 05 01-1 Location





	6.3.1.5 B13 2021 building department comments
	6.3.2 No. B13-2021 DRAFT Decision
	FILE NO. B13-2021  CHOUDHRY   RE:   Boundary Adjustment

	6.4 File No. B7-2021
	B7-2021 Notice
	B7-2021 Application for website
	81-106 - MDS calc
	PaddlesUpInc_81-106_consent_mds_v1
	21-374 BTC  Paddles Up Staff Report
	21-374.NEC.Notice of Decision
	B07-2021 B11 B12 Bruce Trail Conservancy Combined Report (DRAFT)
	PURPOSE:
	BACKGROUND:
	The subject lands are entirely within an “undifferentiated” area of the Provincial Natural Heritage System.  The lands include a wooded area, and farmland.  The Township maps the wooded area, which is approximately over 40 ha in size and extends over ...
	5.20.1 Significant Woodlands
	For the purposes of this Plan, a woodland is significant if it constitutes a forested area of at least 10 ha in size and  is: ecologically important in terms of features such as species composition, age of trees and stand history; functionally importa...
	Single, multiple or successive development or site alteration activities resulting in degradation that threatens the health and integrity of significant woodlands or their ecological functions, shall not be permitted.
	Development and site alteration shall not be permitted in significant woodlands or on adjacent lands unless it has been demonstrated, through an EIS, that there will be no negative impacts on the woodland or on its ecological functions. Adjacent lands...
	6.4.6.4 New Lots
	AGENCY COMMENTS
	Comments are anticipated from Dufferin County, NEC and NVCA.
	The Director of Public Works has submitted comments requesting road widening and dedications.  The Township has concerns with illegal and unsafe parking practices of some trail users and the lack of parking options in proximity to trail access points....
	The application proposes a land dedication (as shown in purpose on the aerial below) to the Township of Mulmur to connect the Municipal right-of-way.  It is noted that the (summer) road currently does not fall within the proposed land dedication, howe...
	RECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended:
	THAT Application B7-2021 be approved subject to standard conditions, fulfilling NEC permit requirements with respect to building on the retained lands, parking lot agreement, and recognize that the NEC permit process will assess any future EIS and bui...


	B7-2021 Public Works Comments
	B - 7  2021 BRUCE TRAIL
	B - 7  BRUCE TRAIL SUITABLE DRIVWAY


	6.4 No. B7-2021 Draft Decision
	FILE NO. B7-2021  Bruce Trail Conservancy  RE:   Consent Application

	6.5 File No. B11-2021
	B11-2021 Notice
	Bruce Trail Letter
	Application website
	B11 Bell Comments
	B - 11  2021 BRUCE TRAIL

	6.5 NVCA comments on B8 B10 B11 B12
	6.5.2 B11 2021 Building department comments
	6.5.3 21.06.10 - WSP Memo - B11 - 638040 Prince of Wales Road Township of Mulmur
	6.5.9 No. B11-2021 DRAFT Decision
	FILE NO. B11-2021  Bruce Trail / 2798986 Ontario Inc. (Cohen)  RE:   Boundary Adjustment

	6.6 File No. B12-2021
	B12-2021 Notice
	Application WEBSITE
	Sales_81-103_consent_v2
	B - 12  2021 BRUCE TRAIL
	B12 2021
	B12 Bell Comments

	6.6.9 No. B12-2021 DRAFT Decision
	FILE NO. B12-2021  Bruce Trail / Sales    RE:   Boundary Adjustment

	6.7 File No. B8-2021
	B8-2021 Notice
	Application website
	Minimum Distance Separation
	Application website
	Consent Sketch
	AEC21-171 796186 3rd Line Mulmur EIS - Final Issued 05-18-21
	B8-2021 Clark Report (DRAFT)
	______________________________________________________________________
	PURPOSE:
	The application proposes to sever a +/- 4.8 ha (12 acre) lot containing an existing house and shed. The retained lot is proposed to be 15.4 ha (38.2 acres) in size and comprises vacant woodlands (Natural Heritage System and Earth Science ANSI).
	BACKGROUND:
	The subject lands are entirely within an “undifferentiated” area of the Provincial Natural Heritage System.  The lands include a wooded area.  The Township maps the woodlot, which is significant in size and extends over neighbouring properties.
	5.20.1 Significant Woodlands
	For the purposes of this Plan, a woodland is significant if it constitutes a forested area of at least 10 ha in size and  is: ecologically important in terms of features such as species composition, age of trees and stand history; functionally importa...
	Single, multiple or successive development or site alteration activities resulting in degradation that threatens the health and integrity of significant woodlands or their ecological functions, shall not be permitted.
	Development and site alteration shall not be permitted in significant woodlands or on adjacent lands unless it has been demonstrated, through an EIS, that there will be no negative impacts on the woodland or on its ecological functions. Adjacent lands...
	AGENCY COMMENTS
	Comments are anticipated from the Dufferin County and NVCA. Public Works provided comments regarding road widenings and entrance requirements.
	RECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended:
	THAT Committee consider approval of the proposed severance, subject to the standard conditions, and specific conditions identified through the studies, agency comments and public concerns, and more specifically, that the conditions recognize the mitig...


	B8-2021 Public Works Comments
	B - 8  2021 CLARK
	B - 8 CLARK  SUITABLE DRIVEWAY LOACTION

	Clark John - Application for Consent
	21.06.09 - WSP Memo - B8 - CON 3 E E PT LOT 3 RP 7R506 PART 2, Township of Mulmur

	6.7.0  PPT_CLARK
	��������COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT PUBLIC MEETING�1066886 ONTARIO INC. (JOHN CLARK)��796186 3rd Line, Township of Mulmur�CON 3 EE PT LOT 3 RP 7R506 PART 2��B8-2021 CLARK�
	Site Location: 796186 3rd Line East, Township of Mulmur
	Proposal:
	 Township of Mulmur Land Use Designation and Zoning
	Slide Number 5
	CONCLUSION	

	6.7.3 No. B8-2021 Draft Decision
	FILE NO. B8-2021  1066886 Ontario Inc. (Clark)    RE:   Consent Application

	6.8 File No. B9-2021
	B9-2021 Notice
	STROUD application Website
	B9-2021 Stroud Report (DRAFT)
	______________________________________________________________________
	PURPOSE:
	The application proposes to sever a +/- 2.43 ha (6.02 acre) building lot from a 34.74 ha (85.84 acre) parcel.
	The application proposes to sever a +/- 2.43 ha (6.02 acre) building lot from a 34.74 ha (85.84 acre) parcel.
	BACKGROUND:
	The subject lands include a woodlot that is greater than 10ha, extending onto abutting properties.  The natural heritage system mapping reflects the woodlot on the southern portion of the subject lands.
	The subject lands also include hazard lands (outside of the NHS), being a regulated slope/valley, extending from the centre of the east lot line. The proposed lot would include lands within the woodlot and NHS, but do allow for a building envelop outs...
	Comments are anticipated from the Dufferin County and NVCA. Public Works provided comments.
	RECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended:
	THAT this application be deferred until an EIS has been completed to the satisfaction on the NVCA in support of the application.


	B9-2021 Public Works Comments
	B - 9   2021 STROUD 
	B - 9  STROUD  SUITABLE DRIVWAY

	B9 2021
	21.06.21_-_WSP_Memo_- 2021 - B9-2021 CON 4 EHS PT LOT 4 RP 7R6596 PART 4 Mulmur
	B9 Bell Comments

	6.8.2 B9 NVCA Comments (B09- 2021) 08-JUL-2021 - recommend deferal
	6.8.3 B9 - email to Bryan RE_ Mulmur lot features NEEDS REDACTING)
	6.8.6 No. B9-2021 DRAFT to DEFER
	FILE NO. B9-2021  Stroud    RE:   Consent Application

	6.9 File No. B10-2021
	B10-2021 Notice
	Application website
	Preferred _ LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT 
	B10-2021 Maitland Report (DRAFT)
	______________________________________________________________________
	PURPOSE:
	The application proposes to adjust the boundary between two parcels in Terra Nova, adding lands from the southern parcel to the Northern parcel, so that the ditch is complexly within the Northern parcel.
	BACKGROUND:
	The Northern parcel includes a portion of a woodlot, however, the feature is not within the proposed boundary adjustment.
	The subject lands also include regulated lands associated with a buffer to the regulated flood lands. The proposed boundary adjustment does not include the regulated lands.
	4.5.1 Permitted Uses
	4.5.2 Regulations for Permitted Uses
	3.10.2.3 Existing Undersized Lots of Record

	Comments are anticipated from the Dufferin County and NVCA.
	Public Works has reviewed the application and requested a sight triangle.
	RECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended:
	THAT Committee consider approval of the proposed severance, subject to the standard conditions and sight triangle.


	B - 10 2021 MAITLAND
	Maitland & Burres - Application for Consent
	21.07.02 - WSP Memo - B10 - 758008 2nd Line East and 667282 20 Side Road, Township of Mulmur

	6.9.6 No. B10-2021 DRAFT Decision
	FILE NO. B10-2021  Maitland  RE:   Boundary Adjustment

	Untitled
	Untitled



